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WA Shu=T i e
g
¢ faeefT, 25 sFred, 2025
TRy &1 Ruid
FI. 9. 104 / 45 / A@T—1.—(®)— ulRag

IR BN ARG G (BTSHITHaS / GR) @) uRye, R g sRifgE, 1980 @ SRT 18
D IY—YRT (5d1) BT U3 & 3TIHY 31 ATH 2025 DI FATK Y IY H FRJAF & HIHBIT A AR
T 4541 ¥ RUId 3R s A1 FHfBT i@l &1 TETUNIfRTd iRgT—fdaRor Ud 39 U RITIRIeTdh]
B RUE ggd dall 2| 39 RUIC d Iudeh @ & 918 I Idbx 31 Hs, 2025 qb & T BRIBA!
IR wwfea wfafafdat den @t 1€ ugal &1 W wnfie fosar Tam 2

Irege 3NN SuTeHe]

aRyE §RT 19 STeNI, 2025 H HIUH GGl Yl AR WOH Tdd SNl ATSh DI HALT: T & e
3R Surder & wu # faffad fsar w2

gRyg & 95
o< 99 2024—25 & SR URYG §RT 9 4o AT DI g |

6154 GI/2025 1)
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afafaal &1 1o
gRyg gRT o fafa= womfl &R IR—<om) Afafoa, 918, e’ B, 3R arexr Afffel &1 faavor
39 Rud @& uRRMe—a & o T 2| Mg 9ot iR doai # uRwg ik afafai /@ &
TR & SURARY &1 &R yRRre—a # faar mar 2

ATpsl D Uh AP
RN @ & foU Wl iR BE @ &FaR 3fhs 59 UPKR o

frreTgar FIAMPIARAT | TIRMSIARAT | THIHIARIT | S 3TTS AT A

31.05.2025 7032 27146 14487 27374 76039
31.03.2025 7009 26998 14132 26969 75108
31.03.2024 6879 25989 13630 26012 72510

frreTgar SAZARAT | TANEARAT | OISRl | Seogang AT Hd
31.05.2025 1034 4132 2235 4147 11548
31.03.2025 1023 4101 2210 4140 11474
31.03.2024 1029 4188 2197 4139 11553
FrgaR | SMSaMRE] | TIRMSRY | THIMSIRAT | Sec¥alTs TRl A
31.05.2025 21191 59203 41570 65973 187937
31.03.2025 20613 57630 40611 64574 183428
31.03.2024 20690 57874 40429 65326 184319
FrgaR | SRl | oSl | THASIARAl | Seegsng ARl A
2025-26
(31.05.202577%) 1817 5255 2472 5537 15081
2024-25 4868 15272 7905 16205 44250
2023-24 5298 14960 9281 17205 46744

eI (31 A3, 2025)

m FIRC ®m NIRC mSIRC = WIRC

FAEARA  TAAEARAY  THATHARAY SIS IRAT

NIRRT 93 (31 93, 2025)

B EIRC ® NIRC ®= SIRC ® WIRC
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frafia srfew & 819 (31 5, 2025)

65973

59203

41570

= EIRC NIRC = SIRC = WIRC

FAPARAT  TAAEIRAT THAPIARAT SIS ARHAT
(@) ®iufke AT &1 g3 HAT

a@@w&nﬁwﬁﬁaﬁwﬁaﬁwﬁaﬁﬁ@aﬁsﬂﬁwwé—@ﬂﬁﬁma yfhaTcH® STUTer
T AT 7 gy, Hifch gRGIE, ROIfed e eﬁ?%dulw—qof?gd?ﬁ?laﬁwq?ﬁﬂaﬁwﬁm?ﬁ%l
AW & AReP & wU H, Ul AAAl I 3fUeT BT Ol I8! © & 9 Jrewd Faiell o1 faen <, Adoer &
A1 ARGAT BT garga= Y R TS aﬁ@ﬁﬂfﬁaﬁsﬁ?wﬁﬁmw—ﬁﬁ Blisa
Rigid—smenRa ft & | 3w fafdy ugell, Haral R T¥M HIOHHAT & AIH W, JeHITHAE TR—aR I8
faeare @<h HRar1 € b AT dact U aian el & foaeT ure fha1 Sy I8 e Aapfa & fory faaiyd
fopar ST =R |

(i) PiaiRe AP A Ipedr 3 foay MSHTHINE TS YREDR, 2024

AR SN S H Yge BIURT WA WP $I 9erdl o & JU+l dad Hiadgal & A,
TSATATS = af 2001 # “BURe MR § Sepear @ Ay SnRATHeTS K GRBR” B IAAAT B |
ool a1 DI 4, A REPR SR IcHCdl Bl Uil 99 b ©, Sll MMGY arswd Tl AR s g
BT FHE BRI & | SENT ST H ATUS ®HY A R MR TG, T T ddel HIARS AATST & HAFD
& T8l €, 9fcd U BT e gt H AT Ichedl B TR R 7 WRI HRA dTell Uh Tadl wfh
I

¥ 2025 U UfaERie Iuafdr &1 AEf 7, 99 R BiRe 1R # Sptedl @ fog sngiivasns s
qRIPBR S ol SRl — 25 TRGRTel aul — BT I A1 8T & | 9 REBR & 25d a9 # Y9 & AT,
JMEHITHATS §= hadl 3T DI AhAdRI BT ST o], dfed WRT | T & 9fdsy &7 faem <= e
TSRP & wY H @l 2|

PIANT ANEAT H IPedl & oY AAVANE TSR RBR & a9 DI AT U A& IR AUD
a@ﬁmmﬁzﬁrum%Mdl%\*lch¢g<<m|<ﬁ0ﬁa§%nﬂﬁaﬁwﬁﬂ3ﬁ?ﬁ@waﬁzﬁuﬁf%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ§ﬁﬁ

I<h Tdb f%r%ﬁﬂa TE ST AT ST © | I8 WHE JidT UG IR B AR Ahel Jerael dI (Sareg
B H ANTGRA TS HRaT B |

ey ¥E &N (IR UeEell & YR WR WS IR & (92l & ygar eyl &I 3ifcd = =g ufifted
e dea @& a9 wRga fovar orar 7 1 I8 e ded faf= &= & faRivsl & fdas o 8iar § el
UG $HDT e IR & Jd Ged UM B4 8, O =92 gfshar § |died W &) Fg-rel AR fgryemar

gfaa s 21

HIORCT ST H Scptedl & foly MMSHTHINS TSR JRBR $ 249 FIHRT BT AR 20 fIHR, 2024
DI TS, BAlcd H [HIT TAT| 9 FARE DI M AFG 31 qHARIST U9, dFg (FI9S, Abadr Ud g4
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HRGHAN, Heicd) AT A AYYEd As (AP, A AYgYEd As e g@AeRIT BRE) o faire sifafr
BT TRAFA IURAfT | 7T |

g9 2024 & YEHR faoiar
99 2024 P fASATSI BT Sooi@ = fbar T &

PRUNC AT H Ipedl & oY 2471 | GAag G
SITSYTHATS T YRIPIR
° Trel Wi fafies @1 2mf)

o RRRCe Rer fafics (Feas sofl)

. g Rear fafics (Su=e #o)

Jqdlag @s
. St aeeA aifsen fexdiege fafics (@1 ofi)

. afey fieem B STORE Ul fafics (F=H
o)

. O axeAfaferd fofics (SwRelt siofi)

9Tl MSATTHITE AITHIR SeHel YREPN . ATTHSH aveHe U8 BIg-d HuAl fafics (a1
syofY)

falaN

. g} galfded Sfear ugde fafice (\eam siofi)

o WEe RS (g vd waRd o)

6a1 ATSUITHATE FAHS Al i@l el | Ao Taar gaaoas @IVemdl UmR Us gied faiffics &l SRy
Raré RedR AT orar wWer Rard & o)

49T JMSHTHINE FIHS UIITE B REPR | HUHNR T8 HUAT hUil Hebexiol ToATerdl

39T IMSHIVHINE ATAHRID SRQNAT AR | o IRy e @(R—ar &)
f g

faN

. RRCe Rem fafics (Jar eF)

2477 JMSUTTHIE ATSHCISH IAgHE aTe | Sf. dLdI3MR. HIgd VeI, RIS JeWe] IR die Iad,
Trzve fafics

(i) garad IET 9wdiE 9aRIE

T AT I8 & AT Sqd & Uh 91T & Y H, MSHITHINE & & BRIl iR gl &
AeE ¥ R ARG H BRIGH AR Y T | 39 U8 BT Seed THI WX UR SARIRTAT TF BT Aolgqd Bl
SR ITT o § Aad fIerT weaslt &l dgrar T AT |
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19 A, 2025 PI THANSIIRIT ERT Bl & Ulh, AAG HI, Pl ¥, s floell § Uaryd SifFemad w
MR BRIBHA BT A (BT T | §9 PRIBHA T G [A9g o FIqar $I UAled $RAT UG SHAl ’R
WR AT BT GGG I |

TB MR WR P BRIHA Q6 MR Fol dldl 39 ITd B Ugd AR o1, rad uqa ffagrel, AT
fmtamell SR ifed faRiv=ll &1 (& AT o] 9argd Afemad & J9Ifdd - dTel Agayqol Jal W
frar—famel far T 3R waad aro [ & forw Fd9 Fq=mET &) @il @l TS |

(i)  GfadT q9®

PIARC BRIV § URERMAT R SEAE<E] 98 & AU Jedv & [ FRaR dreva 98 gy,
mEAITHens Afad Aeal & fAmior ok daea # wewyget “fier i <1 1 3 AFw, S a1 uforamsit &k
HIIRT FHSIHoN & fog AH® fuiRa o= €, wue 9w, 2013 & d8d S gRT Afar fhy o= arat
fIeg TR W U TRE B UBSA AMSD € | I HFb HScdYUl AT AeF & wY H P DIA I8, AlhIHD
UHRad] GEREd T iR FHufral #§ uReRIAT 9erdi | Hwem g7 AF®T B 997 @ iR -0 W
ARy 81 38 waiam el 3R FrRme el & gy el - & 3 YAl 3§ 5 © |

(iv) oTaT wdEr 918

HRIF &1 Harsil &1 O] B FHIE B AR FERI BT Hareli o7 et § IR I gd A= e
IR FRIM® ARG & UTeld g A& &R & o7y WM & Fewl §RT UG &I S arell ATl &l
TUTAT b ae H AR B uRve B RImIRY B @ forg wu Afea arfiife, 1980 B URT 29 B B
AT DHg ABR GRT YOG FHIET drS (FIITREN) DI RATYAT BT T3 © | el D S7AdT, IS @ & AGRAT DI
D% WHR §RI AR T T AT DI ASACHNE Bl RIS FRT A febar e & |

) epd! afiear 91

FEhH T § e & B o wew gr1 dfaew gfre (9g) @ yonferlt oiR gfieadror @t e @ Sl
2, RTdaT Stw I &3 &) Uga $RAT 8, S8l Aaw Bl 30 U B IO H GuR B AR R
ERT STRY STSUTASNE T URIET HIhl, ARG Aed, Hgerd, ded iR Falle & JgAR A= araegaare
HT U B & forg AFfeeld @ maegaddr 8 Had 2 |

FAIT 3/l & SR Gl 1021 ASHHT FHIET BRIHH (Y MY 3R TaJaR Hfded YAl I g7 0 SR
fy T |

Rureld= @ & IRM dead sl & Uelio]e & fou @ B daRiewr Sisd s fbg Ty, i
TR

I=Ts — 20 IJP, 2024

THSS3TRa, 5 facell — 3 37, 2024

UIATSISIRE BIddldl — 3 I, 2024

HGY — 19 I[ACER, 2024

ARTR — 5 3, 2025

THIMSIR3N, I~ — 10 AS, 2025

(vi) ®iive Afremas, JgaaE vd aleEr a5

AWM & PIURS AW, JHE Td AR dg (ARISNeNRE]) PURe AMRmad & &F H awar fFHior,
fraR g iR N—Sg@ srgaur™ & forg 9t ol & U H BRI $Rd © | Aefford T iR ATIRIRS
ARIETeT & HEH W, I bu HUA AiHdl AR I RAURDI & drE A Icptedl DI UG BRI H Al
AT R 2| aaEE H, AR a8, serEE R dladrdr d Red O ARISIIRE $al & Fare- &)
e 7, Safd AR Rerd @ dg &1 gAaTdl Sfen fdem afha $u 3 9 W8T 8| a4 & SR ARASiieRe
ERT U T SRIHA! 3R UBell BT U ATUD fdaihd 39 RUIC & WS ‘& H Uwgd (bar 741 2|

(vii) STl R wadar wR snEHvHaTs usd

JTEHTHATS < ST 3R FaddT R A= uged @7 8, N9H Suaeh &9 #§ SWRd o3+l iR af¥asds faara
R & dfgd fHar T 8, Hu Afgdl & AIH | HlORH gRT addal SUTal I 7 ®I Wi faa

O O O O O O
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AT B, 3R FAAAT & &F H WA YRRl & ofg @Rl & UgdM &l TS & | 39 USall P I IR YRR
3R Y RAOURDI B TTeGdT 3R SIF BT g1 & dlfd adadl Surdl & S sratad= BT drar foar o
AP | g¥ B AR, FLATHNES §RT STHoH 3R Faaal R F=fefad W@ ugel &1 Ts:

(@) =R W agdigwsns arfcsis Rigra (enEshdivy)

U A @ ST, MEUNHAE 7 RFER a9 &1 gerar < iR wemrd fawret g fFafa dwemsit &
g e 9eM & Seed |, JEAITHE Arfeye figid (enEediv) fawmla fey € smEeindivy wRemTd
fyarerel Sfik War yerametl @ fou faff=r arfeeie Rigidl sk RUIfET uredl &1 v de Ue™ &=ar & | Wied
UHIA & B & HRUL, MMSOUITE BT I RN el iR |aT yaramll & S+a! Jdas [=eiRar ik
Raifér gftagant & @1 &1 § Ferar ed ke g R H er e oikRefaat 73 @1 g—dRr

A BT B |

JTSSYITA &1 A1 H WRfId 8% 91T &, S RATTd faeret & fore <1 Rigia FuiRa axar 8, iR Wi |,
ot a1 yerarel & forg e Rigld wfie © | seolugd & Uh yqd faRtre favivar s@ar oo 8k
ST el A o e I SfaRTsa wfgamsii @ gorm # Juire fdarvr iR wedT 9e™ o=l © |

(@) srgHaaTs FfE — Suash derfaee iR gy s

ST Delfele” ARUNHNE §RT YH I Ts U [GAIND U8 & [OTadl Seed SUHell & aR H WRISR| &
¥ SIRTedhd] 8T 2| 9@ oy SUHSll & W e, ofkd, 3MRoe dRMvIerdl IR Sudsh &3 3
Tdaq faera arsT fer o €1 s9e Sifafkte, ards Aded SHd ¥ SUFSl BAR’ e Ud afdd 9iT
% forar mar g e Suaeh | Hdfd e aEER, SEaE iR suse i |

@) Sash wrHify w argivasns <y Meawaen Rrex e

argiITasS iR fieeh Menfie Rzafierca ($E7) 3 Jg5 v & 30 7S, 2025 B 7 foeell § “Suach
JOHIY IR AUaash BRI T e &1 Mo fhar | BRaR I9as & SR, Uil 5 WR$GR, ST iR
Rrer sd & wfaftsd faRvei gR1 warford “Sudel IUHIfT 3R drafeee g’ vy R gwmaermel I9e
AN <l | RRaR aeter d $easll IVFIT & fJer ok SHe Sraf=ae, suaoll § e $jell WrieR &l
IS B, SUAS BRIBH Bl M d- H T3S IR fSRiceidrer & gead SudET, sudel Aifadi &
TaTe= onfe & walay vensli R UhIeT STaT 13T |

(&) IRA BN BT TAASYHS (A13%) FarerT
AWM, 9Rd ARPR & YoRsUhs (Algh) M¥M & Wicdlied &xd g, MEafd wU ¥ 9IiaRv—3igdhd

geTai /Haell & YR IR BT & | 39 YA BT Ieed BFAURS B STwd AT IR Fad e dedl &
ATHU AT IURIT BT YA BT 9QTdl <A1 & | 39 USall & HAEIH ¥, YIRI Td 3 BRI BT q-—370+
ISl H SUHSN Yolel Bl WrIfiddl & 3R I WIUa & H el Jfier v & fory dieanzd fear <
/B

(i) HieATey W argHivaTs @ ugd

SRS, rgiaas iR arsivHTaS W dfded gHoE wia YRRl @ forv vuHue iR iuwmd
faemferder 19 97, 2023 & ywEl €, R d8d eAIvHeTs Bl Bl Al WRIeRl & forg wW—fame e
(TR & wu #F A far T ¥ | Rues oafy & <R rEETEens (TR gRT Heiferd v
wfafafeet f=falRaa &€

o TUATH 3HR WUHS! feemfcel R Sgure ATaedadrat, fedHl iR 3aad SHdRI IR JHR STef arel
HIS T $Hel, A1 € AINIS THUHTH Fedl $I JAIRd Y S 8 |

o UMWl W IS THAN I Uh FIR—R HIRTD MR R dAcs Jhex] S+l bl 2T 94T 2 |

o SR Bl INTEH & & foly WTATAY iR guATe /Hivwel R Fafa Iffar smaifea fey o 2
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RaifdT geensit &1 goiieoxer RUfT dwemsi o msHvasns & ‘UolleRol Uicel & Agd I 30T
USTTpROT BRIAT AP &, Sl STIMULATE TR ST © | MSUIVHINES o YIUHATAY Ui |1 wenfud fhar g,
SRl We W ARREY SR UBUENG ¥ 9 @i foRe <@ |dhd © | JATSITHSNE BT YIUHTAT urce

https://www.icsi.edu/home/money-laundring-prevention/ Y3 3UcT&l =

() gfaer SR AFEBIHIET
(i) FHITHAE T (FHAY Su afaa ygae d&T) g @M, 2025

HRRIT 7T 01 3B, 2025 A 15 3MVed, 2025 T TWIAT SHITHIAEUA THAIRC] ThIF, 2025 I DI, R 20 i,
2025 % QT faam T | SHIgwegyd faenfesl @ g9l ffr I 01 sacER, 2019 ¥ THORET WHH B
JUdT TN 20 31, 2025 Tb SRe T Tlhd SHITHIETT THARE] WHH & d8d hax fhy T |

() gSETT (e RA[ds yga@ WET) g W, 2025

[ 7 1 3¥e, 2025 W 15 (e, 2025 TP AT JSIAGYT AR TWhIH, 2025 Yo dI, O 20 (0, 2025
TH qeT &A1 TAT| 19 A, 2024 F T B FHING P, A 20 (A, 2025 Tb, VI JSIMEUA TR
T F AT A UK BT & U o |

i) a9 2024—25 & fou A Hfee g w1 ) Afow fafyr &1 fawar

AR 1 iy Hiee &1 AR AMeIHar B QT B H A DI JiAauT & oy, a¥ 2024—25 (01 30,
2024 ¥ 31 AT9, 2025) & foly AeRN gRT offvard s @fee ura ox= @) sifow fafdr &1 15 78, 2025 T
ger faam 2| s9@ orelmEn, a9 2024—25 & forg e @fee @l s ard smawamdr & 11 &1 @ foft Aewif
BT S TR UM FRA & e 9, Afaw A B 30 A, 2025 TF AW g AT AT B |

(iv) agMivgans @aR wul afual &1 ysus vd faer) feenfader, 2023

15 f&HaR, 2023 ¥ yWTdl S feenfden & uRue gRT 8—9 ITacaR, 2024 BT AT U 31241 (@) d3H
H NS fhar Tar o difds A= Al H S § UdHwuar IR WEdl a1 o 9@ AR A1 § Bo
IR Gael gel & gAaRerd fHar S e | I G feneel & ey 2, 5 3R 6 d By g 8, o
URaR U W@l §RT UG Bl ST A+l arell AfIReh Adiall o1 Yoand, GRIgE WA=y srispd 4 ge
IR I P J9darse JAT fAfSfeT o€ &R SRy uefRid wxAr i 2 |

™) amrgiwans (graera AR araHrery) fRenfadsr — 2020

8—9 IATIR, 2024 B AT URYG HT 31241 (a1ffep) da # HNAT 3R 01 ¥, 2025 | g9l fencwi
P e T ARAIGIRIRE], &3 BRIeRl R TR (dwexi) d 9ewil iR BEl & oy Yl o
SUTEAT B YAUTSTTeb g1 3R AR BT 2 |

(vi) Irsdivyans ey faenfade— 2024

TR = GF P HIRIBAT B IS H Thwudl 3R ATGIGR0 g90 W Se3T W IASUITHINS BrRIhH
feemferder, 2024 S fbU €, ST 1 A, 2024 YA €| BRIBA b A B FIAR BRI MR 3
GO Al ¥ U & IR W 25 JallS, 2024 BT ARSI URYE @I 31041 d8b H 39 fewmfacwi #
Heie fbar T o |

(vii) B THONE-7 WR SER B B Afrdman WA

IRYE 7 8—9 IATER, 2024 HI ARSI AUl 31241 (a1f¥p) do& H WIAR FHul ARIT gRT B THIIC—7
R EHER B B AfHaq A FeiRa @1 | FuiRa affreds WHr s9 yaR &
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o UIR HUA Afa, HUAl IAEE, 2013 B GRT 92(1) B FAR, IS i q9 H Irf¥FHAH 75
Hafrn &

forv aififes Resd IR R BT BT PR g;

o UTER HUA Wed, PHUT SMETRME, 2013 B GRT 92(1) $ IIGAR, YIS i a9 # IffedHad 125
FHafra &

forg arffes Red R sWER &R &1 PR ¢ |

S 1 3, 2025 9§ YW BN arel foxig 9§ | A fRAr WA 2 S SNSHIvHens (UReR duel Afal @t
yeed iR fawr) feemfader, 2023 # wnfier fhar mar 21

(viii)

HifedIR <ol
(®) H¥UTs Joldd

AEATHAE 7 AWl B GiAwm & forg, rgure Uied ‘s Yoad” & fog Hed Ao e wigde fofics & @
U FESIAT SO (THSIY) BT TAMIGd AT § | WER 31 W, 2026 I6 W § AIGCIIR DI AR BT M IoT A
2| I9ra Ififthd ok TR fiorie, U @R, TR ofFfad LaR, SIUERN JdUH ot 39 dAveddR &1 favman €|
W https://complyrex.icsi.edu/ TR TS Y FRD AT BT AT B Thd & |

(@) SIS UHHIsh

TSATRATS IR R RRed afikiel wgde fafics & g awsiar snue fbar @ w9
AR DI 18 AT, 2026 TP Y AT A FEHIAT oI IR STAISSd YB3l ATeddR &I Jiaer
ferT | sTaTgsRel UmHiel Hel (sTdTseR ¢fST #1 fvw) fafem, 2015 & 3rgurer B geadiRerd
PRA B oIy Jg—ATETRT WIFCRR A 2 | AIFCIAR IUBIRIT oI HIaTeilel SIaNl (JUIgwas)
3R IS fIaRTT & Soldgi=id WSRY &I Y6 &Rdl & 3R T oFad & forv ags 3fffse oo
IR Rl © | e fIRgd SN @ oIy https://pes.axardiital.com 9R ST Hehd 2 |

() mzfiea e

IE - 399 YR <dlaliol Ugde foffics & |1 ausiar smud fhar & o ueiaR el &l
Hdl (sTaTgSR SR &1 fmw) faffM, 2015, SITGAT T & SIAR f=iiferdl / IQRl (BIgeR) / FegdhrRl
T WIS [SRica Serdd (TASIS!) Aaegsal & Jaed gg Uivd Tasre—dl & gfaar fer |
AIFCIIR BT IaTierd HEBRU &) H Be Aled 26 3fel, 2029 T 99 ¢ | Aa [Od JMaRI & oy
https://registration.pro-cs.in/ TR ST H&d & |

() THarsTd a9

JMEUTHAE 1 HAH BHIATHGE <ol Ay Wsde foffice & |1 U |Asi R gwer fby €
aifs 9 U YRR WSl DI WISAAT AGCdIR URAGYH TS HRd GfauT UeH IR G | I§ Th
fafelm R srpefeT ufamem B, 9" @3 Wwed wERd oxd, oiiffd  dE—<arfial ek
SU—ISTANTHARI DI TS 3R (U gwgl, Wi, <7 AR, @i, HR gued M W A1gd
ST @1 Glaumd €| e Jalls, 2027 TP 5 UADIT BT W FeAlhRM Mged Iad HR Tohd ¢ |

RS Ira{*\Qd START B oTU https://www.fynone.com/company-secretaries G ST Thd & |

(®) STigaTHs WRef

T o Bad srorar fhace Uisde fofies & @ e wusiar fear & dife U9eR el Bl
F-UHTHUAS AR U HREIT O A | I8 Udh U1 A & Sl RauR®! &I Tavagds @ o & folg
D5 3R 5T WHRI R P& dI T3 A= AoRil @ SIMeR ard &) § #eg ol 8 | I8 ¢
UeR WERIl Pl TAUATAS & [y IUSTE IRGR Arerrel dd a2 Rargedl uga uae &, forad
S® THUHUAS UTEdl B FHME U< B8R | I8 WiteddR RIRRT &% R Sude @ 9e fawd
SIF6RT @ fTU https://emsme.com/icsi/signup TR ST FHA B |



https://pcs.axardiital.com/
https://registration.pro-cs.in/
https://www.fynone.com/company-secretaries
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19. FHufrdl & oIy MSTUTH UfhaTy 3R BIRfelT — Ue uRay 23 fdaR, 2024
20. | THUHUHS: URAR] @ oy SraerR 25 RIGaR, 2024
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Jd 7 16 fEHaR, 2024 & o0 ARG & AFH ¥ (9w Faeer) (i demm) fafaw, 2024 S
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IRl Ald S TIF Td Al IS (HUISUHRIREY) §RT S1eRIferd Iog ATdeifidh
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12, 15, 17, 18, 22, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 31 3R 32

(iv)y  3maIH} fAgd®, 2025 4R FHTdEH

ITSATHATS o IIBR fATP, 2025 B S B & oI Nipawy Affa & Fewi ik = #3r ofik o= o=
fhal B MIHR faerd, 2025 &1 9T 515(3)(dN) & T & T “AWHR’ B RIS & iR ‘FHu Afa & U
TG e @ Y sawd WRIeR AT gAREd R & Y, IREGR aR R iR #R o wien ufhar &

8
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ATIEIND UEG3 & IR § SRNGAR DI FHS BT HADT B & [oIQ U IS DI/ JeAihd UISahd’” Yoo B Al
gl

ARIPR AP, 2025 B Sird & AGEAT DI Yok AT BT 19 BRI, 2025 3R 27 BRA), 2025 & AT H FITda
e by T

JMSHTHINE & eel, WQH i Yaall & =ged H MSHHae ufaffdrded 1 16 e, 2025 dr MR fIRIH, 2025
DI SirF TG AHAdT B TaR AR @ T 3 ue TR &R gea wRga fhy | sngHivwens ufafafer 7 s
faeraes, 2025 @1 o_T 515(3)(d) & dEd & TS “TEHR” B GRETET H FHU Al & UL B AHA A @ AT TG
IFRITIET YA B Bq IR MR @Rpdl A A GATdId Bi:

wd. | do5 ok megft A Ry | T fRe BT A

ERKEIEE

iyt fordenm frarwo
. 17.02.2025 sir e
05.03.2025 g e iR BfURe BRI HATT

Y gbol @teR)
2. 25.03.2025 A darg o s w59
IESREIGE

A HATAH

sft fv1 RfSIo]
3. 27.02.2025 T ol Bfd-e Fa

IS BRI HATAT 3R eI d BRI HAT

1 o S AR
4. 04.03.2025 A HA
YR IENT §) SR g H#A

sfieft e ffRaa @sa
5. 13.03.2025 AT DT w3
AT Al Td A I HAT

6. 21.03.2025 AT AR QB_:E‘;\’H faera w9 w350

o1 gef<ic g
7. 21.03.2025 HEHT 4S8, SEoRM Ud SRt 54

Y Sfias < arsh

8. 07.04.2025 T B e, @1 qd e Se WA

= ofl. fper ¥
9. 17.04.2025 A1 Pl ud e E4)

10. 15.05.2025 ?ﬁ'a“ﬁ' e eseacor e

HNEEA & e

ff 9 IR ydq
11. 21.02.2025 e ()

= W AiueT 3R 2 Tew Riea
12. 27.02.2025 I A, (@rCer)—1 wT

He 9o

. Gia 3
13. 18.02.2025 T, fag afafy

FANT g greon
14. 18.02.2025 AT GG A, AThTHT

2 ofid AR ™
15. 20.02.2025 qH-1T e e, AlhaH]

fRrem, AfZer, a1, ga1 v el AfAfa
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sfY gdYor @eSearer
16. 28.02.2025 UINRIRINERESS
SI. 2arT ireh
17. 05.03.2025 A S e
Rremr, AfZer, a1, a1 v Wl |fAfa
o sugEWE AR ucd
18. 06.03.2025 MR INNEIRERS)
sft fAedvay B8 &I
19. 08.03.2025 UERIRESIER IS
st 9. Eds
20. 08.03.2025 AR ESICRSRIIRESS
pe ;
21. 11.03.2025 UIERIRES CRSRIIRIESS
sff AsHd AR
22. 11.03.2025 HE T ATHadT el
23. 12.03.2025 gﬁ;@f N
24, 19.03.2025 ?q%;% b
HARTAd [hIFRIEG WIS
25. 20.03.2025 "II"I"‘I\IH qag A, XIS FHT
26. 26.03.2025 mw" “'aiii
3 M Afdd
st fia s
27. 07.03.2025 Brerrey e
28. | 27.05.2025 g&”g;%‘s'w' STHY
yax afifa, Jmaer fagus, 2025 & Gsw
29. 17.02.2025 st A fY. =terdy
30. 17.02.2025 Yt SETder gy
31. 18.02.2025 Y rerofl auf
32. 18.02.2025 #H Ras T
33. 19.02.2025 Y fawy AT YW
34. 20.02.2025 sfi gHAFAR DA IATA
35. 20.02.2025 sfi = g gssT
36. 21.02.2025 i 1y, fawn
37. 24.02.2025 f. IR 7
38. 24.02.2025 st gefiR [wr
39, 24.02.2025 sfi vz waE
40. 24.02.2025 A 95T
41. 24.02.2025 s faeagaR (Sw) fawa auq
42. 24.02.2025 1 v & dudEEe
43, 25.02.2025 s YeTar Ao
44, 25.02.2025 Sf. Helf-ifer TRTEar
45. 10.03.2025 T aRfdT “romgq wrET
46. 12.03.2025 sl <A UG g
47. 12.03.2025 sl ghvar ga
48. 19.03.2025 ot Flaes AR
49, 25.03.2025 st dor I st
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ET—ATHTIT B Tax ARl
AR fatsd, 2025

(@) B, 3w vga ik e
@) BT gofIdroT
(@) €gE [AR g

1 3199, 2024 | 31 HTH, 2025 @ AAW & IRM, Tollagfed URITH IR UHeAe G H HA: 28,798 3R 7,742
BIA Uolipd 8| 31 g, 2025 b, XX YA ¥ I8 USIHRYT HRAT dTel 1,87,937 BT ¢ |

@) &uft afag srfer yaer e (Hgagdd)
HASEST & AT U Ugel 39 UHR &

o HgEs s - Toagfed T # Ucde GofIdRol: Su-l | (Feies) fafme, 2020 SR &7 &
TR, HITASEC! IT0T BT Tolla]fed Ui & fog e tolaxvl o) dad 2 3R e & Jaaeg
JITT Dl AR MENTHNE—qEIer /&9 el [/ IRare ([AeRl) gRT HAfrd wen—der
fRreor # enfiet & Adbd T

° Hagsel— Tieam &1 dara: AIUasscl &I o RAle Hiaee Ale (e Smamid udien) &
A W T Srem 2, RoTH SWIeaRl @l R/ [l 3 Gagreia RIF ¥ 3 oucid /S¥hed &
A | WX 7 do B AT gt 2 | Rl safr & IR, wem 04 wE 2024, 06 JelTE 2024,
09 FTdeN 2024, 11 STHANT 2025 3R 03 TS 2025 BT JAMAFIT B Ts 2T |

° HgassA— IJaur Y8 o ard U SR Afe ¥ Reke dfqeRhT ufshar & Aeaq ¥ sifFagd
PR MR wel | SHIGaRt o1 RfIT X & forg, w7 qlem 7 et e & TG U]
DI HAR B dTel AR Y oI drel 999 9 fhy & &R vl ifow wiem 9 ugal 2 € @l 3@fy
BT Hip X AT BRaT 2 |

° AT ATTATZT FETY: WA IMSHTHAMS— AT 3MR gD &= Hraferdl 3R AT (Fex)
P AT AIUdgscl H AT BF dTel SEIGdRl & folv 3ffFcisd Hed AT &Ral & | Jd9
ORIl & USITRUT B AT & d1e, 99 99 3§ IR IR a9, dg, Jolls 3R q6dR & Tl 4 Yo
B 3 |

o HEsSE—Tgs: I 7 HuHssel SHGARI & foly YJeT WRIe & §YUl UIeshd dl MAel Hd
gY HITHEEd—TTse O foram 2| 3 TISSgd W @l JgdIse W U B |

. Ao IHVUR: ILTI—-IMETRT ReTT T B B v, Nuassel GoldR & T I Wrassal
SHICAR] & U ddfeud wU A WUASIS NHNER Yo B b1 FoR foram Tam 21 I8 16 S, 2022
A AUAESE # USHaER0T B arel BTE W A AT 9T |

(i) B ASca UBd
(@) dRIX STRGAr

TR 7 U AR B F e gfenmai ol safid oxd & 923y 9, Ruid & dgd afy & SR 2 W)
@ fafer=t faemert / favafaeneal § o8 HRIR SITReddT SRIGH (W) Mg fhy, R 9 dvere +ft wnfie
g N arer engdiivgens 3 etfOre A8anT & ded FHsidl Sud IR 8RR fhU €, ik Rud & d8d @y
% SR T 4,71,038 BTA 7 AFfed w0 A U9 A0A § 407 foram g W 7 R 9RA H 90 BRI
Halt / yeetferat # ft W forn | s wfoa a1 B AreE a9 &R <o & gReer / arHier A | AE wfre
BT IMHAT R @ oy, S &3 § AUl fTd oxe IR e e foar T 8| G, Xe HATed &
THIT W, BT, JWAEDI R Retdl B N U & IR F SITed dR1 & fo¢ < & A= omdf ufeds
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Thell H S HRIX SINRedhdl HRIHA AT B T&T & | SHD IfAE], ST B FAed 3R ey
faemera IfAfa & idFfa SUASIRTY Taal § S RT SNl URUA & JMER TR < W H AIgdl (EifTd &
3 forv HRIR Arfee= 9= ff mfog fu o <@ 2 |

(@) uf¥gw 9T ¥ REel @ fav gdigaens sReER arigefT w3

JMEATHATE 3R T I TRAR & ufdad &1 7y e fiee (rfiodeags) 3 63 w9 A 29-30 S,
2025 ®I IoA JfETIRTH, Ta TR, u¥=d ama # didivavaed oa f[derR R & Sidva a9 STy Arafis
faemerdl (209 W) & AR U@ (VHRTRTE) 3R Ared R () & foy SReR Arfeee Srimd &1 e
o |

39 S U & ATEIH [, SIS iR e far, uRem e WRaR 7 AYH wU A B B URIRE
T R RIS &7 @ raran, S G el § BrAl @ foy SRR ArTeeE Srded ot a3 2g
TIRAATS 3R TACT Bl URIE iR SR fhar | SriwH H T 550 fRuerei iR e gemdsi 7 9 for,
ST 3o whall # Fafid wu @ BEl @ forg BRER ARTeR STt & |

(1) daT—oe (Fara wH) Rreor

I < & A= 9T H Rerd o1 a5 drafadl iR il (FeRl) & ArE ¥ Ureilaged U (FT
UTGIHH) AR B UM (FAT UISshA) & B @ folt Mged AFersT daidd weny UaM &Rl ¢ |
I Dal & Wd H GAM & A GAAg ANeIfrd Fed AT AU AU S BIH Bl Hef—wel e al
G U™ A B uF © |

(@) s—affT uida & fau N aarem RaifST

HRIT & -1 UIce BTAl BT UTSAHH AR, IRt iRk exe Sl $—afr arfl &1 STINT avas 32
G I & [l Ush $eRB¥ UG &Rdl © | a¥ & SR, Tollagied AR Yhed &l 93 & faf= fawai
R IR dart g™ fifedr e Rare fog o 2

(%) SifFcTsT Gag farr 9=

A o RuedE 3@ & SRM, ALud. oel & % 99 ¥ Usel Yoliag(cd 3R Wb QM URH &
BIE & oy aifelrg dag AR ey Ao o |

(iii)y Y¥b A

LA & 20 HS, 2025 Bl GAM & BMET & oIV fI99 ®U I d9@ Y6uF IR T8I Yau9 TR Udh dfeAR BT
IS o, fd IRes aehT <F. Geila dwaar ok MfdeRiT fodfaa aradifre St war qdff 3 Wi
forar |

(iv) Jgarcaq

T ° W faddre & STHIcdd & TgEN TR 11 SIdNl, 2025 ¥ 12 SI-d8, 2025 ddb 3gHGTEE § Bl &
forT w99 991 aiiies L Icqd, YAcAd—2025" (31id, BT HUT Aol BT 2591 IS FRIA) AT
fopa |

JAAT—2025 & AT 11 TRl 2025 BT el 23 HRAMRICIG RANTT BI Tg AR WA & 4 &HA” BRIl
3R 73 TERN (FeR) & Wi A 3 HTAHA H 9N forar | drRiEH #1300 F M@ BIEAT 7 WRT forar| S
AT YR 12 SN, 2025 Pl b YT AIE BT AT a1 121, [5e g1 faordmsll & oy QRedR q9RIE
AT fBam T |

v) faemeft ar—gaE
JelrE FE DT EwIT & Bl @ agfired Afafifel & wemm @ @ ot & 7@ D w9 F A o | |
AR 30 &3 STl iR ARl & AH 9 HRIX ANTwadl 9<e afed g 7sF fdast afaaiia,

AT Hidp o%e, Y BN, RIwH wed, fafdre fawai &1 #ed, dde Rebd Saaude WU™, UdaR Uise
gferRrdT, Sad Prere TR T 31 BT AT HRT 2 |

(vi) BEl ¥ g w9 9 TR ager iefia a3 #) uga

AR A Bl & A1 fAdax S 8R1 A7 M—USN H JeARII0] A TATH: 99 Heledd 71T difds 31
drT At 59 9EIfoTe Bl & fog IRT 81 99 |
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A & GeRl 3iR BHEl & FEAN 5q, WA o [har RIRT &1 A e faan, Rrad dfied e &
RIEREIRICNREE

(vii) Rreraa gue™ yeis

HIH, U Bald TR Jorell & A | A & RauRS! 9 I« R, gemal ok ueel &1 FRE
PRAT 8, T AT &l AHI—T9 UR (U] Harsi § IR PR H 7 Aol ¢ |

(viii) qR¥BR 3R BEgRI— angivwans s ¥eam M g

e wu | fMos &k Afde wU | AUl BT B HU- Afd Ueahd T B Bl Aicrad iR IRT &
DI e |, AW R UG TR, AT "AgATH3ME BTF Rl DIY g’ DI RIAT dI T8 8 | $ & faenmaen
& A, U BTAI DI ARAEC] GoHRUT Yo, TR Yo, TRET Yo, To—TRIel TWIeToT Yo AR HISN Ua
URaR PIRAHH H YT b GHI QF I Yo Aled YS(IbROT / YIW Yo Pl YA B A YR ARE I B &l
e

I TS & AR TR BIA I 918 H Yiolladfed YR /WheFed URH R AN Yed & e I 91 82
SIS

99 ® <RM, e ®u I oS a7 & 82 B AR Ade wy W AUTG AN & 186 BT 39 AT B Jdiid
SmIfad 8T 2 | 39T fIaReT fFrgaR &

H1E @l ATATT aitfe gyl | scafte durd) S gl Agar (%)
ael—24 29 6 13 170,500
Ag—24 09 03 02 46,000
24 17 03 06 90,650
TS —24 23 04 11 1,70,200
TR —24 24 3 12 2,18,800
RIdaR—24 42 12 10 2,97,150
JNITER—24 32 2 12 2,01,500
TaeR—24 53 6 18 3,38,450
fadeR—24 54 18 18 5,84,950
SHaNI—25 41 7 19 3,96,650
HRAR—25 55 7 28 5,34,700
AT—25 36 4 19 3,63,400
amiel—25 35 4 11 2,13,150
Ag—25 14 3 7 1,88,000
A 464 82 186 38,14,100

(ix)  Nalre WA T o ava wHaAl

JAMEAITHIMS 1 < R H eIl Icpeedl aF iR i Tl B, el IR 3 BauRs! & 999 e &
deg B forg, fafi=1 fazafqemeral iR etflvres ARl & A1 FHEiar S99 R edeR f$U €| sraeffe dudh
@ AT TR F S B ARG TF 13 AR Yo AR (SMERmEyH) &R 11 iy fafYy fawafaemerat
(TYeR) & AT FHSIAT QU9 IR gEAeR a1 8| oot ddb, e o eifirs wAanT & forg 146 |Hsiian smusl
R R fhr & 58 9 8 9usiiar smu=1 o) Rureli| a¥ & SRM gweR fhu v 9| 59 dred & |
HRIH -1 Rureld™ @y & IRM F9siiar U9 R gWeR {6y &, I73] gdl 39 UHR &

P9, faeafaemcra &1 aM sraferfy (eder) wusitar | @ fafdr
1 qugTelier Jfgedrad] gledr favafderer BISIEN 23 3TN, 2024
2 IRAR Jeg |, HaeAgR HIAGR, 3ifSem 04 ¥g, 2024
3 MECIRERCIECIE D) PIABT 06 ¥g, 2024
4 EaMSSACREIERIER EREY 08 ¥, 2024
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5 dTeR favafaeneas ERISN 16 IR, 2024
6 faeetl et favafierea et 22 TEER, 2024
7 AT M e feafaemer BAURT FATSH TR 27 faHeR, 2024
8 ORI #RIersH JHarie MR 12 S9aR], 2025

3% Irarar, Rueld= 9§ & SRE W= 3 59 el & 1T ey b AT b A AHSidT S
W FEIER Y § S0 g §9 IBR ©

il / fazafqenea /4 URTOT Y

. AT D5 AT .
i & B B T BT AT T LL T fafer
IS
1| TSR PISHTS! T THUSIR Yo dieiof 16 fa¥iaR, 2024
AT By
x) I=T g

(@) g fim Jro

aTERATRTE e B dicares Ao ge @ 8, R 18 af W afde Ay o1 w18 o @fe 39 Ao &
dEd el 7 999 @ folg o3 © | WollaRgfed U™ # Uoliahd Id B & oy Hvd 53 &I 500 0 &
AIHTE RTRT BT YA BT ST © (A, B Hekdl & IFeH) | SHS STeld], SURITh HICATE hadl I USiTdhRU]
PR & forg w1y & f74 Yoob H RArad o 718l & | Avd A5 994 & g2ge Afhdl Bl 3ii-erg dfshar &
AT W ATAG AT AT | D DRI T 8F 3R S8 AIvd 73 & U H MSHIVANS & A1 Uoiid
d XA D d1e, ST b Hls FaR IMMdfed fhar S € | BTl @l Goilay(cd W™ & ot ga &l dsiidpd HRd
I BIE BT NHIA B & © H Ioolkd BT MMaLAd & | T W[ gRT UAsUhe! & Aread | arreff &
d% QT H WSl S ¢ |

(@) dgw snefrars

R Q¥ W B RS AR IRedl Benm b v B forv anSiivwans i sieifire” g fhar 7| ug
3IST UBd B T & gar Rienlit & W & aReml @ ek T @ foly 3% 9w &R SR fawa
zﬁmﬁamaﬁ?mzﬁrmﬁiﬁaﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂwmﬁamaﬂﬁ%m@uﬁw:ﬁﬁ(Q?ls‘rﬁ)zozoa%
gy feomse far wa, rEHivHens B sidfUars WAy e iR dlerd e &1 derar a1 g1 I8
TS W, FAR—FHETT TR FgorarT—Sg Riem o1 dieanfed dear 2, R afdsy @& gefear o
WW%WW@WWWWW%I@W%W$WSW HeI T
IeTT BN &l H ThIaHd Ichtedl B HWDIA BT [dH™ HRAT 2 3R AT & BURe AR UReR gfar 4
Fg@ @ YfAereli & forg gar uferell @ uge HRAT AR I TR SRAT ¢ |

Ruleld= @l & SR MSHITHaNE g1 f=faRad siefiars smafvra febe v

. JMEANTHNTE ¥ SR IMNAIATS BresI (MENTH) & FEANT A 02 fAaR, 2024 BT 9RT R B
THAl § el X1 3R X1 & BIA @ ol MSAITHNE HIAH SAAUATS BT AT BT |

. JMSAITHINS - H9d ffrae Ugae fofiics & |8anT | 25 e, 2024 3fR 09 AR, 2024 B wRA
TR & el H & BelT X1 3R X1 & BIE & oIy HHAA AAIITS BT AT 65T |

. JTENTHTS F A9 Ricaveig sy fafics & I8aiT 9 11 FdeR, 2024 3R 03 fAHaR, 2024 &1
ART WR & hall § Bell Pl X1 AR X1 & BHEl & {017 BEw ST BT s b |

(1) I wfaems feaw g

IRA AR & [Aftd SR T & uga & ooy, S o | iR saa! favivdmel, favmer wRa &
Jdfae # fAfed Aifered ddal & IR § Bl § STeddl Uel &R9 & U 26 AdeR, 2024 &I BEAT & olw
Afaem g vears gfernfirar smafad & |

(&) GwaRI®T U9 WM 9 UR Sirsd e

AR =T Fefl *uusq‘\isﬁ’\lqwsrﬂa%wmi%wa—w&ﬁmﬁwwmﬁuﬁaﬁﬂfﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁwﬁ
HIdd B I8 B B U U 3iiciied fdas &1 mars fhar, s = s, Wﬁ’cﬁ fawa 3R gver
HWWW?@ﬁWW?ﬁﬁWWWWWW%—IH%—IIHI 1 U4 A S

ErECIEEIES! JeARIRI — 2024 |
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@) REs dacree doa

HUN AfIal & UTSHHH AR UL b IR H FROR FAE, AW ACdd SR YAR-UAR & Seed W, WA
"Riers T e @ Sidild Whd /Byl Rl @1 e sefded o6 aifed &1 | 99 & aRM, e
% forq fafr=T AT R 56 FRYA SMASTT fhy Y 3R T2 WR I 4000 ¥ 310F fRerdl 74 91T for |

(@) fga aRd SN FF gEAAN

IR AR HUN BT TN 2024 BT AT BHEI & DU BIA AR FRd &3 & FH, Teedr 31
FHS BT TG B Y fba1 7T 7| 59 U Pl S AlhT ARNER & Aedd F T BfY iR danRe weedm
DI FSTAT AT AT | FARKI BT A IS 16 TdGR 2024 P DRITCR, AHAATg H AT AT =7 oI |

(®) sifga ARdI arqe—faarg wfoafiar

e o Rueld= @ & SR B & o1y 2347 1Rge YR are—faare wforafirar 2024 &1 MATSTE fhar |
S IS BT IIERT AR 18 I[ACIR, 2024 Pl ATSHITHINS— YNSRI, faeell H Afra fwar 13 |

(@) afere v feg des afaaifar

BTE & oG9 DI Bl go- & 10, AR IRad AR ey oRg= Wforafrar &1 Sire| axar &, forH
B aifTe fval R fdy forad § &R S Aoram e # euiad & folg S axd € | SR & greiaegfed
IR B U™ & BIAl & oY 2441 JRaet AR ey oRge ARG 29 JTaCaR, 2024 DI SIATLIARN
ERT AT &1 T o |

(=) sfga wRd e+ ufaaifar

Heemd « Rue™ o@f® & IR 2241 iRae 9Rda e dic Iaiar &1 amared far iR afoifiar &t
TS el JSS 22 AR, 2024 DI a9z H AT b a1, RoraH | AR &3 B SHi T 9RT o |

(31) feafeT wiaEd

AEAITHIMS F BTA DI A9fA= & fU IR WeR 999 & U FROR 79 H, g digwens fedfeT A
Bl YHIAT Bl ¢ | I§ Sl HIYH BHEI BT AMAWH FaR AR AJcd DA Bl F@RT & foly v WET iR
AMHYP Ha Ue™ el B, Rra Qe s 3R U9aR Scptedl & 4 &1 @I$ BT uTel Sff Fd | 39 A1doli=ih

o 0

YT # FHATIT I3, ATATa-THD A AR WRAIT db Dl UIdled $R, dichliold AR I fddbRid

PR, 3R IRP AT 3R YRR URfT BT FGTaT ol & Yab AeIH & WU H URBIodd fhar 11 2 |

Al e srEafer # fedfT ararsfen afha 21 sifwier st (@weR)) 1 1 e feafen arsfear o
AT Bl 7, R BE @1 Sl e 8| BEl ®f 39 e 89, |fhd §9 ¥ 9T o 3R 39
3TAAR BT ST IOTHR ALY 3R FawhT YRR 91 & forg wreaned foar i <er 2| sngefiowens feafe
AEE] & ATEgH 9, HRIF $U |fId Ug & BE & 999 [da @ oy el ufidgdr &1 gite &_ar 2| I8
U8 $ad die—fadre de WA 81 §; I8 HUAT Afdl B 3FTell NS BT U= I AH B BT ATew, dbi
Bl ARIAT B BT TRIMTAT AR AT & AT Jcd BRI BT AHATITH & PR & R 3 © | ASATTHINS
feafeT Ararsfedl & wemd fidar 2024 # HUE Wemsi & a1 STa 2025 ¥ IYH BT |

(‘c’)ﬂ;;?ﬁﬂﬂwaaf,aﬁ%aﬁ,aﬁﬂaﬁﬁaﬁaﬁ%&ﬁﬁ@wﬁaﬁa}mmﬁmﬁﬁ@/m

KEil

AMEAITHINS = RA WHR DI AR Ugell & Igod IRA AIF Joll, dd i, IR HFai &k

gfeTeT=al & URART BI MSHTH’E B/ RAIT ST Yo Bl 2 | $9 AT & eiia Fforad SR &1

AT PRIGR BRIHH H TSIV & T9I 3T Yob ¥ 100% RIIT &1 SR 8, STafcs TR & o T Yoob

I G Sl & AR of ®U | AN BT B

> IRAR W1, IRAG 1Y W1, AR AT 3R ) el geil & afersi=al (S dar & SRE A
ar gg ¥ gdEd BF A1 fHdl o BRU ¥ dRAMT B 9T gU §) @ arS iR ey |

> HRARI AT, AR IR A1, AR ARG 3R 91 e gl (e @i afde e & sideia
AATGRT o dTel &l 41 W1 WA €) S AaRd / Hari-ga B4 |

> IRA 1, IR arg A1, ARG AR iR 941 aieife gat (R 9ifc afde sHee & sfdd
JAFGRT @ dTel & HHT 491 eMAe 8) & |1 Bl & a1s |

> g 3l S MRT WRBR 1 AU AT & Fqid SFTIR" & w4 # 9l Y iR IR A1l R B
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SN SO ST TSI, MK SUTEed, HISTAT UG AT AlbaH] Aas]
T 9T ORR, GG A, AlhAH]

1 9eR e, AH AMGadl e, WRd AR
2N B g G, Fde GG, HIHT, WRA ARDR
Sl IR 8, AT el e

SN 9N 989, AFAET ATGAHT AERT

3T UeTell iR, AR AldTHl o

3 TGS TS Ucd, AR AlhadT e

S 29T Siefl, AT e 9

St ST e, AFAN G e

Sf. SId |AR I, AT GG Ha

1 AT TR, AT AHTT A

st SATeToll IHl, AR NS ANy, ATh]

3N HYAHAR FGhid Talld, AT ATHTH AGH

N T B YEGH, HEAE AT e

s O 41 FleR), A9 A 9e

S UdIvT GeAdTel, AR AlhaqT e

i1 TSI I, AR AGaHT Fad

71 R19] faeT, A AlBaT AeRT

s R ITATIBHIET, HEER A A, ATDIH]



https://www.youtube.com/user/TheCsInstitute
https://www.youtube.com/@icsiyoutubechannelforstude2052
https://www.threads.net/@theicsi
https://www.whatsapp.com/channel/0029Va9qP1lD8SE69ZDQvW3F
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HART TS, A GG G, D]

WHER RT3, AT 9E A6, ATHHl

2 GER T, AT DA FE

s faoT 99d, AT BT e

1 faw] <A M, A WEE A

it 3Rfde ATdd, AT ATHAHT Faxd

st 1. ars. rads, AFER AT ey

3l T HCT YATG R[4, AR Alha4] Faw]

3 PIClG FAR, AT AGAAT TR TG YR AT FER, IR A8, 2025
3 P JATE TS, A BT HG

Sl sHA AR, AEAT Al 9T Aoy

s HR ATarl, A AThTHT Fad

ST GORT e, AT ATHadT Fasd

1 R HYYY, AR ATHad Fa

3T fIeeaR B8 RN, AT AThHT e

. ITad fHIRIg BRI, A9 S 96, o]
£ YUs gcd, AT GRIHAT, ORI

STl Dt TR graol, Euyd, Aftd, diuie wri #3rery
ot TAITS. ¥, 3MSUTH, Afd, THUEUHS HATAY
2 GBI S1., HYgh Ared, THAY

S ATEE Q8 g9, S1ede], el

2 R BV, T HAl (WS I9R), FATST BT, A SIIfd Ud STl Hedlol, IR UQy]

ST, 9 =g, oTSued, it (SUdsey), J& HAed

<1, Iroitg A7, Afva, R fawrr g fafS afua, afr ord fowrr, faf vd = A=mer |
$f IR.UA. Udd, Faw, HdSer

2 Ul fSigel, §g<h Afd, SIdvel g9rT, AereicT

1 AT R 9, QU G BRIGRI, ARAR I He, Jd3

s gxfder Rig, R WRreifie TReret iR ol yge faordr, aRe IRT aieifie 2024
A sfifer <dl, @l e faoidn, e aifdrn <eiorR, BIfevT 2024

£ AT BAR, IMSYUH, FATEwmR), R, IR Uasl ARDHR

3 dud RHE, MSYUH, 3MYh, SR T

s ARG wifear, Quidiield Haw, |l 3R eedh, THams Ty

st ). Ioig, PRGN e, I

SNt TR TS VG, FRIGR e, dd

£ TS BAR, BREGRI o, Al

5 o’ AR W1E, PRGN s, €

# AU, e, dRIeN e, b

AR STl STTEIN HHR, ede], il

SN . Q. Bsd, 7 FERR Fewd vd i Ay wmeierr, srgeidems

. () TE. UidgaR, fewe, Jord I Ay feafderem v e (@9R), oRa iiereH
faeafdemer |

S Al SRIad Hed, VSR, TAMSUATH
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s Rra g, ITRRER i Huiet, 7ERTg, Ja3

1. WEIGd SIIHdTd, ALRITUdh FQRrd, 3MS3gyd HaeTgR

£ IRN9e A1, THSl, TN fafics

I, P Ig uis, Fewd (1), STRemSyTd

ot SfEqaTST aRere, gl U4 Afd, BT faar axem

WA 3o AT, aIRS BRIGRI Surene—fAfe vd wfady, vasive §¢ fafics
S HIAT ITRIT OF, STISRY e, weg yewr feifie e M, SR |9
8 SN SIeTs, fedel, & FHior ST

ot oY TR, FRATUB, § T AP forfdT BresI=

USRS CH I

£ ]fT FRTe, o1ener, SgdIdens 3R fadd g, SRR Mawd, smeddiag

1. LS. AR, et iR S e e, e, oiae IR adia e uRve (TeSHE) |
1 TTTATS T AT, TSR YIwhT, 3T AT, ATSTdT

1 3mefliy AR @M, vy Fowre v Aigall, M Wid vaaa 3t sfear fofics
AN HHe &, geu e e, foad fafies

S T FRell W7, SU /I HIGN, IRA 96 |9

@) shEd s

@) @I @ yRER 3 gA:

(@) grarerg
. JAMEAITHRNTS TS, 22, SRRl URAT, Al TS, 78 el |

° ITSATHIE BT, H—37, Tdei—62, AITS], AR TSI
o SANTHATS BS99, W—36, YdeR—62, AITST, IR YT

(@) ARASNRIRS (®fuie AfARIRT, rgu 3R U &g)

. Hqag ¥ SnEAvHeTE—RAISTemRer
. TERMETE H MSHTHME—AIGNRS (R gel HME—2axEg @& &9 § ST ST o) |
. DIABTAT H IMEHTHIME—ARNSIRIRS (R ugel HiS—dIaAdbIar & w9 H ST STl o) |

(1) &= BRI
. ERIFCINE - PIADTAT
° Q?ms‘wsﬁ — '_‘I—S: feoett
. SRS - qes
. TRATSIATRAT — IS

(B7) =T ()

JABHGIETG, IS, WU, JaI¥eR, WIadrs], PRIGC, Sifdacl], BIIETE, MISTIETs, al, TAs—Iargle], e,
§aR, SRR, HAYR, Bifed, DIBIR, TS, AGY, AT, HYD, ANYR, U], Jul, J[IdIe, [, BV, IGIYR
3R ISIERT |

(ii) g vEr § gar @ fav 9 ¥ ygw uwd
®) =T / e / 8= srafaa

. IgHTHaTE —HAASHRE, ARER (39 vgd WNIARS /R & 9 A ST €T A7) —HRRAH
¥ gRaT w5y Nenfied 3k gfard giar e i fafics (TavasngenseR) & Haer—2, 3EuHe,
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AER H 1567.5 a1 AR BT Udh Wic WNIGT AT | S9 qES W, ARISISIRE AAR URER &1 Ao 75
2023 ¥ Y goTT | 0T SRl qR1 @1 gabT B, o Rafdd, sofdgea, wifdw, siierm, vediesd forde,
3rel BeifeR onife wnfie € | i e 9 aRER & SIfMIT & fofg denfiie srgAres ama & &
afhar T R 7 | URER (T did) # el &R omariia Sl giawnell & forg dwdHe, ad iRk
04 HiSTel € | Wae H Holl BTl Junferdl wfid 2, S dIeRdl dbeile aTell TadIgsd ReH, Bramard
D HRI o foI AR I BIex (URIRS MoR & H W), 3R B /AR F ST G BT HH HIA
EAENASEIC I ARSI RIRU

IS ATRST: TRYE 1 TAATRARSAT & oy Y URER & AfRUB0T 8 TAfHwar T B bl Holdl & af
2 TJT aRASTT B foru rawReHr |fafa &1 e fhar R g

) el (dweR)

Fifea TmEr (AweR)- difta a (@AeR) & 97 w9 aRER &1 Igere g Afafdy o guer 7,
AT wied SR Ugiferad ud wiafae i o 730 ok fivd Arig 1. vra, gd etene, SSITNeS,
faftre AfafSr & FR—Fwell 9 17 WA, 2024 &1 far 737 |

FEYETE AMET (AR)— TASRIAT BT 30 Alsel IRER & &% dxa Y IRER & AT &1 a1
T AT 2| FEREIR AT (ARR) b AY 9aq & T BRI B gHend & ol YA gord / Riarard
FHARIE 20 (Ve 2025 BT HAT AT & | 39 d1e, TIARIRA §RT AU ShaR & Aredd § A0 BRI
TH PR QA1 T 7 R I IR W 2| 3@ dh, IIRANT HH WG A AIR gAY Al B Bd dH
& S I B AT 2 |

AR @l (AwR)— @l (@eR) & fay 9 aRER & A 2 ugR e miffexor ((RS) 4
3,229 T | T S BT AJRUTY AT AT © 3R TH FIY H U AGERAAT AAIT BT W1 TS A
T & | aRAST & Ao &7 BRi TR o1 |im T3 7 | uRye 1 IR I (Fe) & forg Reee
@ <1 HiTel arel 9T Wad & fAAfor & uRarg @Y woRl © @ 7|

HFEYR AT (AeR) — AT & AT | WIS T FHEYR e mifieeer (@€9) gRT mdfed a1
TSI (Gl &Fha 452 T Hiex) & fIpy fderal & fFrearee &R Feol &1 B QT 8 &l © 3R 39
Ha W U AqHEAT AT BT TS AT fhAT S G 2 | uRATST & FHior &1 Hri TR Bl |
AT & AT TAGRIRA §RT SFATT URITSTAT AN & A1 FeboddT el Aron (Reee+2 |foTel) IRd
BN TE T |

TGS IET (W) — dEGTS QBN WHRT (TASIV) §RT §—TA™ & AgH & 911.76 I HIex
S BT U S Sfdfed far a1 2 | Wigles Yoo Aled YA P NG &g ATLID T TASIY Bl
ST BRSNS | 3 ey H SFaReT AT &7 off o fhar M € | Uareiy SR wRer & SrferarRay
gRT rafed yf1 @1 WY A9 & 918, &S B AFABA BH IR QAT AT 7 AR TSI W HIEa
SIS/ I3Se / A Ui R forar a7 2 |

qgeT rET (AwR) — W—37 AT (T & ad &1 e ¥ ugd & AIvsT ar (AweR) & |
fear T o | TR (@wR) & uRER @ AdaR @ fog anfdcae @ fgfe @ 8 7 &R enfdcae
ERT IR &I g 93 AIoHT Bl A wY faam a7 g T Fdi-iexr s W1 Sfa ufshan & Aras o
SHER Bl AT fear T 2| AR FRTd & fog vaa # fAfds &5 &1 A e iR Aot BT
PRI GRT BT 9Tl ¢ |

Jdie AEl (ARR) — IWDIC A (FR) & IRER B ATo—Hooll 8q faEa A &1 164
forar war 2 | uRESrT @ forg snfdcae @t frgfcs ff o= &1 18 ? &R uRaer T @ snfecae grT fAfdar
SIS 3R AR A TR B b a4 SHAR & I DI AhdT Y Bl S |

(i) IRYT & 3rgHET & IFAR TRIRIT (ARN) & foU H s1fewrser / fdee—sm ¥aR /wad AT & fog srerffesar
fAeriRoT |

W&W%W@WWW%@WWW JFIfd— giTell, JIFRT, MRITETS,
TOUTH, S8 SIEUR, ’HI"I‘I‘{ dl"NICJCII (hIEHIq?I\"a ‘:I—E'ﬁ BN ICN’CI"ICIg‘U‘I ICI?INEII'«Iﬂ"I“I JleHaldlg, B FHToN IR,

$3R, ANTYR, ATRI®, g0, RO, TENTE, avell, G, JINRIST 3R Rrer |
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(iv) IRNT 3 AT & JIJAR &g el /R (dekl) & g uRERl &1 ffues

(®) SAMFARIAT— IRYS 7 SIMEARAT & oY ARl URER & U &g WrRIfedT T H-1 & Fof < & ©
3R SRR & HIG[ET IR & AyeH B FaRa AT &1 o7 o= oo 11 7 | 328% udl 9 Sfd
B et (Samers) s @ T F |

(@) "ura — RS 7 W AR & RJE IRER & FoeH 2 mafiedr T8 &1 &1 Aol « 41 7 | W
IR & R IRER & AU g JaaRaT AT H1 Teq dR fI1 71 & | 9T Ik & QR GRER &
e &1 ufhar wfd | 2|

(1) 33X — TRuT 7 §ER e & ARl IR & FUeH TG WAHGT T B B Ao § 4 7 3R gER
AR F AIET IRER & e Bq rawvadr affy o1 Tod o) faar T 2 |

(=) O FweR — 4O AR & WA IR FT FUSH 14 TR, 2025 DI QT B AT |
1) falre vge
(i) afRa gfafear va aaremT d (wgemesmal):

@RT ARIhaT Ua FHE EH (RIARARE]) FaRAT 3R BIA & 070 Tl WU g & WU H BRI PR ET & Al qHIdg
WD F I Tl AR RGN BT G FHEM T (BT S G | FYINRIARS o R 2025 H AT AT ~Ifed
RraR T e # MSHITHeTE War are] Ui fhar, R SEiivwens g1 Ua @ W arell faf Jarett @ forg
THRRISS WY (S10d)) &7 faaxor fear w2 |

TIARARE! & UK U URSHT Teere gam yomell (Trengus) & R fafire fewe e, Rwe faf¥, s @1 wm @ik
GoNervoT e, SHafdd &, ua foar T |JAe iR A Ay SR Seert e Bkl 8| a1 feaw § wm 5.00
91 Tb U TAd SHA BT gradl <1 Ol @ @R S foF vep fafdre fede W @fe emawwd @) wee @ W 2
90% ¥ Mfdd fewet &1 FaEE 5 S fadl & Mok &R & ST 8| FIIRARET & oIS 1 Bl IR Fel &
52,000 ¥ JAfAF Bl 3R 40,000 THS HT FUeRT faan, T RIURS! & AT AGT 1@ BT Hdd <l 2 |

(i) AT GAEA— 1 S HITHaTE BT G IHRoT
&, HHAN fasra

SMSATTAATS = HHANRAT Bl &1 SR guraeiiete bl qg AR fETERDI DBl UM Dbl YRT DR Yd AaTg Y& B D
o :

forg, FHeRAl & 99 td Pee & FRoR aREr oiR s aR @ o TR MU g ygE e
BRI / BRI / FANSAT /T BT fIaRT 39 IR 2
.
g fafer BRISH BT AW
28—29 JAFTIY, 2024 ATSTIATH gRT AT Ud giffeT R a1 feadiy srdeme |
13—15 deR, 2024 TIfaRvT, WIS Td e (SUdel) R A faaedia e ufdefor
BT |
3. 7 fedaR, 2024 ¥ 5 S, 2025 U JBIGHT §RT UATaRVl, ATISTS Ud AHemas (Su9el) W)
e (ATAIRD MR W) |
4. | 10 fRER, 2024 A+ Safred fFarer ([feivaga) W= ufdreor |
5. 27—28 F, 2025 e 3 foIfdiT BReSYH gRT “&o9 Ud W’ W od fead
TR—SMARII BRI |
. ABIaiiD FEdl

RO e &R 19 A1 &R BT UIAlied R & S 9, MMSAITHIATS 7 19 A, 2024 BT JBIEHAS SRIAT TH
P, oraes Sfia SHaIRAl & 1 BT A9g Bl & g fafdy 3R aiflie vl R Araniesd 93 AT by o € |
A & AR [IVeidl BT oY IoTas, ‘SfPlais HEar WRIAR [, difgd @ iR FR—brRdd SIHRebdl &
forg SOR® @1 B B 2|

A WG — Wd, $oAT IR AEPplad Scad

JAMEHTHATE 7T 18—25 AT, 2024 TP ARAVHAE HHATRA & oy faRy ®U | 37U+ ARE BT Ugell Wel, Hell AR
ARG aH IHd — e AT b, o a1 et ok Aipiae AT smafora @l T8, ok swaT s b
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AYST BRI 3 AT far 7| $9 I H HHAIRAT B [ AReRy 5 78, R W afafafedt § Sscaeye
ARfieRY 3fR STerew wfifar <@l 8 |

. 3 dRipH / dfR

AEATHIE = W@Re q1a], Hed ¥4, Wy RIfdR iR qareid AR afzd &8 sridA smafora fay, e see
HHY VT BT gST@T a1 R AU SHAMRAT & FHY AAIS AR ARKI b BT GARE R o |

T df
AMEATHIE S BT 3R AGId HRA & T, 01 3, 2024 & 31 7, 2025 T fforRad ARDHRAT @7 7eif a1 TE:

®.9. ug Tt ey v arfSeiRAT & e
1 AG<h TP (SFaERe) 01
2 HIAUTAD (JTPTEHD) 01
3 IR HRUTAS A8TD 01
4 BRIUTAS TETTD 10
9. AN "

31 WS, 2025 TP AR H BT B FwAT 373 o, R 105 AR HHEAR WA off, ST ot STALIRG BT 28.15% o |

B. dRR R A4 ST & AHA™ (1vavd)

foxia 9 2024—2025 & fory HRRerd W) ARl w1 99 Salfier [Rieam, Ny ik arvn) ifdfg+, 2013 & sfasia
AHal B Rare:

ERIERIRE]
5 SRIATSIAR
4 (!%1“12?3”)3 TEY (dweR), | INEY (dwR),
Rraor | e e | TTERaE | adefrosian - retohanee),
@) | dechoned, | MO IS

EAREAR 1
T e | 0| ™ ™ ™
a%ﬂ_wén—s‘ 01 SIDNE SIDNSE] SN IV
ey | 71 | e | e o a7
g IS B
Raetme amaforg
HIILTATRN AT 01 01 01 01 01
SIUESENIRCIRER ]
EARRSEEI|
ﬁaﬁg%ﬂ%ﬁ AN ST | A Tl EIUNE] EIUGE] EIUNE]

(i) @A et

AR 71 U BTURD] BT IWRCA SRl B %0, AU Aol & AT &3l 7 FAAT W] BT U & 0 T
SIRT Y & | 2024—2025 ¥, AL 7 U MSACT TS el Bl o1, AR YRET Bl Aoiga e, [Sforeed Haratl &1
ﬁﬂwwﬁ@?ﬁw—aﬁﬁeﬁw$wﬁéﬁ%aﬁﬁvwm$mwmaﬁ%|

T99 Tl # AS[AT ©ICHH BT A IR TETHA / AETHCATH AMDT o T IS HIAT, TG WA P FeASS
TR IIFRT HAT, MMec] Ren R ifsc iR e &1 Hare iR I@RETE -], Fafid $e d@ar gﬁ‘f%ﬁr
HRAT 3R fSfTce—ed arraRer $1 GRe AT BT FHETT BT MASA & | AR Bl JadTge, AR gfterder,
U WATY 3R HEANT WIThiH (S fF IR Rl J9uaw) dfed Wyol Ed]l @rawen $1 d8ak auerdl, Aa=gdm 3R uga
Yo AR & oy srase A w8 |

ATSR YRETT Bl FE@Yol Yfa BT FHI §Y, AR o F=AfeiRad yqg ugel -
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CERT-In (ARY $Iexr gaRoidl Redi=q &) gR1 g<h Mgel JRam oikal wWierd gR1 e Rl JAlfSe o
T, T HAGIRAl &1 e &1 SIgT iR GURIHS dRalg FEiRda &1 s |

FRIR Rived grenm GRARET a7 iR e AEaR IR &1 99 331 & U rgvdl amedl e Wikl 4
I U AARD 3Mge] GR&T YPIS BT T3 [T T |

AT BRRdld, SR, Raa 3R 3R QR Mgl giamel 3 & I~1a9 & AT—HRT UaRH iR GRef
g1 & ¢ STIMULATE Uice |fed U9 URliael 31 Fallss 8IS B TS |

JMSTE Uikl &I e M, 72 ifFens yonfedl &1 g wvw IR aRares ureRiar & forg siaRe tHemsyd
BT AGGT B H Aedyol W g8, ST [ T Seerd faar I @

() UgTEs 3R SLSTH @B W WO Foige” HidTgel VU BT IHRA |
@) frefaRad &1 ey /S~ iR SrIa:

O O O O O O O O O O

gdie dorie didd

ot uee

BRI SFTRGAT HrdHA (@ed) S Idd

RN @R dwer & fory wifre Tfafafsr RarféT yomed (Tavemes) aida

garsd SfBT Uy uurmel (SmseivAT) Uidd

YiuATey RAIfET ST Usiiaror e

THTUHAE ¥CTCRT 3R IORG Uicd

JNAR® oET Wi Feeer, TS &R HERUI Ud $IURT HIH | Ao THsMSUd Uicd |

WA & SIATIS Tae YUTTell (AIATAUANENN) Bl AISHINIGE IRRUSS 2013 H IRRURES 2019 H I=1a4
RATE e |

() TS et o1 Hraraa:

O O 00O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0

O

Ao A= Urcdrg Aot

I TAHIRRYT 3R 8Tell & SR JIaR) HAgyH BiH STAT HRAT

AT TNBRY B QR AH Yo Y (3—av / 5—aufa qaw)

BT AlRETor gRady ufshar

AY TSI (2022) & I AMIGT IR Jdbfeuds fava gRad=

ITSHTHATS BT B foTy S—hT1S ToTTell H e

TSI IREBME ST B 1T (b & FATYT BT UfhAT BT THIBRIT

R TETOTTS (i) Rt b for Henfd wiH—< |

SHTHATEYA 3R JRMSUA & oy T AT | |afda aRad

STIMULATE uIcel R Rws uferar

PHRRT RNl & oIy Areid (R—MARIR) IR Hell At # 15 favi dgasy |

PeT AIS B WM W AR Ars H 15 ST HeASId! (THTHATH & Aredd A — BT A1/ FEl AT SR W) |
STIMULATEWE%W%WHWa?WWT%ﬁ15WW$WWW%§WW
% g IR — AT @ BT praaad’ |

STIMULATE UIcd & URIET0T 3R HeIdl Hissdd & Aid "Huaeidl & 3ifcd &9 AT Aewdl SRl &-e
o o SRIRN — 91T W B HrIfaI |

(@) f=faRad @& fow a1 9ice &1 faAior:

O O O O

@ﬁ?ﬁ@aﬁ 3'_&%1?171?’[ TSR JFex

sRESE 3T TTa| ATHeFed AT AT (ATESIUIR)
SAMEATHITE GiIverct Hfaecered gafiger

TR (fre Rid)) Tex

) f$irca marE vd Far:

O
@)

TR ©iehM TR IS Al ST+l BT ThTeH |

RRAUR®! & A1 HaTe 1 & oIy [TeHgy A/ /a1 & Hraraa-




46 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART III—SEC.4]

(iv) udarg
(@) gdiems &1 e

Rureld= sraf & R, Hu |y fafem, 1982 § MERT wegsd & TR TollR]ed UM 3R Uhed YR 5
Pl G TR HH: T MR IR, 2024 FAT H G ART H 235 31X 220 WheT Dl iR gag Rerd v faw uenw
Dg TR AT B T | 57 iR AR, 2024 31 H Whett 77 & oy HH;: Bl 68,134 31X 67,807 SHNGARI 7 AT
art fHar| af 2024—25 & R TReT & A TRON BT ABAAGIS YR HIA ATl SFIGART Bl FE&AT A1 & TS 7

AT BT aX0T ULl UKGED

S[H, 2024 TR, 2024
ToliRfed g 4,370 4,462
MHe U™ 1,988 2,681

e & forg erexi @ G ATl ST H A TR T
e Rl HefT sifes o Ry T

S, 2024 WA

P Iwafdfar & e

mifea | SuRem gy | Sefiof
woflRIfed Ui (Ursa$a—2017) @
Iﬁ(ﬁ{\a -1 19,562 14,614 3,324
Iﬁ(ﬁ{\a —1I 17,165 12,908 3,931
woflRfed Wiu™ (droasHa—2022)
e — 1 15,382 12,460 1,015
g — I 11,550 8,842 1,847
NI YR (qTe=Ish¥—2017) $
ﬁ%‘q\@[ -1 6,558 5,037 1,571
H‘T@"_e[\a —1I 6,490 5,049 1,531
Hisel — III 6,569 5,299 1,715
T IEA YR (qT6=shi—2022) #
g — | 4,377 3,517 955
e - 11 4,464 3,440 921

@ Teiagied 9um H 9,539 Rl o aRgen fomm, 7,866 SRRl W welagfed UM & Ml Hiedd
(UreashH—2017) ¥ SuRerd gU, fo=# 9 566 anafdfal =1 a1 Afsye <ol fby |

*  wiolagied U™ H 3,896 AR 7 aRgen form, 3400 AR T weilagfed UM & Ml Htedd
(UreaIshH—2022) ¥ SuRerd gu, fo=# | 211 anafdfal =1 S wg STt fahy |

$ U Hd U H 1643 Al W wRgen foram 1424 SRl W WRIR FRIEH & IMT ASYd
(UreaIshH—2017) # SuRerd gY, f=# | 49 anafdfal 1 ST Afsye St fag |

# U S U H 2615 il W TiRgen foram 2345 Rl W WRIR FRIEH & M ASYd
(UreaIshH—2022) ¥ JuRerd gu, fo=# | 288 nafdfal =1 S Wig S0l fhy |
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feger, 2024 93

I=Iffal o g
gdlEr ®T aXor
Hifd Iuflerd gv Syl
TofiR[fed YR (UTeRIsi—2017) @
Iﬁw 13,269 9,728 2,789
I
=4 11,928 8,790 2,420
qlgqa 11
wollagfea g (qreasi—2022) *
QT‘E . 20,208 15,942 2,540
17,191 13,237 2,614
SLER
T YR (UIsas$hi—2017)
Iﬁ@ﬂ — 3,861 2,737 985
~ 4,577 3,488 1,191
qlgqa — 1
~ 3,971 3,088 1,118
qlgqa — 1
YIHYEd YT (dTSeshi—2022) *#
Q:PE 7,030 5,724 1,741
— 1
Q:Pig — U 6,952 5,273 1,658

@ TOlded UM ¥ 6,196 ARl W TIRFe form, 5,539 ISRl A wIOllAdfed UM © QM Alsdd
(UreashH—2017) ¥ SuRerd gu, fo=# | 323 anafdfal =1 g1 Afsye St favy |

* wOlegfed U W 5783 WAl W QIRgen form, 4,972 nafeRAl W wROlRfed WA @ QI Aiedd
(UreashH—2022) ¥ SuRerd gy, fo=# | 397 anafdfal =1 S wig STt fahy |

$ UHIES U H 853 1Al 7 qTRIA o, 685 RIfRT 7 URIaR HRIGH © Qi ArSel (UTSIHhH—2017)
# SuRerd gu, R A 24 rwafdfa 7 <M1 diege STl fhg |

# UHIHd U H 3989 Wil W qiRgen form, 3520 oAl W IR BRIHGH ® QM A
(UTeaIshH—2022) ¥ JuRerd gU, fS=# A 425 snafdfal 1 S wg St fhy |
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(@) su afie srfer) yaw e (ANvagEd) &1 amareE

Ty 2024—25 & QIRT, AITASTC] HS, 2024, ellg, 2024, TdaR, 2024 3IR TG, 2025 B HeMl # AN b
AT o7 | WUASES] BT AhAAYAD: IR B dTel SHIGARI o e A &) 78 &

. Ieafefay &7 g
e @1 ffer (fafere) . S e—— et
04 3R 06 Hg, 2024 9,973 8,498 5,348
06, 07 3R 08 TclTg, 2024 12,577 11,257 7,443
09 3R 11 TR, 2024 15,632 13,715 10,456
11 3R 13 ST, 2025 6,539 5,847 4,801

(M) sifgdl AR B R

Ao ot # BE & IR Y& B WAIRd B 3R T < & oIy, MEHITHE o &8 BRI
BINA BT 7 | Rueki= @y & R f=faRad sl 7 gt oifae MR GR¥BR S

uTH /e fewav, 2023 »g
ABeEe Y™ @ forg [rgufy <ol ugs G FAINT PRI €Y 77
TOlR]fed 9™ & o Irgufa W@l ues g afeem Rig 77

AIS[ET JREe ARG REBR ATSTHRI, &3 3R IR YREBR A8l & FF—d1 3= RIBR [Ioiarsil BT
faaRoT R F d99TSe www.icsi.edu TR SUAE BRI AT © |
(@) #ARe w=oTas /HRke BEghl / faxia Jerdn

I & foen—F1del & STgdR S[A, 2024 H MANT HRIGRI HRIHA IR ATHIIS HRIGH Tl § Wy V& arel
AHe BT BT ART YA U & BT 1Y |

HRe BTAGRT TS & fld, S, 2024 T DI YT H Usel &1 TR H Troiiagfed Ui & |9l YoR Sl e arel
S @ HU A UTeIsH B WMBIEA W g SN @1 U WM Y& ®g BEART UM @ g | 3l UaR,
AFIAT—HE—ATE ST AT & S, I SHIGARI Pl IFa! e Toqfil ok Wvd wersli & S, 2024 3R
fedaR, 2024 FF ¥ IPp YT B & H @A gU AT FERIAT UG $Y TS B | ETClfP, A, 2024 AR R, 2024
T B Aog g emsit § drg f IEeaR 39 Ao @ fow Ay T8 8@ urn |

v) ufreror

Rureii= @ & IRM, WM §RT BET B oY @Y 3R drddifed Al 3 deftd gfaen ge™ a1 & foau &g
TEd MR TRRRRT g% @1 T2, S & e Seer @

(@) wmEn feaw

A a9 SHITHeTs gRT ARl iR ufers! & Tl & Ao )G9 &1 f&wn § 1@ ygd © | 9 ke 27
HRARN 2021 BT TN JAMSHITHITE eI AT § % {Har 11 o | e faad & R, uf¥ierr feened & Af¥ery
afregetl va uRerel fr=iferRad &= & Wefa & fda gef / Riemadl R aadid oxd 8, G & 3R SH6T FAMM aRd
g

®) QR URIET0T S W AT AR e § Ragear ¥ Had g8

Q) TITare AR ¥ HEed 9

M) ATEERS R0 & g Ui g3l & Faed Jel & aiRd FErE

o) URTE iR § ge wddl ATl

<) AR AT THATOTTS O FHIIS BT FHTET

Heerrd | Rurelds o@fd & IR dieg e fead Ihaargds mafrd f6y 2 |
(@) aifErd Ragsnay &1 srt=a=

qd /FenfRa af¥eror Seieil ¥ 8 URRNErr SeEET (2020) # ufieroi @ At Regsiar 01 i, 2024 | uRuF faiaw
01 3Me, 2024 | THTAT BT 7 2 | gd / HeNfad afRreror \em 3 Gdfdd Bl @ §9e dgd UeH &I T8 IR 8T &
Y o b v rfard Raweiar oA 3maeds 2 |
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(1) AR AT | PiuiRe Aqa e srfepa (Hadidl) a1 goama

4fF 15 Radia ANyeRid! (T Al — TdTAud uicd & A Q) o favgawg § deiee far o <81 8, g4ferg 1
IV, 2024 W AR AIS & AeFH A 15 [T 3iesT AUl ¥ SR HT 77 form |

(@) = feaha afvfa=ma ssa (L)) @ goama

HRIM o U Golia]fed YR # 1 %AW, 2025 AT ST a8 UGB BRI arel B & forg O fagea iRgces
U P a1 & e HIed BEl iR WM & 919 WU Bl GIH 991 S 9D |

() srika e & fav defeus ugfa @ siulke Aqa e sriga (Hvaddl) &1 gar+a

PRIT U B JAem & fou W= o1 dbfous ugfd 9 sifelrss #red 4 30 gy Avasdl g1 &= &1 U AR
feed g% &A1 &1 s gaR, 59 Bl 9 15 Rl Avasdl @R 9€) R &R o/ &, S URT Hefl—smeTRd
WTASYT (AR / IR—MaR—i) & A IR TATHTH & Aed | 15 fea=iig Aivarsdl offFesd &= &7 o 31faRd
feea 2| a8 Ao A, 2025 § g faar o)

(@) 30 g siuike Aq@ Ao sIFPT (Hvasidl) R FF R gEfive 9Tl Arded B w3

TR A 15 fRaRIT Herr—smeniRd (Jariia / IR—AaRi) Huael & 2ifcd fas v BEl & TAIRIUe AexadT G
JAMERCT B BT YA D 7 | UTF BHEI DI 15 [CTHR Fe—=enRd (A / IR—AERY) Auaedl & FH0 FARIE

B IR ISP TSIl T UG B ST |

(®) affT Aaic Ry (Tawiww) @ areaw 9 3-SR &1 yoand

AR 5 B9 | B9 3 9Y BT BRI MGV I& dlel, AT Y/ HTAY / Usdlde, RGN IR (AR dai died), a1
feair @RReS wu & s1em) BHEl @& o offFeargd Al & wemd | LR 1 A @ fAwer gw fFar 2 e
IR AMel—eR—HMaT MR R 6 S | 3-SR fadwed 591 9l 8131 & foy 1 Suae 2 RigiF Seid &
g AT BRI o, oM 07 e, 2025 AH SASIRMNYT TR & TR TS |

(@) AR—3Ma ImER w15 e Avadift & i &) 3@afer 30 AR, 2025 @ fawR

IR—3aR SR W 15 i Pen Ais dluRe g f[APRT SRiHT (uasHl) & AR @l @ 30 fRideR, 2025
T ggI <1 B |

(1) ¥fivw sET & @EeRE Ul yeM &1 ?q SR sufEl /o wfaal &1 9 9
TR BTAT BT ATTEIRS URME0T U™ w1 & fov i wufai /o1 ARerell & Ar—arel U¥raR wu= aferal (@firo)
B UTedg RS T URIEAT MR BT fRAR ST BT T B &l ¢ | Rulehiq @f & SRE amagiRa ufewr uee
PR T AN D A Uedg HUTT /3T AR IR URIeR URATH @ AT P 553 AR 288 T |

(1) 15 feada sar 9rs ¥ & fav R HAT Y™ S

15 e et A1 eI & foly U @ik Tiee 9 Riear I Ty ¥ Wafdd BTAl &1 gfoen & forg, <72t 15 faawia wem
S & oY BT B HH TR S BRI IS o9 AN el (b1 ST &, Rel Perail o1 wraemd g fobar 7 & | Rel
FeE B I, Mes /e IS IR & Uolipd BET B SSUT 99 B HHT TR /Agd Ret ua™ fhar S w,
RrI®T o &89/ STHs e gRT fhar AT 2 | B &1 ¥R o dldl 9eX & URER 9 oigd ST ST 3Ma3idh
2l

(vi) wude

JAMEHTHIE HT OHe Aol I Fag Bl /HH DI HUN Afd /Ned GRIERA 31 aeadmal & AR THIaE,
W b 3R IRERE FT A AHHRI qd | <l I T 3§ 7eg B 3R FaRI g BE 3T T ©iRCT iR
U BT § FEIA A B oY IfIag 2 | I8 37U &l & SR ZauRe! &1 |afas dar &+ iR dewl 9 B
@ |1 bRl & e @ R & ol Ud argdel Aelel a9 &l fRaR I & 2 |
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(¥) wiwde Uidd W gofieror R 9IRET ald, 2024 ¥ 48, 2025 T

gofigd SuATHat Rtea @1 o w@&
qe B BHIANT g afereror
1,887 5,394 1,533 5,348 5,320

R & Fawl 3R BEr @ oy e & et # gfg gfiRed o 2q sme Tfifafdt v @) ¥ | wie ugat A
fereforRad enfarer &

(@) ATSHTHITS TAAR Divdeld Dbl MMAS IMSAITASNE GRT =~Tg, Fag AR STge ¥ fbar war difs Ara dare
YT B AT U SR HU AlHal B YHdT & aR H STRd (AT S G |

() DU AT |Id PARCH BT AR JaT MR JG0AI U Aledl 3R BEI & ABISA B A I, SAD!
AT BT ATHAT PR 3R IAD! AMATIRAT B AR U SHIGARI BT TIT BT BT U 30T AW TS HRal
2| RideR, 2024 3R AdaR—TaHIR, 2024 B AL H 4 &1 IR ATSHTHE WRASIRIRST H FT wiAHe $Tsa IMforg fhu
TV | $185d I Ugal FRIhR HIeel’ IR Uh A9y = maiforag fbar mar o | gewt 3 FuiRa ama—5ar § &s e
@ AEHR 3T |

(zr) dgw ulieg AR gR a¥ e ARG WR W &H BRI, JMevEsTy ARIGIRE 3R SATSAUHsTs &
X ¥ Hifad /eifHersd A # Mo fhy 1y, e <o R & At e, dfdeRiT ou afual siik e wAf A
YSIIhROT R |

(c) drdshismed
argTaas Mo, qag
AT —HAISIARS!, HIg DI WITYAT YOGVl SFTHTT BT ISMAT & AR AR & Bl Ud Fedl &

faprT BT 9QAT 7 B ST A Bl TS B
(@) Rurcteh= s@fr & IR frafaRaa srieAT /FMRsal &1 Mo feam

.9, HRiHH farfer

1 IS TRIRTHAR MR SUHN & Ageayol Uge] R FITST 20 3B, 2024

5 SESINSEIESEIESIESTIC S S TS U SR 04 — 05 WS, 2024
IR / TR—SMIRNT BTILATAT '

3 s >1 25d1 wRMuAT fead 16 A, 2024

4 i a9 A9 B 9o 15 S, 2024

. JATSHITHAS SRICET TSRIR g & TN | BT & TSl & Ard o1 — 3 2024
HEIRRIAT IR U9 feaRi manii / IR—3mard Rl S

6 g S FaReT Ififrad, 2002 iR SIS AT WR ST 29 T, 2024

; fefore ?_\rlrhfld Ser WRe e, 2023 SR WfSAT SguIeE ¥dEd b 06 £ 024
ST —AAISIINRS], I8 §RT AR JeR & AT WJh WU I IMATrd

8 <1 e e sriemern (fEd dvameo) 0910 2024

9 T3MTg 31X PIUANT ST A 3R FaAR AR AR = Aiwdl, 2023 31 2024
DT IAADT, TR Tl I8 AR $ AT FIDH WU F S _ '

10 a;q:ﬁ G;T@Iﬁw P dEd HefId UE oM 3R BIferT <IRI=oe 3meei R 05 SR, 2024

11 I TARNMSIRIR ¥ siferan Sene=i IR TSt 30 AR, 2024

12 Eﬁq:ﬁf ~ T G D W& /TR 07 — 08 feaR 2024

13 faerr 3R THMe WR T fAai SMaRi / IR—MariT BRieme 14—15 AR, 2024

14 BHT TR IS 05 STaNI, 2025

15 PrANe SIFemad # B ghgaar W K] 18 ST, 2025

16 IRRYRG FHSIT, IR ENIE 9l 3R dlensdl fAfvml ur |Ges 15 BRANI, 2025

17 RIS feenfrdel & T8d 9o g FEur R AE—SE AS] 01 #TE, 2025

18 frefvaga Ifaf=H, 2013 W BRI 08 HId, 2025
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19

TASIUHET TR, SR SR STl Mawadhdy iR g a1 YfHer

26 I, 2025

20

Al TAAMSIAR & T8 AU IR BRI

24 — 25 S, 2025

(@) digad § AR, Jad &1 25a1 =T fiaw IR

LRI 71 3+ ¥ex BR BRURE Ta-w, Rad 18 ¢ (ARISNemRS), §a8 &1 2591 =T feawt 16 #1S, 2024 &1 THs

fafics # "guwsit faframe
HARIT | BRIHH o =

I, TRST SR Wigal, divws forfics SuRerd o |

(ii)

g NTgans AR, 2exET

uRgey, Afde fadaiver iR AR A H ST DI FHeE v R U SRIBH & A
I & w9 # o v A, FRGR Fewe, dd R faftre afafyr & wu # s gewmd

ITSATHITE—IRIGNRS, Bavrare 3 Ruield| oaf & <R oEl, 9wl iR o Rt & forv ufafed vt @

TEANT A 3iTTers iR Pel Aie & Aegd o A= sripy smafoa few

$9. | drAHA fafer
1 ORI HEgRRIdT UR g+Tal UiRIeToT drishd (Aerg) 03—05 ¥y, 2024
2 MY UfhAT ST/l HIRIHH 18 S, 2024
3 URIIUCTS] divdeld 24, 21 RIGER 2024 BT AMSAIVHRNS gexE@le | 21 RAdaR, 2024
AR 3R URATSTRE geraTe §RT WRISIARS, 2axmEe ¥ HYwh
Y ¥ IR
4 TS HeaReIdT TR I (Al AR I+1d (IR AfRIE | 10—12 ST, 2025
5 RIS AEIRRIAT TR giiaTal AfRIET BRI (3ATels) 17—19 STFaNI, 2025
6 TTHIUACT 31T IR HIURE Yiied, [dera Ud AHME RoIfadl | 21—22 ATd, 2025
7 AT 3R IRIRTHRIR TR &l fSqiR oYy dldeld 18—19 3TV, 2025
8 I faf e o) & feaia oy dideld 16—17 Hs, 2025
(iii)  MEATHITE—HRASIR/RS, Hiadar

RUTeld™ am@fer & SRM ARINSIBIRE] DIABIT GRT FIRET Y HRIHH JRITT By Y -

B9 PRIHH ferfer

1 THST FaRIc], DlodTdl & TRl FHSIAT ST IR SRR 06 Hs, 2024
I, =TuTieldT 3R BagR® — 3Uey IR JaRF" WR R & & 11 93, 2024

2 R

3 "SI, FRIET IR R’ iR TAUH SuTe R IR & &1 FHeT 03 3T, 2024

4. HEPH FHEDT B UTclIdRr B TRIETT BrRIHH 03 3T, 2024

5 SATUHINE GAAUEAS] Pldrerd 31 3T, 2024

6 TAUHUHS TR ¥ Y 31 37T, 2024 — 01 RIGAR, 2024
STefarg, aRdc 3R I¥d ofdieldd WR BRa Afeqael AR gafeRvy 13 RAdaR 2024

7 ReRAT & wva W MY & &1 Sl (TS IFaridl, diaerr &
|1 HYH B A)

8 AITF — U @ & oY b RO ANIGRIBT TR ge a7 &l 21 TYdeR, 2024

9 TR 13 # aguTerd / R ¥ Al W 3 AT &1 driwmen 26 3FCER, 2024

10 HARISIIBIRE], DICADIAT Pl USell RTUAT [Gad THRIE 07 faHaR, 2024

1 "foi fIeRvT & 9Ty T IR faeryor H IQH B fdT 3R Tde BRI 04 — 05 STTaRI, 2025
H U & IEaWR’ W A i a8 e

12 "IATE YEe, IR—ITUTA SR SURN” WR &l Qg JaRig THeT 22 — 23 BRENI, 2025

13 g faavon &1 fSdre &R W MY Hiderd 22 9T, 2025

14 HIUNC YIS WR Y FHAA 26 37, 2025
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(3) rsHgasns gt wafda sufrar

(0)

(®)

(=)

(m

(=)

SRR N e i 117 EHTHaE e
ERIGKI L] degard Az
AT HTHIATE FeTAA g ivgaTg gReee SEIeYe AT TaTH
TERIR dex I wArere iffsed MBI 3Tp sfear
amg¥igaaTg giigerd
e vaifRigeE

IrgiTaTs sWIeye e gaaicadl MBaTed (IrsHivasms—angangd)

JMEUTTHIS SIS 3H gATed¥] WhITed QMSHITHANTE ISIMSUN) Fleddl U8 Tl B, 2016
& ded IR fearal iR e e dr a1 (MEHIIeTE) & A1 Uoiidhd Y R0 famd & | STSIgwag
JATSIATSUT B STAIH, 2013 DI IRT 8 & A USIPd & | ASAVANE 3MMS3TLUl DI 3 Il &
AII—AYT SAAI WRIAR & WU ¥ [0 Uolipd Fawdl & A, Rierm, ufiernr gd gesi= &l FRe
PR DI IR TG ABR Tad B 731 8 | 393 SIS § UIaR SRV & AFd RIiRd BT 3R o9
AT ATILIHAT I, U FERAT BT JJATNAT PR Bl Q9T 3§ I Hed ISMET A 2 |

Fgica Yl U9IaRY BT ATHTdA
JMEUTTHATS IATEARY & TrRIHD BT H F [P 8 g-Alcddl UAR] BT AHIHA | Bl 1218 UYAR HaRT
JMSRATHTE JMSATSUT H AT € |

el @ o s ) AR

JMEHTHATE AMERMSYUT SHIead] UWRIART B FTREN &1 Tl § IRaT ©, §) S¥hed AT 3R @) Feror
(Frafya e iR gea—amnRa Riefo) |

wfafaferar / erima

Jd—USIRYl arh UrewmhH: Jsadias (Slcddl URIAR) fafd, 2016 & fAFMa 5 (9) & g9R, Big 91
RP TP IR o & ®Y § JUAI/IMTT ATHb- & g7 U g-aicd<il ATaATId Uoid) | 3ffard 50 8 &
USIRYT g e IS | Ok & 918 & Y& Pl Saicad] YRR (3Ed) B WU H Uoiipd PR & forg urd
g

TAsTEe] JUI— forfics g™l e & 9 & forg 3 fAl &1 ufderor sries: wRde Rarer &R eeA
JeTHaT dre (SAfeddl WRaR) fafad, 2016 @ fafad 5 & IR, BIS ARG SMSAIGRTS R SMAIRTT Hfd
TR T S B B a8 B SR TR B WU H UoaRuT & U urF 2 | SMEiusens angansd 3
fafice sl Wem TR & & oy "gaemsd) giive'—3 faaiia uf¥eor Rl & <1 99 &1 Mo
faram |

NLDIGEEEE|

TSRS ATSIMSUT 7 11 TaRI, 2025 BT § UIh, WA AN, g fQoell ¥ @ WRIART 3R USigd Jedid-Taohdiall BT

CERT TS FHE SRS fham | 39 9o | <% @ faf=T fewdl &1 150 ¥ oftrss wfaffeal =7 aafthra w9 9 &iR
400 TRIITERT 1 agoreT Aeq™ | 9T fordT | A9 <A A TH.UH. GAR, MY HU (A rnfEieRer B Awemds
TS UG SIF—heIR Iod IR $I Gd G IRIENET I AT 2078, BIuiNe H J3ed & A Gg<h Afeq,
I FHu [ =rfeser & A e (F®) o Wi Esdard 39 BRmA & faRy rfafer o |
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(&) 93 sHA

w9 | faug farfer

1. TSRS, JMERATSIMSUIRNTS 3R ATZUIY ATSHIYATE & AT HIh w7 A 16 s, 2024
IMEW & foTU 3iiFcigs Brdemmel

2. TSRS, IMERATSIMSUIRNTE 3R ATZUIY ATSHIYATE & A1 HIh w7 A 27 WS, 2024
amEdt & forg sifegT SRk

3. JMMEAIAIaTE, SMEIMSATSUISTE 3R MUY ATSHIGRATS & 1T AIh w0 A 19 S, 2024
M & forg afferg @riwmen

4, JMSATIRNE, IMATSIMSUIRNS 3R ATUIY AMSHITIATE & AT AIH wT A 09 SIS, 2024
N & fory SifFemgT Briwmar

5. SIS, JMERATSIMSUIRNTS 3R ATZUIY ATSHIYATE & AT AIh w7 A 23 Gelg, 2024
amEdl & forg sifergT Frfemen

6. 3MgAIdIaS, SMLIMMLIATLUISTE TR MUY LTSS B Al AYth ©U A 10 3T, 2024
SN B fory 3iferrsd wrRiwmer

7. SIS, IMEIATSIMSUIRNTS 3R ATSUIY ATSHIYATE & A1 HIh w7 A 20 3T, 2024
S B fory 3ifreirs wrRiwmer

8. JAMEAIEIRNS, IATLIATSUIRIS 3R 3MMSUY AMSHI3MNS & AT FIh ©U A 03 AR, 2024
MW & fo SffFelrss HriRmen

9. JAMEAIEIRNS, IMATLIATSUIRIMS 3R IS AMSHI3MNS & AT FIh ©U A 18 RIdeR, 2024
SN B fory 3ffeirsd wrRiwmer

10. MSANIMTE, IMLRASATSHATE 3R MUY ATEATRATE & 1T HIh ©Y A 24 RudeR, 2024
SN B fory 3ffeirsd wrRiwmer

11. SIS, IMEIATSIMSUIRNTS 3R ATSUIY ATSHIYATE & A1 HIh w7 A 08 3faCAY, 2024
IS B fory 3ifeirss wrRiwmer

12. PIfed AR AR DA s AHITed BRA $ A1 AJh © A~ HIURS 02 TaaR, 2024
EEIC VSIege: Salfed™T 3 J BRAS” WR ASUITHATE TN Pldeids

13. JMEHIRMTE HIIACY AR H AR, ATLATLIATSURIS 3R MUY 09 TaR, 2024
JMSHIYATE & AT WYH ©U A MUl & forg iy Hrieme |

14. IS IR & AT GIh ©U I “PIUNC [STIC NAIegee saffed T 3 d 16 TgaR, 2024
BRAS TR ATSHTTHAS TAITAS! hivdelas

15. SIS, IMEIATSIMSUIRNTS 3R ATGUIY ASHIYATE & AT WIh w7 A 11 SN, 2025
MW & foTU aifFciig Bradermen

16. AR, &0 UCY H SMEAIISNS, SETSINEUIRTS 3R MSUIT 3MEATans & aref 17 STFa, 2025
HYhH WU W AR B g Hifcrd BRI |

17. JMEHTTHATG aTeaR IR H IS, AMSIMSINSUITg AR ALUT 21 TYaR, 2025
ST & AT AYH B A ALYl & ol BRI |

18. | STEWITSNE SIAYR <R ¥ SIS, agamgangdiang 3k Uy STgwiang 28 AT, 2025

@ AT WY WU W AU & forg Wi SR |

CERKILER

ATSATHITE—3MSIMEYT ° RUIE 31 & SRM 41 BTN, 38 IR 3R 7 Mool T AT fhY | 396
IR, AMSHTHIE LAY - UATEACI—DIrerd / MUl Divdera, Fa—Usiiael R urewmd (@ifers+) w® 99, foe
I, SMARIY GAZa] UIG=IhA 3R T BIC TRRAMRIAIs BT ARG 5T |

(®) =1 yga

SO : TSHITHRATS IMMSIMEYT ATRID $—ST+eT MehIfId BT & FOrRTH Fdas geme fauy fagivsi & AR,

e arone, fafr=T fRaure! g/ forg U o, oMW & forg @IS 3R JmeReT W o, R 4B o

qrel wl, arerae Hify, af¥gew &= anfe i 8 2 |

e IS TRor (@A AT Hd)— rEATHes g W AT YRR, TTRAIVAST §9 & AT,
JMSAHIRMTS, o WRIART NS Bl A MR R MSIRT AT Fd' T FRAT 2 | SMSAAT AMFRT B g

P AT TAIdH =TAP ETOTaN R SR § |

afffT Aoic Red (Tavaed) didd— MsAivaas Jsamsdl 4 U¥eRl &1 3o HRIR & a4l &3 &

SICIl B ® dR H 31D S R feTIT B H FeW d91 & oY STINTHAI—3rdel JATelIsd elchiH

AT 2| Y8 U ATSdIdIes gRT SARRIET TAIAGH T 3R UIGhE b SIAR [ gdfed ™l UKer @
TR A arel ARl & foy Wit gafeddl Wi urewwH SR i e BT HaR B dTet faRwE gy
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ey 17 S—yaal, 3ifesd IRl & AW 9§ AR § FEIdl UGN $Rdl 2 | 98 gl SwnTedill &
forfics sdfca™l wdiersll &7 gardl S & <A R H AerH I |

(ii) ATSHITHINTE uSlipd JRITB-Ihdl WIS (MSHITHIATS RAT3AT)
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ii. 39 fAfy & I 99 & forg ARem & ey (g weel™) @ oy &R e | & AWl H |
ii. AHC] TATE B A H, S ARG B T 99 & forg Admdl yarg faaxor |

Hd &I JATER

B ARANI A4 oRITBR AR ¥ N 3R WRA # oM R R WIHR A®elv AFdI (YY) & AFAR 37U
TERIEdl B RREIRIT e # IRR 9 Seoid BT 11 2| RAY 9] oRaThR Al §RT SRI 3ER
AfedT iR Here faxiy faRvi &1 gqR) oiRaTodien & Wdfda Sfad smensdl & IR, 89 U Wl $@ls &, AR
B S SMAIGATHT 3R MR T & AR fu 317 e eIt @ @1 § | S9R1 7197 2 % 89 g1
T SRATIRIET |ed Herd faciia f3avon ©R g9 I & o aeR 9a™ &9 8g T iR Sug 2 |

HEyel AT

ST 6 AIe 29(2)(@)7 H Seerg fhar T &, 99 @ T H { uell /famarei & sifcH 2y @
gfte /|HT iR SHa gRom e @ i B |

SIRIh A & Hed § AR Ad H B dSd el AT 2 |
der faxha faaron @ forw yde= iR femas @ yar et @ RraeRat

WA ! RS ("GRAT & Jae )Mﬂﬁaaﬁﬁwwso(aﬁﬁm)zﬁwﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁu
faaRol 1 IR PR F forg RTHER 8, o ol AMa! |fed 9RA # 3 IR R wPpd oaid Rigidl

@ RAT TR & AU & SIER T e ReTS BT xR € i 2; Sraree it
2% qgeh BT AR ERWE BT 949 3MR e, Q@r ol iR srgw e S Sfed 8iR ﬁﬁ?}?ﬁgﬂf
gl 3R T efaRe faxia fFRi=on &1 fesied, S iR ERWd Sl o@ih Rdbis P Felhdl
Sl qofar G a7 @ forg gandl & @ B 3R Re 9, et fadi fawer @t dard siv s
@ forg g 8 S ve wel SR fwer qe <7 € SR Aol Tord fqavr, re et A e b

A

el EAT §, 99 do dle], ARl U G A9l BT GARI R IR WD B R UR AT ARl B
IR BT ST IR & ol RFTRER 2 |

IR @ URve, WReH &1 fa<ig RuiféT ufshar & <evvg & g off Rmer 21
Jo gifea faxiim fAawen 91 dwradar & e demdigs! a1 drder

FART S 39 9R H SfUd Meards W &) B fb R der fRig fdarer 97 wu 9 fH Y ueR @
@y TAqEA ¥ T €, 918 98 O] A JfC & BRU g8 2, IR UH of @l wieds R IRy dRer
2 ForTY 2ol Y fier 21| SRId 3earae U Se R Bl AR 8, ifdh I8 39 a1d &) TRE =8l
& b TRATIE AP & STAR DI TS RTINS SHEN fhefl Hecdqol Teiad &1 Udl e, 59 & a8
AIG[E BT | Todaar SRarReT A1 FfE F SO B Tl g IR S AgdyY AT ol § A, Atk wu
I I TR WY G, 7 Gor A ARl & THR W STANTEaR gRT forg U nfie i & wifad
B Pl ST B/ I e BT Fehell B |

THU & AR U IRATIRIEN & AN & HU ¥, 4 YR Aofg ofd € 3R Q¥ oaradier d Aradiiied | &l g41g
REd €| 8 I8 1 BRd g

. BANT XY Pl MR TaM &R & U graeEs! a1 Jfe & fay, 97 SiReAl & ufd SoRar)
TTORIETT Ufshararl &l fEomg= iR fAearfed &=, iR TETuRler ey Ui &R Affed A<
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fIeRvll & wequl Ted fdaRvr & SIREAT BT Ugd BRAT 3R ITHT bl HRAl, a8 a8 o
21, T 3R SUYh 8l | RIS & URUTFRGHY 81 dTel ARKdd ITeld [daReT BT Ul el o
&1 SIRgA I & TRIREwY BF arel SiReR & 31ffe 8, Jaifd dramrel # e, Strerre,
SEIAR b, TTeAd qAT, AT AARD FRIF0T BT Sfagel eMAe 8 Tl o |

. oA aRRefoal # SUgw erRamuRien afharelt & fSoeT & @ forg oramadien & |efda rfaR®
frRI=0T BT AHFAT YIS ¢ |

. SWANT BT T oI ARl B SUYhHT 3R JG89 §RT By Y oRdidb Al 3R Fafed

YHSIHROT B AhHATAA BT e BT |

. AGiHT & Rl U™ @ R WR JEgd & SUANT &l SUGhdl AR TG olkdl IRIeT A1ey
@ IR W Frpy Marer f @ Wi gerel a1 Rafl & Gdfq @18 andfde sifedd
AISE & 31T eI ¥ |l &1 Uah TTfoRiiel R & W0 H SINT @ @ &9 IR 9w 98
Uar 81 9aar 2| I g9 I8 ey Merad © f6 ua wifde sivfReaar dige 8 1 86 o
ETRIERT @ Rurd # @afed faxia fJavo § G4 gadiarr &1 IR & sTafa &3 4T,
e U Gl JfUAT &, AT Ul [ PN AT PR Bl AAIDBAT © | TAR Tpy g9
rATIETeRT 1 RATE o1 TR T T IETaRIen Aledi uR iR | qonfy, wfasy § g areh
"emel a1 Refddl & $Rer A U SR 91 & ®0 H B B §§ PR GHdl © |

. ThCIRRU Afed Tebel R faeRvT 1 A IRfcl, ARaT iR fAva—awg &1 Hedidh PRI, TAT I8
f S b R/ Ushe R faeRor ofafifed o &R =cel o 39 UdR URgd &) @ forad
freer pRfer Tt BT 2 |

Heaqul FHfha i axhadl # Tefd 9aMl & URATT 2, Sl FRAITd w0 F AT Hof Heldr, I8 F9g

T § 6 foxig fAaro & Sfad SMeR Swardal & enfdfe fvig wwifad &1 \aa €1 &9 (i) s
TGO B & SRR BT AT g9 AR MU B & ROTHN BT R B H ATAHS Hlfadhdl 3R

OIS BHRDI; AR (ji) R fGaRor # A A g MU Terd f4aRor & g91a &1 Jeied d-- W [3aR
P ¢ |
B I Ml B AP, SEIRIET & RIS SRR 3R GHY a1 Hecaqul oraroRier eyl fH

JAAR® =T | BIs |l FgqUl HIHIT WA &, T 89 U+ QTINIET & QR AW B &, Bl
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T TR & STRET AFll &I Ud fAaver ff geM &xd € 5 g adadr & dey § urRifie Afae sragaddralt
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qTg BTee & forg IfId AT S |ahdr 8, iR 'l ar] 81, H&fd el & aR # ff Igfad wRd € |

I AHA
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I &h B A A o a¥ & IRE U oEifaa sifest ¥ e av & Hafd skl &k
SAQIRAT & IIRM® AN BT FT IR AT &, AT & fUsel 9§ & oY iR g & HefRd 3ffds Y
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9 A & G H TR I H BIS 98l el o B |
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I ST IR e smagasars w® Ruid

g9 3 Rue axd € o

@, B Al SMaRI 3R WISV U< 3R foy & S 89N |aiod IHaR 3R et & IgaR gART

TRATORIET & T & oIy aazgsd o

g 39 RUIE # uqd o U3, I 3R @ W1 FAT THhal Jars fdarvl, ol Yadbi & o

T AN XM H DU AT ARTH, 1980 BT MATIHAT & ATHY FE Wl Pl R {HgT Sl
2, 31 TP I8 981 Wrdl IR Iferdl & S & Uoiid &Il ]

. faxirr faeRor amgivHens @1 facig Rafd w &feq gaedl & i wia &1 Qo &<d 21 ([

29(2)[@)1 <) |
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SUGCS
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fai® : 25.08.2025 f&i® : 25.08.2025
ARG $u-1 afaa gwm
31 91, 2025 &1 Tad 9=
(R vua #A)
faavor q:f 31 AT 2025 B 31 94 2024 BT
I gia aiv gary
(1) 97 v Iy
(@) G AR IrfIey 1 8,995,599,968 8,635,813,239
(@) smefea it 2 1,253,440,530 1,231,565,213
SyU-a7T (1) 10,249,040,498 9,867,378,452
(2) Fe—arq IFgar
(@) <re BT FoT - -
(@) A Pifere TTATg 35,500 33,500
(1) e Prferad e - 10,500
SU-—AT (2) 35,500 44,000
(3) arq dFary
(@) 319 HIferd T
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3=y fewforar

(@) fafder o 3 67,725,670 110,826,508
(1) 3T dTe ITTTY 4 251,227,421 198,913,021
(&) 3rcq HIferd WTae 5 110,158,646 58,090,463
SU—AT (3) 429,111,738 367,829,992
@ (1+42+3) 10,678,187,736 10,235,252,444
II. Fafrar
(1) R—=re], HulRman
(%) "ulky, €7 3R IuHOT 6
(i) T wuferat 1,724,047,302 1,674,401,930
(il) erct uferat 8,685,600 860,215
(iii) W & o go Bt 7 235,259,225 269,125,370
SU—AT () 1,967,992,127 1,944,387,515
(@) R—arq fawr 8 5,405,907,254 6,408,043,617
(1) 3 A—are wuRkm 9 26,981,014 62,070,319
(&) <l @ref FoT va Afiw 1,236,764 1,136,634
Y- (1) 7,402,117,159 8,415,638,085
(2) =rel, Ul
(@) =Tef, feraer 10 2,077,080,507 732,004,251
(@) e 11 7,348,040 4,215,892
() fafaer <=eR 12 50,733,145 46,364,369
(&) Fqdhs 3R Ahe FHbE 13 226,869,527 117,789,329
SEREICEEEP 14 914,039,358 919,240,518
SU—AT (2) 3,276,070,577 1,819,614,359
el (1) + (2) 10,678,187,736 10,235,252,444
EECIC ?ﬁﬁvnﬁ IR dEmRen d Aefta 29

SR SfectRad fewforar faxia faazon &1 v 3ifi—1 a7 2|
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Faer . =TT 16 546,723,993 561,040,503
I 3 17 41,951,266 38,209,815
I AATI—aT 18 101,913,713 101,490,318
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Hel I 2,157,517,623 1,863,757,464
qg
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TRl & 20 219,109,932 200,518,074
I R aleT A 21 22,879,043 25,091,825
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5. fUsel qul @I Gl ThaIPRY Sd@ & foy arr= 79,630,087
TRferT W afeRvr
6. ol aul & gedl ThdlaxY ad@ & fou dHifes -79,630,087
SNEE]
ATEMRYT AR IATERYT AT & 919 Ay 434,776,294 333,687,078
et / sRfera Mfer # srerem:
- e daelt diearE ff 14,910,895 13,600,000
- fiRT IR W) =7 109,051,663 115,448,308
- T RIS AR oxe 819,987 591,839
SHde 3 YN [ard ddid sieg =R 2,000,000 1,000,000
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SR SfectRad fewfort foxia faaren &1 U 31 3T 2 |
I EaN BINSECINIEII S| A e S Aisd e aeiora gaer
e (oA v o) A IuTETE e
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ARG Su afaa e
31 4 2025 &1 guTE 9 & forw dHd) yarE faaver

(I 5u )
2024-25 2023-24
gRare wfafafer ¥ Ted) vae
wawjﬁ e?j?{ﬁ%m v 2R P 434,776,294 333,687,078
TSI
SIS IEd WURR R e 90,679,049 72,501,852
SIS : ST THETHROT W Hifbeb BT 18,910,134
SIS : Hufrat @ far w sty 201,438 337,330
R—Twe @dal & YA & 91€ 9RO |
T yaTE 544,566,915 406,526,260
ey : 99 & 31y 546,723,993 561,040,503
s ® fAue™ R ey 36,712,341 2,691,237
%%Wﬁﬁﬁmﬁqﬁvﬁﬁaﬁ 6.260,400
roxe/ A & fag efee™ 819,987 | 590,516,721 591,839 564,323,579
Frizfia goft @ik iy uRads @ ugad
afrarerT arRrsty (45,949,806) (157,797,319)
oA gREuRRAT AR adu™ qeRal #
qf& / (#+)
A (afg) /0 (3,132,148) (844,016)
e FON & Y& oerl A (§fE) /dW (4,368,776) (3,120,653)
3 re] wHafcrdl # () / 5,201,160 92,144,902
Srafafr ot ok Il 7 () /w0 (100,130) 31,088
3 IR =g il # (gfg) /w0 35,089,305 (65,620,999)
fafaer omeRi 4 9fg / (@) (43,100,838) (3,440,316)
3 @Te], <AaIRaAl H gfg / (F) 52,314,400 (3,343,935)
Jfeurafy e H gy / (@) 52,068,183 14,682,183
R—=Te], <RIl # gl / (&) (8,500) 8,500
(ﬁ)m)ﬁﬁ & fore geeR # sferat (7,755,349) (10,562,686)
Iftqa (SUART) SHar) ufdreor iy (350,920) (879,873)
(m / 1 )ﬁrfit < st (23,738,144) (60,785,596)
I (SUINT) Ferawil Uiede RebR Ffy (301,292) (508,861)
it (SUART) eraas e fAifer 4,497,035
yiftqat (SUArT) fAwre e deares [AfY (14,910,893) (13,657,107)
Tt (SUART) SraRaT Afdr 51,403,094 (55,897,369)
gRares wfafafdr @ gfoa faa T@d 5,453,288 (213,694,688)
e wfafafer @ 9od) yars
RENIESIE 546,723,993 561,040,503
(:jil{q)%m WSl A P 367,417,727 470,258,863
fArder /=gt Wl & A B [T 3 (3Te) 617,170,225 867,000,252
9T / RIgerd B gHedl & AR ((R—ATe)  |(1,176,980,551) (1,576,510,238)
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er / g garal He SHISAl BT ARSI (ATe])

(150,547,294)

(94,346,512)

I AUt o

38,900,453

4,629,525

gedl Adhaarl A & Y aiRem

79,630,087

JaIgwil UicdTed R¥BR [T 8 v

400,000

AT PIY b for 3fere

2,000,000

1,000,000

mrfafia st afed s Ui &1 TferEe

(110,490,829)

(333,964,980)

feraer wfafafss 4 vy fda Tad)

134,593,725

(21,262,500)

fa<ha wfafafer @ T yars

ara Rord ok Jufzd a9 H gfg

710,790

(78,285,972)

el Rord (Fae) 7 afg / (@)

62,912

121,969

I IR T I AR & Breex ¥aq [
(Fraer) & gfs / (@+)

(2,302,203)

(7,837,099)

gR¥airar @ o emelt / srearat |/ ® ARTe / SUAnT
¥ (qf&) /0

(42,870,083)

4,751,299

a1 Rerd ok w3 () ¥ gl / (@) (Frae)

(38,230)

661,140

ool SR # gfe/ (@)

13,470,000

12,516,000

facfra wfafafer @ gfoa faa od

(30,966,814)

(68,072,663)

31 U 2025 &1 GATd 98 & v foad Addl
ydqrg ()

109,080,198

(303,029,851)

g8 BT YHIATT H APa AR dha g (F)

117,789,329

420,819,180

a9 & 3T A B IR APS GG

226,869,527

117,789,329

feagofy :

21

1. SIRI™ 5l yare faaxer vea—3 ¥ feilRa smaud uvgfa o swaiv v wra fear

2. %o dAle 1 9 29 9@ <) yare faaver &1 ve Af= 3T 2|

3 I%g IR THe WIg A Wi -

®. Hg, db / SIUC / URed 3Jis} AR S[H
fede

632,481

1,342,687

@, Iggfaa d5 & WAy afdn

-ggd & @rar ¥ (9rafer s afad)

226,237,046

116,446,642

226,869,527

117,789,329

TR SfociRad fewfirar foxig faroll &1 v a1firT i €

v sy dig=
e

A g
B R GEEIRCRED))

N 99 Y @ Ruid & e

T BT, JEART AT IR [3A
B gofievor v 000038N

(7. 31)
AEER

(Tewgar w=n. 052473)
oI: g el
feie: 25-08-2025

AT gaq S diSd
SuTEgeT

F T R A AR A

NINSICE NSRRI

JTEYET

o T & e iR |ieT
TS TRITAR
Y Tofrevor dear: 001135N

(T, )
RIE N

(Fewam wx=r 072290)

I 7% et
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ARfEa ey va iy

e
(f¥r vua #@)
faa=or 31 91 2025 31 91 2024
(1) 9o aRfera
fowel gor o= & IR 149,983,040 137,467,040
e Al o Y99 Yob
— AR Aew
11,712,000 10'475'08
— Wi e 1758000 13470000 | 41 000 12,516,000
SY-IhT (1) 163,453,040 149,983,040
(2) 9= rRfera e
s ot o & AR 8,304,274,905 7,859,077,512
SIS oY & RE uRaes 763,821 83,656
SIS B g 58,450 24,474
SIS: MR fAfd | weriaRor 80,968,693 320,436,434
m%w i 418,351 1,237,485
T 994 & SR ARSI / SUAHT -529,832 79,631,587
8,385,954,388 8,101,227,974
3?;1)? AR ¥ AR (6 e 307,993,749 203,046,931
SU-FIT (2) 8,693,948,137 8,304,274,905
(3) wirgs ¥t Rord
fUsel goid 13 & IgaR 3,178,832 3,056,863
Sire: g9 30,374 108,605
SIS | 32,538 30,213
geTg: ST - -16,849
SU—ANT (3) 3,241,744 3,178,832
(4) waq Rod
fUsel goid 3 & AR 125,038,501 137,867,853
SIS 863,322 -
HCIK’-Z ‘{‘IHIHI\ﬂ"I/\SMHIIr‘\ICII -1,374,424 -12,829,352
SU-IANT (4) 124,527,399 125,038,501
(5) smERYa "ag Rord
s o o & AR 32,915,951 32,915,951
SU-A1T (5) 32,915,951 32,915,951
(6) a1 Rard
fIsel gor o & AR 9,579,975 8,918,835
Sre: ¥ & IRM gfgat - 575,081
SIS € 100,430 96,314
eI 9¥ & SR FHRIST / SUAET -138,660 -10,255
SU-ANT (6) 9,541,745 9,579,975
(7) f% / waq /s wulke 9 /9
A
TR A ¢ EH—<IAY 10,842,035 146,038,991
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fmw ® forg et /e @ -19,556,057 48,339,109
%@mﬁpﬁ s m M/E@f l -23,314,026 -183,536,065
SU-A17T (7) -32,028,048 10,842,035
Fd: (19 7) 8,995,599,968 8,635,813,239
Ae—2
freifRa fafer fer v )
BURT T Bs 7
- Ipedl & oy angHIvHaTs HHART ul¥Evr sy
IS (¥R
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
fwe gov U9 @ AR 182,230,637 | 178,903,421 | 10,666,245 | 10,722,197
SIIS: 9¥ & SR eI - - - -
AT A | RITHTeRT - - - -
SIS: <TST 3rdes 14,268,237 13,889,902 839,263 823,921
SY T 196,498,874 | 192,793,323 | 11,505,508 | 11,546,118
eI 9¥ & SR SUART favar T 7,755,349 10,562,686 350,920 879,873
af @& IFa A oy Al 188,743,525 | 182,230,637 | 11,154,588 | 10,666,245

GBI ThSIHIUT BIY

RPR (Y & fag dqiae

fara=or
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
oo qel T U ® SRS 206,753,541 154,112,218 11,059,871 10,826,454
SIS 9 & SR e - - 400,000 -
A= RoTd 3 SfaRoT 18,910,134 79,630,087 - -
SIS =TT JTde 37,519,032 33,796,827 764,293 742,278
9 AT 263,182,707 267,539,132 12,224,164 11,568,732
TN 9§ & SR ST fhar 23,738,144 301,292 508,861
60,785,591
g & 3fad & AW Ay 239,444,563 11,922,872 | 11,059,871
206,753,541

srqaaHr faifer

yeuia d¥efl Micares A

(THagaRET @Y A

3R waq

faraor IRy, wrefra fem Ffr i)

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
el go T3 & AR 4,728,134 | 4,430,779 751,559,289 | 1,005,023,304
e 9¥ & SR sfvre 14,910,893 | 13,600,000 - -
A T | RO - - 2,000,000 1,000,000
Sire: 99 & SR wIfedat - - - -
e @S amde 378,251 354,462 55,413,470 65,972,419
SU AT | 20,017,278 | 18,385,241 808,972,759 | 1,071,995,723
ey ST TR SR | SfaRor - - -
geTg: 99 & SR SYANT fhar ar 14,910,893 | 13,657,107 - -
TG YA Ud 99 & AR W - - 80,968,693 320,436,434
s @ ad ¥ 2y A 5,106,385 | 4,728,134 728,004,066 | 751,559,289
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P raafas faer iR EXSINIRN
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
sl goii T3 @ STgER 64,567,496 | 58,032,079 1,231,565,213 | 1,422,050,452
Sre: a9 & IRM MR 4,497,035 6,535,417 19,807,928 20,135,417
A RS | SiaRo] - - 20,910,134 80,630,087
TS a9 & IR Wit - - R
SIS &S 3rdes - - 109,182,546 115,579,809
39 IhT 69,064,531 | 64,567,496 1,381,465,821 | 1,638,395,765
U IUINT TR S8R H 3faRor - . .
e ¥ & SR SUART faar - - 47,056,598 86,394,118
TG Y Ud 9ae @ MfeRrger w) - - 80,968,693 320,436,434
ad @ Id # W Al 69,064,531 | 64,567,496 1,253,440,530 | 1,231,565,213
fafaer d e dic—3
(afdr vud #)
faavor 31 9" 2025 31 W 2024
g;;giﬂ; (VHTEYHS BT SRRl |fed -we4 Are ¥, 29-2 11158137 34,698,501
jig_;ﬁsaﬁ (ORI, STt et it e 56,203,653 73,601,831
JR3M /A & AIH | Yol A (SUa) 363,380 2,526,176
Qe 67,725,670 110,826,508
3= dTe], QAITRAT Ac—4
(¥ vua #)
faavor 31 ATd 2025 31 A1d 2024
IR H o Yo
-BTF A AT Yo (TRNeT Yoh) 120,285,266 102,568,264
- TSI Yo 3R 3= 12,962,431 4,769,930
el / AR o 2y 58,899,287 7,969,865
gferafer 10,264,552 10,264,614
gfcreRer T 34,904,938 50,625,004
AURT PR 3T 1,621,000 862,000
AP < 3,516,721 19,419,060
SO < 5,599,384 1,117,629
eRIER W iy 1,622,750 275,000
3= < [ew e 9. 29- 2 (w@)- 17] 1,551,092 1,041,655
gl 251,227,421 198,913,021




[WIT [II—ETE 4]

HTLT T TSTIA @ AHTTI

85

g afr @ wreE dle—s5
fara=or 31 91 2025 31 91 2024
g P forw yrae= 110,158,646 58,090,463
el 110,158,646 58,090,463
iy, WA qI Suseer Tic—6
(f¥r v9a
hi))
APhd sild N / Bl frad =ii®
TS SEIPIEE 31.3.2024
= / 31.3.202 | 4 4 5024 a / 31.3. 31.3.2025 i
14520' 2“4 Q gRaefs | Terraxer 59 T 3 R ReIMITARYT 2025 ¥ ﬁ
4. / LX) B / el
fasy olliTd fasY
(i)| i wuf
Efg 3 S 250,815,158 - - 250,815,158 - - 250,815,158 250,815,158
QT% ™ éa 302,450,802 - - 302,450,802 29,958,262| 3,251,451 - 33,209,713 269,241,089 272,492,540
HIq 1,374,845,783| 101,033,190 4,440,000| 1,471,438,973| 400,650,869 52,637,407| 3,384,048| 449,904,228| 1,021,534,745 974,194,914
HeeR U4
m 169,779,024 6,062,062 2,073,208 173,767,878 94,524,010| 8,346,167 1,741,245 101,128,932 72,638,946 75,255,014
EFFQ%\E_\’ SEESY 116,127,504 18,229,386 13,832,724 120,524,166 101,539,209| 9,898,614{ 13,331,929 98,105,894 22,418,272 14,588,295
ATl SUDRY 86,286,258 6,849,760 530,947 92,605,071 44,122,547| 6,923,103 343,119 50,702,531 41,902,540 42,163,711
W SEEaY 64,527,872 5,820,888 927,227 69,421,533 42,238,372 4,087,111 381,776 45,943,707 23,477,826 22,289,500
BRI A
Gﬁ—\’ ?:I-a N 60,622,729 1,844,840 1,012,305 61,455,264 42,964,941| 2,742,983 845,354 44,862,570 16,592,694 17,657,788
SLrcaul
3T IUMRU 13,377,738 947,665 -718,629 15,044,032 8,909,365 736,195 -364,950 10,010,510 5,033,522 4,468,373
H?\_‘Im g W 6,607,165 146,977 4,255 6,749,887 6,607,174 122,441 -11,420 6,741,035 8,852 -
qre- 1,743,725 2,937 1 1,746,661 1,267,089 95,915 1 1,363,003 383,658 476,636
iﬂ?{\ T:m‘ a\i_,a (1) 2,447,183,758| 140,937,705 22,102,038| 2,566,019,425| 772,781,838(88,841,387|19,651,102| 841,972,123|1,724,047,302| 1,674,401,930
ﬁ'@?ﬂ ?m‘ _CW 2,058,968,258| 396,225,385 8,009,885 2,447,183,758| 708,687,964| 70,503,521 6,409,646 772,781,838 1,674,401,930 1,350,280,290
(ii) e wuRy
IECCRN
ﬁ F # 38,037,835 9,679,669 -25,167 47,664,663 37,177,620 1,837,662 36,219 38,979,063 8,685,600 860,215
znqzm‘ ga (ii) 38,037,835 9,679,669 -25167| 47,664,663 37,177,620| 1,837,662| 36,219| 38,979,063 8,685,600 860,215
ﬁ'@?’ﬂ' EI'Q( EE(T’I 37,418,300 619,535 - 38,037,835 35,178,572 1,998,329 -719 37,177,620 860,215 2,239,728
are], a8 A
(l+ll) 2,485,221,593 | 150,617,374 22,076,871| 2,613,684,088( 809,959,458|90,679,049(19,687,321| 880,951,186|1,732,732,902| 1,675,262,145
Ire], a4 F
(1+ll) 2,096,386,558 | 396,844,920 8,009,885| 2,485,221,593| 743,866,536(72,501,850| 6,408,927| 809,959,458|1,675,262,145( 1,352,520,018

# 39H qd aul # oSS ¥ WA @ & ¥ & A &6 Ig b AT & Wedd A AeRR e 3
FNTA 62,60,400 /— FT AHA & (e T 292 (W@)—14)(@) <) |
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o & wrfa wR @ (Hrssegangdi) dqre—7
(¥ sud #)
a 1.4.2024 & yRaef / qgﬁm 2'(:;;;2;
RS TS NEIRINE] EACIR G
CA
Fferrger & ded 4 86,348,619 5,372,500 - 91,721,119
9= SfUEOT & ded Yol AR 8,323,000 - . 8,323,000
fomfor & aga wa= 7,719,005 - 7,590,724 128,281
PR CIRICT WA CIN 166,734,746 75,596,193 107,244,114 135,086,825
() are], a9 g 269,125,370 80,968,693 114,834,838 | 235,259,225
fUoar av @ 332,005,309 326,638,864 389,518,803 269,125,370
. ar[d "ufeaar
faer o1efie Afmedasd - 6,409,756 6,409,756 -
(=) are] S A - 6,409,756 6,409,756 -
o a¥ g - - - -
arel ¥ BT A WS 269,125,370 87,378,449 121,244,594 | 235,259,225
fUod v &1 B e 332,005,309 326,638,864 389,518,803 269,125,370

# 39 gd guf # MES 9§ g =g & o % T T FT B UG B HEIH W FFedIR fahrT P o 62,60,400 / —

Y WS B (Ale HwEr 20—2 (W@)—14)(37) <) |

Ax—are], e ( :ﬁe—g_)
Ferari : a4 01.04.2025
frawor 01.04.2024 T welar dre] .04,
BI ¢ JHART BI
I. &R gfegfa A faer
WRA WROR AT
i o 1,058,000 - - 1,058,000
9 dfs
Y- (1) 1,058,000 - - 1,058,000
1L Rd=R /ais # Frder
0, 3ﬂg—\éﬂw
)] ;7%9 g’_cﬁ s 50,044,010 37,703 50,006,307
. 8.70% TeAsTS !
95,969,756 1,198,437 94,771,319
(i) TIUESH 2029
0, 3ﬂgqfﬁ
(iii) Z%%Qjozg 127,301,079 1,003,056 126,298,023
0, Q:TQ'_CTQ
(iv) 7.03% o 396,398,409 323,831 396,074,578
2040
0, TATIT
) Zogf % o 389,112,690 126,209 388,986,481
0, TATIT
(vi) ;.()1:0/0 o 373,383,823 20,582 373,363,241
0, TATIT
(vii) 7:26% o 88,038,432 141,905 87,896,527
2038
0, TATIT
(viii) 7:48% o 257,321,457 397,776 256,923,681
2040
0, QW@W
(ix) ;(;3?? 3/0 o 247,566,521 - 279,803 247,286,718
7.85% fagrR
X 291,064,271 - 124,666 290,939,605
() THoivyd 2032
: TIUIRTTS 7.98%
@ 1,074,768 2,991 1,071,777
(X)) | gtvs 23.12.2049
Qﬂ@w 0,
(xii) - 6.88% 994,000 - 994,000
d7S 24.09.2031
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TARMSHITaUHIS 7.
9 1,987,000 1,987,000
() | 130, difes 24.11.2031
: TIUITRITS 6.99%
3 1,938,900 938,
(xiv) 1S 28.05.2035 i 1,938,900
10.04% 3MTARTHHA
o 1,095,500 - 095,
(xv) v 1,095,500
. 7.48% JTTSIRUBAT
o 1,972,500 - 1,972,500
(xvi) _
. | 827% UATETaTy
o 1,035,300 - 1,035,300
(xvii) _
o | 8.35% SMTSAIRTHH
9 2,099,200 . ,099,
(xviii) o 2,099,200
: 8.79% STLIARARI
(xix) o7 Sk 1,072,600 - 1,072,600
GIS]
7% UIUB diS 22.
(xx) | 01.2031 (3ifaT He& 1,951,600 1,951,600
1000 /—)
: 7.54% ATSIIRTBH!
(xxi) S e 1,029,000 1,029,000
EIS]
Sy (11) 2,332,450,816 3,656,959 2,328,793,857
I Jgard ws 4 fae
. NS UHU, Jg&l
) o i ¢ 27,499,000 62,499,750 89,998,750
ii 7Y A 27,499,000 29,999,7 498,
(i) veEr gt 50 57,498,750
(iii) e 25,000,000 17,499,750 42,499,750
Y17 (I11) 79,998,000 109,999,251 - 189,997,251
v 31 AR—are] e
(®) 4%l 4 wEfer o
(i) DR 1,541,165,399 703,656,045 184,798,068 - 2,060,023,376
I d 3ih
i : 1,212,769,190 25,322,187 33,604,799 974,742,880 229,743,698
W | sfom @)
(iii) LAl 440,000,000 26,531,404 7,916,841 440,000,000 18,614,563
(iv) = 21,642,187 291,238,067 5,913,538 306,966,716
(Q?:I_Gﬁ(&ﬂg) ) ’ ) y ’ ’ ] )
) TISIUHA §h 600,000 - 600,000 - -
(vi) GolTd e 4 7,032,987 116,900 3,762,728 - 3,387,159
(vii) | Hgd 9% 3% sfear 4,316,447 320,060 - - 4,636,507
(viii) | 9% 3% #ERTS 1,921,682 534,853 - - 2,456,535
(ix) PACH db 462,431 51,530 - - 513,961
x) ST SRS dp 33,291,482 1,784,615 694,120 - 34,381,977
(xi) Iq d9F 150,000 100,000 - - 250,000
(xii) | g1 9B 610,000 3,705,045 4,095,045 . 220,000
(xiii) | 9S4 U€ R4 d 283,168 283,168 -
(xiv) | SfERN(dIgE) 842,036 842,036 -
(xv) | MESHITE 96 1,700,000 4,484,500 1,700,000 4,484,500
(xvi) | PUNE 9 2,595,241 2,595,241
xvii :
)( IAMSAIRNEHIE dF 400,000 - 400,000
SU—AIT () 3,269,782,250 | 1,057,845,207 | 244,210,343 | 1,414,742,880 2,668,674,234
=) B @ Ielrar =T Gl ¥ Grafdr o
. 389,956,30
)] JIUe—T=IUh el 441,950,000 - 95,000,000 7 -43,006,307
(i) SESTHAl ferfics 56,875 - - 7,000,000 -6,943,125
(iii) 3 5,339,184 590,482 718,788 - 5,210,878
: TSI AT
(iv) JHdERT B e 114,401,711 7,545,611 | 23,831,637 - 98,115,685
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| 5
SUB-TOTAL(B) 561,747,770 8,136,093 | 119,550,425/396,956,307 53,377,131
I (ol fAfdse
(m )
(i) m %j%fgg 5,781 5,781
(iii) (3]1%1“ T oTganEd) 140,000,000 140,000,000
(iv) N 20,000,000 20,000,000
(TS AITHSTE—AREIAT) o o
) 4 1,500,000 1,500,000
(TS HTHIMS—TSI3TR) o P
(vi) N 1,500,000 1,500,000
(BTE TS —3METHT) = 500,
(vii) N 1,000,000 1,000,000
(SmEHTTHaIE —TRATerel) o T
SU—AhT (1) 163,006,781 1,000,000 164,006,781
SU—ATT(H+E+T)=IV 3,994,536,801 | 1,066,981,300 | 363,760,768 1,811,699,187|  2,886,058,146
ANT (1+11+11+1V) 6,408,043,617 | 1,176,980,551 | 367,417,727 1,811,699,187|  5,405,907,254

31 A€ 2025 TP gGAd B § e & Haer #

Fe Y% o 18,99,97,250 /— ¥ (@l A 7,99,98,000 / — TU) B |

Y€ IR e 22,67,22,378 /— T (frwel a¥ 10,83,12,872 /— W) B, Ta(H

I AX — =rq uRFuRY dlc—9
(IR 3w ¥)
faazor 31 A1 2025 Bl 31 A1 2024 Bl
(i) @, sresT 9 AT @
2(37?2@2;; grgﬁﬁm/ A @ o/ B ferg oo [Fe e 1,940,000 36,940,000
(@) e sratest /e & Jfi /9aa! @ fag F&or 16,908,252 16,908,252
(ii) ufesgfa semm 8,132,762 8,222,067
el 26,981,014 62,070,319
EIGQEEN
dle—10
(3 vw ¥)
faraxor 1.4.2024 B gzt Feifaat ﬁq@m}ﬁ 1 31.03.2025
I W ufenffa & Faw
)] l WRA WEHR & d~e (F8—adrs) 50,006,307 50,006,307
Syt (1) 50,006,307 50,006,307
11 = are], fawr
(®) I3 & wrafer s
0] e 33 28,064,717 11,007,641 22,546,052 16,526,306
(ii) o off gSraT 30,839,635 40,198,282 6,084,202 440,000,000 504,953,715
(iii) @ offe sfear 1,498,819 1,498,819
(iv) R I 34,135,938 32,890,503 19,097,835 47,928,606
) SESCACILER 7,796,650 164,779 7,961,429
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(vi) SIS FRICIICED 3,882,642 11,471,474 1,558,576 13,795,540
(vii) ST e 3,034,977 1,040,803 3,031,438 1,044,342
(viii) e SaxeiiT do 15,546,358 6,066,693 21,613,051
(ix) T e 9 (dee) 3,045,311 1,575,985 275,037 4,346,259
(x) IRAT Ve I6 34,037,524 15,448,057 11,688,852 37,796,729
(xi) PeaicE 1,456,672 7,465,720 1,469,954 7,452,438
(xii) PN B 7,509,443 487,457 7,996,900
(xil) | I 5 sifw 5fe 38,155,565 22,729,900 28,418,279 974,742,880 1,007,210,066
STt (11-%) 209,004,251 | 150,547,294 94,170,225 | 1,414,742,880 | 1,680,124,200
(@) i?ﬁ P m&]flﬁﬂ =g Heert A
(i) YRS TeqhTel 500,000,000 500,000,000
(i) BILSEINC Iy 346,950,000 346,950,000
(iii) Q@‘;ag) <At (FIARITEC, 23000000 23,000,000
Su—atr (II- @) | 523,000,000 523,000,000 346,950,000 346,950,000
S—an (1) 732,004,251 | 150547,294 | 617,170,225 | 1,761,692,880 | 2,027,074,200
@ (I+1) | 732004251 | 150547294 | 617170225 | 1811,699,187 | 2,077,080,507
de- 11
e e @R vqd )
faawor 31 W1d 2025 B 31 W1d 2024 B
UhTe 3R NI AT 1,269,306 1,113,934
ITHISY, ¥R AR 31 6,078,734 3,101,958
@l 7,348,040 4,215,892
Rafaer AR , IR =
faawor 31 #Td 2025 Y 31 WTd 2024 B
%) fafay <eR
[, /g AN S aTet 302,347 126,594
SRIRMEYE, ore A O dTel 261,181 581,374
wfeer 5,996,147 5,996,147
6,559,675 6,704,115
e e SRt & forw smawm 5,996,147 5,996,147
SU-A1T (B) 563,528 707,968
Q) 3= fafay T 9eR
RIEYE, are A O dTel 246,879 295,599
JrgRIard, 3ree AN S aTel 49,922,738 45,360,802
e 300,000 300,000
50,469,617 45,956,401
TG Aoty eRT & fore Uraem 300,000 300,000
IU—ATT (@) 50,169,617 45,656,401
ol (H+) 50,733,145 46,364,369
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die- 13
THE IR TP D TIGA (R Y )
feraxor 31 9 2025 Bl 31 AT 2024 B
ot @ 9 AT AR (T F FERT aifid SR W T
10,49,52,324 /— TAT dIf¥p MR TR 5. 29,15,758 /— I 226,237,046 116,446,642
fofrs wmafd ST wfeq)
ECASINAS IELICIPASHLY 8,103 747,878
g H e 624,378 594,809
Ex3 226,869,527 117,789,329
dic- 14
I el IRFURTAT (TR ew )
fara=or 31 U 2025 &1 31 U 2024 H1
Y TN i = 716,530,807 705,473,486
7@ T @R 9,658,176 9,806,631
gRrfy ST 3,520,327 5,313,088
SIS 3 ?\,‘z-f % 12,111,824 9,970,167
fUser 9¥ d% < B Uiy 68,732,072 69,548,439
W TR R HErdl =e] I 36,169,152 61,589,843
ITSHITaE oxe / fHfern / R / A 54,526,930 52,927,854
HHEAIRAT BT A 270,251 447,427
I TGl A 8,757,894 2,780,225
urfdat o1 a1 3,761,925 1,383,358
Bl 914,039,358 919,240,518
Tfafaferat 4 ma
Hec—15
(I3 Bu W)
T 9 @
faavor fere
31 919 2025 31 914 2024
e 9 I
T Yeh 163,835,58 163,385,91
0 6
3T Yo
565,500 164,401,080 549,750 163,935,666
BEl 9 3™
TUSThRIT g 138,460,12 132,813,06
5 0
ge ¥Yeb 31,703,750 32,583,750
TSI USTDHROT BI¥T 15,389,125 14,279,750
e b 501,490,55 279,075,17
0 5
TRl g[eh 305,207,75 269,894,25
0 7
HiRge e gob 26,352,534 28,824,673
3 e 1,038,448,38
19,844,548 2 23,358,012 780,828,677
ybIel a1 faml
Ikl 13,516,880 10,589,780
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T
2,209,302 15,726,182 2,027,643 12,617,423
sRfpH / FMe)
Ik 86,655,112 54,768,271
o™ 130,635,52 120,238,49
4 217,290,636 1 175,006,762
CICOE B
fignay / wféfeae /b
Ik 2,688,500 3,537,500
SE 23,159,600 22,835,800
- 5,214,271 31,062,371 4,255,000 30,628,300
1,466,928,65
Bl 1 1,163,016,828
e w = Alc—16
¥ v ¥)
T 9 @
farawor fere
31 914 2025 31 914 2024
Joi § e ek o1 ) = 546,723,993 561,040,503
@ 546,723,993 561,040,503
I I qe 17
¥ 0 #)
T 98 @ oy
faawor
31 1 2025 31 O 2024
g3 / f=fa / TR 99 & Fedn 6,611,950 6,579,949
HEINT IR R o - 5,347
Y3 oXe 9 Gefa dHifee oy 9,929,364 9,358,849
T — HMHA 35,200 21,900
eSS R gfaar yurR 296,500 188,700
ITEATIANES—TSIAMS YT I gt 2,712,972 2,846,398
IMEYTTHIME—ITRARAT I vt 1,980,106 2,472,953
MeAITHaTS—3eydy 3 yiftan - 202,938
AMIHR &4 T TR AT 6,811,066 3,611,142
JBN BT BT I 488,012 567,958
aRguRia & e w ey (fagh
N = (Rt = =i 1 g 36,855 2,353,907
)
JG(RI— ATRNEAHS BRIATS! B AETH | 1.610.000 125 000
=y fafay ema / wftaan 11,239,241 9,874,774
Bl 41,951,266 38,209,815
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I AATY—IAT dqic—18
¥ v #)
P AT 9o @ forg
31 ATd 2025 31 ATd 2024
THATU—HIRTRAT AR A wifeqan 52,329,214 60,735,194
THATO—HCERT AR ¥ wrfrt 2,642,123 3,436,833
THRIT—SESUTHY & wftera 36,336,785 32,975,211
THRIT——09 AR 9 g 6,146,071 4,343,080
TR~ AR | it 4,459,520 -
Ex3l 101,913,713 101,490,318
HHANY @ g
de -19
(¥ w9 #)
Ryaeor WAt 9 ® fog
31 A1d 2025 31 A1d 2024
ERRRCIN ] 550,033,114 500,635,556
o & aferem:
wfasy fAfer 5,975,679 6,236,351
EERCNEIIVE) (YRR ) 42,935,708 37,907,459
I=gdr fifdy 54,626,045 9,886,500
Afehal BRUSATSOIH g% - 2,000,000
JARTY THCEIHRUT HIY 19,015,420 122,552,852 - 56,030,310
HHANY BT 23,094,691 22,731,458
B 695,680,657 579,397,324
qdar ad e -20
R wua 9)
- war 9 & forg
31 A1d 2025 31 A1d 2024
UOR ¥R/ URIETdHT BT AQ™ 82,512,204 74,181,555
I el 10,153,751 11,302,198
T g 55,180,934 54,583,218
TTAST BT Uo7 27,967,552 23,656,057
IR W 4,109,218 3,843,359
g gA 12,325,000 10,925,000
HRATTT ST & B, foThT®, Beara 977 anfe | 332,876 633,525
qrg Y107 9 773,975 688,585
IrET G 951,584 480,316
eI /el BT TIeT fSRieeiiaRor 15,420,031 10,557,115
e YHTIE ST UF / $-URum — e gRlem 708,000 708,000
e Agasse 7,289,523 7,676,648
LRIRC R 1,385,284 1,282,498
@l 219,109,932 200,518,074
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Jrar 3R 9red Gd e -21
@RT w7 #)
Ture 9 @
. ferg
31 914 2025 31 91 2024
=T W 21,936,970 24,336,309
CIEERCE] 942,073 755,516
Bl 22,879,043 25,091,825
sRfHpa / A g e .22
(3 wua w)
U 99 @
faa=or fere
31 U 2025 31 U 2024
T BT q,RijH/qq'—;ﬁ-@ 139,972,935 135,240,258
faemeffr &1 BRdew / FATST
() 95,466,989 72,949,915
() 2,480,518 1,927,474
el 237,920,442 210,117,647
. Te-23
DI W (@R e %)
T 9 @
farawor fere
31 91d 2025 31 91 2024
BT Harsi & foy gedb 8,180,294 8,180,294 | 3,722,525 3,722,525
hel 8,180,294 3,722,525
EEEAGEIY e - 24
fdr vud ®)
T 98 @
" ferg
31 O 2025 31 U 2024
YR WATE — AAEHR 6,074,409 11,394,082
UYR HATY — HATBDRI B ATl 1,835,445 7,909,854 1,895,291 13,289,373
Bl 7,909,854 13,289,373
GdR I diec-25
¥ v )
U 9 @
. forg
31 91 2025 31 919 2024
- éﬁ’lﬂﬂ?/@‘cﬂ?/g—ﬁﬂ/m 4,932,431 4,912,668
-BRIR / D
e 2,971,082 7,903,513 3,112,304 8,024,972
Dl 7,903,513 8,024,972
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I Y e - 26
R s %)
P AT 9 & ferg
31 ATd 2025 31 ATd 2024
BRSNS 18,563,911 17,386,827
GEERARSIGRI 8,807,147 8,414,774
ClEll 1,648,724 1,301,187
TRET SR YERET
- A 7,678,795 4,208,833
— HYXR 9,715,986 9,197,622
— 3= aRufrIT 11,689,566 10,487,506
— arE 627,618 29,711,965 615,739 24,509,700
BT &1 St 49,159,932 43,448,944
AR U 3R a3 141,573 270,935
sl Aae @ 33,676,986 36,023,385
EECHETICE] 3,869,762 3,784,727
fpaT 3R WO 48,069 42,265
wiad g/ 9ee @ # St 231,782 174,400
P TR 4,139,476 3,974,196
BT BIAGRT 3R JRYDR 251,870 321,743
AifAferd o ET wRietdt BT aIRsIfHd:
- JADHET Yoh 2,148,029 1,495,336
- 3= THIUE HdTY 111,010 2,259,039 318,664 1,814,000
ATARS HBET ob 1,915,523 1,741,488
et ferepxor # 3fereT 2,750,000 2,500,000
SIgEeT 399e Rawdd 116,889 222,188
AT 71 fhy ST Ah+ arell SY™e] HiSe 98 @ # 151,000
STl T
W= IgEred / R &9, 714,762
fafaer = [Heed e €. 29- 2 (d1)- 17] 1,820,834 6,180,286
3R o1 132,070 102,831
fafar ¥ wwre /Rem offs 1,786,389 6,528,405
SIUET / A€ R < Yo / To 14,844 3,354
TGl AT LA /MR S8 @I § Tl T 61,251
ST,/ SRS,/ STLTRT / TEIAR / ST IaiT 529,962 1,094,253
Ex| 162,503,760 159,839,888
3= Garg e 27
(R wud ®)
Py a9 & fog
31 9rd 2025 31 W1d 2024
ST AR S 52,413,359 59,531,601
o) AR @ 2,615,964 3,402,805
T STEY =g 35,977,017 32,648,725
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g AR 6,085,217 4,300,079
I AR 2 4,415,366 -
B 101,506,923 99,883,210
ud @l @d (3ma &1 Faa) e 28
(FT v@ ¥)

P a8 ® forg
31 ATd 2025 31 A1 2024
qd rafer @rg 4,587,834 13,656,751
TeTg: gd oA 31 o (e e 29-2-(7)-14) 8,303,216 13,366,559
& -3,715,382 290,192

ARG Hu afaa g

(Fafea)
qe—29
1. 9m= I

IRA BU Afya TRem (AR a7 TSNS ), foraT qearery 73 fieell # 8, & amreld due & famr
(SRIY), WRT ARBR 7 4 3faCIR 1968 BT DU IMUIH, 1956 P IRT 25 & dd AlsHd U< RS & AT Th
fafics sl & wu # FRIFT fBar o1 | I8 9Rd d Su Afal & el B f[aeRid iR fAfFafa #== 8g 9Rd |
HI=ITT T AT b 8 | I8 Teb 95 I YR Ao & |

TN, HUI HchdlEﬁﬁﬂm(@?ﬁ@ﬁﬂwﬁaﬁwﬂﬂ%@%ﬁmzﬁwﬁwﬁaﬁﬁmaﬁﬁnwﬁw
e o T ok S9a d1e, e < dul Afed Tfafam, 1980 WIRkd fhar, forae AR 9Rd d Hus |l
T U BT RAFEHT R @ Sew | 1 AN 1981 W R Bl 9RA HUA Al W d w9 A gRafdd #)
foam | S SffRM & SR, WRe @) RS B WRe & Sl & FEE BT SR Aiar T E

9 IeW & forg, URYE 7 4 &3 BRI, 4as, PIABNI, o=s 3R 73 facell § IS WIH F U PrAfed, §ds,
TERIATE 3R PIAHIAT H 3 HURS Ta-a REd U ¢fHT Hex iR ¥ 9RT # 73 9<x (¢4 fawraeia I<d afq)
U by € |

TR BIART R F37e, R WRER & IEGR &5 § B HRal 2 | I8 I ol Afd (ivw) ey &
BIA Pl Sed orad drell RIET Y&TH SRl & 3R Aed Fel & oy waicd [ora<n A FeiiRa $rar 2 |

2. #Ed@yel o ANl &1 aRie SR el ) fewvrn
(@) d@iea Afa

1. fa<hg faawor dar & &1 IR

ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬂ?ﬂ%ﬁgﬁmwwsﬁ?a@w$wwwmwéaww$aﬁé@ﬂm
HRI gRT 9N fhY Y JoI A1) oikdl a1 3R 9Ra # M dR W Wier fagidl g sivegd) &
IR TR fHY 7Y 8| T o QiR @ @, W9 O &5 r=Iem 9 HET A7 B, W B MR TR IO b
TR ¥ | T B AT T BET T B, oG AR I gRT AR @ @ TE § ok fwer af #
ST &1 T8 AR & 3190 € |

2. AT ST SYANT

IM AR W Wi Regidl (STeed)) & gy ki f[aRvil &1 G g srgami R FeRe! @ 991 & forg
TSeE P JMATIDAT Bl & S O faaven & dig R Radt iR I9eRal @1 Raid @ 78 a3 3R
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AMHRAPD TSR] B YBSTHRUT 3R oG 3R Y & RIS B T8 AR 1 g9ifad a2 99 & SRE,
RS IROTH I SFAFT ¥ A 81 Fahd € | aRdfae aRUE 3R AT & 1 & iR BT I @y #
YT ST © R aRoms s/ Aifie B 2 |

3. 31 3R AR—are & FfH @1 ImER
o = H aREURT &R ITaIRAT B =7e], a1 AR—=1e] & wu H aigpd fHar T B |

T gRURT I a1 & wU H d9 i a1 ST 2, 99 g9 A aRdred 9% | e & fog o 89
P IFE B, A1 [l & forg aifind 2; I1 I8 930 WU 9 AUR &x & Seed I A fbar Siam 8; a1
s RAfET fafyy & arg are 7eHl @ Wik a8 @1 SFIG 2, AT I8 dha a1 9dal & GAged § o9
T & 59 faffr o & afoefa =21 fear Smar & a1 Ruifér ffY & 9 #9799 &9 arRe %291 & o
AT BT e B & forg SuAnT & fohar S 2

I afl aREufrat @ IR—d1e] & ®U § aiiea fhar T 2 |

U TIAT Pl AT @ WU H qd TAPd [BAT Sl 8, 5§96 Arg GRATed = H aRed 8F &1 IHIa
2; U1 I8 Y= HU A AUR B & I A ARG a1 SI1em 2; a1 g9a! Rufdy [y & qiq 9Re weH1
F iR Fge™ @1 SRS 8 I1 9RIF & U &9 ¥ & 9k HeM @ ol 3gd1 & Faed &1 wIfid ax
F1 A ot iR e B

g ) aREUREl &1 AR—aTe] & U H FEiEa far T 2

T URETe s TR & [y URAURTT & AR ok Fohe 3R dhal & FAged 3§ S9! I & 4=
HT T T |

4. T BT q=IAT

. I Yod A & ®Y # fll @R & gaw & wwg forr omar 2 ek W goh Red § o e feam
SIS

Y. AWl I U Yoob (A% Ud AT BR GSGR) DI Ahe AR W fFar # fo@r Sran g aenfy, «fisy w9
U Yo BT TN B WU H form S 2

T. BTl W Yob Tha AR W frar S 2 |
. e godb 9 ¥ F A= fFar orar @ R wlen smfo @t anht

. UBTIET B A T B aTel o BT [Aepl fae QIR HRd I8 71T <) S 8, 1fd o9 "t § uReufy
& AT URHURT & Aew@yol SiRed ok RaE T¥ITR $T gwiiaRkd & o g |

3. frawr 4 smg
i) fowl R A it & R W AT w2 |

ii) =S arell afRifrl ok |rafd SR IR M &1 §HY STU & MR W AT & okl 8, o1+ garan
RN 3R TURH MR R AR &= 1 &1 § @1 A1l 2|

B. BRIHH /ARARI & o0 I /=g &7 Wiftq &7 1 Ud 2 @I § SUToi+ MER R AT o Ol © |

ol QI -

(i) <FeERl ¥ 39 Y & | Ui Wited AR /<H @ i fF 9 St o R € ol we
# ST @B STl 7

(i) < == @1 falre M @ # S fear S g
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(ili) ST ST HT T AT STl 2 |
5. fraer-

. FIRI BT IRT H AT IR T91 fhar S 2 SR T # SN, B 3R Yod Sl IR drTd entid
B B | WRIE & 9 A B wan sifid @arel, @ @ Wi & ded We Sit fhar S B |

9. R[GTd B Afed qddiford I sifiwer @ afd drma R Ry O € iR SRl & afetran, afk dig
g1, qed § A & forg e fdar e 7

. A AR AT A1 SR oI | HH W fBar S © |

. M| W) @] T el @1 sifdd Je R e U3 W ST ol & iR e @1 9w srafd & srgur #
Wi 7 1 aRees faam e 2

6. "ufw, €7 iR Suawvr (fifE) / Jeuema R uRenes -

M ERAT BT AT 81 AR K B AN BT [ARa i1 U A el (HaT ST Feball 2 | AU, FaF
3R JUPRVT Bl AN H A ARG e AR AT &af g1, afe IS 81, gere” 1 S| | [y,
HIF 3R UG B ANTT | IHd HI oI | Bl 9 AURS g iR Ragd &I geas, gR|uRT
BT IS BT SN & AU TIR PR W Il w5 F <F FI AMHA BT © | URFURT & 30 s
2R A1 Yol by S 2

Q. Ukl W QiR SuRv (A @1 BledR) &I Ufeie ortd # | Gfa qeueN ok B, afe @18 @,
TCIH] ST 1T B |

T I FURHT P T9 AT &1 I © O g |91 81 fh Ry 9 s Afis & anfdfe dm Sed @l
T BT QIR HURY @ ARTT BT favaa i ©U W el fhar ST Adhdr ® | 3R HuRkrn a1 UfEiRie
arTd # 9 <fad aRerE iR ', afe oI 81, geraR quln Srar ¥ md Uil @ orTa # fhed
A 2R g &k RIT &1 aerax SHST H3 Jod, AURT $ I9S 3fod TN & oy TR &=
R ycgel WU 9 U Y, 3R WUy ® sRed Sua @ forv durR 8N @) fafy 9o arg guknl @
IfeRTEvr & Wi o MHRAE g wnfie B B |

I IRFURRT &1 WG/ GRT B & d1 I WR B dTel I Pl Dol T Golldpd [ba1 STl 8, 579
W @ % IRuERERey T aREURT | 9fas & o H S qd W Jedifdd UeeE AHd 9 Afdd iy
il ©

¥ Wl Uz & 9T 99 ¥ 9 AfUE @ & ug R ol S A Bl Wigles A AT ST 21 99 a9
T Y DA A B U2 WR ol TS YA BT Aoreles YA AMT ST 2 |

S, Wieles YA B AN W ST AT ¢ | eroteles Y B ol AfIHR U< & & foy weid g AR
USITaRYT Yob Afed YT dI T WM IR 1R =1 S 2 | ioleles Y &1 Jod Wel a1 ugfa
@ ITAR ofie Ay # uRenfda far S 2|

T HuRy, GIF SR IUBRT W HeIE™, G IRATRMAT & IR Sfiad & MR W, gR¥g gRT srgArfad
freferRed &) W oraferRed g ugfd wR ye= far S 2

aq %
W+ 5
BHER 9 fhaaar 10
folIe / TR HSITFR /37T SUBRT 15
qre 20
PR AR AETZA 40
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B, o/d uREUREl § gfg W e wifTE smguiide SR R ¥eM far Srar 1 s & af # @
qIeTq T8l foram S 2|

. 5000 T I SEH FHH TW B AN dTell @l IRAURE @1 @ig ¥ § qQ IR A Joder far Srer
gl

3 GBI B GRID BT @IS 9§ H 100% D R A I [HAT S 2

T e UREURY (AiredaR) oI 9 et @l fafy # WHM ®U ¥ Jederid fhar S 2

3. & aReufr @ fat / fue™ /seraar &1 89 arel & a1 21 @1 gg e oma ok uRufy o
ofia I & &9 Stk & ®U H A19T S § SR WA 9¥ & N SR g Wi & [JaRer # ugEd
& Sl 7

7. 9% gA

PTTS, ITART AHERI, TP, e AWl onfe @ avg A 1 Jedidd arnd 9 HF AT YE agel
AT I W, T A B 2, fhar ST © 1 anTd BT IR Bl MR W R S 2| gTdife, e 9y
A Afdd R 9%g A B Jedidb dadt €1 I A =l arell /9 I dTell /ATaferd Bl & H &
g X1 R I S 71 SR gRABRT & wie B $9 $ 9§ q—gg @i # 9IRa fBar S § e
9§ B ofd § I R Hedifhd foar Srar 2|

®

IEEMIR CURCE EE |

. fa2el ga1 oM @I oFed Bl aRIE & JgAR Faferd A ) W faeeh gg1 i R o =
Raifér ga1 3 o Arrar W &St faar S 2

@ il 3 3R Y BT 3NAT X W BURY fHar orar & | 99 Aifee gt / gl &7 wur=aRo
T & 3fd B &30 W HAT SIrar 7 SEfd IR—HIfge gl @ dF-od @ Y & g% W) eI S
=

T, I <R IR & SR I Y U7 I I IR I W H ygA 9 © |

9. A oM
Ry siere= Ao

P, I gRT 99V Y Hfasy A g # 3fe ™ /It Yo Ao (fuweiREn) # s B g @
®Y H H=IAT & ST © |

Ry o AT

. T=gdl (Al g H 3fere™ YAsdl §RT U by 1Y Jied & AR W BT S & R gud
—15 (ERNf) & SR @ & wU # AT & SR 2

. tee Y gee W AR difde qeuied & R W fhAr Sar 2 SR UgE—15 (WRIR) &
IR @R & ®U H AT < 9 7 |

T, SR TDHIBRYT BT HIGETT VASSH! §RT U By MU &[T & A®R W AT Sl & 3R
TUH—15 (HNf) & SR & & wU H Ar=yar & ARl ¥

10. THdT UG Tdhal A
Tl U3 H The 3R THal AAGed ¥ dl H SR BT H Foha 3R
e H IR & Ueh A< SIIRGH & MM € |

11. o) yarg faawor

qHE TATE P ofEl AHG—3 “Adhal yarg faawor’ # fuiRa smeue Ay &1 ST e Rurd
far S &, R IR—7de U & oFed & oWl @ folg &) ¥ Usd ARy / (97er) &l
TEEIRTd far ST g iR fUse a1 ¥fiw & 9ad @ f6fl f srefa a1 tigweas w—fid &
A P I & e, [Faer iR a7 1fafafemi & T yare o1 Suaer sfids! iR Jarai
@ SMYR UR 3T T STl B |
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99

12. 31 uREuf, o1 sk afm

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

(=)

1

e uREufeTal, o7 R ARH BT go uF H 39 gRom § <A w g 5 il & amr ee A
RN W I fIamg Y gat AfRY & aR1eR B |

UdEE B I H A A1 A AfS A F THRT R aGell & forg dfiwy fafdy SHeRT &R «ifm @t
T8 @l 7 Yg o & forg ue faar w7

AIGETT

I O HI9T ST & o9 fh) S R 3RNT &1 Je1el @& URUTHRa®Y B3 daae Sl 8T 8
I8 |94 © b TR & e & oy SamEl & dfgaie &l araegear s, s G99y o Us favawsiy
T TR ST el & | TGN Bl HHATRY HeroT Sy UGS, SaHTeT ThaIdhol MR UL & 3refrar
ITd qH eI W GE el &1 ol § AR % qeF ™ @ [ W @l @ fuem & fon sravas
FarH g & AR R FEIRT fhar Sr 81 9@ qed o A WS awien 31 SRh 8 e
A FataH AT B 9 & forg wArfra fhar S 2

g sriedl Ak ded 3 gerEl 31 T3 W) IgeE / 9 @) afayfd sk afead

&g HrETedl 3R T Pl e I, FI B ARYRT 3R FdreEl o A W Afeas! o1 o
qPHE R UR AT ST 2 |

ea ARl /deermn /96l & JAUSH /g™

ITSHITHIATS TFeATgol HfSPhel BIRISHATZOI SXE, Ul Wherlol svdleic hs, AMeHITHINE THRATSST
gYdlcic e, WHEY I Hafid g9fed Be, MhITd Saduic Hs 3R IHREIR Bs & IMER TR
IRYE gRT FHI—FI WR Wi IR T 3AEed / IR [HAr S € |

IJreed / IRfea Aty v ity aor faeriRa fAfr & sfavor
®. 94 & IRM 9T waq vd o fafdre (ARl & fog srger™ @1 srrgeh T &1 A 9% WY |me
RfEr /fafdre fAfy & e Simar 2

. faiRa Al & e 3 ura 3y o1 RfWe Td EYT 99 & 3ig ) wefed ReiRa o #
arafed fopar SIrar & do SO 9§ U @ 7S A B 0 MRt § efde o) e e 2
A i 5, fenRor af¥n gfofa S ek gRE 39 @ ol @ aga gl 9@ ¥

ST 3T S, wfteRer IR, ufenfa S oIk faxi a¥ & ofd # 9@ 9% @ d'd oiF A1 9 S1fdd
o fou gorr fAfdare ¥ o 92 @ § STaT O R8T ' R 9¥ @ fU o & Wy § A < TS
21 9g T # Srel g R #H | fF N 9 @ I @1 A 9 & ad # far S iR aegar
9y @ foU g & wU ¥ Tl fbar S |

orErR R feufory

ITHRAD SIATY

(@) R & gt 0T & wU H TR T8l fby 11 <741 %. 2,57,73,188 / — (Uwet a¥ %.11,37,20,483 /—),

T & AR o onfl da gl =& 21

((F) SRIRTISUE Id BT FHRIGH dfdd TS ARG AIIHIRAT & A1 %. 74,590 /— (Usel av <.

4,96,890 / —).

FRIE © B @ oIy (AT, Fare™ iR iRl (§leid)) 3MER R $—aT & forg dver &R fsd
ToHA IS AT AIRRE Wgde ffics (Slilivaesd) & 4= U |Rsiar fhar 7 o1 | |siiar 13.
09.2015 ®I FATK B TAT| SIACATH SIls, 2015 A WRF Pl @l IR 3§ el @7 &R
JMSHTHATE BT UIee WIHART & # fl e 87| S el 7 Aed=eral &l SIiaE] ¥s a3 & forg
AR el Sod <RI BT SRATST WeWerT | AR Sed ~RITerd o 31 QYT faid 06.03.2017 &

agd el Bl el foRIE AeRerar o & Her SuRerd &M & fader fan)

WRRITT 1 43,24,920 /— U AU < & oIy 3R 2,00,00,000 /— FR & JHAM & oY 0+ T BT fIavor



100 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART III—SEC.4]

<Rae fham 2| ficel SRS #eaRerdl &g o A <IRAf UH Uel Hedl &l el Aegverar uRg &
UHAE AR s far 21 SNelieud 3 SR @ 819 & Uk H o 13 $RIs BUd &1 U
PISex SAT W SRR fhar 2

THHTH AR AT TH Ul Hedl, 7 faAl® 23.01.2021 & 3/@TE & ARIH ¥ ST & U I B
GRS FR AT 3R MEAvHens & uel # 3fR Shelvegd & Raeh o $ 1,00,89,479 /— 8% ufay ad
B SR W S D AT AT AT R W 22.05.2017 H 23.01.2021 T, 3fATe @1 ARG ¥ 30 famAf & AR
37 3R A 18 8% U 9¥ B X T AT B FY SSINATH B AT Mg e B R
ST 99 SR A & AT ASHNHMNE BT 15 oAl & WioR Hiad &= &1 @ e ’ar 21 dfe
STSAUSTE = UHAME Tl §RT UIRG Yafh 31aTs &l iguleld Fei ($ar § | W g1 {57 =amarery,
|rad, 5 faeell # @ & dads @ forg fysares anfet R &) T8 7|

24.02.2023 BT A §RT TG TooHd g AT AR Hgde fofics &1 HuRr @1 Hai & forg
U ATIET STRI BT AT § | $US 7T, 15.03.2024 BT SIS & §b W P FDl P (oQ s R
fafda BIE, Jag, FERTE BT A NI B & ol AATTHNE §RT TRR AU BT €RT 46 3R / T,
3t 21 9 46 SR AR BT ORT 151 S T U UG B SFANT o T3 ol | AR BT AR Tohl
JiaTegd afiT gz ursae fafics & d& @rdl & @@ @1 S arel I & Had o7 aTel ey
IR &R Bl Feer fear 11 & | |afd ovie (ST Rifdd ic, a8, WeRTs & Aed | U 3TRE U5 &
|y Y3, HERTE H &FTHR A & FHET TR (AT ST &, ST 23.04.2024 & g a4 fbar <
HHT B |

TR [oqd TS AT AieE wgde fafice 7 7Rty & 498 Rud oe R fifda a1 g
qiRd feTie 15.03.2024 & 3N BT ITIT o & U T 3MMded SRR a1 B | MSHIgHens 1 o-e Rl
fafdet @I # oo Sare aReet @) fRar 8, R w orf gaarg g9 7

3 Yol yfiegag iR 3 ufaegdny

—

i) 3132025 @1 R & FFAR Yol WA W U S arel el P1 SgATT IR . 18,63,89,221 /—
Y T, 16,29,41,655 /—) © | AR JaR0T A F1 & ol AR & BB &AM HH 3 aG3Al
3R Jarell o WIE | HafRrd o ufdagdil @ srgAd IR BT gwdieRer FE fdar g |

A,

(ii) S & MR SEETS & SR aegall AR FdwRil B WIg ¥ Gt o= ufaagari &
AT IR BT GeATAT AIWP fda=er | 9 & forg &1 fpan mar 2|

4 VEEE FT AT A9 ® 6 a¥ & IR AT ST ¥ g iR 98 @ # Sl 78 uR¥uREt o1 8reay,
oRgieh ATh—28 H URBfoud fhdl 3=y uREURY &1 a¥ & afd § 3k 31fde =i snfda T8 2 |

5 ®HAN ™
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THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA
NOTIFICATION
New Delhi, the 25th August, 2025
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

F. No. 104/45/Accts. -1—(A) INTRODUCTION
In terms of the requirements of sub-section (5B) of Section 18 of the Company Secretaries Act, 1980, the Council of The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSl/the Institute) is pleased to present its 45" Annual Report and Audited
Statements of consolidated accounts along with the Auditors’ Report thereon for the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2025.
The major programmes and activities organized and initiatives taken subsequent to the above period, till 31 May, 2025 have
also been included in this Report.
President and Vice-President

CS Dhananjay Shukla and CS Pawan G. Chandak were elected by the Council as President and Vice-President of the Institute
respectively, w.e.f. 19 January, 2025.

Council Meetings

The Council held 9 Meetings during the Financial Year 2024-25.

Composition of Committees

The composition of various Standing and Non-Standing Committees, Boards, Task Force and Outside Committees is given at
Annexure-A. Details of Meetings held and attended by the Members of Council and Committees / Boards are placed at
Annexure-B.

Statistics at a glance

The region wise statistics of Members and Students for the period under report is as follows:

MEMBERS
Ason EIRC NIRC SIRC WIRC Total
31.05.2025 7032 27146 14487 27374 76039
31.03.2025 7009 26998 14132 26969 75108
31.03.2024 6879 25989 13630 26012 72510

MEMBERS IN PRACTICE

Ason EIRC NIRC SIRC WIRC Total
31.05.2025 1034 4132 2235 4147 11548
31.03.2025 1023 4101 2210 4140 11474
31.03.2024 1029 4188 2197 4139 11553

NUMBER OF STUDENTS FOR REGULAR PROGRAMME

Ason EIRC NIRC SIRC WIRC Total
31.05.2025 21191 59203 41570 65973 187937
31.03.2025 20613 57630 40611 64574 183428

31.03.2024 20690 57874 40429 65326 184319




108 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I11—SEC.4]

Period EIRC NIRC SIRC WIRC Total

2025-26 (till 31.05.2025) 1817 5255 2472 5537 15081

2024-25 4868 15272 7905 16205 44250

2023-24 5298 14960 9281 17205 46744
Members (31 May 2025) Members in Practice (31 May 2025)

m EIRC = NIRC = SIRC = WIRC = EIRC = NIRC = SIRC = WIRC

Students for Regular Programme (31 May 2025)

= E[RC = NIRC = SIRC = WIRC

(B) STRENGTHENING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In an era where the resilience of institutions is tested not just by regulations, but by values, the ICSI continues to champion a
more evolved vision of corporate governance—one that moves beyond procedural compliance to embed ethical foresight,
strategic stewardship, and stakeholder-centric thinking at the heart of enterprise. As custodians of governance, Company
Secretaries are being called upon to shape boardroom conversations, pre-empt risk with integrity, and lead organisations
towards decisions that are not only profitable, but principled. Through its initiatives, dialogues, and recognitions, ICSI reaffirms
its belief that governance is not a framework to be followed—it is a culture to be cultivated.
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(i) 24" ICSI National Awards for Excellence in Corporate Governance, 2024

In its continued commitment to promoting a robust culture of corporate governance across India Inc., the ICSI instituted the
“ICSI National Awards for Excellence in Corporate Governance” in the year 2001. Over the past two decades, the Awards
have evolved into a hallmark of governance distinction, celebrating exemplary boardroom practices and ethical leadership.
Acknowledged and respected across industry circles, these accolades serve not only as a benchmark for corporate integrity, but
also as a driving force inspiring companies to embed governance excellence into their core values.

The year 2025 marks a momentous milestone as the Institute celebrates the Silver Jubilee — 25 glorious years of the ICSI
National Awards for Excellence in Corporate Governance. As the Awards step into their 25" year, the ICSI envisions them not
merely as a celebration of the past, but as a catalyst for shaping the future of governance in India.

The selection process for the ICSI National Awards for Excellence in Corporate Governance follows a rigorous and
comprehensive evaluation framework. An Expert Group, comprising eminent professionals from industry and practice, is
constituted annually for each award category. This group provides guidance on framing the evaluation methodology and
designing the assessment questionnaire.

Following the analysis of responses based on the Expert Group's questionnaire, the findings are presented to a distinguished
Jury for final selection. The Jury consists of experts from various fields and is typically chaired by a former Chief Justice of
India, ensuring the highest standards of integrity and expertise in the selection process.

The 24™ edition of the ICSI National Awards for Excellence in Corporate Governance was held in Bengaluru, Karnataka on
20 December, 2024. The ceremony was graced by distinguished Guests of Honour, Shri Basavaraj S. Bommai, Member of
Parliament (Lok Sabha) & former Chief Minister of Karnataka; and Sri Madhusudan Sai, Founder of Sri Madhusudan Sai
Global Humanitarian Mission.

Award Winners for 2024

The winners for the year 2024 are mentioned hereunder:

24"™ 1CSI National Awards for Excellence in | Listed Segment

Corporate Governance . Tata Steel Limited (Large Category)
. Persistent Systems Limited (Medium Category)
. V-Mart Retail Limited (Emerging Category)
Unlisted Segment
) TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited (Large
Category)

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Company Limited
(Medium Category)

. Re Sustainability Limited (Emerging Category)
9™ ICSI CSR Excellence Awards . Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Company
Limited (Large Category)
. Schneider Electric India Private Limited (Medium
Category)
. Cyient Limited (Small & Emerging Category)
6™ ICSI Best Secretarial Audit Report Award CS Swetha Subramanian (for Secretarial Audit Report issued
to Seshasayee Paper and Boards Limited)
4™ 1CSI Best PCS Firm Award KSR & Co Company Secretaries LLP
3@ |CSI Business Responsibility and Sustainability | e Marico Limited (Non-Service Sector)
Awards . Persistent Systems Limited (Service Sector)
24" 1CSI Lifetime Achievement Award Dr. B.V.R. Mohan Reddy, Founder Chairman & Board

Member, Cyient Limited
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(i) Panchayat Governance Week Celebration

As part of the nationwide celebration of Panchayat Governance Week, programmes were organized across India through ICSI's
Regional Offices and Chapters. The initiative aimed to strengthen governance mechanisms at the grassroots level and promote
sustainable development practices in rural governance.

The National Programme on Panchayat Governance was hosted by NIRO at Hotel The Park, Sansad Marg, Connaught Place,
New Delhi on 19 April, 2025, under the theme "Fostering Sustainability & Strengthening Governance at the Grassroots".

This national-level programme served as the flagship event of the week-long celebration, bringing together key stakeholders,
policymakers, and governance experts to deliberate on critical issues affecting panchayat governance and explore innovative
solutions for sustainable rural development.

(iii) Secretarial Standards

Consistently aligning with its vision to enhance transparency and accountability in corporate functioning, the ICSI has been
instrumental in formulating and promoting the Secretarial Standards. These Standards, which set benchmarks for board
processes and corporate disclosures, are the first of their kind globally to be mandated by statute under the Companies Act,
2013. The Standards continue to serve as critical governance tools, ensuring procedural uniformity and enhancing transparency
across companies. The Institute remains steadfast in its efforts to uphold and periodically review these Standards in alignment
with evolving best practices and regulatory expectations.

(iv)  Quality Review Board

The Quality Review Board (QRB) has been set-up by the Central Government under Section 29A of the Company Secretaries
Act, 1980 to make recommendations to the Council of the Institute with regard to the quality of services provided by the
Members of the Institute, to review the quality of these services and to guide the Members to improve the quality of services
and adherence to the various statutory and regulatory requirements. Apart from the Chairperson, two Members of the Board
are nominated by the Central Government and other two Members by the Council of the Institute.

(v) Peer Review Board

Peer Review contemplates examination of the systems and approach of a Practice Unit (PU) by another Member of the Institute
with the objective of identifying the areas, where the Member may require guidance in improving the quality of his performance
and adherence to various requirements as per ICSI Auditing Standards, Guidance Notes, Manuals, Referencers and advisories
issued by the Institute.

A total of 1021 Peer Review exercises were completed during the period under Report, and accordingly Certificates were
issued to the Practice Units. A total of six Training Programmes for empanelment of Peer Reviewers were organised during
the period under Report, as under:

Chennai - 20 April, 2024

NIRO, New Delhi - 3 August, 2024
CCGRT Kolkata - 3 August, 2024
Madurai - 19 October, 2024
Nagpur - 5 April, 2025

SIRO, Chennai - 10 May, 2025

O OO ooo

(vi) Centre for Corporate Governance, Research and Training

The Centres for Corporate Governance, Research and Training (CCGRTS) of the Institute serve as dedicated hubs for capacity
building, thought leadership, and policy-oriented research in the domain of corporate governance. Through a blend of academic
inquiry and practical training, these Centres play a pivotal role in nurturing governance excellence among Company Secretaries
and other stakeholders. Currently, the Institute operates three CCGRTSs located in Mumbai, Hyderabad, and Kolkata, while the
infrastructure development of the fourth Centre at Manesar is actively underway. A comprehensive overview of the
programmes and initiatives undertaken by the CCGRTSs during the year is presented in Section K of this Report.

(vii) ICSI Initiatives on ESG and Sustainability

The ICSI has undertaken various initiatives on ESG and Sustainability, focusing on the emerging trends and global
developments in the ESG domain, encouraging adoption of sustainability measures by corporates through Company
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Secretaries, and further identifying opportunities for CS professionals in the area of sustainability. These initiatives aim to
enhance awareness and knowledge of the professional fraternity and other stakeholders for proper implementation of
sustainability measures. During the year, the following major initiatives on ESG & Sustainability were undertaken by the ICSI:

@ ICSI Guiding Principles on Stewardship (IGPS)

In line with its vision, the ICSI has developed the ICSI Guiding Principles on Stewardship (IGPS), with an intent to promote
responsible investment and enhance engagement between institutional investors and the investee entities. The IGPS provides
different sets of guiding principles and reporting formats for institutional investors and service providers. Being voluntary in
nature, IGPS aims to gradually strengthen the responsible investment ecosystem across the globe by supporting the institutional
investors and service providers in fulfilling their stewardship responsibilities and reporting commitments.

The IGPS is structured into two parts: Part A, which sets out ten principles for Institutional Investors, and Part B, which
comprises six principles for Service Providers. A key distinguishing feature of IGPS is its unique and comprehensive reporting
format, specifically designed for both Institutional Investors and Service Providers, offering a level of detail and clarity,
unmatched by any other regulatory or international codes.

(b) ICSI Communique - ESG Catalyst and ESG Corner

The “ESG Catalyst” is a bi-monthly initiative launched by the ICSI to build awareness about ESG amongst the professionals
by sharing key ESG term, write-up, promising practices and latest developments in ESG domain. In addition, a dedicated
section titled “ESG Corner” has been introduced in the Chartered Secretary Journal comprising latest news, insights and updates
on ESG.

(c) ICSI-DTU CXO Summit on ESG Strategy

The ICSI and Delhi Technological University (DTU), jointly organized a “CXO Summit on ESG Strategy” on 30 May, 2025
at New Delhi. During the Summit, participants witnessed power packed panel discussions revolving around the theme "ESG
Strategy and Implementation Challenges” led by distinguished experts from the Government, industry and academia. The
Summit highlighted best practices in development of ESG strategy and its implementation, engaging value chain partners in
ESG, optimum use of Al and digitization in driving ESG programmes, governance of ESG policies etc.

(d) LiFE mission of the Government of India

The Institute is promoting the LiFE mission of the Government of India through regular dissemination of environment friendly
tips/messages to sensitize the stakeholders and promote adoption of sustainability measures in alignment with the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) and, through these initiatives, professionals and other stakeholders are encouraged to take a lead
in prioritising and setting the ESG agenda in their respective organisations.

(viii)  ICSI Initiatives on PMLA

AML & CFT Guidelines for Professionals with Certificates of Practice from ICAI, ICSI and ICMAI are effective from 19
June, 2023, whereby ICSI has been designated as Self-regulatory body (SRB) for the Company Secretary professionals.
Following are the major activities conducted by the ICSI (SRB) during the period under Report:

) Monthly bulk emails highlighting compliance requirements, updates and necessary information on AML & CFT
Guidelines, as well as monthly SMSs are circulated to Members.

o A Flyer containing necessary information on the Guidelines forms part of the Chartered Secretary Journal on a
monthly basis.

) Regular webinars on PMLA and AML/CFT are conducted to sensitize the Members.

Registration of Reporting Entities: Reporting Entities are required to register themselves with ICSI through its ‘registration
portal’, which is available on STIMULATE. ICSI also has in place, the PMLA Portal, wherein all notifications and the FATF
Grey & Black list can be accessed by the Members. The PMLA Portal of ICSI is accessible at:
https://www.icsi.edu/home/money-laundring-prevention/.



https://www.icsi.edu/home/money-laundring-prevention/

112 THE GAZETTE OF INDIA : EXTRAORDINARY [PART I11—SEC.4]

(C) FACILITATION AND STANDARDIZATION
() eCSIN (Employee Company Secretaries Identification Number) Amnesty Scheme, 2025

The Institute launched the eCSIN Amnesty Scheme, 2025 effective from 01 April, 2025 to 15 April, 2025, which was extended
upto 20 April, 2025. All active eCSINs generated from the effective date of the eCSIN Guidelines i.e., 01 October, 2019 upto
the validity of the Amnesty Scheme i.e., 20 April, 2025 were covered under the Amnesty Scheme.

(i) UDIN (Unique Document Identification Number) Amnesty Scheme, 2025

The Institute launched the UDIN Amnesty Scheme, 2025 valid from 01 April, 2025 to 15 April, 2025, which was extended
upto 20 April, 2025. All UDINs generated from 19 April, 2024 upto the closure of the Scheme i.e., 20 April, 2025 were eligible
to avail benefit under the Amnesty Scheme.

(iii) Extension of last date for obtaining CPE Credits for year 2024-25

The Institute, in order to facilitate the Members in fulfilling the mandatory requirement of CPE Credits, extended the last date
for obtaining the mandatory CPE credits by the Members for the year 2024-25 (01 April, 2024 to 31 March, 2025) till 15 May,
2025. Further, with a view to provide a final opportunity to the Members for fulfilling the mandatory requirement of CPE
Credits for the year 2024-25, the last date was further extended till 30 June, 2025.

(iv) ICSI (Management and Development of Company Secretaries in Practice) Guidelines, 2023

These Guidelines, effective from 15 December, 2023, were amended by the Council in its 312" (Annual) Meeting held on 8-9
October, 2024, in order to bring uniformity of implementation and clarity in various matters as well as streamline certain
operationalization issues. The amendments have been carried out in Chapter 2, 5 and 6 of the Guidelines w.r.t. introduction of
additional services that Company Secretaries in Practice can render, exemption in PCS Orientation Programme and display of
information on the website and visiting card of the Member.

(V) ICSI (Library and Reading Room) Guidelines — 2020

The Guidelines, amended by the Council in its 312" (Annual) Meeting held on 8-9 October, 2024 and effective from 01 April,
2025, aim to facilitate and ensure the availability of Libraries for members and students at all CCGRTs, Regional Offices and
Chapters.

(vi) ICSI Programme Guidelines- 2024

The Institute, with a view to maintaining uniformity and standardization in the Programmes organized by the Institute, has
issued the ICSI Programme Guidelines- 2024 effective from 01 March, 2024. These Guidelines were amended by the Council
in its 310" Meeting held on 25 July, 2024 with a view to streamline the organization of programmes and deal with other related
matters

(vii) Ceilings on signing of e-form MGT-7

The Council in its 312" (Annual) Meeting held on 8-9 October, 2024 introduced a ceiling on signing of e-form MGT-7 by a
Company Secretary in Practice. The prescribed ceiling is mentioned as under:

o A Company Secretary in Practice is entitled to sign Annual Return pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, for not more than 75 companies for each of the financial year under consideration;

o A Peer Reviewed Company Secretary in Practice is entitled to sign Annual Return pursuant to Section 92(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, for not more than 125 companies for each of the financial year under consideration.

The same were made applicable from the financial year commencing 01 April, 2025 and got incorporated in the ICSI
(Management and Development of Company Secretaries in Practice) Guidelines, 2023.
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(viii) Software Tools
(@) Comply Relax

The ICSI, in order to facilitate the Members, renewed its Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Businessnow Private
Limited for compliance portal ComplyRelax. The Members may avail the facilities of the software free of cost till 31 March,
2026. The features of this software include Virtual Office and Task Management, Compliance Tracker, MCA Transaction
Tracker, DSC management etc. Members may activate subscription by signing up at https://complyrelax.icsi.edu/.

(b) InsiderLens FCO

The ICSI entered into an MoU with M/s Axar Digital Services Pvt. Ltd. to facilitate practicing Members by providing
InsiderLens FCo Software for a special annual subscription pricing offer till 18 March, 2026. InsiderLens FCo is a web-based
software solution to streamline compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015. The software manages
the electronic storage of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) and insider details, and furnishes comprehensive
audit trail for all transactions. Members may visit https://pcs.axardiital.com for detailed information.

(c) proCS SDD-C

The ICSI entered into an MoU with M/s ProCS Technology Private Limited to facilitate practicing Members by providing
proCS SDD-C for managing SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, Structural Digital Database requirement
as per Schedule C for Intermediaries / Fiduciaries / Consultants. Automated version of the software is available at a discounted
rate, valid till 26 April, 2029. Members may visit https://registration.pro-cs.in/ for detailed information.

(d) FYN One

The ICSI signed an agreement with M/s Fynamics Techno Solutions Private Limited to facilitate practicing Members by
providing the Fynone software application. It is a Billing and Accounting application, with features to manage multiple profiles,
add unlimited co-owners and sub users and get live tracking on their inventory, receivables, payables, accounting, tax
compliance and more. The Members may avail the Pro Subscription of the application, free of cost, till July, 2027. Members
may visit https://www.fynone.com/company-secretaries for detailed information.

(e) eMSME Saarthi

The Institute has entered into an agreement with M/s AJVA Fintech Private Limited to facilitate practicing Members by
providing eMSME Saarthi, a platform which assists stakeholders to discover numerous schemes introduced by the Central and
State Governments for the benefit of MSMEs. The tool shall enable the practicing Members with a special discounted access
to government schemes available for MSMEs, thereby providing solutions to their MSME clients. The software is available at
a discounted rate. Members may visit https://femsme.com/icsi/signup for detailed information.

(ix) Company Secretaries Benevolent Fund

CSBEF is a society registered with the Registrar of Societies, New Delhi under the Societies Registration Act, 1860. It was
established by the Institute in the year 1976 to create a security umbrella and provide reasonable safety net to the Company
Secretaries who are Members of the CSBF and their dependent family members in times of distress. During the period under
report, a total of 944 Members were admitted to CSBF. As on 31 March, 2025, there were 17535 life Members of CSBF and
as on 31 May, 2025, there were 17679 life Members of CSBF.

(X) Major Advisories
(a) Advisory to the Members for Compliance by Fiduciaries under the SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2015

The Institute has issued an advisory with respect to compliance of requirements under Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, specifically by Company Secretaries in Practice in their capacity as a
Fiduciary under the Regulations. It was advised that the Company Secretaries in Practice dealing with UPSI of listed entities
and unlisted entities whose securities are proposed to be listed, by virtue of their position as Fiduciaries under the Regulations,
should observe strict compliance with the said requirement of maintaining a separate Structured Digital Database (SDD)
internally, in order to avoid any violation under the Regulations.
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(b) Advisory w.r.t. generation of UDIN for e-Form MGT-7 at UDIN Portal of the ICSI

The ICSI issued an advisory highlighting the ceilings on signing of e-Form MGT-7 by a Company Secretary in Practice and
emphasized that Company Secretaries in Practice must observe strict compliance with the ICSI Unique Document
Identification Number (UDIN) Guidelines, 2019 to avoid any violation under the Company Secretaries Act, 1980.

(c) Advisory on Registration as Investment Advisers with SEBI

The ICSI issued an advisory stating that, in accordance with Regulation 3(1) read with Regulation 4 of the SEBI (Investment
Advisers) Regulations, 2013, no person shall act as an investment adviser or hold itself out as an investment adviser unless
such person has obtained a certificate of registration from SEBI under these Regulations. However, when a Member of the
Institute provides investment advice to their clients’ incidental to their professional services, they are exempted from seeking
certificate of registration under the above-mentioned Regulations.

(xi) Issuance of List of Services that can or cannot be rendered by a Secretarial Auditor

ICSI has issued the list of services that can or cannot be rendered by a Secretarial Auditor in terms of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated 31 December, 2024 and FAQs
issued thereon on 23 April, 2025.

(D) CAPACITY BUILDING & KNOWLEDGE UPDATION FOR MEMBERS

The ICSI places strong emphasis on equipping Members with up-to-date knowledge, sharpened skills, and emerging
competencies to enable them to excel as governance professionals and strategic advisors. Through a structured framework of
capacity building and knowledge dissemination initiatives, the Institute strives to ensure that its Members remain aligned with
contemporary developments, regulatory expectations, and global best practices.

(i) Study Circles

ICSI has been creating knowledge upgradation avenues for Members by promoting the formation of Study Circles across
country. During the period under Report, the following Study Circles were formed/ renewed:

S. Regional Name Formation/ Renewal
No. Council
. . Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Hubli-Dharwad Study Circle of ICSI
1. SIRC Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

Chennai West Study Circle of ICSI

Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

Dwarka Study Circle of ICSI

Renewal for F/Y 2024-25

Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

New Udaan Bhawan (Corporate) Study
Circle of ICSI

Renewal for F/Y 2024-25

Renewal for F/Y 2024-25

Rewari Study Circle of ICSI
2. NIRC y Renewal for F/Y 2025-26
. . Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Najafgarh Study Circle of ICSI
Renewal for F/Y 2025-26
Janakpuri Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Greater Noida West Study Circle of ICSI Formation for F/Y 2025-26
L&T (Corporate) Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
H T Parekh Marg (Corporate) Study Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2025-26
. Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
3. WIRC Jamnagar Study Circle of ICSI

Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

Anand Study Circle of ICSI

Renewal for F/Y 2024-25

Sangli Study Circle of ICSI

Renewal for F/Y 2024-25

Renewal for F/Y 2025-26
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Mahindra (Corporate) Study Circle of Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

Bhilai Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Reliance (Corpolrétéal) Study Circle of Renewal for E/Y 2024-25
JSW (Corporate) Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Aditya Birla Group (Corporate) Study Formation for F/Y 2024-25
Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2025-26
Adani (Corporate) Study Circle of ICSI Formation for F/Y 2025-26
Kandivali Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

Makarand M Joshi & Co. (Corporate)

Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

. Renewal for F/Y 2024-25
Madhya Kolkata Study Circle of ICSI
4, EIRC Renewal for F/Y 2025-26

Tollygunge Study Circle of ICSI Renewal for F/Y 2024-25

(i) Knowledge on Demand

‘Knowledge on Demand’ is an initiative of the Institute to provide access to the repository of videos available with the Institute
to facilitate the Members in knowledge and skills updation. Members may explore the recorded sessions on important topics
delivered by subject experts, as per their requirement and convenience 24x7 online on the LMS Platform of the Institute. 1
CPE Credit (Unstructured) per session is awarded to the Members on registration. During the period under Report, 6 new topics
covering 57 sessions were uploaded making a total of 34 topics covering 294 sessions under the said initiative.

(iii) Major Publications
(a) CS: A Preferred Professional (Revised Edition)

The ICSI has released the Revised Edition of the Publication ‘CS: A Preferred Professional’, incorporating contemporary
developments in the economic and regulatory arena, emerging areas for the Profession, new recognitions to the Profession,
dedicated chapter on Overseas Avenues for Company Secretaries and initiatives of the Institute aimed at promoting good
governance.

(b) Handbook on Inspection, Inquiry & Investigation under the Companies Act, 2013

The provisions of inspection, inquiry and investigation hold a special significance in corporate governance. These provisions
are not just tools for regulatory enforcement, but also instruments for building public trust in corporate entities and ensuring
that these operate within the bounds of law and ethical standards. The handbook delves into the legal framework surrounding
the processes, the powers vested in regulatory bodies, the rights of the company and its stakeholders and the procedural steps.

(c) Setting Up of Units in IFSC- A Comprehensive Handbook

The Publication aims to provide a brief overview of the IFSC, guidelines for establishing business units in the IFSC, and the
opportunities available for Company Secretaries in various arenas.

(d)  Guidance Note on Loan to Directors and Loan, Investment, Issue of Guarantee and Security by Companies
(Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The ICSI has released a comprehensive Guidance Note on Loan to Directors and Loan, Investment, Issue of Guarantee and
Security by Companies, addressing Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Guidance Note serves to demystify
the complex provisions of Sections 185 and 186, making them more accessible and understandable for corporate professionals
and stakeholders. The document goes beyond mere statutory interpretation by incorporating practical illustrations, Q&A
Format and professional insights.
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() Governance and Compliance Standard on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace

The ICSI has launched a comprehensive Governance and Compliance Standard focused on the Prevention, Prohibition, and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. This initiative represents a significant advancement in workplace safety and
compliance frameworks.

The Standard is designed to strengthen the implementation of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (PoSH Act) by creating unified workplace practices across organizations. It serves as a
comprehensive guide for establishing robust mechanisms to address sexual harassment in professional environments.

The Standard was officially unveiled at the ICSI Middle East Conference held in Abu Dhabi from 4-6 September, 2024. The

conference, themed "Responsible Investment for Sustainable Future,” provided an appropriate platform to introduce this
initiative, highlighting the connection between workplace governance and sustainable business practices.

()] Model Governance Code for Meetings of Gram Panchayats — Revised Edition

The ICSI launched the revised edition of "Model Governance Code for Meetings of Gram Panchayats™ during the National
Programme on Panchayat Governance held at Hotel The Park, Sansad Marg, Connaught Place, New Delhi on 19 April, 2025.

The updated publication incorporates comprehensive state-specific requirements and procedural frameworks observed in Gram
Panchayat proceedings across 31 States and Union Territories of India. This revision ensures:

0] Regional Administrative Compatibility: Recognition and accommodation of diverse administrative practices across
different states
(i) Universal Governance Principles: Maintenance of fundamental good governance standards while allowing for

regional variations
(iii) Practical Implementation: Enhanced guidelines that reflect real-world operational requirements of Gram Panchayats
(iv) Comprehensive Coverage: Inclusion of procedural nuances specific to various state legislations and local
administrative customs.

This revised edition represents a significant step towards standardizing Gram Panchayat meeting procedures while respecting
the federal structure of Indian governance and the unique administrative requirements of different regions. It serves as a
practical guide for strengthening democratic processes and transparency at the grassroots level.

(9) Guidance Note on Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (BRSR)

In order to facilitate better understanding of the disclosure requirements under BRSR, the ICSI has released the Guidance Note
on Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting, which aims to assist the reporting entities in their journey of
disclosures on responsible business conduct, social and governance transformation aligned with the principles of
NGRBC/BRSR. The guidance and views expressed by the ICSI in the Guidance Note intends to bring meaningful disclosures
from the reporting entities with the help of professional brigade of Company Secretaries engaged in the ESG ecosystem of
these entities.

(h) Adjudication and Compounding under Corporate Laws

In view of the detailed and multi stage processes placed under various laws, the Institute rolled out a publication titled
“Adjudication and Compounding under Corporate Laws” comprising adjudication and compounding procedures and
processes under Companies Act, Securities Laws, FEMA, Consumer Protection Act and Competition Act. The idea is to bring
within the binds of a single cover, the process of adjudication pertaining to legal compliances made on a regular basis.

(i) Handbook on Corporate Reporting

To address the changing landscape of regulatory requirements, emerging trends like integrated reporting and sustainability
disclosures, and the influence of technological advancements on reporting practices, the Institute has developed “Handbook
on Corporate Reporting and Disclosures”. This handbook is intended as a thorough guide for professionals to overcome the
complexities of corporate reporting. It incorporates recent regulatory requirements, industry standards, and best practices
adopted by corporates, delivering practical insights and actionable guidance for professionals at all levels.
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()] Startup Ready Reckoner

In an attempt to ensure that the professionals are well aware of the latest developments, the ICSI has been undertaking numerous
initiatives. The publication titled Startup Ready Reckoner is one such publication, to bring all legislative aspects of Startups
within the binds of a single document. The publication lays emphasis on the aspects pertaining to Forming, Starting, Funding
and Listing Startups alongwith the various government initiatives undertaken towards benefitting and strengthening startups.

(k) FAQs on ICSI (Management and Development of Company Secretaries in Practice) Guidelines, 2023

The Institute issued the ICSI (Management and Development of Company Secretaries in Practice) Guidelines, 2023 during
52" National Convention of Company Secretaries in November, 2024 to facilitate the Company Secretary in Practice by
consolidating all the relevant Guidelines along with the processes involved therein in a coherent manner. These FAQs further
facilitate the members in ensuring ease of reference and enhanced comprehension of the Guidelines.

() Supreme Court on IBC - A Compendium on Landmark Judgments of Supreme Court (2017-2024)

This comprehensive compilation “Supreme Court on IBC - A Compendium on Landmark Judgments of Supreme Court (2017-
2024).” features a selection of more than 100 landmark cases that have shaped the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC)
since its inception. The judgments, carefully curated from 2017 to September 2024, come with insightful analysis and provide
a clear understanding of the evolving legal landscape surrounding IBC. By categorizing judgments chronologically and
including a convenient annexure of Ready Reckoner of section-wise jurisprudence, the ICSI 1P has made it easy for readers
to navigate the complex legal landscape of the IBC.

(m) Resolving the unresolved- A collection of Success stories of 1Ps

The book titled "Resolving the Unresolved: A Collection of Success Stories of Insolvency Professionals,” is a testament to the
remarkable contributions of IPs in resolving distressed companies under the IBC framework. Each success story in this book
highlights the multifaceted challenges encountered during CIRP cases and showcases the innovative strategies adopted to
overcome them. The stories presented here in this book serves as a valuable lesson in problem-solving, strategic thinking, and
perseverance, offering insights into the diverse challenges that insolvency professionals face during the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP).

(n) Bare Act on IBC Code and IBC Rules and Regulations

This Bare Act is a comprehensive compilation of latest IBBI Regulations, Rules, circulars and guidelines notified under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, meticulously curated to serve as a reliable reference for insolvency professionals,
academicians, and stakeholders in the insolvency ecosystem. The book reflects all relevant updates notified up to May 2025,
ensuring that readers have access to the most current legal procedural framework and guidelines.

(0) Handbook on Mediation

‘Handbook on Mediation’, aims to enhance the understanding of key concepts of Mediation and how the process works. This
handbook helps readers understand the basic principles of Mediation. While there are many resources available on the subject,
this book focuses on basic as well as most important concepts.

(p) Board Diversity - Indian and Global Perspectives & Best Practices (Includes a Study on Nifty 50 Companies)

This publication is intended to provide 360-degree approach to board diversity from both Indian and global perspectives &
best practices after conducting extensive research of various concepts, laws, models, annual reports of NIFTY 50 companies,
FTSE 100, FTSE 250 companies, best practices on board diversity of the companies considered for the research study, reports
and codes containing details on board diversity of various countries.

(q) Decriminalisation of Offences — Emerging Trends in Adjudication (Opportunities for Professionals)
In an attempt to promote the agenda of ease of doing business, to instill confidence in business and industry and to reduce the

burden on the criminal justice system, the Government has initiated much needed reforms for decriminalisation of those
offences under Corporate and Economic Laws which do not necessarily involve mens rea or the same is not established. Given
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the altering dynamics of economic environment, business-friendly laws are the need of the hour. This publication outlines the
changes in the Laws and emerging opportunities in the area of Adjudication.

(n Master Guide for Prevention of Oppression and Mismanagement (NCLT Practice & Judicial Pronouncements)

Given the longstanding nature of the concept and its altering dynamics, it is significant that an attempt is made to understand
the evolution of law in the Oppression and Mismanagement (O&M) perspective through the lens of Judicial Pronouncements
made over the years. Keeping in the view the opportunities available for practicing professionals, a publication titled
""Master Guide for Prevention of Oppression and Mismanagement (NCLT Practice & Judicial Pronouncements)' has been
brought out. The publication analyses various precedents set by the decisions of the Hon’ble Supreme Court, High Courts,
NCLATs and NCLTs. Apart from these, the publication touches upon the procedures involved in handing these matters before
Tribunals, important laws involved, role of ADR system, preventive measures and International Perspective. An attempt has
also been made to highlight the impact of these issues which have led to Corporate Governance Failure, Ethical Lapses and the
various measures to prevent such instances from happening.

(s) NBFC - A Quick Referencer

NBFCs supplement banks in providing financial services to individuals and firms as well as company and provide multiple
alternatives to transform an economy’s savings into capital investment. NBFC sector drives innovation, enhances financial
accessibility, and contributes to a robust economic framework. To dig deeper into the nuances of these financial institutions &
to explore the myriad opportunities and challenges that lie ahead for NBFCs in this rapidly changing landscape, ICSI launched
the revised version of the publication titled “NBFC - A Quick Referencer’.

()] Insights into SEBI Enforcement (Including Adjudication and other Orders of SEBI, Judgements of SAT and
Supreme Court)

The publication on “Insights into SEBI Enforcement (Including Adjudication and other Orders of SEBI, Judgements of SAT
and Supreme Court)” is an academic and research endeavour to provide an in-depth understanding of how SEBI has used its
enforcement powers to uphold market integrity, protect investor interests, and foster a culture of compliance. Having placed
landmark cases of various legislations under one umbrella, would facilitate ease of reference and learning for Company
Secretaries both in Employment and Practice, Doyens of Industry, professionals, as well as the students pursuing Company
Secretaryship and other professional courses.

(u) Guide to Competition Act, 2002

The Publication titled “Guide to Competition Act, 2002” analyzing Anti-Competitive Agreements, protection against abuse of
dominant position, Regulation of Combinations, Commitments, Settlements and various precedents of CCIl, NCLAT, High
Courts and Supreme Court gives an insight on Leniency Provisions and makes an attempt to develop the understanding of
relation between Competition Act and Other Laws. An insight of international aspects of Competition Laws in foreign
jurisdictions has also been covered.

(vi) Financial Statements — Understanding and Analysis
With a view to cover the vital elements extensively related to analysis of financial statement, the Institute has brought out the
Publication titled “Financial Statements: Understanding and Analysis”, which covers the various nuances pertaining to analysis

of financial statements and aids in enhancing the understanding of financial statements.

(v) Major Webinars

S. No. | Topic Date
1. PMLA & CFT Guidelines 12 June, 2024
2. GST: A Key Enabler for Viksit Bharat 01 July, 2024
3. Fraud Risk in crypto asset classes: Implications for Professionals 17 July, 2024
4, Union Budget 2024-25 - Priorities & Proposals 28 July, 2024
5. Risk Assessment and Supervision of Professionals 9" April, 2025
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(vi) Joint Webinars/Seminars

Joint Programmes with PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry

Topic

Date

The ICSI joined as an Institutional Partner in the seminar on “Corporate
Restructuring: Related Party Transactions” organised at New Delhi.

23 August, 2024

The ICSI joined as Knowledge Partner in the seminar on “Decoding Latest
GST Amendments and Jurisprudence” organised at New Delhi.

29 August, 2024

The ICSI joined as an Institutional Partner in the seminar on “Private Equity”
organised at New Delhi.

06 December, 2024

The ICSI joined as Institutional Partner in the Seminar on ‘Blending Al for
Effective ESG & Compliance — Attaining Excellence in Sustainability & CSR
Reporting” organized at New Delhi.

02 May, 2025

Joint Programme with National Academy of Human Resources Development (NAHRD)

The ICSI joined as Associate Partner in the Residential Workshop on
‘Corporate Governance, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code (IBC)’ held at Goa.

21-23 November, 2024

Joint Programme with Confederation of Indian Industry (C

D)

The ICSI joined as Institutional Partner for CII Global Economic Policy
Forum (CI-GEPF) 2024 held at New Delhi, on the theme ‘Decadal Priorities
for the Global Economy’ in partnership with the Department of Economic
Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Government of India.

11-12 December, 2024

Joint Programme with KIIT University

ICSI joined as Knowledge partner for the 14" International Conference on
Governance, Fraud, Ethics, and CSR organized by KIIT Deemed to be
University, Bhubaneswar.

21-22 December, 2024

Joint Programme with Association of Investment Bankers of India (AIBI)

The ICSI joined as Associate Partner in the 13" Association of Investment
Bankers of India (AIBI) Annual Convention 2024-25 on the theme ‘IPOs in
Emerging Global Superpower’ held at Mumbai.

21 January, 2025

(vii) Master Knowledge Series: EEE 4.0

The ICSI with the intent of reviving, refreshing and sharpening the knowledge base of Members, had launched a capacity
building initiative EEE — Enable, Evaluate, Excel in the year 2017. The second and third editions were brought out in 2021 and
2023. Keeping the same intent & overwhelming response received, the ICSI has launched the next phase of this Webinar Series
under the aegis of EEE 4.0- Master Knowledge Series on contemporary topics of professional interest. During the period under

report, the following webinars were conducted under the Series:

S.No. | Topic Date

1. Deliberation on Labour Laws 01 May, 2024
2. Nuances of Secretarial Audit 08 May, 2024
3. Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 15 May, 2024
4. Structured Digital Database 22 May, 2024
5. ESG and the Future of Business 29 May, 2024
6. Digital Environment and Frauds 05 June, 2024
7. AML & CFT Guidelines under PMLA, 2002 12 June, 2024
8. Social Stock Exchange and Social Impact Assessment 19 June, 2024
9. BRSR: Regulatory Landscape and Stakeholder Engagement 26 June, 2024
10. Comprehensive Approach on RERA & Development Authorities 03 July, 2024
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11. ECB, Trade Credits and Structured Obligations-A detailed Analysis 10 July, 2024
12. Fraud Risk in crypto asset classes: Implications for Professionals 17 July, 2024
13. MCA-21 V3-Recently Launched 9 Company Forms 24 July, 2024
14. Intellectual Property Rights & Trademarks: From Concept to Protection 31 July, 2024
15. Significant Beneficial Ownership: Compliance and Implications 07 August, 2024
16. Managing Commercial Contracts and Disputes 14 August, 2024
17. Mastering GST: Role of Company Secretaries 21 August, 2024
18. Navigating the Financial Dimensions of CSR 11 September, 2024
19. IEPF Processes and Filing for Companies - A Primer 23 September, 2024
20. MSMEs: Opportunities for Professionals 25 September, 2024
21, IFSCA (Listing) Regulations, 2024 09 October, 2024
22, FEMA: Documentation & Reporting Aspects 16 October, 2024
23. Bharatiya Nagarik Suraksha Sanhita (BNSS) 23 October, 2024
24, Digital Forensics and Fraud Investigation 13 November, 2024
25. Registration and Listing on Social Stock Exchange 27 November, 2024
26. ICSI Governance and Compliance Standard on POSH 04 December, 2024
27. Enhancing Board Effectiveness and Role of Board Committees 11 December, 2024
28. Corporate Reporting: Best Practices and Gateway to Governance 18 December, 2024
29. SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015: Recent Amendments 28 December, 2024
30. Valuation of securities: Legal Requirements 08 January, 2025
31. Loan To Directors and Loan & Investment by Companies 16 January, 2025
(viii) Master Knowledge Series: EEE 5.0
S. No. TOPIC DATE

1. Risk Assessment and Supervision of Professionals 09 April, 2025

2. SEBI (LODR) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 16 April, 2025

3. DSC Issues under MCA-21 V3 30 April, 2025

4, Intellectual Property Rights & Trademarks: From Concept to Protection 07 May, 2025

5. Practical aspects of PIT Regulations & SDD 14 May, 2025

6. Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 21 May, 2025

7. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace 28 May, 2025

(ix) ICSI NCLT Conclave 2024

In an attempt to build synergies between Company Secretaries and Members of the NCLT, the ICSI launched a dedicated event
under the aegis of ICSI NCLT Conclave in the year 2023. Given the success of the first edition, the second edition was launched
in the year 2024, and Conclaves were conducted at different regions on the theme Corporate Dispute Resolution: Evolving a
Way Forward’ as mentioned hereunder:

Guests

Mr. Justice Ashok Bhushan, Hon’ble Chairman, NCLAT
Mr. Justice R. Sudhakar, Hon’ble President, NCLT

Date Place
31 August, 2024 New Delhi

31 August, 2024 Kolkata Ms. Bidisha Banerjee, Hon’ble Member (Judicial), NCLT Kolkata
Bench
CS Arvind Devanathan, Hon’ble Member (Technical), NCLT

Kolkata Bench

13 September, 2024 Chennai Shri Ravichandran Ramasamy, Hon’ble Member (Technical)
NCLT, Chennai Bench
Shri Sanjiv Jain, Hon’ble Member (Judicial) NCLT, Chennai

Bench.
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18 September, 2024 Bhubaneswar Mr. Kaushalendra Kumar Singh, Hon’ble Member, Cuttack Bench
Mr. Himanshu Shekhar

Mr. Sourya Sundar Das- Senior Advocate, Vice-President, NOPA
21 September, 2024 Hyderabad CS (Dr.) P Bhaskara Mohan, Advocate, Telangana High Court and
Avrbitrator, Former Judicial Member, NCLT, Jaipur, Hyderabad
Shri Y Suryanarayana, Advocate, Hon'ble High Court for the state
of Telangana, Hyderabad

CS R.Venkata Ramana, Council Member, ICSI & Convener,
CCGRT Hyderabad

21 September, 2024 Ahmedabad Sh. Sandeep Engineer, President, Gujarat Chamber of Commerce &
Industry (GCCI)

28 September, 2024 Bhilwara Hon’ble Justice Deep Chandra Joshi, Member NCLT, Jaipur
Chapter in
collaboration
with Jaipur
Chapter at Jaipur

(x)  MCA: User Awareness Session

DATE TOPIC SPEAKERS

Shri Sidhil Sasi, Deputy Director General, MCA
LTI Team Members:
Ms. Richa Gupta, Ms. Vijaya Gumpena, Mr. Chandra Singh

MCA-21 SV3:
27 February, 2025 | Login &
Registration

Shri Sidhil Sasi, Deputy Director General, MCA

Company Form LTI Team Members:

SH-7 & PAS-3 Ms. Richa Gupta, Ms. Vijaya Gumpena, Ms. Seema Malhotra,
Mr. Chandra Singh, Mr. Balram Thakur, Ms. Chandreyee Dutta

26 March, 2025

(xi) I1CSI Online Crash Courses

The Institute has launched online crash courses on varied topics with a view to assist the Members in gaining a comprehensive
knowledge of various laws and develop the requisite skills and expertise for application of such laws. During the period under
report, Crash Course were organised on the following topics:

Lending . . . I
: Banking Financial Artificial
Transactions and Companies (2 Intelligence and IT
Opportunities for Batches) Tools
CS in Banking
Bharatiya Nyaya Sanhita (BNS),
Ato Z of IPO (2 Bharatiya Nagarik Suraksha
Batches) Sanhita(BNSS) & Bharatiya
Sakshya Adhiniyam (BSA)
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(xii) ICSI Post Membership Qualification (PMQ) Courses

The Institute has conducted PMQ Courses for the Members in the following disciplines:

N
Corporate Governance

7

<
Internal Audit

y

~
Arbitration

v

(xiii)  ICSI Certificate Courses

With a view to provide an insight and promote better understanding, Certificate Courses in the following areas were
conducted:

CSR ng\ﬂgzsa.lr]gx Independent
Professionals (GST) Director
Intellectual
Property Rights POSH IFSCA
(IPR)
: Foreign
Commercial Exchange
Contract Forensic Audit g
Management Management
Act (FEMA)
Corporate .. _—
Restructuring Securities Laws Mediation
Professional
ESG Reboot:Returning to
Company Secretarial
Roles

(xiv)  Configuration of LMS Portal

The Learning Management System (LMS) Portal of the Institute has been configurated for conducting Certificate Courses,
Crash Courses, PMQ courses, PCS Orientation Programme, Knowledge on Demand, ECPE Assessment in a completely
automated environment including Registration, Fee Payment, Examination, Notifications and Certification.

(xv) Chartered Secretary Journal

The Chartered Secretary Journal is the most coveted Flagship Journal of the Institute. For the last 54 years, the Journal has
been an enormous source of information and insight for Members in various areas related to Corporate Governance and
Corporate Laws. This peer and blind reviewed Journal is a theme-based monthly publication of ICSI, comprising vital
deliberations and analysis of critical aspects and issues related to the Profession of Company Secretaries.
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(@)

(b)

About the Journal

This ISSN publication has more than one lakh readers nationally and globally. It is widely circulated amongst Industry
professionals, Academia, Ministries, Government bodies, and other professionals in hard copy and online mode, with
awareness created through social media handles of ICSI. The Journal is also listed on Magzter, one of the professional
online platforms for listing Journals.

Every month, the Journal publishes theme-based articles. Each issue has a dedicated segment on research, where
research-oriented articles with focus on legal, & conceptual research, and application of research methods are
published. The Global Connect section covers articles of international relevance.

The Journal inter-alia covers features on ‘Legal World’, which carries updates on recent judgments, and ‘From the
Government’, where relevant Government orders/ circulars are published.

The Institute’s monthly initiatives are highlighted through ‘Recent Initiatives’ where Institute’s innovative approach
towards various professional areas as well as efforts for various recognitions and opportunities are published to apprise
the Members.

There is a special section on ‘Beyond Governance’ with interesting legal Case Studies, Crossword, National/
International Report Analysis, and a Book Review. The ‘Miscellaneous Corner’ captures recent trends and
Government initiatives in corporate governance and other emerging areas, such as Ethics, GST, ESG, MSME and Gist
of ROC and RD Adjudication orders, covering national and global perspective.

In order to create more awareness about the maritime sector amongst the professional fraternity, the ICSI has
introduced a dedicated “Maritime Corner” under Miscellaneous Corner section comprising key terms and
developments in the maritime industry and the same is published every month in the Chartered Secretary Journal

To enhance the readership as well as knowledge base of our esteemed readers, Interviews of many eminent
personalities were published in the Journal.

The Chartered Secretary Journal is circulated digitally in the form of e- Journal and an Opt-out option for physical
copy of the Journal has been offered to Members during the annual renewal of Membership.

Chartered Secretary Collector’s Series

The Chartered Secretary Collector’s Series, is an attempt of the Institute towards collating the pearls of wisdom spread over
the various editions and volumes of the Chartered Secretary Journal across years and bringing them within the bindings of a
single publication. The following editions have been published during the period under Report:

(xvi)

Edition Title Date of Release
Third edition Oppression and Mismanagement June 2024
Fourth edition ESG and Social Audit November 2024

Strategic Partnerships

With a view to strengthening strategic partnerships and enhance professional development opportunities, the Institute has
entered into several Memorandums of Understanding (MoUs) with various organisations. The list of major MoUs executed
during the period under Report are mentioned hereunder:

S. MOU Partner Date of Purpose
No. Execution
1. ProCS Technology Private 26 April, 2024 To facilitate availability of ‘proCS SDD-C’ platform to the
Limited Company Secretaries in Practice for managing SEBI PIT
Compliance Structural Digital Database requirement as per
Schedule C for Intermediaries / Fiduciaries / Consultants.
2. Fynamics Techno Solution 05 July, 2024 To facilitate availability of ‘Fynone’, Billing and Accounting
Private Limited App, to the Company Secretaries in Practice at a discounted
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price, offering one stop solution for billing & e-invoicing,
inventory & eway bill management, expenses & payments
management, unlimited client profiles, accounting & tax

Compliance.
3. Cochin Chamber of Commerce | 08 January, 2025 | To conduct Joint Professional Development workshops,
& Industry seminars, continuing education and training programmes for

students, practicing professionals and corporate executives on
themes of topical and professional interest and to hold several
other activities/projects mutually and severally beneficial to
the both the parties.

4. | Ajva Fintech Private Limited 19 March, 2025 To facilitate availability of ‘emsme’, platform for automated
government scheme discovery for MSMEs, to the Company
Secretaries in Practice at a discounted price, offering
opportunity to enhance services to MSME clients, single
source for central and selected state’s MSME schemes,
generation of easy-to-read scheme report for MSME,
compliance health check, building network with MSME
experts.

5. NSE IFSC Limited (NSE 1X) 12 January, 2025 | To collaborate and work in mutual areas of cooperation and
to develop GIFT-IFSC as a Global Listing centre by creating
awareness about the opportunities available in GIFT IFSC.

(E) RECOGNITIONS, REPRESENTATIONS AND SUGGESTIONS
0] Recognitions

) SEBI vide circular, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0060 dated 27 May, 2024 has specified the ICSI Institute of
Social Auditors (ICSI-ISA) as a Self-Regulatory Organization (SRO) for Social Impact Assessors.

o SEBI has issued the (Investment Advisers) (Second Amendment) Regulations, 2024 vide gazette notification dated
16 December, 2024 wherein under Regulation 20(1)(ii) a non-individual investment adviser is required to appoint an
independent professional who is a member of the ICSI (alongside members of other professional bodies) holding a
relevant certification from NISM, who shall be responsible for monitoring the compliance by the investment adviser
in respect of the requirements of the Act, regulations, notifications, guidelines, instructions issued by the SEBI.

) SEBI has issued the (Research Analysts) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 vide gazette notification dated 16
December, 2024 wherein under Regulation 26(1)(ii) a non-individual investment adviser is required to appoint an
independent professional who is a member of the ICSI (alongside members of other professional bodies) holding a
relevant certification from NISM, who shall be responsible for monitoring the compliance of the provisions of the
Act, these regulations and circulars issued by the SEBI.

o SEBI has issued LODR (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 vide gazette notification dated 12 December, 2024
wherein the following provisions have been made with respect to the profession of Company Secretaries:

- The Compliance Officer shall be an officer, who is in whole time employment of the listed entity, not more than one
level below the board of directors and shall be designated as a Key Managerial Personnel.

- Introducing provisions relating to appointment, reappointment in Annual General Meeting, eligibility, qualifications
and disqualifications for Secretarial Auditor of a listed entity.

- Based on the recommendation of board of directors, a listed entity shall appoint or re-appoint:

> an individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than one term of five consecutive years; or

> a Secretarial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of five consecutive years, with the approval
of its shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

> The casual vacancy arising out of resignation, death or disqualification of a Secretarial Auditor shall be filled by the

board of directors of the listed entity within a period of three months and the secretarial auditor so appointed shall
hold office till the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
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(i)

(iif)

Major Representations

S. No.

Particulars

Date of Submission

1.

Regarding verification of Membership of the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, submitted to Prof. (Dr) Unnat P. Pandit, Controller
General of Patents, Designs & Trade Marks

09 April, 2024 & 20
September, 2024

Request to recognize the qualification of Company Secretary for the
position of Managing Director in State PSUs as notified by Kerala Public
Enterprises Selection and Recruitment Board (KPESRB)

17 April, 2024

Request to authorize Company Secretary in Practice to issue the
Certificates under Schedule Il read with Regulation 13 (1) of the
International Financial Services Centres Authority (Payment Services)
Regulations, 2024 submitted to IFSCA

16 May, 2024

Submissions of ICSI on the IRDAI (Corporate Governance for Insurers)
Regulations, 2024 submitted to IRDAI

17 May, 2024

Request to process applications of Company Secretaries to act as Trade
Marks Agent, submitted to Shri Piyush Goyal, Hon’ble Union Minister,
Ministry of Commerce and Industry

19 September, 2024

Request to dispense with the requirement for dispatch of physical copy
of Notice and Annual Report and Proxy forms with respect to General
Meetings of Listed Entities, submitted to SEBI

25 September, 2024

Request to dispense with the requirement for dispatch of physical copy
of Notice and Annual Report with respect to General Meetings of Listed
Entities who have listed their Non-convertible Securities under
Regulation 58 (1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, submitted to
SEBI

25 September, 2024

Request to authorise Company Secretaries in Practice to conduct
concurrent audit submitted to RBI

07 February, 2025

Request to include the qualification of Company Secretary for
recruitment of specialist cadre officers in public sector banks submitted
to IBA

12 February, 2025 &
05 May, 2025

10.

Request to include Executive level Company Secretaryship qualification
in SAHAKAR MITRA: NCDC's Scheme on Internship Programme (SIP)
submitted to NCDC

17 February, 2025

11.

Representation on “Problem faced by the Corporates and Professionals
after the introduction of The Karnataka Stamp (Amendment) Act, 2023”,
submitted to Inspector General of Registration and Commissioner of
Stamps, Department of Stamps and Registrations, Government of
Karnataka

17 April, 2025

12.

Request to include the qualification of “Company Secretary” in the
Procedure and Guidelines for Engagement of Senior Consultants
/Consultants Grade-2/ Consultants Grade-1/ Young Professionals in NITI
Aayog, 2023 submitted to Niti Aayog

28 May, 2025

Suggestions

S. No. Particulars Date of Submission

1. | Suggestions of ICSI on draft IFSCA (Book-keeping, Accounting, 16 April., 2024
Taxation and Financial Crime Compliance Services) Regulations, 2024
submitted to IFSCA

2. | Suggestions of ICSI on draft IFSCA (Listing) Regulations, 2024 25 May, 2024
submitted to IFSCA

3. | Suggestions of ICSI for review of IFSCA (Market infrastructure 20 June, 2024
Institutions) Regulations, 2021 submitted to IFSCA

4. | Suggestions on Consultation Paper on the Recommendations of the 30 July, 2024
Expert Committee for facilitating ease of doing business and
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harmonization of the provisions of the ICDR and LODR Regulations
submitted to SEBI

5. | Suggestions of ICSI on SEBI Consultation Paper on proposed 18 August, 2024
amendments to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 to rationalize the scope of the expression ‘connected person’, while
not increasing compliance requirements submitted to SEBI

6. | Suggestions of ICSI on SEBI Consultation Paper on Streamlining the 23 August, 2024
process and reduction in timelines of Bonus Issue (enabling T+2 trading
of shares post record date where T being record date) submitted to SEBI
7. | Suggestions of ICSI on SEBI Consultation paper on clarification on the | 11 September, 2024
term “pecuniary relationship” of Debenture Trustee (DT) with the issuer
as per Regulation 13A of the DT Regulations submitted to SEBI

8. | Suggestions of ICSI on SEBI Consultation paper on “Provisions | 12 September, 2024
pertaining to appointment of Public Interest Directors” submitted to SEBI
9. | Suggestions of ICSI on Consultation Paper on the Review of IFSCA | 19 September, 2024
(Market Infrastructure Institutions) Regulations, 2021 submitted to SEBI
10. | Suggestions of ICSI on Consultation paper on Proposed amendment to 11 October, 2024
SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 with respect to allowing only electronic
mode for payment of dividend or interest or redemption or repayment
amounts submitted to SEBI

11. | Suggestions of ICSI on The Income Tax Act, 1961 submitted to CBDT 09 November, 2024

12. | Suggestions of ICSI on Consultation paper on review of provisions of | 11 November, 2024
LODR Regulations pertaining to corporate governance norms for High
Value Debt Listed entities (HVDLES) submitted to SEBI

13. | Proposed review of the definition of Unpublished Price Sensitive | 27 November, 2024
Information (UPSI) under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 to bring regulatory clarity, certainty and uniformity of
compliance in the ecosystem submitted to SEBI

14. | Suggestions of ICSI on Consultation Paper on Review of Framework for 10 February, 2025
Social Stock Exchange submitted to SEBI
15. | Suggestions of ICSI on Consultation Paper on aspects relating to 07 March, 2025
Secretarial Compliance Report, appointment of auditors and Related
Party Transactions of a listed entity submitted to SEBI

16. | Suggestions of ICSI on Draft Circular on Modification to Chapter V11 of 30 May, 2025
the Master Circular for listing obligations and disclosure requirements for
Non-Convertible Securities, Securitized Debt Instruments and/ or
Commercial Paper submitted to SEBI

Suggestions on MCA-21 V3 Forms

Suggestions were solicited by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on Forms under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder. Members were requested to share their suggestions by way of a dedicated google form, for improving the forms
available for filing under MCA-21 V3 platform. Also, virtual meetings seeking suggestions on forms under the Companies
Act, 2013 filed through MCA 21 V3 platform were conducted as per the schedule below:

Rules Forms Date
SPICe+, RUN, AGILE PRO-S, URC-1, INC-12,

ggﬂpames (Incorporation) Rules, | |\~"18" |INC-20, INC-20A, INC-22, INC-23, INC- ;gz A April,
24, INC-27, INC-28, INC-4, INC-6 and RD-1

Companies (Appointment and DIR-12, DIR-11, DIR-3A, DIR-3C, DIR-5, DIR-6,

Qualifications of Directors) Rules,

5014 DIR-9 and DIR-10

Companies (Management and 30 April,

Administration) Rules, 2014 MGT-14, MGT-3 2024

Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial MR-1 and MR-2
Personnel) Rules, 2014

Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, PAS-3, PAS-2 and PAS-6 02 May, 2024
2014
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Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014
Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014

LLP Rules

SH-7, SH-11, SH-8 and SH-9

AOC-5

RUN LLP, Form FiLLiP, Form 3, 4,5, 8,9, 11, 12,
15,17, 18, 22, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 31 and 32

03 May, 2024

(iv) Representation on Income Tax Bill, 2025

The ICSI has submitted its representations to the Members of Lok Sabha Committee to examine the Income Tax Bill, 2025
and various ministers and other dignitaries to include the Profession of ‘Company Secretary’ within the definition of
“Accountant” given under Section 515(3)(b) of The Income-Tax Bill, 2025 wherein reference has been drawn to various
Reports of Parliamentary Committees which has recommended for inclusion of Profession of ‘Company Secretary’ within the
definition of “Accountant.” It was also submitted that, in order to ensure the professional competency required for tax audit,
the Government may introduce a “Bridge Course/Assessment Course” to evaluate a candidate's understanding of the Income-
Tax Act and the practical aspects of tax audit process which will serve as a criterion to ensure the competency and
competitiveness amongst the professional services being rendered in tax audit domain.

Representations were submitted to all the Members of the Select Committee of Lok Sabha to examine the Income-Tax Bill,
2025 on 19 February, 2025 and 27 February, 2025 through e-mail.

ICSI delegation led by CS Dhananjay Shukla, President, ICSI presented its comprehensive views and suggestions to the Lok
Sabha’s Select Committee to examine the Income-Tax Bill, 2025 on 16 April, 2025. ICSI Representatives also met with the
following dignitaries to submit representation for seeking inclusion of the Profession of ‘Company Secretary' in the definition
of "Accountant” given under Section 515(3)(b) of The Income-Tax Bill, 2025:

Date of Meeting and | Name of Dignitary
S. No. e
submission
MINISTRY OF FINANCE

Smt. Nirmala Sitharaman

1 17.02.2025 and Hon’ble Minister

' 05.03.2025 Ministry of Finance and Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Shri Pankaj Chaudhary
Hon’ble Union Minister of State for Finance

2. 25.03.2025 Ministry of Finance

OTHER MINISTERS

Shri Kiren Rijiju
Hon’ble Union Cabinet Minister

3 27.02.2025 Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs and Ministry of Minority Affairs
Shri H. D. Kumaraswamy
Hon’ble Minister

4 04.03.2025 Ministry of Heavy Industries and Ministry of Steel
Smt. Raksha Nikhil Khadse

5. 13.03.2025 Hon’ble Union Minister of State for Youth Affairs and Sports
Smt. Savitri Thakur

6. 21.03.2025 Hon’ble Minister of State for Women and Child Development
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Shri Sarbananda Sonowal
7. 21.03.2025 Hon’ble Minister of Ports, Shipping & Waterways
Shri Jitan Ram Manijhi
8. 07.04.2025 Hon’ble Union Cabinet Minister of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Shri G. Kishan Reddy
9. 17.04.2025 Hon’ble Minister for Coal and Mines
Shri Chirag Paswan
10. 15.05.2025 Hon’ble Minister of Food Processing Industries
MEMBERS OF CBDT
Shri Ramesh Narain Parbat
11. 21.02.2025 Member (Legislation)
Shri Raman Chopra and Shri Pankaj Jindal
12 21.02.2025 Joint Secretaries, (TPL)-1 Divison
MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT
Prof. Saugata Ray
13. 18.02.2025 Member
Committee on Finance
Ms. Selja Kumari
14. 18.02.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri Rajeev Kumar Rai
Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
15. 20.02.2025 Member- Committee on Education, Women, Children, Youth and Sports
Shri Praveen Khandelwal
16. 28.02.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Dr. Hemang Joshi
Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
17 05.03.2025 Member-Committee on Education, Women, Children, Youth and Sports
Shri Hasmukhbhai Somabhai Patel
18. 06.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri Vishweshwar Hegde Kageri
19. 08.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri B.Y. Raghavendra
20. 08.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri Shankar Lalwani
21. 11.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri Rodmal Nagar
22. 11.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri Suresh Prabhu
23. 12.03.2025 Former Cabinet Minister
Shri Suresh Kumar Kashyap
24. 19.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
Bhagwat Kishanrao Karad
25 20.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Rajya Sabha
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Shri Krishna Prasad Tenneti

26. 26.03.2025 Hon’ble Member of Lok Sabha
OTHER DIGNITARIES

Shri Amit Thaker
217. 07.03.2025 Member of Legislative Assembly

Ms. Anuradha Thakur
28. 27.05.2025 Department of Economic Affairs

MEMBERS OF SELECT COMMITTEE, INCOME TAX BILL, 2025

29. 17.02.2025 Shri P. P. Chaudhary
30. 17.02.2025 Shri Jagadish Shivappa Shettar
31, 18.02.2025 Shri Lalji Verma
3 18.02.2025 Shri Richard Vanlalhmangaiha
33 19.02.2025 Shri Vishnu Dayal Ram
34. 20.02.2025 Shri Mukeshkumar Chandrakaant Dalal
35 20.02.2025 Shri Deepender Singh Hooda
36. 21.02.2025 Shri Raju Bista
37. 24.02.2025 Dr. Amar Singh
38, 24.02.2025 Shri Sudhir Gupta
39, 24.02.2025 Shri Bhartruhari Mahtab
40, 24.02.2025 Shri Benny Behanan
a1 24.02.2025 Shri Vijayakumar (Alias) Vijay Vasanth
42, 24.02.2025 Shri N K Premachandran
13 25 02.2025 Shri Eatala Rajender
a4, 25 02.2025 Dr. Kalanidhi Veeraswamy
45, 10.03.2025 Shri Arvind Ganpat Sawant
46, 12.03.2025 Shri Daggumalla Prasada Rao

Smt. Supriya Sule
47. 12.03.2025
48, 19.03.2025 Shri Kaushalendra Kumar

Shri Baijayant Panda

Chairperson - Select Committee of Lok Sabha
49. 25.03.2025 Income Tax Bill, 2025
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(F) STUDENTS, ACADEMIC INITIATIVES AND DEVELOPMENTS
(i) STUDENT REGISTRATION
(@) CSRegular Programme

During the period from 01 April, 2024 to 31 March, 2025, 28,798 and 7,742 students were registered in the Executive
Programme and Professional Programme respectively. As on 31 May, 2025, there are 1,87,937 students having valid registration
numbers in the Regular Programme.

(b)  Company Secretary Executive Entrance Test (CSEET)
Major Initiatives under CSEET are as follows:

o CSEET- Direct Registration at Executive Programme: Pursuant to issuance of Company Secretaries (Amendment)
Regulations, 2020, CSEET passed students can register directly for Executive Programme and join the Class-Room
Teaching conducted by the ICSI-Headquarters /Regional Offices / Chapters, including empaneled Study Centres of
the Institute.

° CSEET-Conduct of Test: CSEET is conducted through REMOTE Proctored mode (Computer Based Examination)
wherein, candidates are allowed to appear for the test through their own laptop/ desktop from home/ such other
convenient place. During the period under Report, the Test was held on 04 May 2024, 06 July 2024, 09 November
2024, 11 January 2025 and 03 May 2025.

. CSEET- FAQs and Mock Test: To familiarize the candidates with the Online Computer Based Examination through
Remote proctoring process, the Institute has issued FAQs covering each aspect of appearing for the Exam and conducts
a mock test of 2 hours’ duration prior to every Final Test.

° CSEET-Online Classes: The Institute conducts Online Classes for candidates appearing for CSEET through ICSI-
Headquarters and its Regional Offices and Chapters. The batches commence four times in a year after the completion
of registration of Entrance Tests in the months of January, May, July, and November.

. CSEET-Guide: The Institute has issued CSEET-Guide for CSEET aspirants covering the entire Syllabus of entrance
examination. The guidebooks are available on the Institute’s website.

° CSEET Referencer: To provide a purpose-based teaching, it was decided to commence CSEET Referencer
optionally for all CSEET aspirants at the time of CSEET registration. The same is applicable for the students
registering in CSEET w.e.f. 16 June, 2022.

(i) Student Outreach Initiatives

(a) Career Awareness

The Institute organised numerous Career Awareness Programmes (CAPs) across the country at various schools/universities,
including institutions with which ICSI has signed MoU under ‘Academic Collaboration’, during the period under Report, with
a view to attracting the best talent to the Company Secretaryship Course, and around 4,71,038 students have collectively
participated in such CAPs during the period under report. The Institute also participated in 90 Career Fairs /Exhibitions across
India. To popularize Company Secretaryship Course and attract fresh talent from Remote/Rural areas of the country, more
focus has been given to organize CAPs in those areas. The Institute, through the support of Ministry of Defence, has been
conducting extensive Career Awareness Programmes in various Army Public Schools in the country to sensitise the students,
parents and teachers about the CS Profession. Further, Career guidance sessions are also being conducted at EMRS schools
under the Ministry of Tribal Affairs and Navodaya Vidyalaya Samiti for conducting CAPs across the country on the basis of
circulars issued by them.

(b) ICSI Career Guidance Session for Educators at West Bengal

The ICSI and Paschim Banga Samagra Shiksha Mission (PBSSM), Government of West Bengal, jointly organized Career
Guidance Programme for Head of Institution (Hol) and Nodal Teacher (NT) of all the Higher Secondary Schools (209 Nos)
under PBSSM Cooch Behar District on 29 - 30 January, 2025 at Utsav Auditorium, Cooch Behar, West Bengal.

Through this unique initiative, ICSI and the Education Department, Government of West Bengal jointly trained and developed
the Hols and NTs for conduct of Career Guidance Programme for the students in their respective schools, apart from educating
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them on traditional curriculum. Around 550 teachers and education administrators attended the programme, who would conduct
Career Guidance for students on a regular basis in their schools.

(c) Class- Room Teaching

The Institute provides free online centralised classes for students of Executive Programme (New Syllabus) and Professional
Programme (New Syllabus) through its Regional Offices and Chapters in different parts of the country. The Academic
Institutions empanelled with the Institute as Study Centres are also eligible for providing the facility of Class-Room Teaching
to the students in their vicinity.

(d) Video Lecture Recording for E-Learning Portal

The e-Learning portal of the Institute offers the students an interface to enrich them by using e-Learning content like course
lectures, presentations and tests. Video lectures are recorded from among the expert faculties on different subjects of the
Executive and Professional Programme during the year.

(e) Online Doubt Clearing Sessions

The Institute organized online doubt clearing classes for students of both Executive and Professional Programme prior to each
term of CS examination, within the period under Report.

(iii) Motivational Sessions

The Institute organized a webinar exclusively for students of the Institute on 20 May, 2025 on Stress Management and Time
Management by Dr. Suneel Keswani, Motivational Speaker and Dr. Bhavna Barmi, Practicing Clinical Psychologist.

(iv) Yuvotsav

The Institute celebrated the Biggest Annual National Fest for the students, titled, “‘YUVOTSAV-2025’ (i.e., the 25™ National
Conference of Student Company Secretaries), on the occasion of the Birth Ceremony of Swami Vivekananda, from 11 January,
2025 to 12 January, 2025 at Ahmedabad.

A total of 23 competitions were organized as part of Yuvotsav-2025 on 11 January 2025 and teams from 04 Regional Offices
and 73 Chapters of the Institute participated in the event. The Programme was attended by more than 1300 students. A “Youth
March” was organized on the occasion on 12 January, 2025, followed by the Award ceremony for winners.

v) Student Month-JULY

The month JULY is considered as a month to groom the students of the Institute through multivariate activities. The Institute
organizes quiz contests, online mock tests, crash courses, revision classes, classes of specific subjects, soft skills development
programmes, power point competition, session on life skills etc. throughout the month including Career Awareness Week,
through its Regional Offices and Chapters.

(vi) Initiative to create Socially Responsible Behaviour among students

The Institute celebrated Van Mahotsav with students through plantation drive of Tree/ Saplings from their homes or in their
neighborhood so that others may also be motivated for the social cause.

To support the Members and students of the Institute, the Institute also organized Blood Donation Camps which received active
participation from the CS Community.

(vii) Grievance Solutions Cell

The Institute, monitors the grievances, suggestions and queries received from the stakeholders of the Institute through a
centrally monitored system which helps the Institute in improving its services from time to time.
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(viii) Award & Scholarship- ICSI Students Education Fund Trust

With a view to encourage and motivate economically backward and academically bright students to pursue the Company
Secretaryship Course, a Trust, viz., “ICSI Students Education Fund Trust” has been established by the Institute. Under the
Guidelines of the Trust, eligible students are fully exempted from paying the Registration / Admission Fee including CSEET
Registration Fees, Tuition Fees, Examination Fees, Pre-Exam Test Fees, and other fees payable at the time of admission to
Executive and Professional Programmes.

Based on their performance the students are also exempted from payment of fee applicable to Executive Programme/
Professional Programme subsequently.

During the year, 82 students under the Economically Backward Category and 186 students under the Academically Bright
Category benefited under the Scheme. The details of the same are mentioned hereunder:

Month App];i(ztﬁlilions l‘l:;:;)cnl?gl:(l)ﬁ;:g M::iltg(flrli)(’)us Total Grant released (Rs.)
Apr-24 29 6 13 170500
May-24 09 03 02 46000
June-24 17 03 06 90650
July-24 23 04 11 170200
Aug-24 24 3 12 218800
Sep-24 42 12 10 297150
Oct-24 32 2 12 201500
Nov-24 53 6 18 338450
Dec-24 54 18 18 584950
Jan-25 41 7 19 3,96,650
Feb-25 55 7 28 5,34,700
Mar-25 36 4 19 3,63,400
April-25 35 4 11 2,13,150
May 25 14 3 7 188000

Total 464 82 186 3814100

(ix) MoU under Academic Collaboration

For bringing academic excellence across the nation and aiming towards the holistic development of all its students, Members,
and other stakeholders, the ICSI has entered into MoU with various universities and Academic Institutions. As a part of
Academic Connect, the Institute has entered into MoUs with 13 IIMs and 11 NLUs till date. As on date, the Institute has signed
146 MoUs for Academic Collaboration, out of which 8 MoUs were signed during the year under Report. The list of
organisations with which the Institute has signed MoU during the year under Report are:

Iib Name of the University Location Date of MoU

1 Punyashlok Ahilyadevi Holkar University Solapur 23 April, 2024

2 Indian Institute of Management Sambalpur | Sambalpur, Odisha 04 May, 2024

3 Amity University Kolkata 06 May, 2024

4 Christ University Bengaluru 08 May, 2024

5 Bangalore University Bengaluru 16 October, 2024
6 Delhi Technological University Delhi 22 N;)(\)/;rlnber,

7 Mahatma Gandhi Mission University Chhat_r_apatl 27 December, 2024

Sambhaji Nagar
8 Gujarat Maritime University Gandhinagar 12 January, 2025

Further, the list of organisations with which the Institute has signed MoU under “Study Centre Scheme” during the year under
Report are:
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S. . Name of the Place where Study Name of ‘the . Date of
Region College/Universi
No Study Centre Setup Centre o Commencement
ty/Institution
1 SIRC Kottappady ICSI Mar Elias College | 16 December,
Ernakulam 2024
Study
Centre
(x) Other Initiatives

(a) CS Mitr Scheme

The ICSI has introduced the CS Mitr Incentive Scheme, wherein any person who is above 18 years of age is eligible to become
CS Mitr under the scheme. Incentive @ Rs 500/- is paid to the CS Mitr for each student registered in Executive Programme
(subject to applicable tax deduction). Further, the above incentive is valid only for the registration categories wherein
concession in fees is not applicable. Persons willing to become CS Mitr will be required to apply through online process. After
their credentials are verified and they are registered with ICSI as CS Mitr, they are allotted a code number. Students are required
to mention the code as a referral code, while registering themselves for the Executive Programme. The payments are transferred
by the Institute to the bank account of the beneficiary through NEFT.

(b) CS Olympiad

The Institute has launched the “ICSI Commerce Olympiad” for students of Classes XI and XII across the country. This unique
initiative seeks to enhance the learning outcomes of young learners in the Commerce stream by offering them a competitive
platform to showcase their knowledge and understanding of core as well as emerging subjects. Designed in alignment with the
National Education Policy (NEP) 2020, the ICSI Commerce Olympiad promotes holistic education and skill development. It
encourages critical thinking, problem-solving, and application-oriented learning, thereby nurturing well-rounded individuals
equipped to meet the challenges of the future. By engaging with schools nationwide, the Institute aims to cultivate a culture of
academic excellence in commerce education while simultaneously identifying and grooming young talent for leadership roles
in the corporate and professional world.

The following Olympiads were conducted by ICSI during the period under Report:

) ICSI in association with the International Olympiad Foundation (IOF), conducted the ICSI Commerce Olympiad for
students of Classes X1 and XIlI in schools across India on 02 December, 2024.

o ICSI in association with M/s Hummingbird Education Limited, conducted Commerce Olympiad for students of
Classes XI and XII in schools across India, on 25 November, 2024 and 09 December, 2024.

o ICSI in association with M/s Silverzone Foundation Limited, conducted Commerce Olympiad for students of Classes

Xl and XII in schools across India, on 11 November, 2024 and 03 December, 2024.
(c) National Constitution Day Quiz
In line with the initiative of Department of Legal Affairs, Government of India, the Institute celebrated the “Constitution Day
Quiz Competition” for students on 26 November, 2024 to create awareness amongst them about the Constitution and its special
features, particularly the Fundamental Duties, as enshrined in the Constitution of India.
(d) Online Quiz on Current Affairs and General Knowledge
The Institute organized an online quiz for students of classes XI and XII as well as those who have completed Class XII or
pursuing Graduation in any stream from across the country, covering areas of General Knowledge, Current Affairs, and basic
knowledge about the Institute and CS Course under the title “Online Quiz on Current Affairs & General Knowledge — 2024,
(e Teachers’ Interactive Meet
With the intent to have continued dialogues, strong network and propagate about the Course and Profession of Company

Secretaries, the Institute organized an interactive meet of School/ College Teachers under the title, “TEACHERS
CONFERENCE”. During the year 2024-25, 56 conferences for Teachers were held at different locations and around 4000
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teachers from across the country participated.
f All India Company Law Quiz

The All-India Company Law Quiz 2024 was organized to enhance students’ knowledge, visibility, and understanding of
Company Law and related areas. This initiative aimed to foster deeper interest and conceptual clarity through active
participation. The final round of the quiz was held on 16 November 2024 at Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu.

(9) All India Debate Competition

The Institute organized the 23 All India Debate Competition 2024 for students during the period under Report. The National
Round of the event was held on 18 October, 2024 at ICSI-NIRC, Delhi.

(h) All India Essay Writing Competition

To enhance the writing skills of students, the Institute organizes All India Essay Writing Competition, wherein students write
essays on relevant topics and submit the same for evaluation to the host region. The 24™ All India Essay Writing Competition
for the students of Executive and Professional Programme was hosted by EIRC on 29 October, 2024.

0] All India Moot Court Competition

The Institute organized the 22" All India Moot Court Competition during the period under Report and the National Level
Round of the Competition was conducted on 22 November, 2024 at Mumbai, wherein teams of all four regions participated.

@) Debating Society

The ICSI, in its constant pursuit of grooming students into future-ready professionals, has launched the ICSI Debating Society.
This initiative provides a structured and engaging platform for CS students to hone essential communication and leadership
skills, bridging the gap between academic knowledge and professional excellence. It has been conceptualized as a medium to
build confidence in public speaking, encourage critical thinking and structured reasoning, develop impromptu communication
skills, and cultivate persuasive delivery and professional presentation.

The Debating Societies are active at all Regional Offices. A majority of the Chapters have also launched their Debating
Societies, with enthusiastic student participation. Students are being encouraged to join, participate actively, and leverage this
opportunity to transform into confident and articulate professionals. Through the ICSI Debating Society, the Institute reaffirms
its commitment to the holistic development of Company Secretaryship students. This initiative is not merely about debating;
it is about empowering the next generation of Company Secretaries with the courage to voice opinions, the discipline to
structure arguments, and the confidence to lead with clarity. The classes of ICSI Debating Societies commenced from January
2025, following the CS Examinations in December 2024.

(k) ICSI Waiver/ Concession Scheme for Indian armed forces, paramilitary forces, Agniveers and families of
Martyrs

The ICSI in alignment with the various initiatives of the Government of India launched the 1CSI Waiver scheme for Indian
armed forces, paramilitary forces, Agniveers and families of Martyrs. Under the scheme, 100% concession is given to the
following categories in full fee payable at the time of Registration in CS Executive Programme, while all other fees, including
those for trainings being applicable in full as per their respective category:

> Wards and widows of martyrs (who have lost their lives during service; either during battle casualty or due to any
other reason) of Indian Army, Indian Air Force, Indian Navy and all para-military forces.

> In Service/ Retired personnel of Indian Army, Indian Air Force, Indian Navy and all paramilitary forces (including
defence personnel who have taken retirement under short service commission).

> Wards of all personnel of Indian Army, Indian Air Force, Indian Navy and all paramilitary forces (including wards of
defence personnel who have taken retirement under short service commission).

> Candidates who are inducted as “Agniveer” under AGNEEPATH Scheme of the Government of India after

completing four years under the Scheme (upon submission of documentary evidence for the same).
() Paper wise exemption on the basis of higher qualifications

The Institute has introduced paper-wise exemptions for students enrolling in the Company Secretary (CS) Course under the
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New Syllabus, 2022, based on their higher academic qualifications. Detailed guidelines and the exemption application process
has been communicated to all stakeholders and can be viewed on ICSI’s website.

(m) Issuance of Professional Programme Pass Certificate via Digi Locker

In alignment with digital empowerment, the Institute now issues Professional Programme Pass Certificates online through
DigiLocker. This initiative, launched with support from the National e-Governance Division (NeGD), Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology, Government of India, allows students who passed on or after the June 2021 examination session
to conveniently download their certificates from DigiLocker.

(n) Overseas Examination Centre Support

ICSI facilitates global access to its flagship Executive and Professional Programme examinations by supporting an overseas
exam centre in Dubai. This initiative enables students residing in the Middle East and nearby regions to appear for their exams
without the need to travel to India, making the qualification more accessible for international candidates. Students opting for
the Dubai centre are required to pay an additional surcharge, but benefit from the same examination standards and schedules
as those in India. This overseas centre reflects ICSI’s commitment to supporting its global student community and enhancing
the international recognition of the Company Secretary qualification.

(0) Switchover to New Syllabus

To ensure academic excellence and regulatory compliance, the ICSI implemented the new syllabus for both Executive and
Professional Programmes. Comprehensive outreach, including bulk emails, FAQs, and updates via the Institute’s website,
social media, and student portals guided students through the switchover process, eligibility criteria, subject mapping, and
examination applicability. A dedicated online switchover facility was made available on the SMASH portal, providing real-
time updates. Academic support was further enhanced through hybrid-mode Online Centralized Classes.

Important Dates:

[ Executive Programme:

) Registration under Syllabus 2022: Commenced on 01 February, 2023
o First Exam: December 2023
o Last Attempt under Syllabus 2017: December 2024

Professional Programme:
o Registration under Syllabus 2022: Commenced on 01 August, 2023
o First Exam: June 2024
o Last Attempt under Syllabus 2017: June 2025

Additional attempt under Old Syllabus, 2017: The ICSI, with a view to facilitate students under Old Syllabus, 2017,
provided one additional attempt to the students of Executive Programme to appear under Old Syllabus, 2017 in the December,
2024 session of examinations, and one additional attempt to the students of Professional Programme to appear under Old
Syllabus, 2017 in the June 2025 sessions of examinations.

(p) Transcripts & Education Verification

With increasing global recognition of the CS qualification, students are pursuing foreign courses, higher education, and
immigration opportunities. During the year, the Institute issued 320 transcripts to support such applications. Additionally, 70
education verification requests from employers, PSUs, government authorities, and authorized agencies were processed,
ensuring timely and accurate credential verification.

(@) Introduction of Welcome Back Scheme via Re-Registration

The “Welcome Back” Re-Registration Scheme has been launched by the Institute to provide a pathway for eligible students to
continue their CS Journey. This initiative is designed for students who:

o have passed the Executive Programme;
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o did not register for the Professional Programme, and
o whose registration term has expired, making them ineligible for de-novo registration

Through this scheme, such students can directly register for the Professional Programme without repeating the Executive
Programme, thereby saving time and maintaining continuity in their CS journey. Since May 2014, a total of 667 students have
benefited from this initiative.

(ix) Academic Initiatives
(@ Updation of Study Material

The following Study Material under Syllabus 2022 has been updated during the period under Report:

" CSEET Reference Reading Material

" CSEET Guide I and Il

] Study material for Executive Programme (Total of 7 papers)

] Study material for Professional Programme (Total of 14 papers)

(b) Introduction of one elective paper ‘Advanced Direct Tax Laws and Practice’ under ICSI Syllabus 2022

The Institute has introduced one elective paper ‘Advanced Direct Tax Laws and Practice’ under ICSI Syllabus 2022 with a
view to ensure a more comprehensive and specialized study of the subject.

(c) Module wise subject wise monthly updates

In order to educate the students on real time basis, the ICSI releases module wise subject wise monthly updates covering recent
regulatory and other developments.

(d) E-Journals

The ICSI releases the following e-journals on monthly basis:
] Student Company Secretary
=  CSEET Communique

Further. in order to make the Student Company Secretary e-Journal more interactive for the students and to test students’
knowledge and critical thinking skills, the Institute has introduced a Quiz with prize money in the Journal starting from April,
2025 issue.

(e) Info Capsule

The ICSI continues to bring out a daily update for Members titled ‘Info Capsule’ in a structured form with knowledge rich
inputs. The Info Capsule focuses on various areas including latest happenings at ICSI; Important regulatory circulars from
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, SEBI and other Regulators, news relating to Restructuring and Insolvency; Valuation;
Regulatory takeaways from NCLT and NCLAT and other judicial pronouncements; Market Watch, developments in Corporate
Governance etc.

()] ‘Integrated MBA in Maritime Regulations and Compliance Management’ with Gujarat Maritime University

Gujarat Maritime University (GMU) introduced an Integrated MBA in Maritime Regulations and Compliance Management”
exclusively for the students of ICSI. The programme aims to navigate the complex legal landscape of maritime law practice,
shipping management, marine insurance and international trade, while covering the subjects under ICSI Curriculum as well.
The programme is specifically structured for those who are aiming to cultivate advanced knowledge and competencies in
maritime regulatory frameworks, with a focus on preparing individuals for roles as compliance professionals in the specialized
field.
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(G) MAJOR PROGRAMMES

(i) 25" National Conference of Practising Company Secretaries

The 25" National Conference of Practising Company Secretaries was organised on 14-15 June, 2024 at Ayodhya on the theme
“Role of Company Secretary in Viksit Bharat @2047”. Chief Guest, Shri Asim Arun, Hon’ble Minister of State (Independent
Charge), Social Welfare, Scheduled Caste and Tribal Welfare, Government of Uttar Pradesh and Special Guest, Shri Nitish
Kumar, IAS, District Magistrate, Ayodhya, Government of Uttar Pradesh inaugurated the Conference.

(ii) PCS Day 2024

PCS Day is celebrated on 15 June every year. The Day was celebrated through CCGRTSs, Regional Offices and Chapters by
organising various programmes on the theme “Role of CS in Viksit Bharat”. The Members were engaged through panel
discussions, seminars, study circle talks, workshops, etc. on the topics befitting the theme.

(iii) GST Day 2024

The Institute partnering with the initiatives of the Government of India, each year on 01 July propagates the significance of
Goods and Services Tax (GST). The GST Day 2024 was celebrated on 01 July, 2024 through Headquarters, Regional offices
and Chapters, wherein the Members were sensitised through panel discussions, seminars, study circle meetings, webinars, etc.
on the topics relating to GST.

(iv) 5" National Conference of Corporate CS

The 5™ National Conference of Corporate CS was organised on 19-20 July, 2024 on the theme: “Corporate CS: Transforming
Governance” at Kolkata. Shri Vivek Gupta, Managing Director and Chief Group Editor, SANMARG was the Chief Guest for
the Conference. Around 400 delegates participated in-person and 2000 delegates connected virtually for the Conference.

29 56" Foundation Day of ICSI

The ICSI celebrated its 56" Foundation Day on 04 October, 2024, in New Delhi, on the theme ‘Governance for Sustainable
Growth’, in the august presence of Smt. Anupriya Patel, Hon'ble Minister of State for Health & Family Welfare and Chemicals
& Fertilizers, Government of India. Stressing upon the relevance of Sustainability in present times, Smt. Patel urged ICSI and
Company Secretaries to partner in realizing the vision of Viksit Bharat. The event also featured a Special Session with Shri
Harvinder Singh, an Indian Paralympic Archer and Gold Medalist at the Paris Paralympic Games 2024, and Ms. Anjali Devi,
a Gold Medalist at the World Boccia Challenger in Cairo 2024.

30 52" National Convention of Company Secretaries

The 52" National Convention of Company Secretaries was organised on 08-10 November, 2024 at Mumbai on the theme
“India@?2047: Expanding Horizons for Professionals”. Smt. Madhabi Puri Buch, Chairperson, Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) graced the Convention as its Chief Guest.

(vii)  National Tax Conference

The National Tax Conference was organised on 02 January, 2025 at Chennai. Dr. D. Sudhakara Rao (IRS), Chief Commissioner
of Income Tax, Chennai and Shri K Annamalai, Former IPS, President, BJP Tamil Nadu graced the Conference as Guests of
Honour.

(viii) ICSI Leadership Summit - 2025

The 7" ICSI Leadership Summit - 2025 was successfully organized at Hotel Crowne Plaza, Rohini, New Delhi on 08-10
February, 2025. The Summit was attended by the Council Members, Members of the Four Regional Councils, Chairmen of the
Chapters of the Institute, Senior Management and officials of the Institute. Aimed at fostering greater ties, the Summit
encouraged individuals to share their ideas and innovative solutions. The Summit provided a forum to ensure that everyone is
working towards a common vision.
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(ix) 3" National Women’s Conference

The 3" National Women’s Conference was organised on 28-29 March, 2025 at Indore on the theme “Transforming the Future:
Women's Role in Sustainable Development”. Ms. Neeti Agarwal, Industrialist & Social worker and Dr. Priyanka Mokshmar,
Chairman and Managing Director, Vaayu India served as the Special Guests for the Conference.

(x) Industry & Regulatory Engagement

(a) Online Courses for Capacity Building Commission

In order to facilitate capacity building initiatives of the Government of India, the ICSI has partnered with Capacity Building
Commission (CBC) in developing Online Courses on Company Law, Corporate Governance and Insolvency and Bankruptcy,
which will be uploaded on the iGOT Karmayogi portal of the Government of India. The ICSI has provided detailed contents
for developing these courses by the CBC empaneled vendors, and the same are being hosted on the iGOT Karmayogi portal.

(b) One Day Programme for ICLS Officers Trainees

The ICSI organised One Day Programme for Indian Corporate Law Service (ICLS) Officers Trainees batches at ICSI
Headquarters, New Delhi on 26 April, 2024 and 14 May, 2025, pursuant to the communication received from the Indian
Corporate Law Service Academy (ICLSA) under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs regarding On-the-Job Training
of ICLS Officer Trainees of 2022 Batch (13" PCP) and 2023 Batch (14" PCP) with various arms of the Ministry in the National
Capital Region.

(c) Training Programme for Employees of Cochin Shipyard Limited (CSL)

The ICSI in association with the Cochin Shipyard Limited (CSL), a Central Public Sector Enterprise, organized a Training
Programme for its employees on the topic "Prohibition of Insider Trading™ on 20 November, 2024 at its Headquarters at Kochi.
CS Savithri Parekh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Reliance Industries Ltd. and CS Makarand M. Joshi,
Practicing Company Secretary were the Guest Speakers. The programme witnessed presence of Shri Madhu S. Nair, Chairman
& Managing Director, CSL, along with other Directors of CSL. The Training Programme was attended by 167 employees of
CSL.

(d) Training Programme on Mergers and Acquisitions under Companies Act, 2013 and IBC for SEBI Officials

The ICSI conducted one day Training Programme on Mergers and Acquisitions under the Companies Act, 2013 and IBC for
the officials of SEBI on 14 October, 2024 at SEBI Bhavan Il, BKC, Mumbai. The Training Programme was attended by
approximately 30 officials from SEBI including Chief General Manager, General Manger, Deputy General Manager, Manager,
Assistant Manager etc.

(e) Training Programme for Company Secretaries of CPSEs

The ICSI in association with the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), organized a Residential Two Days Capacity Building
Programme for Company Secretaries of CPSEs on 26-27 September, 2024 at Mysuru. The Training Programme was attended
by around 35 Company Secretaries from various CPSEs across India.

0] Celebration of 8" Foundation Day of IEPFA

The Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (IEPFA) organised its 8™ Foundation Day in collaboration with the
ICSI and National Council of Applied Economic Research (NCAER) on 06 September, 2024 at SCOPE Convention Centre,
New Delhi on the theme “Empowering Investors: Financial Literacy as the Key to Combat Fraud and Digital Scams”. Ms.
Anita Shah Akella, CEO, IEPFA and Joint Secretary, MCA, CS Manish Gupta, Former President, ICSI, Mr. Dhirendra Kumar,

Board Member, IEPFA and Lt. Col. Rajesh Kumar, General Manager, IEPFA graced the inaugural session. A panel discussion
was also organised during the Programme.

(H) INTERNATIONAL FOOTPRINTS, BRAND ENHANCEMENT & MEDIA VISIBILITY
(i) International Footprints

(@) International Conferences hosted/partnered by the 1CSI

ICSI 3" International Conference, Singapore
Date 5-6 April, 2024
Theme Building Resilient and Sustainable Economies
Chief Guest Mrs. Lim Hwee Hua
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Acting Chair, International Valuation Standards Council,
Former Minister, Prime Minister’s Office, Singapore

Guest of Honour

H.E. Dr. Shilpak Ambule
High Commissioner of India to Singapore

Partners

. Chartered Institute for Securities & Investment (CISI)
. Malaysian Association of Company Secretaries (MACS)
. International Valuation Standards Council (IVSC)

17™ International Professional Development & Fellowship Programme (IPDFP), Vietnam & Cambodia

Date 28 May, 2024 to 4 June, 2024

Conference was held on 29" May 2024, in Hanoi
Theme Charting the Course of Sustainable Development
Chief Guest Mr. Subhash Prasad Gupta

Deputy Chief of Mission, Embassy of India,

Hanoi, Vietnam

01%t ICSI Middle East Conference, Abu Dhabi UAE

Date 4-6 September 2024
Theme Responsible Investment for Sustainable Future
Chief Guest H.E. Dr. Abdelrahman Almuaini

Assistant Undersecretary for IP Sector,
Ministry of Economy, UAE

Guests of Honour

e Mr. A. Amarnath
Deputy Chief of Mission, Embassy of India, UAE;
e Mr. Yusuff Ali M. A.
Chairman & Managing Director, LuLu Group International
e Mr. Abdulla Salem Alnuaimi
Group CEO, Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange
e Mr. Hamad Sayah Al Mazrouei
CEO, ADGM Registration Authority

Partners o Corporate Secretaries International Association (CSIA)
e International Valuation Standards Council (IVSC)
02" I1CSI Middle East Conference 2025, Dubai, UAE
Date 24 — 26 April, 2025
Theme Good Governance: Empowering Capital Markets
Chief Guest Shri Ram Nath Kovind

Hon’ble Former President of India

Guests of Honour

e Mr. Satish Kumar Sivan
Consul General, Consulate General of India, Dubai
e H.E. Dr. Maria Hanif Al Qassim
Assistant Undersecretary of Economic Policies & Studies, Ministry of
Economy, UAE
e H.E. Mirza Hussain Al Sayegh
Director, Office of H.H. Sheikh Hamdan Bin Rashid Al Maktoum
e H.E. Dr. Mohammed Saeed Al Kindi
Senior Vice President, Invescore and Former Minister for Environment
& Water, UAE

Partners

e Services Export Promotion Council (SEPC)
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(b)

ICSDI’ participation in International Conferences

28™ Annual International Conference of Institute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya

Theme Governance Resilience in the Face of Economic Crisis
Date 24-26 April, 2024
Place Mombasa, Kenya

Organization

Institute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya

CSIA Annual Council Meeting and Global Governance Awards Ceremony

Date

22-23 April, 2024

Place

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Organization

Corporate Secretaries International Association

International Governance Leadership Conference 2024

Theme Human Condition
Date 4 -5 September, 2024
Place Melbourne, Australia

Organization

Governance Institute of Australia

National Conference of Malaysian Association of Company Secretaries (MACS)

Theme Empowering the Company Secretary: Digitalization & Sustainability
Date 24-25 September, 2024
Place Petaling Jaya, Malaysia

Organization

Malaysian Association of Company Secretaries (MACS)

loD London Global Convention 2024

Theme Board’s Strategy for a Secure Future & Turning Disruptions into Opportunities
Date 13-16 November, 2024
Place London, United Kingdom.

Organization

Institute of Directors (I0D)

OECD-Asia Roundtable on Corporate Governance

Date

11-12 December, 2024

Place

Manila, Philippines

Organization

The Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD)

loD UAE Global Convention 2025

Theme Boards in a Rapidly Changing World: Innovative Strategies for Resilience and
Sustainability

Date 22-25 April, 2025

Place Dubai, UAE

Organization

Institute of Directors (I0D)

[PART I1I—SEC.4]
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29" Annual International Conference of Institute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya
Theme Ethical Leadership & Good Governance - Restoring Trust, Renewing Morals, Securing
the Future

Date 23-25 April, 2025

Place Mombasa, Kenya

Organization Institute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya
(c) International Webinars
) CS Overseas: Opportunities in USA: A webinar was organised on the theme “CS Overseas: Opportunities in USA”

on 10 June, 2024 highlighting the role, responsibility and recognition of the Company Secretary Profession and
opportunities for CS professionals in USA. CS Dwarakanath Chennur, Council Member, ICSI, CS Renuka Raman,
Corporate Counsel, Big Lots, USA, CS Praveen C. Medikundam, Attorney, International Legal & Business Services.
USA and CS Lakshmi Mittal, Of Counsel, The Cox Law Group, USA were the eminent speakers of the webinar.

o Digital Governance: Pathway to a Sustainable Future: A webinar was organised on the theme “Digital
Governance: Pathway to a Sustainable Future” on 11 December, 2024 highlighting the key aspects and role of digital
governance in promoting sustainable growth. CS Dwarakanath Chennur, Council Member, ICSI, CS Pooja Shukla,
Senior Lecturer, Hong Kong Metropolitan University, Hong Kong, Mr. Lance Yeung, Assistant Director - Al & Data
Hong Kong Science & Technology Parks Corporation, Hong Kong, CS Priya Mahajan, Head of APAC Public Policy
& Regulatory Counsel, Verizon, Singapore, and Ms. Fiona Chan, Senior Compliance Manager, Specialized
Compliance (Privacy Office), Rabobank Australia were the eminent speakers of the webinar.

(if) Enhancing Brand Equity
The ICSI has undertaken various image building initiatives to promote and enhance the brand ICSI by ensuring coverage of all

the ICSI events, initiatives and developments related to the profession in the Print/Electronic/Digital Media through Press
Releases, Press Conferences, Media Interactions, Digital and Social Media Handles of ICSI.

Particulars Number
Press Coverage of ICSI events, announcements 875
Press Conferences 26
Exclusive Interview and Write-ups of ICSI Spokesperson in Print Media 15
Coverage in Electronic Media and Special Episodes 60
Number of Videos Created for Brand Promotion 21
Social Media Posts 1450

(iii) Career Feature/ Articles on Career as a Company Secretary

Special Feature on “Career as a Company Secretary” has been published in regional languages for wider reach in leading /
popular newspapers across India - Prajavaani, Divya Bhaskar, Divya Marathi, Mathrubhumi, Dinakaran, Vaartha, Dharitri,
Bartaman, Ajit. Articles focussing on the role of Company Secretary have also been published in Employment News, 10D
Board Stewardship Journal, Aaj, Jagran Josh, Education Times, Careers360 Magazine, Competition Refresher, Assocham.

(iv) Social Media Presence

ICSI Social Media Platforms have significantly strengthened ICSI & CS Profession as a brand. All announcements and
information related to ICSI events are disseminated through ICSI Social Media Platforms, viz., Facebook, X, LinkedIn,
Instagram, Threads and WhatsApp. Videos of ICSI webinars, Crash Courses & other branding activities have been uploaded
on ICSI YouTube Channel, ensuring increased reach and publicity. The table as placed hereunder depicts the reach of the
Institute in terms of followers on social media:
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Social Media Portals Followers (as on 31 May,
2025)

Facebook
https://www.facebook.com/ICSI 1,28,095
X (earlier Known as Twitter)
https://twitter.com/icsi cs 93,912
LinkedIn
https://www.linkedin.com/in/theicsi/ 46,825
Instagram
https://www.instagram.com/theicsi/ 70,300
YouTube 92 000
https://www.youtube.com/user/TheCslnstitute !
YouTube (Students) 30.900
https://www.youtube.com/@icsiyoutubechannelforstude2052 !
Threads

i . 9,990
https://www.threads.net/@theicsi
WhatsApp 56.632
https://www.whatsapp.com/channel/0029Va9qP1ID8SE69ZDQvW3F !

(v) Meeting with Dignitaries

Shri Ram Nath Kovind, Hon’ble Former President of India

Smt. Nirmala Sitharaman, Hon'ble Minister of Finance & Corporate Affairs

Shri Nitin Gadkari, Hon'ble Minister of Road Transport & Highways

Dr. S. Jaishankar, Minister of External Affairs, Government of India

Shri Kiren Rijiju, Hon'ble Minister of Parliamentary Affairs, Minister of Minority Affairs
Shri H. D. Kumaraswamy, Hon’ble Union Minister of Heavy Industries

Shri Sarbananda Sonowal, Hon'ble Minister of Ports, Shipping & Waterways

Shri Jitan Ram Manjhi, Hon'ble Minister of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Shri G Kishan Reddy, Hon'ble Union Minister for Coal and Mines

Shri Jyotiraditya M. Scindia, Hon'ble Union Minister for Communication and Development of the North Eastern
Region

Shri Harsh Malhotra, MoS for Corporate Affairs & Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways
Smt. Anupriya Patel, Hon’ble MoS for Health & Family Welfare and Chemicals & Fertilizers
Shri Pankaj Chaudhary, Hon'ble MoS for Finance

Smt. Raksha Khadse, Hon'ble MoS for Youth Affairs & Sports

Smt. Savitri Thakur, Hon'ble MoS for Women and Child Development

Shri Baijayant Jay Panda, National Vice President, BJP & Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha
Shri Shashi Tharoor, Member of Parliament, Lok Sabha

Shri Bhartruhari Mahtab, Hon'ble Member of the Lok Sabha, Gol

Shri Faggan Singh Kulaste, Member of Parliament, Lok Sabha, Gol.

Dr. Amar Singh, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Benny Behanan, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Bhartruhari Mahtab, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Deepender Singh Hooda, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Eatala Rajender, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Hasmukhbhai Somabhai Patel, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Dr. Hemang Joshi, Hon'ble Member of Parliament

Shri Jagdish Shettar, Hon'ble Member of Parliament

Dr. Jayanta Kumar Roy, Hon'ble Member of Parliament

Shri Kalanidhi Veeraswamy, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Lalji Verma, Hon'ble Member of Parliament, Lok Sabha

Shri Mukeshkumar Chandrakaant Dalal, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri N K Premachandran, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri P P Chaudhary, Hon'ble Member of Parliament

Shri Praveen Khandelwal, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Rajeev Rai, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Raju Bista, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Richard Vanlalhmangaiha, Hon'ble Member of Parliament, Lok Sabha

Kumari Selja, Hon'ble Member of Parliament, Lok Sabha

Prof. Saugata Roy, Hon'ble Member of Parliament, Lok Sabha


https://www.facebook.com/ICSI
https://twitter.com/icsi_cs
https://www.linkedin.com/in/theicsi/
https://www.instagram.com/theicsi/
https://www.youtube.com/user/TheCsInstitute
https://www.youtube.com/@icsiyoutubechannelforstude2052
https://www.threads.net/@theicsi
https://www.whatsapp.com/channel/0029Va9qP1lD8SE69ZDQvW3F
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Shri Sudhir Gupta, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Vijay Vasanth, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Vishnu Dayal Ram, Hon'ble Member of Parliament

Shri Arvind Sawant, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri B. Y. Raghavendra, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Daggumalla Prasada Rao, Hon'ble Member of the Lok Sabha

Shri Kaushalendra Kumar, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha & Select Committee Member, Income-tax Bill, 2025
Shri Krishna Prasad Tenneti, Hon'ble Member of the Lok Sabha

Shri Rodmal Nagar, Hon'ble Member of the Lok Sabha

Shri Shankar Lalwani, Hon'ble Member of the Lok Sabha

Smt. Supriya Sule, Hon'ble Member of the Lok Sabha

Shri Suresh Kashyap, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Shri Vishweshwar Hegde Kageri, Hon'ble Member of Lok Sabha

Dr. Bhagwat Kishanrao Karad, Hon'ble Member of Parliament, Rajya Sabha

Shri Bhupendra Patel, Hon'ble Chief Minister of Gujarat

Shri Suresh Prabhu, Former Cabinet Minister

Smt. Deepti Gaur Mukerjee, 1AS, Secretary, Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Shri S.C.L Das, IAS, Secretary, Ministry of MSME

Shri Balamurugan D., Joint Secretary, MCA

Smt. Madhabi Puri Buch, Chairperson, SEBI

Shri Asim Arun, MoS (IC), Social Welfare, Scheduled Caste and Tribal Welfare, UP Govt.
Dr. Niten Chandra, 1AS, Secretary (ESW), Ministry of Defence

Dr. Rajiv Mani, Secretary, Legislative Department & Law Secretary, Department of Legal Affairs, Ministry of Law
and Justice.

Dr. Anju Rathi Rana, Secretary, Department of Legal Affairs

Shri Vivek Bharadwaj, Secretary, Ministry of Panchayati Raj

Shri R N Parbat, Member CBDT

Shri Raman Chopra, Joint Secretary, TPL division CBDT

Shri Pankaj Jindal, Joint Secretary, TPL division CBDT

Shri Gopal Murli Bhagat, Deputy Chief Executive from the Indian Banks' Association, Mumbai
Shri Brajeshwar Sharma, Senior Advisor, from the Indian Banks' Association, Mumbai

Shri Harvinder Singh, Indian Paralympic Archer and Gold Medalist, Paris Para Olympic 2024
Ms. Anjali Devi, Gold Medalist, World Boccia Challenger, Cairo 2024.

Shri Nitish Kumar, IAS, District Magistrate, Ayodhya, Government of Uttar Pradesh

Shri Deepak Singh, IAS, Commissioner Indore Division

Shri Ashwani Bhatia, Whole Time Member, SEBI and Director, NISM

Shri B. Rajendran, Executive Director, SEBI

Shri S.V.M.D Rao, Executive Director, SEBI

Shri Manoj Kumar, Executive Director, SEBI

Shri Biranchi Narayan Sahoo, Executive Director, SEBI

Shri V S Sundaresan, Executive Director, SEBI

Prof Mamidala Jagadesh Kumar, Chairman UGC

Shri M. V. Phadke, Former Executive Director & Principal Legal Counsel, IDBI

Prof. (Dr) S. Shanthakumar, Director, Gujarat National Law University & Director (1/C), Gujarat Maritime University.
Shri Sunil Jayawant Kadam, Registrar, NISM

Shri Siva Sankar, Deputy Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai

Prof. Mahadeo Jaiswal, Founding Director, IIM Sambalpur

Shri Yashovardhan Saboo, MD, Ethos Limited

Dr Suresh Chandra Pandey, RINL's Director (Personnel)

Shri Imtiyaz Arshad, CEO & Secretary, Skill Development Institute

CS Ajay Agarwal, Senior Executive Vice President-Legal & Secretarial, HDFC Bank Ltd
Smt. Sapna Anurag Jain, Executive Director, MP Industrial Development Corporation, Indore Division
Shri Adil Zainulbhai, Chairman, Capacity Building Commission

Sri Sri Ravi Shankar, Founder, The Art of Living Foundation

Shri Sadguru Madhusudhan Sai

Shri Ravi Mittal, Chairperson, IBBI and Kulwant Singh, Executive Director, IBBI


https://x.com/hashtag/SEBI?src=hashtag_click
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U]
(M)
(@)

(d)

Prof. T.G. Sitharam, Chairman and Dr. Sunil Luthra, Director, All India Council for Technical Education (AICTE).
Shri Gopal Krishna Agarwal, National Spokesperson, Economic Affairs, BJP
Shri Ashishkumar Chauhan, Managing Director & CEO, National Stock Exchange of India Ltd

Ms. Kamla K, Chief Regulatory Officer, BSE Ltd.
Shri Gopal Murli Bhagat, Deputy Chief Executive, Indian Banks' Association

INFRASTRUCTURE

List of Own Premises:
Headquarters

ICSI House, 22, Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi.
ICSI House, C-37, Sector-62, Noida, UP
ICSI House, C-36, Sector-62, Noida, UP

CCGRTs (Centre for Corporate Governance, Research and Training)

ICSI-CCGRT at Mumbai.
ICSI-CCGRT at Hyderabad (Formerly known as CoE-Hyderabad)
ICSI-CCGRT at Kolkata (Formerly known as CoE-Kolkata)

Regional Offices

EIRO - Kolkata
NIRO - New Delhi
WIRO - Mumbai
SIRO - Chennai

Chapters

Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Bhopal, Bhubaneswar, Bhilwara, Coimbatore, Dombivli, Faridabad, Ghaziabad, Goa, NE-Guwahati,
Hooghly, Indore, Jaipur, Kanpur, Kochi, Kolhapur, Lucknow, Madurai, Mangaluru, Mysuru, Nagpur, Patna, Pune, Rajkot,
Surat, Thane, Udaipur and Vadodara.

(i)
a)

b)

Major Initiatives undertaken for improvement of Infrastructure
Headquarters / CCGRTs/ Regional Office

ICSI CCGRT-Manesar (formerly known as CERT-Manesar): The Institute had purchased a plot admeasuring
1567.5 Sq. mtr. at Sector -2, IMTManesar from Haryana State Industrial & Infrastructure Development Corporation
(HSIIDC). On-site, the construction of the CCGRT Manesar premises started in May 2023 on that plot. The
construction work has been completed including civil, electrical, plumbing, firefighting, HVAC Lifts, loose furniture
etc. The process for obtaining statutory approval for occupancy of the premises from local planning is in progress.
The premises (single block) consists of basement, ground & 04 floors to accommodate both academic & residential
facilities. The building is installed with energy efficient system such as HVAC system with VRV technology, solar
water heaters for hostel rooms (in place of conventional geysers, and SRI roof tiles/dry cladding to reduce heat
absorption from roof/wall.

NIRO: The Council approved the fixing of priority for acquisition of new premises for NIRO and Infrastructure
Committee for the project has been constituted.

Chapters
Kochi Chapter- The New Building premises of Kochi Chapter was inaugurated at the hands of Chief Guest Shri

Suresh Gopi, Hon’ble Minister of State for Tourism and Petroleum & Natural Gas and CS Nagendra D. Rao, Former
President, ICSI, Guest of Honour on 17 August, 2024.
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Hyderabad Chapter — NBCC has been assigned for construction of new premises by demolishing the existing own
premises. Bhoomi Pujan / Foundation Stone Laying Ceremony for commencement of the construction work of
Hyderabad Chapter’s new building have been done on 20 April, 2025. Subsequently, construction work has been
started by NBCC through their Contractor and the same is in progress. As of now, the RCC framed structure the
building upto 2" floor roof slab has been completed.

Raipur Chapter- Possession of a plot of 3,229 Sq.ft. was taken from Raipur Development Authority (RDA) for
construction of new premises for the Chapter and an Infrastructure Committee in this regard has also been constituted.
NBCC has been assigned for construction of the project. The Council has approved the proposal for construction of
new building with Stilt plus two floors for Raipur Chapter.

Kanpur Chapter- Execution of Sale Deeds as well as Possession of two plots (total area 452 Sqm.), allotted by
Kanpur Development Authority (KDA) purchased through e-Auction, have been completed and an Infrastructure
Committee in this regard has also been constituted. NBCC has been assigned for construction of the project and
Concept floor plans (Stilt+2 floors) along with estimated project cost has been submitted by the NBCC.

Lucknow Chapter — A plot of land measuring 911.76 Sgm. has been allotted by Lucknow Development Authority
(LDA) through e-Auction. The requisite amount towards cost of land including freehold charges has been deposited
to LDA. The Infrastructure Committee in this regard has also been constituted. After, joint measurement of allotted
land done by the officials of LDA and the Institute, the plot area has been reduced and the revised drawing/layout/map
has been obtained from LDA.

Noida Chapter — Back Portion of Ground Floor of C-37 Noida Building was handed to Noida Chapter earlier. For
renovation of Chapter’s Premises, Architect was appointed, and Sitting plan prepared by the Architect was finalized
and renovation work has also been awarded to the Contractor through due process. The renovation & furnishing work
of designated area in the building for Chapter office is nearing completion.

Rajkot Chapter — The Infrastructure Committee for furnishing of premises of Rajkot Chapter has been constituted.
Architect for the project has also been appointed and selection process of Contractor shall be initiated after submission
of tender documents & cost estimate by the Architect of the project.

(iii)  Priority Fixing for Acquisition of Land/ Built-up floor/ Construction of building for the following Chapters, viz-Hooghly,

(iv)
(@)

(b)

(©
(d)
Q)
(i)

Agra, Ghaziabad, Gurugram. Jammu, Jodhpur, Srinagar, Amravati, Kozhikode, Madurai, Thrissur, Thiruvananthapuram,
Visakhapatnam, Ahmedabad. Chhatrapati Sambhaji Nagar, Indore, Nagpur, Nashik, Pune, Surat, Chandigarh, Bareilly,
Ludhiana, Prayagraj and Shimla.

Disposal of old Premises of Regional Offices / Chapters as per approval of the Council

EIRO- The Council approved the fixing of priority for disposal of the existing premises for EIRO and the
Infrastructure Committee has been constituted for disposal of the existing premises for EIRO. Expression of Interests
(EOISs) have been invited from the interested parties.

Bhopal — The Council approved the fixing of priority for disposal of the old premises-of Bhopal Chapter. The
Infrastructure Committee has been constituted for disposal of old premises of Bhopal Chapter. Process of disposal of
old premises of Bhopal Chapter is in progress.
Indore — The Council approved the fixing of priority for disposal of the existing premises for Indore Chapter and the
Infrastructure Committee has been constituted for disposal of existing premises of Indore Chapter.
Pune Chapter — Disposal of old premises of Pune Chapter’s premises completed on 14 January, 2025.
SPECIFIC INITIATIVES

Quick Response & Resolution Team (QRRT):

Quick Response & Resolution Team (QRRT) is working as a single point of contact for Members and Students to provide
hassle-free solutions to their queries and grievances in a time-bound schedule. QRRT published the ICSI Service Charter in
the 7" Leadership Summit in the month of February 2025 having details of the Turnaround Time (TAT) for the various services
provided by ICSI.
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QRRT has a sophisticated Management Information System (MIS) that includes information such as the unique ticket number,
ticket date, student name and registration number, concern area, resolution provided, and resolution date. Each email received
on working day till 5.00 pm is acknowledged and assigned a unique Ticket Number (if required) on the same day. More than
90% of the tickets are resolved withing 05 working days. The Helpdesk of QRRT handled more than 52,000 calls and 40,000
e-mails of Students and Members, indicating strong engagement with the stakeholders.

(i) Human Resource — Strengthening Team ICSI

A Employee Development

In order to enhance the capabilities & effectiveness of the employees of the Institute to meet and exceed the expectation of
stakeholders and to provide efficient services, efforts have been made for continuous training and updation of knowledge &
skills of the employees. Details of major training programmes / workshops /seminars/ conferences are mentioned as under:

S.No | Date Name of the Programme
28-29 October, 2024 Two Days Workshop on Noting & Drafting by ISTM.

13 -15 November, 2024 | 3 Days Intensive Training Programme on Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG)
3 07 December, 2024 to Bootcamp on Environmental Social & Governance (ESG) by NSE

05 January, 2025 Academy (on weekly basis).
10 December, 2024 Training on Prevention of Sexual Harassment (PoSH)
5 27 -28 May, 2025 Two Days Non- Residential workshop on “Meditation & Breath” by The

Art of Living Foundation

B. Academic Series

With a view to encourage continuous learning and knowledge sharing, the ICSI launched the Academic Series’ on 19 April,
2024, wherein weekly sessions are conducted on diverse and relevant topics to enrich the knowledge of employees. By
leveraging the expertise within the organisation, the ‘Academic Series’ serves as a catalyst for professional growth, intellectual
engagement, and cross-functional awareness.

C. Spandan - Sports, Arts & Cultural Fest

The ICSI organized a first-of-its-kind ‘Sports, Arts & Cultural Fest - SPANDAN’, exclusively for ICSI employees from 18-
25 October, 2024, wherein various sports and cultural activities were conducted, and the Grand Finale was organized at Noida
office. The Fest witnessed wholehearted participation from employees, marked by enthusiastic involvement and an
overwhelming response across all activities.

D. Other Programmes / Webinars

The ICSI conducted a wide array of programmes, including health talks, wellness sessions, health camps and informative
webinars, aimed at fostering holistic well-being, and ensuring the overall professional and personal development of its
employees.

E. Recruitment

In order to further strengthen the ICSI team, the following recruitments were made from 01 April, 2024 — 31 May, 2025:

S. No. Post No. of officials recruited
1 Joint Director (Infrastructure) 01
2 Executive (Academics) 01
3 Senior Executive Assistant 01
4 Executive Assistant 10
F. Employee Strength

As on 31 May, 2025, the manpower strength of the Institute stood at 373 including 105 female employees which comprised
28.15% of the total manpower strength.



[ATT [ —ETsE 4] HTLT &0 TSTIA - AFTIT0T 147

G. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace (POSH)

Report of Cases under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 for
the Financial Year 2024-2025

EIRiCt)Sand WIRi?5 and SIRO and its
NIRO and Chapters,
Description Headquarters its Chapters, Chapters, ICSI-
Chapters ICSI- ICSI- CCGRT
P CCGRT, CCGRT, | |\ qero
Kolkata Mumbai Y
Number of complalnts of sexual 01 Nil Nil Nil Nil
harassment received
lc:lfumber of complaints disposed 01 NA NA NA NA
Number of cases pending for NA NA NA NA NA
more than ninety days
Number of workshops or against 01 01 01 01 01
sexual harassment carried out
Nature of action taken by the NA NA NA NA NA
employer
(iii) Information Technology

The Institute has continued its efforts to adopt Information Technology across all areas of its operations, in alignment with the
evolving needs of its stakeholders. In 2024-2025, the Institute made significant strides to enhance its ICT infrastructure,
strengthen cybersecurity, expand digital service offerings, and enable better decision-making through real-time analytics.

The key initiatives included upgrading existing platforms to current market 1ISO/ISMS standards, transitioning key services to
the cloud, conducting and maintaining IT system security audits and compliance, ensuring regular data backup, and addressing
the security challenges of a digital-first environment. The entire IT ecosystem, including the Institute’s website, software
applications, email services, and collaboration platforms (like Zoom and Cisco Webex) have been aligned to provide better
agility, scalability, and accessibility.

Recognizing the critical nature of cyber security, the Institute undertook the following major initiatives:

o Comprehensive Security Audit conducted by a CERT-In (Indian Computer Emergency Response Team) empaneled
IT Security Auditor, identifying vulnerabilities and prescribing corrective actions.

) Formation of an In-House IT Security Cell comprising of experienced IT security professionals to ensure ongoing
system security and respond to daily cyber threats.

) Cloud Hosting of Major Applications including the STIMULATE Portal, to enhance performance and security,
alongside the upgradation of on-premises firewalls, routers, switches, and other legacy IT infrastructure.

Significant progress was made on digitizing ICSI processes, introducing new online systems, and strengthening internal MIS
for operational transparency, as mentioned hereunder:

(@) Launch of “CS Connect” Mobile App on Android and iOS platforms.
(b) Development / Upgradation and implementation of:
o Event Management Portal
Recruitment Portal
Career Awareness Programs (CAP) Dashboard Portal
Monthly Activities Reporting System (MARS) Portal for ROs and Chapters
Invoice Tracking Management System (ITMS) Portal
PMLA Reporting Entity Registration Portal
MSME Startup & Catalyst Portal

O O O O O O
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o MIS Portal pertaining to the Directorate of Internal Audit, Purchase & Store and Corporate Law

o Upgradation of Institute’s Document Management System (COSMIC) SharePoint platform from Microsoft
SharePoint 2013 to SharePoint 2019

o PCS portal.

(c) Implementation of online facilities for:
o “CS Mitr” incentive scheme
Mandatory KYM Form submission during Membership Renewal and Restoration
Advance fee payments (3-year/5-year membership) during renewal of membership
Student training switchover process
Enrolment and optional subject changes under new syllabus (2022)
Updates in e-cart System for ICSI publication
Integration of Verification of Marks process with exam RTI data
Revised Form-D for Certificate of Practice (COP) holders.
Changes related to Amnesty Scheme for ECSIN and UDIN
Refund process on STIMULATE portal
15 days CLDP in Classroom Mode on Weekends (Non-Residential) for Working Professionals.
15 Days CLDP in Online Mode in lieu of Classroom Mode (through LMS — anytime / anywhere basis).
Implementation of “TCC — Part ‘A’ for the students eligible to apply for 15 days CLDP in Classroom
mode" under the Training Module of the STIMULATE portal.
Implementation of "TCC - Part 'B' for issuance of Associate Membership on the Last Day of CLDP™ under
the Training and Membership Modules of the STIMULATE portal.

O 0O OO OOOO0OOoOOoOOoOOo

o

(d) Creation of Child portals for:

ICSI International ADR Centre

Institute of Governance Professionals of India (IGPI)
ICSI NCLT Practitioners Association

Gandhinagar (GIFT City) Chapter

O O O O

(e) Digital Publishing & Communication:

o Publication of the Chartered Secretary Journal on Magzter platform.

o Implementation of WhatsApp Messaging Service to communicate with stakeholders
(iv) Examinations
(@) Conduct of Examinations

During the period under Report, Company Secretaries Examinations for Executive Programme and Professional Programme
as per syllabus prescribed in the Company Secretaries Regulations, 1982 were held at 235 and 229 Examination Centres all
over India and one overseas Examination Centre at Dubai in June and December, 2024 sessions of Examinations respectively.
A total number of 68,134 and 67,807 candidates sought enrolment for appearing in June and December, 2024 sessions of
Examinations respectively. The number of candidates who successfully completed the various stages of Examinations during
the year 2024-25 is mentioned hereunder:

L Examination Session
Stage of Examination
June, 2024 December, 2024
Executive Programme 4,370 4,462
Professional Programme 1,988 2,681

List of cities for with examination centres is given in Annexure-C.

The statistics relating to Examination Results are mentioned hereunder:
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UNE, 2024 SESSION

STAGE OF EXAMINATION

NUMBER OF CANDIDATES

ENROLLED | APPEARED |  PASSED
EXECUTIVE PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2017) @
MODULE - | 19,562 14,614 3,324
MODULE - I 17,165 12,908 3,931
EXECUTIVE PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2022) *
GROUP - 1 15,382 12,460 1,015
GROUP -2 11,550 8,842 1,847
PROFESSIONAL PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2017) $
MODULE - | 6,558 5,037 1571
MODULE - I 6,490 5,049 1,531
MODULE - III 6,569 5,299 1,715
PROFESSIONAL PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2022) *
GROUP - | 4,377 3,517 955
GROUP - I 4,464 3,440 921

(Syllabus-2017) out of whom 566 Candidates passed Both Modules.

9,539 Candidates enrolled, 7,866 Candidates appeared for Both Modules of Executive Programme

* 3,896 Candidates enrolled, 3,400 Candidates appeared for Both Groups of Executive Programme
(Syllabus-2022) out of whom 211 Candidates passed Both Groups.

$ 1,643 Candidates enrolled, 1,424 Candidates appeared for All Modules of Professional Programme
(Syllabus-2017) out of whom 49 Candidates passed All Modules.

# 2,615 Candidates enrolled, 2,345 Candidates appeared for Both Groups of Professional Programme
(Syllabus-2022) out of whom 288 Candidates passed Both Groups.

DECEMBER, 2024 SESSION

NUMBER OF CANDIDATES
STAGE OF EXAMINATION
ENROLLED | APPEARED |  PASSED
EXECUTIVE PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2017) @
MODULE - | 13,269 9,728 2,789
MODULE - 11 11,928 8,790 2,420
EXECUTIVE PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2022) *
GROUP -1 20,208 15,942 2,540
GROUP -2 17,191 13,237 2,614
PROFESSIONAL PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2017)
MODULE - | 3,861 2,737 985
MODULE -1l 4,577 3,488 1,191
MODULE - 111 3,971 3,088 1,118
PROFESSIONAL PROGRAMME (SYLLABUS-2022) #
GROUP -1 7,030 5,724 1,741
GROUP - 11 6,952 5,273 1,658
@ 6,916 Candidates enrolled, 5,539 Candidates appeared for Both Modules of Executive Programme

(Syllabus-2017) out of whom 323 Candidates passed Both Modules.
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* 5,783 Candidates enrolled, 4,972 Candidates appeared for Both Groups of Executive Programme
(Syllabus-2022) out of whom 397 Candidates passed Both Groups.

$ 853 Candidates enrolled, 685 Candidates appeared for All Modules of Professional Programme
(Syllabus-2017) out of whom 24 Candidates passed All Modules.

# 3,989 Candidates enrolled, 3,520 Candidates appeared for Both Groups of Professional Programme
(Syllabus-2022) out of whom 425 Candidates passed Both Groups.

(b) Conduct of Company Secretary Executive Entrance Test (CSEET)

During the year 2024-25, CSEET was held in the months of May, 2024, July, 2024, November, 2024 and January, 2025. The
number of candidates who successfully completed CSEET is mentioned hereunder:

NUMBER OF CANDIDATES
DATE(S) OF EXAM
ENROLLED APPEARED PASSED
04 & 06 May, 2024 9,973 8,498 5,348
06, 07 & 08 July, 2024 12,577 11,257 7,443
09 & 11 November, 2024 15,632 13,715 10,456
11 & 13 January, 2025 6,539 5,847 4,801

(c) All India Prize Awards

In order to inspire and recognise the brilliant performance of students in CS Examinations, the ICSI has instituted a number of
Awards. The following Students won the President’s All-India Awards during the period under Report:

Medal/ Examination December, 2023 Centre
President’s Gold Medal for Professional Programme Ms. Manisha Murarimohan Ghosh Mumbai
President’s Silver Medal for Executive Programme Ms. Vanisha Singh Mumbai

The particulars of other prize winners along with existing all-India Prize Schemes, Regional and Chapter Prize Schemes were
hosted on the Institute’s website: www.icsi.edu.

(d) Merit Certificates/ Merit Scholarships/ Financial Assistance

Merit Certificates were awarded to top-ranked successful students each in Executive Programme and Professional Programme
Examinations held in June, 2024 as per the guidelines of the Institute.

Pursuant to Merit Scholarship Scheme, Scholarships were awarded to the toppers qualifying all papers of Executive Programme
in the first attempt in June, 2024 session of Examinations for pursuing further studies for the Professional Programme of
Company Secretaryship Course. Likewise, under the Merit-cum-Means Assistance Scheme, financial assistance is granted to
eligible candidates, considering their economic background and meritorious performance in June, 2024 and December, 2024
session of Examinations in CS Examinations. However, no Candidate qualified for the Scheme in CS Examinations of June,
2024 and December, 2024 sessions.

(v) Training

During the period under Report, numerous initiatives and activities were undertaken by the Institute to facilitate the students
pertaining to Short Term and Long-Term trainings, as mentioned hereunder:

(@) Samadhan Diwas:

Samadhan Diwas was launched by the Institute with the objective of providing “on-the-spot” resolution to issues/grievances
of trainees and trainers. During the Samadhan Diwas, the officials of the Institute interact with the trainees and trainers through
online mode and provide them the resolution to their queries/grievances in one of the following areas:

a) Issues relating to Switchover from Old training to New Training Structure
b) Issues related to short term trainings
c) Sponsorship letters for Practical Training


http://www.icsi.edu/
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d) Exemption related matters in Practical Training
e) Resolving the issues of Training Completion Certificate

The Institute has successfully organized fourteen Samadhan Diwas during the period under Report:
(b) Implementation of compulsory switchover

The Compulsory Switchover of trainings from the Earlier/ Modified Training Structures to the New Training Structure (2020)
has become effective from 01 April, 2024 vide Circular dated 01 April, 2024. The students belonging to the Earlier/Modified
Training Structure are required to take compulsory switchover to take benefit of the training exemptions as provided under it.

(c) Introduction of Corporate Leadership Development Programme (CLDP) through webinar mode

As the content of 15 days CLDP (Online Mode- through LMS Portal) is under revision, it was decided to introduce 15 days
Online CLDP through Webinar Mode w.e.f. 01 April, 2024.

(d) Introduction of Three Days Orientation Programme (TDOP)

The Institute has launched Three Days Orientation Programme for the students registering in CS Executive Programme on or
after 01 February, 2025 with a view to facilitate connectivity between the CS students and the Institute.

(e) Launch of Corporate Leadership Development Program (CLDP) through Alternative Method for Working
Professionals

The Institute in order to facilitate the students who are Working Professionals has launched an additional option to complete
30 days CLDP through Alternative method via online mode. Similarly, the students who have completed 15 days CLDP
(webinar mode) have an additional option of undergoing 15 days CLDP online through LMS in lieu of Classroom mode CLDP
(residential/non-residential). The said option was launched in March, 2025.

(f) Introduction of Allotment of Associate Membership upon completion of 30 days Corporate Leadership Development
Programme (CLDP)

The Institute has launched the allotment of Associate Membership Number to CS students on the last day of 15 days Classroom
(residential/non-residential) mode CLDP. The eligible students will be given their membership Number during the valedictory
of 15 days Classroom (residential/non-residential) mode CLDP.

(9) Introduction of e-TDOP through Learning Management System (LMS)

The Institute has introduced an option of completing TDOP through online mode for students having minimum of 3 years of
work experience or a qualified CA/CMA/Advocate or Government employees (including armed forces), or differently-abled
(physically challenged), to be determined on case-to-case basis. The e-TDOP option is also available to all those students who
had enrolled for ODOP but could not complete ODOP till 07 April, 2025.

(h) Further Extension of conducting 15 days CLDP on non- residential basis for a period up to 30 September, 2025
The Institute in order to ease the students and the respective ICSI offices, has accorded a further extension of conducting the
15 days classroom mode Corporate Leadership Development Programme (CLDP) on non- residential basis by Regional
Offices, Diamond and Platinum grade Chapters for a period up to 30 September, 2025

(i) Empanelment of Companies/Company Secretaries in Practice for imparting practical training to CS students

The Institute strives to expand its training base by empaneling more companies/other entities as well as Practicing Company

Secretaries (PCS) for providing practical training to students. The number of Companies/other entities and the number of PCS
empaneled with the Institute for imparting Practical training during the period under Report is 553 and 288 respectively.
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()] Providing Relay Classes for 15 days Classroom mode EDP

In order to facilitate the students eligible for undergoing 15 days classroom mode EDP and belonging to Gold and Silver grade
Chapters, wherein no batches are organised owing to less number of students for undergoing 15 days classroom EDP, a
provision of Relay classes was launched. Under the Relay classes, the registered students of Gold/Silver grade Chapters are
provided with live broadcast /live relay of EDP batch which is conducted by the Regions / Diamond Chapters. The students
are required to watch the live streaming from the premises of the participating Chapter.

(vi) Placement

The Placement Cell of ICSI stands committed to help all the associated Companies/ Firms to conduct their Recruitment Drives
for their requirement of Company Secretary/ CS Trainee in a time bound, hassle-free and mutually beneficial manner and to
help the Members and Students in getting the right placement offer. It is a constant endeavour to serve the stakeholders to the
best of its capacity and create a conducive atmosphere for the establishment of a synergistic conjunction of recruiters with the
Members and Students.

(@ Registrations and Postings at Placement Portal

Registration and Postings at Placement Portal from April, 2024 — May, 2025

Registered Users Total No. of Vacancies

Members Students Corporates Jobs Trainings
1,887 5,394 1,533 5,348 5,320

Numerous activities were undertaken to ensure increase in Placement opportunities for the Members and Students of the
Institute. Major initiatives include the following:

(b) ICSI HR Conclaves were organized by ICSI at Chennai, Mumbai and Bengaluru to make the HR community aware about
CS Profession and the role of Company Secretaries.

(c) Campus Placement Drives provides a unique opportunity to Corporates to peruse the profiles of qualified young and
experienced Company Secretaries and Students, assess their capabilities and select suitable candidates as per their requirement.
Mega Placement Drives were conducted in the month of September, 2024 and November-December, 2024 across 4 Regions
and ICSI CCGRTs. A special session on ‘Interview Skills’ was conducted before the Drive. The Members appeared for
interviews of multiple organisations in the assigned timeslots.

(d) CS Trainee Drives were conducted on Pan India basis throughout the year in physical/online mode at Regional Offices,
ICSI CCGRTSs and Chapters of ICSI, wherein various organisations, Practicing Company Secretaries and other Firms across
the country registered for the same.

(K) CCGRTs

ICSI-CCGRT,

ICSI-CCGRT,
Hyderabad

ICSI-CCGRT,

Mumbai Kolkata

The ICSI-CCGRTs are set up with the objective of fostering quality research, thereby nurturing the growth and development
of Students and Members of the Institute.

(i) ICSI-CCGRT, Mumbai
(@) The details of various Programmes / seminars organised during the period under Report are mentioned
hereunder:
S. Programme Date
No g
1 Seminar on Critical Aspect of Board BRSR & ESG 20 April, 2024

Two Days Residential/Non-Residential Workshop on IBC in collaboration
with ICSI-1IP

3 25" Foundation Day at BSE 16 May, 2024

04 - 05 May, 2024
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4 Seminar to Celebrate PCS Day 15 June, 2024
5 Three-Days Residential/Non-Residential Workshop on Arbitration with 21 - 23 June. 2024
Recent Case Studies in collaboration with ICSI International ADR Centre ’

6 Seminar on !'Dreventlon of Money Laundering Act, 2002 & Compliance 29 June, 2024
Management

7 Seml_nar on Oyerwew of Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023 & 06 July, 2024
Media Compliance Management
Two Day Research Workshop (02nd Edition) organised by ICSI-CCGRT, i

8 Mumbai Jointly with Indore Chapter 09-10 August, 2024
Seminar on Al & Corporate Governance: Challenges & Opportunities and

9 Overview of Bharatiya Nyaya Sanhita, 2023 jointly with Navi Mumbai 31 August, 2024
Chapter

10 Seminar on Related Party Transaction &Recent Adjudication Orders under 05 October, 2024
the Companies Act.

11 Seminar on Recent Amendments in SEBI LODR 30 November, 2024

12 Two-Qays ReS|dentlaI/Non.—ReS|dent|aI Workshop on Companies Act - 07 -08 December 2024
Compliance to Value Creation

13 Two-Days F_%emdentlaI/Non—ReS|dent|aI Workshop on Mergers and 14-15 December, 2024
Amalgamations

14 Seminar on FEMA 05 January, 2025

15 Seminar on Al in Corporate Governance 18 January, 2025

16 Semlnar. on Shareholders Agreement, Share Purchase Agreement & PIT 15 February, 2025
Regulations

17 Research Oriented Seminar on Bank Due Diligence under RBI Guideline 01 March, 2025

18 Workshop on the PoSH Act, 2013 08 March, 2025

19 NBFCs Governance, Risk & Compliance Requirements and Role of CS 26 April, 2025

20 Workshop on Compliances under SEBI LODR 24 -25 May, 2025

(b) Celebration of 25" Foundation Day of CCGRT, Mumbai at BSE

The Institute marked the 25" Foundation Day of its Centre for Corporate Governance, Research and Training (CCGRT),
Mumbai with a programme at BSE Ltd on 16 May, 2024 on the theme “ESG Regulatory Landscape, Ethical Financing and
Decoding Ease of Doing Business”. The programme was graced by the presence of esteemed Chief Guest, Shri. V.S.

Sundaresan, Executive Director, SEBI, and Guest of Honour, Shri. Sundararaman Ramamurthy, MD & CEO, BSE Ltd.

(ii) 1CSI-CCGRT, Hyderabad

The ICSI-CCGRT, Hyderabad organized various programmes for students, Members and other professionals through Online
and Classroom mode, and in collaboration with prestigious Institutions during the period under Report, as mentioned

hereunder:
S.No Programme Date

1 Basic Training Programme on Commercial Arbitration [Online] 03-05 May, 2024

2 Research Process Awareness Program 18 May, 2024

3 NCLT Conclave’24 on 21st September 2024 Jointly organised by ICSI 21 September, 2024
Hyderabad Chapter & CCGRT Hyderabad at CCGRT, Hyderabad

4 Three Days Residential Advanced Simulation Training Program on Commercial 10-12 January, 2025
Arbitration

> Basic Training Programme on Commercial Arbitration [Online] 17-19 January, 2025
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NCLT Practice & Corporate Restructuring, Merger & Amalgamation Strategies

21-22 March, 2025

Two Days Research Conclave on ESG & BRSR

18-19 April, 2025

Two Days Research Conclave on SEBI Regulations 16-17 ay, 2025
(iif) ICSI-CCGRT, Kolkata
During the period under Report, CCGRT Kolkata organized the following events:
S. No. Programme Date

1 MoU signing with Amity University Kolkata 06 May, 2024
Full Day Conference on “Regulator, Judiciary and

2 Stakeholders — Expectations and Performance” 11 May, 2024
Full Day Conference on “Inquiry, Inspection and

3 Report” and NBFC Compliance” 03 August, 2024

4 Tralplng Programme for Empanelment of Peer 03 August, 2024
Reviewers

5 ICSI NCLT Conclave 31 August, 2024

Crash Course on MSME

31 August, 2024 - 01 September, 2024

Half Day Symposium on Impact of Green Economy and
7 Environmental Sustainability on Climate Change and its
Resilience (jointly with Amity University Kolkata)

13 September 2024

Full Day Conference on “CS — A Strategic guide for

8 Compliance Framework” 21 September, 2024
Half Day Workshop on “Challenges in Compliance /

9 Filling in MCA V3” 26 October, 2024

10 1%t Foundation Day Celebration of CCGRT Kolkata 07 December, 2024
2 Days Conference on “Role of CS in Drafting and

11 Analysis of Financial Statements & Opportunities for 04 - 05 January, 2025
CS in Direct Taxes”
2 Days Residential Conference on “Compliance )

12 Management, Non-Compliance and Remedies” 22 - 23 February, 2025

13 Research Conclave on Decoding Financial Statement 22 March, 2025

14 Research Conclave on Corporate Restructuring 26 April, 2025

(L) COMPANIES PROMOTED BY ICSI

Insolvency Professionals

ICSI Institute of

ICSI Registered Valuers
Organisation

ICSI International ADR
Centre

ICSI Institute of Social
Auditors

Institute of Governance
Professionals of India

Association

ICSI NCLT Practitioners

(i) ICSI Institute of Insolvency Professionals (ICSI-11P)

The ICSI Institute of Insolvency Professionals (ICSI 11P) is a frontline regulator registered with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Board of India (IBBI) under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. ICSI I1P is registered under section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013. ICSI IIP has been vested with the power and authority inter-alia to enroll, educate, train and monitor the performance
of its registered Members as an Insolvency Professional. Its mandate includes laying down standards of professional conduct

and taking appropriate steps to ensure adherence of such standards.
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(@ Enrollment of Insolvency Professionals

One of the primary functions of ICSI IIP is enrollment of Insolvency Professionals. ICSI IIP has a total of 1218 active
professional Members.

(b) Monitoring of Performance of Members

The ICSI 1IP carries out monitoring of Insolvency Professionals in two ways, i.e., a) Desktop Monitoring and b) Inspection
(includes routine inspection and event-based inspection).

(c) Events/ Programmes

° Pre-Registration Educational Courses: Pursuant to Regulation 5(b) of the IBBI (Insolvency Professionals)
Regulations, 2016, individuals are eligible to register themselves as Insolvency Professionals (IP) only after
undergoing the mandatory 50 hours Pre-Registration Educational Course from an Insolvency Professional Agency
after his/her enrolment as a Professional Member.

° LIT UP- 3 days Training Programme for preparation of Limited Insolvency Examination:; Pursuant to Regulation 5 of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (Insolvency Professionals) Regulations, 2016, an individual is eligible
for registration as an Insolvency Professional only after passing Limited Insolvency Examination conducted by IBBI.
ICSI 1IP organized Two batches of “LIT Ups” -3 days training programme for preparation of Limited Insolvency
Examination.

(d) National Convention

ICSI 1IP organised the 02" National Convention of Insolvency Professionals & Registered Valuers on 11 January, 2025 at The
Park, Sansad Marg, New Delhi. The convention witnessed the presence of over 150 delegates in person and 400 delegates
connected virtually from different parts of the country. Hon’ble Justice Shri M.M. Kumar, Founder President of National
Company Law Tribunal & Former Chief Justice of Jammu & Kashmir High Court Smt. Anita Shah, Hon’ble Joint Secretary,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Sh. Mahendra Khandelwal, Hon’ble Member (Judicial), National Company Law Tribunal were
the Special Guests of the event.

(e) Joint Programmes

S.No. | Topic Date
1. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111Pl and IPA ICAI 16 May, 2024
2. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111Pl and IPA ICAI 27 May, 2024
3. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111Pl and IPA ICAI 19 June, 2024
4, Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111Pl and IPA ICAI 09 July, 2024
5. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111PI and IPA ICAI 23 July, 2024
6. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111P1 and IPA ICAI 28 August, 2024
7. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111P1 and IPA ICAI 20 August, 2024
8. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111P1 and IPA ICAI 03 September, 2024
9. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111P1 and IPA ICAI 18 September, 2024
10. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111PI and IPA ICAI 24 September, 2024
11. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111Pl and IPA ICAI 08 October, 2024

ICSI NCLT Conclave'24 on "Corporate Dispute Resolution: Evolving a

12. Way Forward" jointly with Kochi Chapter and Kerala Insolvency 02 November, 2024

Professionals Forum
Physical Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 11IP1 and IPA ICAI at ICAI

13. d 09 November, 2024
Coimbatore Chapter.
ICSI NCLT Conclave'24 on "Corporate Dispute Resolution: Evolving a

14. Way Forward" jointly with Bengaluru Chapter 16 November, 2024

15. Online Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111PI and IPA ICAI 11 January, 2025

16. Physical Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, 111PI and IPA ICAI at Indore, 17 January, 2025
Madhya Pradesh.

17 Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, I1IPl and IPA ICAI at ICSI 21 February, 2025
Bhubaneswar Chapter.

18, Physical Workshop for IPs jointly with IBBI, I11Pl and IPA ICAI at ICAI 28 March, 2025

Jaipur Chapter.
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()] Other Programmes

ICSI-1IP organised 41 workshops, 38 webinars and 07 Roundtables during the period under Report. In addition, ICSI-1IP
organised NLT-Conclave / IP Conclave, batches on Pre-Registration Education Course (Online), LIT UPs, Residential
Refresher Course and Moot Court competitions.

(9) Knowledge Initiatives

. E-Journal: ICSI 1P brings out bi-monthly e-journal which inter alia captures initiatives undertaken by ICSI IIP,
latest amendments, success stories of Insolvency Professionals, judicial pronouncements, articles written by different
stakeholders, write up on code and conduct for IPs, FAQs, policy updates, global arena, games corner, case studies
etc.

. Daily Learning Curves: ICSI IIP provides ‘IBC Learning Curve’ on a daily basis to all the Insolvency Professionals,
Members of NCLT benches, IBBI, other professionals etc. IBC Learning Curves are based on the latest judicial
pronouncements under IBC.

. Learning Management System (LMS) Portal: ICSI IIP has created a user-friendly online platform to enable
professionals from all spheres of their careers to learn and study more about Insolvency Law. This Portal delivers
assistance in learning by way of e-books, online lectures delivered by experts covering the Limited Insolvency Exam
Syllabus and e-mock exam for aspirants preparing for Limited Insolvency Examination as per the latest format and
Syllabus notified by IBBI. This feature enables the users to pass the Limited Insolvency Examinations effectively.

(if) 1CSI Registered Valuers Organisation (ICSI RVO)

ICSI Registered Valuers Organisation (ICSI RVO) is a section 8 company of the Institute. ICSI RVO intends to enrol, educate,
train and promote the profession of Registered Valuers as per the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

(@) Online 50 Hours of Educational Courses

ICSI RVO conducted 50 Hours of Educational Courses in 09 Batches during the period under Report:

Batch No. Date
31 22 - 28 April, 2024
32 05 - 11 June, 2024
33 06 - 12 August, 2024
34 24- 30 September, 2024
35 26 November, 2024 - 02 December, 2024
36 07 - 13 January, 2025
37 18 - 24 February, 2025
38 21 - 27 March, 2025
39 07 - 14 May, 2025

(b) Continuous Professional Educational Programme (CPE) 2024-25

ICSI RVO conducted 10 CPEs during the period under Report:

S. No. Topic Date
1. Binomial Option Pricing Model 23 April, 2024
2. Valuation of Startups/ MSME Sector 21 May, 2024
3. “Cost Free Authentic Source for Market Comparable Method” 23 July, 2024
4, “Qualitative Aspects in Valuation” 23 August, 2024
5. "Role of Valuer in purchase Price Allocation (PPA)" 19 September, 2024
6. "Fundamental Principles of value Creation" 21 October, 2024
7. "Unlocking New Horizons: International valuation Standards 2025" | 28 January, 2025
8. "IVS 2025 - Key Changes in Definitions" 03 March, 2025
9. "IVS 2025 - Artificial Intelligence (Al) in Corporate Valuation" 21 March, 2025
10. "IVS 2025 - GS-1VS 100 Valuation Framework" 08 April, 2025

(c) Certificate of Practice (COP) Programme conducted for Registered Valuers

ICSI RVO conducted 04 CoP Programmes during the period under Report:
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S. No. Date Topics
: 14 May, 2924 Code of Conduct for Registered Valuers,,Professional Ethi
> 04 September, 2024 0 e.o on uc.t or Registere aluers,, rofessiona t.ICS _
Drafting Valuation Report, Soft Skills (How to communicate with
3 05 December, 2024 .
the clients and peers
4 07 May, 2025

(d) Joint Seminar:

ICSI RVO organised a joint Seminar on "Navigating Valuation Essentials and Processes"”, in association with Bengaluru
Chapter on 06 April, 2024, at Bengaluru Chapter.

(iii) ICSI International ADR Centre

With the intent to facilitate Arbitration and Mediation at National and International level, the ICSI established its first ICSI
International ADR Centre at Noida (U.P.). The objective of the ICSI International ADR Centre is to promote Alternate Dispute
Resolution (ADR) methods including Mediation and Arbitration to assist and educate all sections of Society, Individuals,
Corporates, Firms, Institutions and Establishments (Local or International).

(a) Webinar Series on Alternate Dispute Resolution

ICSI International ADR Centre conducted the following webinar series on Alternate Dispute Resolution:

S. .
Topic Date

No. P

1 Importance of ADR and Arbitration in Resolving Commercial Disputes | 21 May, 2024
An Insight into Mediation as a form of ADR 30 July, 2024

3. Recent_De_veIopmem m_the Acrbitration landscape in India with focus 30 August, 2024
on Institutional Arbitration

(b) Institutional Partner in the Seminar on Mediation conducted by PHDCCI

The ICSI International ADR Centre joined as an Institutional Partner in the Seminar on Mediation Act 2023: Recent
Developments, Open Issues & Way Forward, held on 10 May, 2024 at PHD House, New Delhi conducted by PHDCCL.

(c)The ICSI International ADR Centre (Commercial Arbitration) Rules, 2025

The ICSI International ADR Centre (Commercial Arbitration) Rules, 2025 came into effect from 30 January, 2025 and shall
apply to any Commercial Arbitration commenced on and after that date.

(iv) ICSI Institute of Social Auditors (ICSI ISA)

The ICSI Institute of Social Auditors (ICSI-ISA) is a Section 8 Company under the Companies Act, 2013 incorporated by ICSI
with the objective to register Social Auditors, lay down criteria/ norms for empanelment as well standards of professional
conduct for the registered Social Impact Assessors. The ICSI-ISA commenced the empanelment of Social Impact Assessors
(SIAs) who have obtained the requisite NISM Certification. The ICSI-ISA commenced the empanelment of Social Impact
Assessors from 12 May, 2023. Further, SEBI vide circular, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0060 dated 27 May, 2024 has
specified the ICSI Institute of Social Auditors (ICSI-ISA) as a Self-Regulatory Organization (SRO) for the Social Impact
Assessors and Social Impact Assessment Entities registered with ICSI-ISA. A total of 133 Social Impact Assessors and 05
Social Impact Assessment entities are empanelled with ICSI-ISA as on 31 May, 2025.

(v) Institute of Governance Professionals of India (IGPI)

The Section 8 Company intends to take forward its purpose to generate, spread and impart knowledge, directly or in association
with person(s) having similar objects or engaged in similar activities by way of Research, Publications, Training and Education.
The areas of focus of these activities would include Corporate Laws, Governance, Management, Business Sustainability and
CSR, Capital and Financial Markets, Economic Laws and Policies, Information and Control Systems and Allied Disciplines.
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IGPI has launched the ICSI Board Mentorship Programme with the aim of building stronger and sustainable boards, by
providing a platform to share experiential thought process and individual challenges faced in the line of decision making,
thereby developing financial acumen and making the participants future ready.

IGPI conducted the following Programmes during the period under Report.

Date Programme Place

12-14 September, 2024 1t ICSI Board Mentorship Programme Ooty, Tamil Nadu
Sri Vijaya Puram (Port Blair),

06-09 January, 2025 2" |1CSI Board Mentorship Programme Andaman & Nicobar Islands

28 March, 2025 Directors’ Training Programme SENCO Limited, Kolkat
(Online)

02-05 April, 2025 3 |CSI Board Mentorship Programme Srinagar, Jammu & Kashmir

29 April, 2025 Directors’ Training Programme for SME Listed | Mumbai, Maharashtra

Companies jointly with NSE

(vi) ICSI NCLT Practitioners Association

The ICSI NCLT Practitioners Association is a Section 8 Company, established under the Companies Act, 2013, specifically
for Practicing Company Secretaries who appear before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).

Formed as a non-profit, non-political, and non-governmental organization, the association aims to serve as a leading body
representing the interests of Practicing Company Secretaries. I1ts mission is to promote and uphold the highest standards of
professionalism within the community and safeguard the rights and privileges of its Members.

The association seeks to offer opportunities for legal and corporate education, organize seminars, foster networking and
camaraderie, and create avenues for making meaningful contributions to the corporate legal systems for practicing
professionals.

(M) AUDITED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

The Audited statements of the Consolidated Accounts of the Institute along with the Auditors’ Report for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2025 forms part of this Report. The Financial Statements have been prepared as per the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP); however, the disclosure with regard to the format for Non-Corporate Entities as notified by
the ICAl is in the process of consideration.

(N) FUTURE OUTLOOK
“The future belongs to those who understand their responsibilities in the present.”

At an individual level, | am a student, a member; at a micro level, | am an organization, an institution; at a macro level, we are
a nation aiming to lead, and as a whole we are the world — dealing with shifting power dynamics, influx of Artificial Intelligence,
issues of ESG, and striving for sustainability to create a better future in totality.

And indeed, irrespective of the level, each one of us desires for the future to be better — our tomorrows to be brighter than our
todays...

If the Institute tries its level best to take care of the individual growth and development needs, provide opportunities for
knowledge and skill sufficiency, it is the individual Company Secretaries who make up the brigade of the Governance
Professionals serving the agenda of the Institute to create, strengthen and solidify the governance frameworks of the corporates
of the nation.

As | said earlier, our future outlook, our thought of action, our strategy stems from the undertaking of our present responsibilities,
obligations and accountabilities. If the ongoing year saw us tread back into the grassroots and renew our vows for panchayat
governance, our future will find us harnessing a culture of good governance at every level of government.

Our aim, as we go forward, is not just to build our own capabilities, but those around us — taking up various leadership roles.
The Board mentorship Programmes conducted for men and women in Directorial designations, the trainings for ICLS officers
and other officials of PSUs, is our way of putting the ideologies of good governance in the very blood stream of this nation.

If the present sees us leading with the Guiding Principles of Stewardship, the future will find us sensitizing, guiding and
handholding the world on Climate Change — a burning issue for us and those following.

With each section 8 company, we want to take dedicated steps, initiatives and actions for the leagues of Insolvency
Professionals, Registered Valuers, Social Auditors, Arbitrators, Mediators and NCLT Practitioners. Each hat adorned by a
Governance Professional needs to be strengthened so as to brace the altering dynamics of the business, economic and global
ecosystem.
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At an Institutional level, the intent is to strive harder with each passing day to achieve the vision “to be a global leader in
promoting good corporate governance”. The international conferences, registering presence at global events, collaborating with
Overseas Centres are all an attempt to work together towards the shared goal of governance.

As the times ahead sway towards an Al revolution, there will be a need for our personal selves to transform into much informed
and better equipped professionals.

To quote the Manu Smriti,

TR BT dal & & faaRadq| St @ duf urere 9 aad: I
(One should plan for the future, act decisively in the present, and understand the faults and merits of the past—this is the path
to wisdom.)

(O) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
“Walk a step or walk a mile, if you do not have anyone by your side, the success is futile.”

However poetic this may sound, these words in whatever language they may be put, resonate my feelings and this section in all
its entirety. As a team ourselves, the Council of ICSI has always been a firm believer in the power of togetherness. And this
belief has been strengthened over time with the overwhelming love, support and affection received from all sections of
stakeholders. Be it a friendly advice from a predecessor, a gentle nag from a Regulator or a pat on the back from a senior in the
profession — each one came as a gesture of oneness, not just with the designation, but as an Institute, as a profession.

As we present the Annual Report of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, there is a sense of accomplishment as well
as gratitude. Gratitude of not just appreciating our initiatives but partnering in them wholeheartedly. We feel immensely honored
to have received the support of the Ministries, the Hon’ble Ministers and with them all the esteemed Parliamentarians. We are
extremely grateful towards the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, and the entire Team for lending a patient ear to the stakeholder
issues, and providing timely resolutions. We find our next step being taken towards thanking the Regulatory Authorities - SEBI,
IRDAI, IFSCA, NSE, BSE, NSDL, CDSL, NCLT, RBI, IBBI, CERC, etc. the Heads of these entities and each one of the
Officials therein for extending their time and guidance in our initiatives.

There is also a sense of gratitude of sharing the burden of planning, decision making and execution as a member of our Boards,
Committees and Sub-committees, Task Forces, Appellate Authority and with them the Governing Boards of our section 8
companies. A core part of our accomplishment of vision lies in the recognition of best practices in governance across the nation,
and for that we have the Jury and Expert Groups of the ICSI National Awards to thank for.

It has been an absolute delight to have the businesses, corporates, the Financial, Industrial and Investment Institutions, Chambers
of Commerce & Trade Associations, Academic Institutions and Universities, join us in our endeavours throughout the year.

As we treaded beyond boundaries, the support received from Foreign Embassies, High Commissions and Consulate Generals,
and along with them our own Overseas Centres and their Teams, truly swelled our hearts.

Just as the success of any leadership relies on the efforts of the Team, the ICSI is no different to this theory. We are humbled
beyond measure for the dedicated support, steadfast action and the feeling of oneness shared with the Team ICSI, our CCGRTs,
Regional Offices, Chapters and their Councils, Managing Committees & In-charges.

As a representative of our stakeholders across the nation, we thank all our members and students for their support, assistance,
and also those who paved the way before us and guided us on the way.

The journey ahead will also find us, working together and marching together on the path of achieving the ICSI vision and
becoming a global leader in promoting good corporate governance.

For and on behalf of the Council of
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
New Delhi
Date: 25 August, 2025
CS DHANANJAY SHUKLA, PRESIDENT, ICSI

[ADVT.-I11/4/Exty./365/2025-26]
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ANNEXURE-A
COMPOSITION OF STANDING, NON-STANDING COMMITTEES/ BOARDS OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
YEAR 2025
S.No. Name Position 6. Professional Development Committee
1. Executive Committee 1 CS Dhananjay Shukla Chairman
1. CS Dhananjay Shukla Chairman Member
2. CS Pawan G Chandak Member 2 Shri Sanjay Shorey (GO.Vt'
. . Member Nominee)
3 Shri !nder Deep Singh (Gowt. 3 CS B Narasimhan Member
Dhariwal Nomineg) 4 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member
4, CS B Narasimhan Member 5 CS Praveen Soni Member
5. CS Manish Gupta Member 6 CS R Venkata Ramana Member
6. CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member 7 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member
7. CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member 8 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member
2. Finance Committee 7. Training & Educational Facilities Committee
1. CS Dhananjay Shukla Chairman 1 CS Pawan G Chandak Chairman
2. CS Pawan G Chandak Member Member
3. CS A Mohankumar Member 2 Shri Balamurugan D (GQVt'
: Nominee)
4, CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member 3 CS Manish Gupta Member
5. CS Praveen Soni Member 4 CS A Mohankumar Member
6. CS R Venkata Ramana Member 5 CS Ashish Karodia Member
! CS Rajesh Tarpara Member 6 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member
3 Examination Committee 7 CS NPS Chawla Member
1 CS Dhananjay Shukla Chairman 8 CS Suresh Pandey Member
2 CS Pawan G Chandak Member 8. Practicing Company Secretaries Committee
8 CS B Narasimhan Member 1 CS Praveen Soni Chairman
4 CS Ashish Karodia Member 5 CS Manish Gupta Member
5 CS NPS Chawla Member 3 CS A Mohankumar Member
6 CS Rupanjana De Member 4 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member
7 CS Suresh Pandey Member 5 CS Rupanjana De Member
4. Financial Services Committee 6 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member
1 CS B Narasimhan Chairman 7 CS Suresh Pandey Member
2 CS Ashish Karodia Member 9. Information Technology Committee
3 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member 1 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Chairman
4 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member 5 CS Manish Gupta Member
5 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member 3 CS Praveen Soni Member
6 CS Rupanjana De Member 4 CS R Venkata Ramana Member
7 CS Suresh Pandey Member 5 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member
5. Corporate Laws & Governance Committee 6 CS Rupanjana De Member
1 CS Manish Gupta Chairman 7 CS Suresh Pandey Member
2 Dr. Ashok Kumar Mishra l\?ce;rg\tl)fr 10. Chapter Development & Coordination Committee
Nominee) 1 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Chairman
3 CS A Mohankumar Member 2 CS A Mohankumar Member
4 CS Ashish Karodia Member 3 CS Ashish Karodia Member
5 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member 4 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member
6 CS R Venkata Ramana Member 5 CS NPS Chawla Member
7 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member 6 CS R Venkata Ramana Member
8 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member 7 CS Suresh Pandey Member
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11. PMQ Course Committee 3 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member
1 CS Rajesh Tarpara Chairman 4 CS NPS Chawla Member
2 CS A Mohankumar Member 5 CS Praveen Soni Member
3 CS Ashish Karodia Member 6 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member
4 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member 7 CS Rupanjana De Member
5 CS NPS Chawla Member 17. Board of Discipline
6 CS Praveen Soni Member 1 CS B. Narasimhan ngsfi_ding
7 CS R Venkata Ramana Member - — Icer
12 Placement Committee 2 CS Sar.1d|p Kumar Kejriwal Member
1 CS Suresh Pandey Chairman _3 — CS Asish Mohan Member
5 CS A Mohankumar Member 18. Disciplinary Committee _
- . Presiding
3 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member 1 CS Dhananjay Shukla Officer
4 CS NPS Chawla Member Member
5 CS Praveen Soni Member 2 Shri Sushil Kumar (Govt.
6 CS Rupanjana De Member Nl\zgmi?
7 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member 3 Shri Sunil Dadhe (Gowt.
13. ICSI-CCGRT Management Committee Nominee)
1 CS Dhananjay Shukla Chairman 4 CS Manish Gupta Member
2 CS Manish Gupta Member 5 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member
3 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member 19. Academic Board
Member, 1 CS Ranjeet Pandey Chairman
4 CS Ashish Karodia Convenor 2 Dr. Alka Mittal Member
(l\l\::rrr?t?(frl,) 3 Dr. Anil Kumar Member
5 CS R Venkata Ramana Convenor 4 Dr Jitendra Mohan Bhardwaj Member
(Hyderabad) 5 CS Makarand Joshi Member
. . Member, 6 Dr. R. Venkata Rao Member
6 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Convenor Dr. Saleena Kuzhuppil
(Kolkata) 7 Basheer Member
14. Regulations & Elections Reforms Committee 8 CS Sanjeev Grover Member
1 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Chairman 9 CS Pawan G Chandak Exofficio
2| CS Manish Gupta Member 10 | CS Asish Mohan Ex-officio
3 CS Ashish Karodia Member 20. Peer Review Board
4 CS R Venkata Ramana Member 1 CS A Mohankumar Chairman
5 CS Rupanjana De Member 2 CS Ashish Karodia Member
6 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member 3 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member
! CS Suresh Pandey Member 4 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member
15. International Affairs Committee 5 CS Nesar Ahmad Member
1 CS Rupanja.na De Chairperson. 6 CS Ram Sahay Member
2 CS B Narasimhan Member 7 CS V Sreedharan Member
3 CS A Mohankumar Member 21. Editorial Advisory Board
4 CS Ashish Karodia Member 1 CS NPS Chawla Chairman
5 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member Member
6 CS NPS Chawla Member 2 Dr. Ashok Kumar Mishra (Govt.
7 CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal Member Nominee)
16. Professional Research and Publication Committee 3 CS Praveen Soni Member
1 CS R Venkata Ramana Chairman 4 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member
2 CS B Narasimhan Member > CS Rupanjana De Member
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6 CS (Prof.) Anjali Gupta Member Kallivayalil, Nominee -ICAI
7 CS Apoorva Kumar Member 18 Shri P_radeep Ramakrishnan Member
8 CS Bimal Jain Member (Nominee —IFSCA) _
9 | Cs(Dr)D.K.Jain Member 19 ;gréV'ShaI Bhat, Nominee = | member
10 | CS Nitin Somani Member 24. ESG and Sustainability Board
11 | CS Pranav Kumar Member 1 CS Ranjeet Pandey Chairman
12 CS (Prof.) Rabi Narayan Kar Member . Co-
13 | CS Sheik Latheef Member 2 | ©5 Ashish Garg Chairman
14 CS (Dr.) Sudheendhra Putty Member 3 CS R. Venkata Ramana Member
22. Auditing Standards Board 4 CS Rajesh Tarpara Member
1 CS Vineet K Chaudhary Chairman > CS Abhinav Agarwal Member
2 CS Chennur Dwarakanath Member 6 Ms. Aruna C. Newton Member
3 CS Manoj Kumar Purbey Member ! CS Bhasker Joshi Member
4 CS Praveen Soni Member 8 CS J Sundharesan Member
5 CS Amit Kaushal Member 9 CS Mangal Kulkarni (Ms.) Member
6 CS G V Srinivas Murthy Member 10 CS Pankaj Chourasia Member
7 CS Jagdish Patra Member 11 CS S. Sudhakar Member
8 CS K Venkataraman Member 12 CS Sachin Mishra Member
9 CS Kuldeep Dayal Das Member 13 CS Shashi Bhushan Singh Member
Ruchandani 14 CS Shujath Bin Ali Member
10 gﬁa'é‘:;g”dmi Dinesh Member Reprgsentatiyes Members
11 CS Manoj Rajaram Hurkat Member 15 ggbgigr??aﬁ\?eu{)? NSE Member
12 CS Pankaj Virmani Member 16 CS Pradeep Ramakrishnan, Member
13 | CS Ravi Sharma Member Egpgizﬁézn}\éz r?]fa :FRS;JA
14 CS Sachin Agarwal Member 17 : ! Member
15 CS Alok Pan(g;ey Member E/Iesprsej\?:tza;t_l;/\?v;; ==
16 Representatives of SEBI Member 18 Rebresentative of ,CII Member
17 Representatives of BSE Member 19 g/IErBII?ajesh Kumar Dangeti, Member
18 Representatives of NSE Member ..
- 20 CS Sachin Jain, BSE Member
23, Secretarial Standards Board a 25. Professional Skills Enhancement Board
! CS Nagendra D Rao Chairman 1 CS Devendra V Deshpande Chairman
2 CSA MohanKumar Member > CSNPS Chawla Member
3 cs Pr_aveen_ Soni Member 3. CS Sandip Kejriwal Member
4 CS Ajay J_a|swa| — Member 4. CS Suresh Pandey Member
5 CS Awanish Dwivedi Member 5. CS B Renganathan Mermber
6 CSB S-hanmugasundara}m Member 6. CS Jude Dsouza Mermber
! CS Kalidas Ramaswaml Member 7. CS Mahesh Anant Athavale Member
8 CS Makar_and Joshi Member 8. CS P Sivakumar Mermber
S cS Pan.kaj Tandon Member 9. CS Raghavendra Joshi Member
10 CS Prapo_t Tungare Member 10 CA Rajat Jain Mermber
E E: Ezjdnrlaﬁzr:dey mZEE:: 11. Dr. Suneel Keswani Member
- 12. CS Unnati Kanani Member
13 CS Sanj_ee\{ Grover Member 13 CS Vikas Agarwal Member
14 CS Savithri Parekh Member 1 CS Yogesh Kumar Member
15 CS Sudhakar S:flraswatula Member 26. MSME and Start-Up Board
C,\?:p;?;;rt]igzvi::ﬁmbers 1 CS Rajiv Bajaj Chairman
16 Nominee — ICMAI Member 2 CS Sandip Kejriwal Member
17 CA Babu Abraham Member 3 CS Venkata Ramana R Member
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4 CS (Dr.) Ajay Garg Member 10 CS Gaurav Arora Member
5 CS (Dr.) Ajay Jaiswal Member 11 Mr. Gaurav Mahani Member
6 CS Ajay Sancheti Member 12 CS L N Joshi Member
6 CS Anil Rustagi Member 13 CS N Balasubramanian Member
7 Wg Cdr Anthony Anish Member 14 CS Rajesh Kumar Loomba Member

(Retd.) 15 Mr. Rajiv Chawla Member
8 CS Bala Nadar Member 16 CS Sachin Khurana Member
9 CS Devender Suhag Member 17 CS Yogesh Thakre Member
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NOMINATIONS ON VARIOUS OUTSIDE COMMITTEES - 2025

Sl. No. | Name of the Committee/Institution Institute’s representative
on the Committee in year
2025
1. | National Advisory committee on Accounting Standards ( NACAS) —MCA | CS  Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
2. | Governing Council of the National Foundation for Corporate Governance CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
(NFCG) President
3. | Board of Trustees of the National Foundation for Corporate Governance CS Asish Mohan, Secretary
(NFCG)
4. | Indo-UK Accountancy Task Force, Ministry of Commerce and Industry CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
5. | New India Membership Development Committee of INSOL International CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
6. | Working Group Constituted in the area of Corporate Governance and CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
Corporate Social Responsibility as per provisions of LOI signed between President
India- Netherlands CS Pawan G Chandak, Vice
President
7. | Advisory Group to the GRI Focal Point India CS  Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
8. | IEC of Indian Bank Association CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
9. | Ex-Officio Member of the Sri Aurobindo Foundation for Integral CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
Management (SAFIM) Advisory Board President
10. | Primary Market Advisory Committee CS  Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
11. | Advisory Committee on Listing Obligations and Disclosure (ACLOD) CS  Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
12. | Insolvency Law Committee CS Manish Gupta, Council
Member & Former President
13. | Committee to advice on Valuation Matters CS C Dwarakanath, Council
Member
14. | Accounting Standards Board, ICAI CS Rajesh Tarpara, Council
Member
15. | Cost Accounting Standards Board, ICOAI CS Rupanjana De, Council
Member
16. | Cost Audit and Assurance Standards Board, ICOAI CS Suresh Pandey, Council
Member
17.| CSIA CS Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
CS Pawan G Chandak, Vice-
President
18. | Social Stock Exchange Advisory Committee -SEBI CS  Dhananjay  Shukla,
President
CS Asish Mohan, Secretary
19. | Co-ordination Committee of MCA CS Pawan G Chandak, Vice-

President
CS Asish Mohan, Secretary
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ANNEXURE-B

DETAILS OF MEETINGS HELD AND ATTENDANCE FOR THE PERIOD
01t APRIL 2024 TO 31t MARCH 2025

Note - "1 No. of meetings eligible to be attended by the member during the priod 01.04.24 to 31.03.25

1. Council Meetings

Name Held™ Attended

CS B. Narasimhan 9 9

CS Dhananjay Shukla

CS Rajesh Tarpara 6 6
CS Pawan G. Chandak 1 1
CS Praveen Soni 1 1

CS Manish Gupta

Date of Meetings: 12.07.24, 13.08.24, 14.08.24,
24.09.24, 16.12.24, 06.03.25

Sh. Manoj Pandey

4, Examination Committee

Sh. Balamurugan D.

Name Held™ Attended

Sh. Inder Deep Singh
Dhariwal

CS B. Narasimhan 9 9

Ms.Mithlesh

CS Dhananjay Shukla

Sh. M.P Shah

CS Pawan G. Chandak

Sh. Manish Goswami

CS Ashish Karodia

Sh. Sanjay Shorey

CS NP S Chawla

Dr. Ashok Kumar Mishra

CS Praveen Soni

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

CS Sandip Kumar
Kejriwal

O[O0 |© O[O
U0 |O|©(Fkr (O

Suresh Pandey

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

Date of Meetings: 29-30-31.03.24 and 05-06-07.04.24,
14.05.24, 15.07.24, 14.08.24, 27.09.24, 15.11.24,
16.12.24, 18.01.25, 19.02.25

CS N P S Chawla

5. Financial Services Committee

CS Suresh Pandey

Name Held™ Attended

CS A. Mohankumar

CS Rajesh Tarpara 3 3

CS C. Dwarakanath

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

CS R. Venkata Ramana

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS Ashish Karodia

CS Praveen Soni

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS R. Venkata Ramana

O OO OOV |O(O|[O©] © OOIWWDH|OY| © WD |O|ww
VOO ||(UT|O)]| O |O(N[(FP|IO(FR|O| P ININ|0o|w

CS Praveen Soni

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

CS Rajesh Tarpara 9 9

CS Suresh Pandey

Date of Meetings: 05-06.05.24, 25.07.24, 14.08.24,
29.08.24, 08-09.10.24, 19.12.24, 19-20-21.01.25, 18-
19.03.25, 28.03.25

CS B. Narasimhan

PR WWINININ|W

CS Ashish Karodia

2. Executive Committee

NI

CS C. Dwarakanath 1

Name Held™! Attended

Dates of Meetings: 20.06.24, 29.10.24, 28.02.25

CS B. Narasimhan 8 7

6. Corporate Laws and Governance Committee

CS Dhananjay Shukla

Name Held™ Attended

Sh. Inder Deep Singh
Dhariwal

CS Manish Gupta 2 2

CS A. Mohankumar

CS Manish Gupta

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

CS C. Dwarakanath

CS Pawan G. Chandak

co|~|~| NN

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS R. Venkata Ramana

0O |0O|0O(C0| OO |00

CS Sandip Kumar
L 7
Kejriwal

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

Date of Meetings: 16.04.24, 19.06.24, 19.07.24,
28.08.24, 24.09.24, 23.10.24, 16.12.24, 07.03.25

CS Sandip Kumar
Kejriwal

CS Suresh Pandey

3. Finance Committee

Dr. Ashok Kumar Mishra

Name Held™! Attended

CS C. Dwarakanath

CS B. Narasimhan 5 5

N RSN IS

CS Ashish Karodia

CS Dhananjay Shukla

RlRklklo o [kr|Nk|k|k

CS Rajesh Tarpara 1

CS A. Mohankumar

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

Date of Meetings: 10.07.24, 06.03.25

DO ||
DWW |o™

CS R. Venkata Ramana

7. Professional Development Committee

Name | Held? |  Attended
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CS B. Narasimhan

Sh. M.P Shah

Date of Meeting: 26.06.24, 28.08.24, 03.03.25

CS Ashish Karodia

11. Chapter Development & Coordination

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

CS N P S Chawla

CS Rajesh Tarpara

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

CS Sandip Kumar
Kejriwal

CS Dhananjay Shukla

CS Sanjay Shorey

RO & WWO|IRrIFLOlW

CS Praveen Soni

RlRRPRFR D W WRWW|S

CS R. Venkata Ramana 1

Date of Meetings: 19.06.24, 16.10.24, 30.12.24,
27.02.25

Committee

Name Held™ Attended
CS Dhananjay Shukla 1 1
CS Sandip Kumar 4 4
Kejriwal

CS A. Mohankumar 4 1
CS Ashish Karodia 4 3
CS NP S Chawla 4 0
CS Praveen Soni 3 3
CS Suresh Pandey 4 1
CS C. Dwarakanath 1 1
CS R. Venkata Ramana 1 1

8. Training & Educational Facilities Committee

Date of Meeting: 11.09.24, 10.01.25, 18.01.25, 28.02.25

Name Held™! Attended

12. PMQ Course Committee

CS Dhananjay Shukla 1 1

Name Held™ Attended

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS Suresh Pandey 2 2

Dr. Ashok Kumar Mishra

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS Manish Gupta

CS A. Mohankumar

CS A. Mohankumar

CS Ashish Karodia

CS C. Dwarakanath

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

CS Praveen Soni

CS N P S Chawla

CS R. Venkata Ramana

CS R. Venkata Ramana

CS Suresh Pandey

CS Praveen Soni

Sh. Balamurugan D.

CS Rajesh Tarpara

PPN

CS N P S Chawla

RPWWIWIN[WIW|N
RPRPWWONWIFLIN

CS C. Dwarakanath 1

ook kIN kRN

CS Ashish Karodia 1

Date of Meetings: 04.07.24, 28.12.24, 27.02.25

Date of Meetings: 28.08.24, 05.03.25

13. Placement Committee

9. Practising Company Secretaries Committee

Name Held™ Attended

Name Held™! Attended

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey 3 1

CS C. Dwarakanath 5 5

CS Ashish Karodia

CS Manish Gupta

CS C. Dwarakanath

CS A. Mohankumar

CS N P S Chawla

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS Rajesh Tarpara

CS R. Venkata Ramana

CS Suresh Pandey

CS Rajesh Tarpara

CS A. Mohankumar

CS Sandip Kumar
Kejriwal

CS Praveen Soni

PP (RPFPINWININ

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

CS Praveen Soni

CS Suresh Pandey

CS Sandip Kumar
L 1
Kejriwal
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CS Rupanjana De (Ms.) 0

Date of Meetings: 30.08.24, 18.01.25, 27.02.25

Date of Meetings: 19.06.24, 29.08.24, 10.01.25,
16.01.25, 28.02.25

14. ICSI-CCGRT Management Committee

10. Information Technology Committee

Name Held™ Attended

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.) 3 3

CS C. Dwarakanath

CS Manish Gupta

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

CS N P S Chawla

CS R. Venkata Ramana

Name Held™ Attended
CS Dhananjay Shukla 6 6
CS Ashish Karodia 6 6
CS Manish Gupta 6 6
CS Pawan G. Chandak 4 4
CS R. Venkata Ramana 6 6
CS Sandip Kumar
S 6 6
Kejriwal
CS C. Dwarakanath 2 1

CS Rajesh Tarpara

CS Praveen Soni

RPIRPWWINWWIN
ORPWIWOINIO|IN

CS Suresh Pandey

Date of Meeting: 16.04.24, 08.05.24, 19.06.24, 22.07.24,
27.02.25, 05.03.25
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15. Regulation and Election Reforms Committee

20. Disciplinary Committee

Name Held™ Attended
CS Pawan G. Chandak 3 3
CS Manish Gupta 4 2
CS C. Dwarakanath 4 4
CS Praveen Soni 3 3
CS Sandip Kumar 4 5
Kejriwal

CS R. Venkata Ramana 1 1
CS Suresh Pandey 1 1
CS Rupanjana De (Ms.) 1 0
CS Ashish Karodia 1 0

Date of Meetings: 21.06.24, 28.08.24, 23.10.24,
10.03.25

16. Quality Review Board

Name Held™ Attended
Ms. Nishi Singh 1 1
CS Pawan G. Chandak 1 1
Sh. Deepak Kapoor 1 1
Sh. Chandra Wadhwa 1 1

Date of Meetings: 13.05.24

17. International Affairs Committee

Name Held™ Attended
CS B. Narasimhan 23 22
Sh. Sushil Kumar 25 25
Sh. Sunil Dadhe 25 25
CS Manish Gupta 25 25
CS C. Dwarakanath 25 23
CS Dhananjay Shukla 2 2
Date of Meetings: 12.04.24, 13.04.24, 29.04.24,
30.04.24, 14.05.24, 15.05.24, 10.06.24, 11.06.24,
24.06.24, 25.06.24, 15.07.24, 16.07.24, 05.08.24,
06.08.24, 09.09.24, 10.09.24, 17.10.24, 18.10.24,
05.11.24, 19.11.24, 04.12.24, 17.01.25, 18.01.25,
04.03.25, 05.03.25

21. Peer Review Board
Name Held™ Attended
CS A. Mohankumar 3 3
CS Ashish Karodia 3 3
CS C. Dwarakanath 3 3
CS Rajesh Tarpara 3 3
CS Nagendra D Rao 3 2
CS Nesar Ahmad 3 1
CS Prashanth Diwan 3 2
CS V. Sreedharan 3 2

Date of Meetings: 20.04.24, 23.08.24, 31.12.24

22. Expert Advisory Board

Name

Held™

Attended

CS Praveen Soni 2

2

CS NP S Chawla

Name Held™ Attended
CS B. Narasimhan 1 1
CS A. Mohankumar 2 1
CS Ashish Karodia 2 2
CS Rupanjana De (Ms.) 2 2
CS NP S Chawla 2 0
CS Manoj Kumar Purbey 2 1
CS Sandip Kumar 1 0

Kejriwal

CS Manoj Kumar Purbey

CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal

Date of Meetings: 16.05.24, 04.03.25

CS R. Venkata Ramana

18. Professional Research and Publication
Committee

CS Ravi Varma

Name Held™ Attended

CS Ashok Tyagi

RINININIOINO

CS R. Venkata Ramana 3 3

2
2
2
2
CS Veerash Mysore Jagadish 2
2
2
4

Date of Meetings: 20.06.24, 09.07.2

Dr. Ashok Kumar Mishra

CS C. Dwarakanath

23. MSME and Startup Board

CS N P S Chawla

Name

Held™

Attended

CS Pawan G. Chandak

CS Rajiv Bajaj 2

2

CS Rajesh Tarpara

CS Rupanjana De (Ms.)

CS Sandip Kumar

Kejriwal

CS Suresh Pandey

CS L. N. Joshi

RPINWIWINWW|IN

CS B. Narasimhan

Rk N RN o|w|-

CS Praveen Soni 1

W(g. Cdr. Sh. Anthony
Anish (Rtd.)

Date of Meetings: 04.09.24, 09.01.25, 28.02.25

CS Maneesh Srivastava

19. Board of Discipline

CS Gaurav Arora

CS Preet Deep Singh (Dr.)

CS Yogesh Khakre

CS Bala Nadara

Name Held™ Att((ejnde
CS Pawan G. Chandak 7 7
CS Sandip Kumar Kejriwal 7 7
CS Asish Mohan 7 7

CS Ajay Jaiswal

Sh. Rajiv Chawla

Date of Meetings: 10.04.24, 07.06.24, 26-27.06.24,
20-21.08.24, 16.12.24, 07-08.01.25, 17.03.25

CS Ajay Garg (Dr.)

NINFININININIFPIO| N |k O

2
2
2
2
2
2
Sh. Gaurav Mahani 2
2
2
2
2
2
2

Date of Meetings: 18.04.24, 01.08.24
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24. Secretarial Standards Board

Name

Held™

Attended

25. ESG and Sustainability Board

CS Nagendra D. Rao

3

3

CS Ranjeet Pandey

3

CS Amita Desai

CS Ashish Garg

CS B. Renganathan

CS A. Sekar

CS B. Shanmugasundaram

CS Anil Rustgi

CS Harish Kumar

CS J. Sundharesan

CS Kalidas Ramaswami

CS Mangal Kulkarni

CS Makarand Joshi

CS Pankaj Chourasia

CS Manoj Sonawala

CS Pankaj Tewari

CS A. Mohankumar

CS R. Venkata Ramana

CS Narayan Shankar

CS Rajni Kant

CS Praveen Soni

CS Sachin Mishra

CS Sanjeev Grover

CS Sanjeeb Kumar
Chatterjee

CS S. Sudhakar

Ms. Sharmila Gopinath

CS Manikantha AGS

CS Tridib Kumar Barat

CS Pramod Kumar Rai

CS Vinay M. A.

CS G.P. Madaan

CS Sunita Rawat (Ms.)

CS Manish Agarwal

Ms. Yogita Jadhav

CS S. C. Vasudeva

CS Pradeep Ramakrishnan

CS Ankit Sharma

CS Harish Ahuja (Dr.)

CS Sunita Rawat

Sh. Ashok Kumar Singh

CS Sripriya Kumar

Sh. Shikhar Jain

WWWWWIWWWW| W (WWWWWWW wWw|w|w

CS CMA Avijit Goswami

CS Pramod Kumar Rai

3

WP IFPINWIO|IOIN|IOIN| O ININIWINININFPINWWIWwW

Sh. Pradeep
Ramakrishnan

Date of Meetings: 07.07.24, 05.10.24, 14.12.24

CS Deep Mani Shah

P W [ WWWWWWWWWWWWwWwWwWwwwww(w| w|w

O N [OO|IC|ICOINOININWINIWININDINIWIN(WIWININ(W

Sh. Manu Thomas

1

0

Date of Meetings: 12-13.04.24, 08.06.24, 21-22.09.24
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LIST OF CITIES FOR EXAMINATION DURING THE YEAR 2024

Zw

Examination City

ASANSOL

AGRA

AHMEDABAD ZONE-I

AHMEDABAD ZONE-II

AHMEDABAD ZONE-III

AHMEDABAD ZONE-IV

AHMEDNAGAR

O (N[OOI [WIN|F-

AJMER

©

AKOLA

[y
o

ALIGARH

[EEN
[EEN

ALWAR

[y
N

AMBALA

[y
w

AMRAVATI

=
N

AMRITSAR

[y
a1

BALLARY

[y
[op}

BAREILLY

[y
~

BEAWAR

[y
(e}

BELAGAVI

[y
©

BENGALURU ZONE |

N
o

BENGALURU ZONE 1l

N
s

BENGALURU ZONE lII

N
N

BENGALURU ZONE IV

N
w

BHAGALPUR

N
~

BHAYANDER

N
(651

BHILAI

N
(o]

BHILWARA

N
~

BHIWANI

N
[ee]

BHOPAL

N
[{e]

BHUBANESWAR |

w
o

BHUBANESWAR I

w
[uies

BIKANER

w
N

BILASPUR

w
w

BOKARO

w
~

CHANDIGARH

w
o1

CHANDRAPUR

w
(o]

CHHATRAPATI SAMBHAJINAGAR
(AURANGABAD)

w
~

CHENNAI ZONE |

w
oo

CHENNAI ZONE II

w
©

CHENNAI ZONE 111

I
o

CHENNAI ZONE IV

N
[N

CHENNAI ZONE V

I
N

CHENNAI ZONE VI

I
w

CHENNAI ZONE VII

N
S~

CHITTORGARH

I
a1

COIMBATORE

I
o

DEHRADUN

N
\l

DELHI (E)

I
o3

DELHI (N)

I
©

DELHI (S)

ANNEXURE-C
50 | DELHI (W)
51 | DEWAS
52 | DHANBAD
53 | DUBAI
54 | ERNAKULAM
55 | ERODE
56 | FARIDABAD
57 | GANDHIDHAM
58 | GANDHINAGAR
59 | GHAZIABAD
60 | GORAKHPUR
61 | GREATER NOIDA
62 | GUNTUR-AMARAVATI
63 | GURUGRAM
64 | GUWAHATI
65 | GWALIOR
66 | HALDWANI
67 | HISAR
68 | HOOGHLY
69 | HOWRAH
70 | HUBLI-DHARWAD
71 | HYDERABAD ZONE |
72 | HYDERABAD ZONE II
73| HYDERABAD ZONE IlI
74| IMPHAL
75 | INDORE
76 | JABALPUR
77 | JAIPUR ZONE-I
78 | JAIPUR ZONE-II
79 | JAIPUR ZONE-III
80 | JAIPUR ZONE-IV
81 | JALANDHAR
82 | JALGAON
83 | JAMMU
84 | JAMNAGAR
85 | JAMSHEDPUR
86 | JHANSI
87 | JHUNJHUNU
88 | JODHPUR
89 | KANNUR
90 | KANPUR
91 | KARNAL
92 | KATNI
93 | KOLHAPUR
94 | KOLKATA ZONE-I
95 | KOLKATA ZONE-II
96 | KOLKATA ZONE-IlI
97 | KOLKATA ZONE-IV
98 | KOLLAM
99 | KOTA
100 | KOTTAYAM
101 | KOZHIKODE
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102 | LATUR

103 | LUCKNOW

104 | LUDHIANA

105 | MADURAI

106 | MANGALURU

107 | MATHURA

108 | MEERUT

109 | MIRAJ-SANGLI

110 | MODINAGAR

111 | MORADABAD

112 | MUMBAI ZONE-I
113 | MUMBAI ZONE-II
114 | MUMBAI ZONE-III
115 | MUMBAI ZONE-IV
116 | MUMBAI ZONE-V
117 | MUMBAI ZONE-VI
118 | MUMBAI ZONE-VII
119 | MUMBAI ZONE-VIII
120 | MUZAFFARNAGAR
121 | MUZAFFAPUR

122 | MYSURU

123 | NAGPUR

124 | NANDED

125 | NASHIK

126 | NAVI MUMBAI ZONE |
127 | NAVI MUMBAI ZONE 1l
128 | NELLORE

129 | NOIDA

130 | PALAKKAD

131 | PALI

132 | PANAJI

133 | PANIPAT

134 | PATIALA

135 | PATNA

136 | PIMPRI-CHINCHWAD
137 | PRAYAGRAJ

138 | PUDUCHERRY
139 | PUNE ZONE-I

140 | PUNE ZONE-II
141 | PUNE ZONE-III
142 | PUNE ZONE-IV
143 | RAIPUR

144 | RAJKOT

145 | RANCHI

146 | RATLAM

147 | REWARI

148 | ROHTAK

149 | ROURKELA

150 | SAGAR

171 | UDUPI

172 | UJAIN

173 | VADODARA

174 | VAPI

175 | VARANASI

176 | VIJAYAWADA
177 | VISAKHAPATNAM
178 | YAMUNA NAGAR
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10.
11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22,
23.

MAJOR PUBLICATIONS DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REPORT

Adjudication and Compounding under Corporate Laws

Handbook on Corporate Reporting

Startup Ready Reckoner

Decriminalization of Offences - Emerging Trends in Adjudication (Opportunities for Professionals)

Master Guide for Prevention of Oppression and Mismanagement

NBFC - A Quick Referencer

Insights into SEBI Enforcement (Including Adjudication and other Orders of SEBI, Judgements of SAT and Supreme
Court), jointly with ICSI-CCGRT, Navi Mumbai

Board Diversity - Indian and Global Perspectives & Best Practices (Includes a Study on Nifty 50 Companies) jointly
with ICSI-CCGRT, Kolkata

Guide to Competition Act, 2002

Setting Up of Units in IFSC- A Comprehensive Handbook

Guidance Note on Loan to Directors and Loan, Investment, Issue of Guarantee and Security by Companies (Sections
185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Handbook on Inspection, Inquiry & Investigation under the Companies Act, 2013

CS: A Preferred Professional (Revised Edition)

FAQs on ICSI (Management and Development of Company Secretaries in Practice) Guidelines, 2023

Governance and Compliance Standard on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
Model Governance Code for Meetings of Gram Panchayats — Revised Edition

ICSI Guiding Principles on Stewardship (IGPS)

Guidance Note on Business Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (BRSR)

Financial Statements — Understanding and Analysis

Supreme Court on IBC - A Compendium on Landmark Judgments of Supreme Court (2017-2024)

Resolving the unresolved- A collection of Success stories of IPs

Bare Act on IBC Code and IBC Rules and Regulations

Handbook on Mediation
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Thakur Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co S K Mittal & Co

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

221-223Deen Dayal Marg, MITTAL HOUSE, E-29 SOUTH EXTENSION
New Delhi-110002 PART - Il NEW DELHI - 110049

Ph. No. 011-23236958/59/60 Tel: 26258517 - 41640694

Email: tvandeca@gmail.com Fax: 26255204

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF COUNCIL OF
THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (“The ICSI”)

Report on the accompanied Consolidated Financial Statements of the ICSI
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Financial Statements of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“The
Institute”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Income & Expenditure Account, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information(herein
after referred to as “financial statements™) in which are incorporated the returns / financial statements audited by Chapters
Auditors of the Institute’s Regional Councils and Chapters.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and read with notes on accounts
and matters described in the emphasis of matters and other matters paragraph of our report, the accompanied financial
statements give the information required by the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

i in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Institute as at 31st March 2025;
ii. in the case of Income and Expenditure Account, of the Surplus of the Institute for the year ended on that date.
iii. in the case of the Cash Flow Statement of the Cash Flow for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and generally accepted in India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the accompanied Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the entity
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accompanied financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the accompanied financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

As refer to in Note 29(2)(B)7, Confirmation of balance of a few parties/ vendors at the year end is subject to reconciliation/
confirmation and consequential adjustments thereof.

Our Opinion has not been modified in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the accompanied Financial Statements

The Council of the Institute (“Institute’s Management”) is responsible for the preparation of these accompanied financial
statements in accordance with the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 (“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance and cash flows of the Institute in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including applicable Accounting Standards. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting



[|TT =TT 4] WL T LS9 ; STETETOT 173

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Institute and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accompanied financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Institute’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate or to cease operations of the Institute, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council of the Institute are also responsible for overseeing the Institute’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of accompanied Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accompanied financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors” Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
accompanied financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the accompanied financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the accompanied financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our Auditors’ Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Institute to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the accompanied financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

i.  The financial statements of the Institute for the year ended March 31, 2024, were audited by the predecessor Auditors who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements vide their Independent Auditors’ Report dated 29-08-2024. Opening
balances of Assets and Liabilities have been carried forward pertaining to corresponding previous year from such audited
figures during the current financial year as well as the corresponding figures of Income and Expenditure for the previous year
are based on such audited accounts and the same have been considered and relied upon by us.

ii. We did not audit the Consolidated financial statements/information of four Regional Offices including 73 Chapters which
are included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Institute whose financial statements / financial information reflect
total assets of Rs. 80,73,35,208 /- as at 31 March, 2025 and total revenues of Rs. 20,63,07,697 /- for the year ended 31 March
,2025 and Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities of Rs. 3,48,11,881/- as at 31 March, 2025, as considered in the
Consolidated financial statements. The financial statements/information of these Regional Offices and Chapters have been
audited by the other Auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these offices, is based solely on the report of such Auditors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements
Further, we report that:

a.  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit;

b. The Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

c. Inour opinion proper books of accounts are maintained in conformity with requirement of the Company Secretaries Act,
1980 so far it appears from examination of books and records;

d.  The financial statements disclose the financial impact of pending litigations on the financial position of the ICSI. (refer
Note 29(2)(B)1).

e. The Institute did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

f.  In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the
applicable Accounting Standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

For THAKUR VAIDYANATH AIYAR & CO ForS K MITTAL & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000038N FRN: 001135N

(M.P. Thakur) (S. Murthy)

Partner Partner

Membership N0.052473 Membership No. 072290

UDIN: 25052473BMONCQ3364 UDIN: 25072290BMITAQ7889
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 25-08-2025 Date: 25-08-2025
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THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS N’\?(;FE As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
I. SOURCES AND LIABILITIES
(1) Reserves & Surplus
(a) Reserve & Surplus 1 8,995,599,968 8,635,813,239
(b) Earmarked Funds 2 1,253,440,530 1.231,565,213
SUB-TOTAL (1) 10,249,040,498 9,867,378,452
(2) Non- Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings - i
(b) Long Term Liabilities 35,500 33,500
(c) Long Term Provisions i 10,500
SUB-TOTAL (2) 35,500 44,000
(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings i i
(b) Sundry Creditors 3 67,725,670 110,826,508
(c) Other Current Liabilities 4 251227421 108,913,021
(d ) Short term Provisions 5 110,158,646 58,090,463
SUB-TOTAL (3) 429,111,738 367,829,992
TOTAL (1+2+3) 10,678,187,736 10,235,252,444
Il. ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 6
(i) Tangible Assets 1,724,047,302 1,674.401,930
(ii) Intangible Asssets 8,685,600 860,215
(iii) Capital Work in Progress 7 235250225 269,125,370
SUB-TOTAL (a) 1,967,992,127 1,944,387,515
(b) Non-current Investments 8 5,405,907,254 6,408,043,617
(c) Other Non-current Assets 9 26,981,014 62,070.319
(d) Long Term Loans & Advances 1,236,764 1,136,634
SUB-TOTAL (1) 7,402,117,159 8,415,638,085
(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 10 2,077,080,507

732,004,251
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

(b) Inventories 11 7.348.040 4,215,892

(c) Sundry Debtors 12 50,733,145 46,364,369

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 226,869 527 117,789,329

(e) Other current Assets 14 914,039,358 919,240 518

SUB-TOTAL (2) 3,276,070,577 1,819,614,359

TOTAL (1) + (2) 10,678,187,736 10,235,252,444
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER 29

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

Shree Prakash CS Asish Mohan
Director (F&A) Secretary

As per our report of even date

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 000038N

(M. P. Thakur)

Partner

(Membership No. 052473)
Place: New Delhi

Date: 25-08-2025

CS Pawan G Chandak

Vice President

For S K Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001135N

(S. Murthy)

(Membership No. 072290)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 25-08-2025

CS Dhananjay Shukla

President
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THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA
INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
PARTICULARS Note No.
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
INCOME
Income from Activities 15 1,466,928,651 1,163,016,828
Interest on Investments 16 546,723,993 561,040,503
Other Income 17 41,951,266 38,209,815
Other Services- Income 18 101,913,713 101,490,318
TOTAL INCOME 2,157,517,623 1,863,757,464
EXPENDITURE
Employee Benefit Expenses 19 695,680,657 579,397,324
Study Material & Others / Oral Eduction Expense 138,878,799 111,221,217
Publications & Branding Expenses 8,251,945 6,967,550
Examinations Expenses 20 219,109,932 200,518,074
Travelling and Conveyance Expense 21 22,879,043 25,091,825
Programmes / Seminars Expenses 22 237,920,442 210,117,647
Career Awareness and Promotion Expense 19,962,843 16,169,361
Chartered Secretary Journal & Bulletins 28,230,988 38,279,374
Depreciation & Amortization 6 90,679,049 72,501,852
Legal Services 23 8,180,294 3,722,525
Professional Services 24 7,909,854 13,289,373
Electricity and Water 26,114,404 22,963,292
Communication Expenses 25 7,903,513 8,024,972
Other Expenses 26 162,503,760 159,839,888
Other Services- Expense 27 101,506,923 99,883,210
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,775,712,446 1,567,987,484
Surplus before extra ordinary & exceptional items 381,805,177 295,769,980
Add / Less : Extra Ordinary/Exceptional ltems
1. Surplus on Disposal of Asset (Building) 36,474,048 i
. . 3,715,382
2. Prior Period Incomes/ (Expenses) (Net) 28 290,102
3. Provisions Wrtitten Back (Pension) 33,115,545
- . 12,781,687
4. Excess Provisions Wrtitten Back (Others) 5,001,745
5. Transfer from General Reserve for Leave Encashment -
Liability of Previous Years 79,630,087
6. A_ctuarlal Contribution for Leave Encashment Liability of - 79,630,087
Previous Years
Surplus after extra ordinary & exceptional items 434,776,294 333,687,078
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Appropriation to Funds / Reserves :

- Performance related incentive Fund 14,910,895 13,600,000

- Interest to Earmarked Fund 109,051,663 115,448,308

- CS Benevolent Fund 819,987 591,839
- 2,000,000

- Building & Technology Development Reserve 1,000,000
Appropriations 126,782,545

130,640,147
307,993,749

Net Surplus transferred to General Reserve 203,046,931
434,776,294

TOTAL 333,687,078

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER NOTES TO
THE ACCOUNTS

29

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Institute

Shree Prakash CS Asish Mohan CS Pawan G Chandak
Vice President

Director (F&A) Secretary

As per our report of even date

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000038N

(M. P. Thakur)

Partner

(Membership No. 052473)
Place: New Delhi

Date: 25-08-2025

CS Dhananjay Shukla

For S K Mittal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001135N

(S. Murthy)
Partner

(Membership No. 072290)
Place: New Delhi
Date: 25-08-2025

President
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The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Amount in Rs.)

2024-25 2023-24

Cash Flow from Operating Activity

Net Surplus after Prior period, Extra ordinary

and Exceptional items as per | & E Account 434,776,294 333,687,078
Adjustment for:

Add : Depreciation on Fixed Assets 90,679,049 72,501,852
Add : Actuarial Loss on Leave Encashment 18,910,134 -
Add : Loss on Sale of Assets 201,438 337,330
Cash flow from operation after adjustment 544,566,915 406,526,260
for non cash expenses

Less: Income from Investment 546,723,993 561,040,503

: Surplus on Disposal of Assets 36,712,341 2,691,237

. Adjustment related to Purchase of Assets from

Funds utilised in Prior Periods 6,260,400 i

: Contribution for Trusts/ Funds 819,987 590,516,721 591,839 564,323,579
Operating Surplus before Working Capital

and Funds Changes (45,949,806) (157,797,319)
Increase /(Decrease) in Current Assets and

Current Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (3,132,148) (844,016)
(Increase)/Decrease in Sundry Debtors net of

bad debts (4,368,776) (3,120,653)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 5,201,160 92,144,902
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & (100,130) 31,088
Advances

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current 35,089,305 (65,620,999)
Assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry Creditors (43,100,838) (3,440,316)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 52,314,400 (3,343,935)
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 52,068,183 14,682,183
Increase/(Decrease) in Non- Current Liabilities (8,500) 8,500

Receipts (Utilisation) in Award for Corporate

Governance Funds (Net) (7,755,349 (10.562,686)

Receipts (Utilisation) Staff Training Fund (350,920) (879,873)

Receipts (Utilisation)/(transfer ) from Leave (23.738,144) (60,785,596)

Encashment Fund

FRU?]c(;elpts (Utilisation) Endowment Prize Award (301,292) (508,861)

FRU?]c(;elpts (Utilisation) Professional Development 4,497,035 i

Recel_pts (Utilisation) Performance Related (14,910,893) (13.657,107)

Incentive Fund

Receipts (Utilisation) Infrastructure Fund - 51,403,094 - (55,897,369)
Net cash generated from operating activity 5,453,288 (213,694,688)
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Cash flow from Investing Activity

Income from Investments 546,723,993 561,040,503
Sale Proceeds of Redemption of Investments/
Mutual Funds (Non-Current) 367,417,721 470,258,863
Sale Proceeds of Redemption of Investments/
Mutual Funds (Current) 617,170,225 867,000,252
Acquisition of Investments/ Mutual Fund Units (1,176,980,551) (1,576,510,238)

(Non- Current)

Acquisition of Investments/ Mutual Fund Units
(Current)

(150,547,294)

(94,346,512)

Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets

38,900,453

4,629,525

Contribution for Leave Encashment Fund

79,630,087

Contribution for Endowment Prize Award Fund

400,000

Contribution for Infrastructure Fund

2,000,000

1,000,000

Acquisition of Fixed Assets including WIP

(110,490,829)

(333,964,980)

Net Cash used in Investing Activity

134,593,725

(21,262,500)

Cash Generated From Financing Activities

Addition in General Reserve and Corpus
Donations

710,790

(78,285,972)

Increase/(Decrease) in Library Reserve (Net)

62,912

121,969

Increase/(Decrease) in Building Reserve
excluding appropriation from | & E (Net)

(2,302,203)

(7,837,099)

(Increase)/Decrease in Contribution / Utilisation
to/from RC / Chapters towards assets

(42,870,083)

4,751,299

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Reserve and Funds
(Net)

(38,230)

661,140

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Reserve

13,470,000

12,516,000

Net cash generated from Financing Activities

(30,966,814)

(68,072,663)

Net Cash Flow for the Year ended as on 31st
March 2025 (A)

109,080,198

(303,029,851)

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of
the year (B)

117,789,329

420,819,180

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

226,869,527

117,789,329
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Note:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been derived using the Indirect method
prescribed in AS-3.

2. Enclosed Notes 1 to 29 form an intergral part of the Cash Flow Statement.

3. Cash and cash equivalents include:

a. Cash, Cheques/Drafts/Postal Orders & 632,481 1,342,687

Postage Stamps.

b. Balances with Scheduled Banks

- In Savings Bank accounts (incl Term deposits) 226,237,046 116,446,642
226,869,527 117,789,329

For and on behalf of the Institute

Shree Prakash CS Asish Mohan CS Pawan G Chandak CS Dhananjay Shukla

Director (F&A) Secretary Vice President President

As per our report of even date

For Thakur, Vaidyanath Aiyar & Co. For S K Mittal & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 000038N

Firm Registration Number:

001135N
(M. P. Thakur) (S. Murthy)
Partner Partner
(Membership No. 052473) (Membership No. 072290)
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 25-08-2025 Date: 25-08-2025
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RESERVES & SURPLUS

NOTE -1
‘(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

(1) CAPITAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 149,983,040 137,467,040
Add: Entrance Fees from Members
- Associate Members 11.712.000 10,475,000
- Fellow Members 1 758.000 13,470,000 2,041,000 12,516,000
Sub-Total (1) 163,453,040 149,983,040
(2) GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 8,304,274,905 7,859,077,512
Add : Additions during the year 763,821 83,656
Add : Corpus donation 58,450 24,474
Add : Transfer from Infrastructure Fund 80,968,693 320,436,434
Add/(Less):Adjust/Transfer to Other Reserve 418,351 1,237,485
Less : Adjustment/Utilisation during the year 529 832_ -79,631,587
8,385,954,388 8,101,227,974
Surplus (Excess of Inc over Expe) from | & E 307,993,749 203,046,931
Sub-Total (2) 8.693.948 137 8,304,274,905
(3) Library Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 3,178,832 3,056,863
Add: Donation 30,374 108,605
Add : Interest 32,538 30,213
Less: Utilisation - -16,849
Sub-Total (3) 3,241,744 3,178,832
(4) Building Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 125,038,501 137,867,853
Add: Donation 863,322 -
Less : Adjistment / utilisation -1,374,424 -12,829,352
Sub-Total (4) 124,527,399 125,038,501
(5) Infrastructure Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 32,915,951 32,915,951
Sub-Total (5) 32,915,951 32,915,951
(6) Other Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 9,579,975 8,918,835
Add : Additions during the year - 575,081
Add: Interest 100,430 96,314
Less: Utilisation/Adjustment during the year -138,660 -10,255
Sub-Total (6) 9,541,745 9,579,975
(7) CONTRIBUTION TO / FROM
TOWARDS L/BLDG /OTHER ASSETS
Opening Balance : Contribution -Liabilities 10,842,035 146,038,991
Add: Contrib. from RC/Chap towards Assets -19,556,057 48,339,109
Less: Contrib. to RC/Chapters towards assets -23,314,026 -183,536,065
Sub-Total (7) -32,028,048 10,842,035
Total : (1to 7) 8.995 599 968 8,635,813,239
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EARMARKED FUND

NOTE -2
(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

ICSI NATIONAL AWARD FOR
EXCELLENCE IN CORPORATE

STAFF TRAINING FUND

GOVERNANCE FUND

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

As per last Balance Sheet 182,230,637 178,903,421 10,666,245 10,722,197
Add: Contribution during the year - - - -
Transfer from Gen Reserve - - - -
Add: Interest allocation 14,268,237 13,889,902 839,263 823,921
Sub-Total 196,498,874 192,793,323 11,505,508 11,546,118

Less: Utilised during the year 7,755,349 10,562,686 350,920 879,873
Balance as at the close of the year 188,743,525 182,230,637 11,154,588 10,666,245

LEAVE ENCASHMENT FUND

ENDOWMENT FOR PRIZE

PARTICULARS AWARD FUND
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

As per last Balance Sheet 206,753,541 154,112,218 11,059,871 10,826,454
Add: Contribution during the year i - 400,000 -
Transfer from Gen Reserve 18,910,134 79.630,087 - -
Add: Interest allocation 37,519,032 33,796,827 764,293 742,278
Sub-Total 263,182,707 267,539,132 12,224,164 11,568,732

Less: Utilised during the year 23,738,144 60,785,501 301,292 508,861
Balance as at the close of the year 239,444,563 206,753,541 11,922,872 11,059,871

INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
PERFORMANCE-RELATED (incl. Land &Building Fund,
PARTICULARS INCENTIVE FUND Technology Development fund of
SIRC)
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
As per last Balance Sheet 4,728,134 4,430,779 751,559,289 1,005,023,304
Add: Contribution during the year 14,910,893 13,600,000 - -
Transfer from Gen Reserve - - 2,000,000 1,000,000
Add: Receipts during the year - - - -
Add: Interest allocation 378,251 354,462 55,413,470 65,972,419
Sub-Total 20,017,278 18,385,241 808,972,759 1,071,995,723
Less: Transfer to GR on utilisation - - -
Less: Utilised during the year 14,910,893 13,657,107 - -
Less : On acquisition of Land & Bldg - - 80,968,693 320,436,434
Balance as at the close of the year 5,106,385 4,728,134 728,004,066 751,559,289
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PROFESSIONAL
PARTICULARS DEVELOPMENT FUND TOTAL AMOUNT
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
As per last Balance Sheet 64,567,496 58,032,079 1,231,565,213 1,422,050,452
Add: Contribution during the year 4,497,035 6,535,417 19,807,928 20,135,417
Transfer from Gen Reserve - - 20,910,134 80,630,087
Add: Receipts during the year - - - -
Add: Interest allocation - - 109,182,546 115,579,809
Sub-Total 69,064,531 64,567,496 1,381,465,821 1,638,395,765
Less: Transfer to GR on utilisation - - - -
Less: Utilised during the year - - 47,055,508 86,394,118
Less : On acquisition of Land & Bldg - - 80,968,693 320,436,434
Balance as at the close of the year 69,064,531 64,567,496 1,253,440,530 1,231,565,213
SUNDRY CREDITORS NOTE -3
(Amount in Rs.)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
(SBI;;_Jg)Iles (Including dues to MSME- Refer Note no. 29-2 11158137 34,698,501
Services and Other (Including dues to MSME- Refer Note 56,203,653 73,601,831
no. 29-2 (B)-6)
Capital payment (CAPAX) through RO/C 363,880 2,526,176
Total : 67,725,670 110,826,508
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES NOTE -4
(Amount in Rs.)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Fee Received in advance
- Student related Fee (Exam Fees) 120,285,266 102,568,264
- Membership Fee and others 12,962,431 4,769,930
Payable to Trusts / Funds 58,899,287 7,969,865
Security Deposits 10,264,552 10,264,614
Retention Money 34,904,938 50,625,004
Property Tax Payable 1,621,000 862,000
Income Tax Payable 3,516,721 19,419,060
GST Payable 5,599,384 1,117,629
Earnest Money Refundable 1,622,750 275,000
Other Payables [Refer Note no. 29- 2 (B)- 17] 1,551,092 1,041,655
Total : 251,227 421 198,913,021
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS NOTE -5
(Amount in Rs.)
PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Provisions for Expenses 110,158,646 58,090,463
Total : 110,158,646 58,090,463
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE - 6

(Amount in Rs.)

Gross Block Depreciation / Amortization Net Block
ltems Cost Adjustment/ Total cost Total For the Adjustment/ Total as on as on
as on Additions Transfer/ ason ason Year Transfer/ ason 31.3.2025 31.3.2024
1.4.2024 Sale 31.3.2025 1.4.2024 Sale 31.3.2025
0} Tangible Assets
Land
- Freehold 250,815,158 - - 250,815,158 - - - - 250,815,158 250,815,158
- Leasehold 302,450,802 - - 302,450,802 29,958,262 3,251,451 - | 33209713 269,241,089 272,492,540
Building 1,374,845,783 | 101,033,190 4,440,000 | 1,471,438973 | 400,650,869 | 52,637,407 3,384,048 | 449,904,228 | 1,021,534,745 974,194,914
Furniture & Fixtures 169,779,024 6,062,062 2,073,208 173,767,878 94,524,010 8,346,167 1,741,245 | 101,128,932 72,638,946 75,255,014
Computer Peripherals 116,127,504 | 18,229,386 13,832,724 120,524,166 | 101,539,209 9,898,614 13,331,929 | 98,105,394 22,418,272 14,588,295
Cooling Equipment 86,286,258 6,849,760 530,947 92,605,071 44,122,547 6,923,103 343,119 | 50,702,531 41,902,540 42,163,711
Electrical Equipment 64,527,872 5,820,888 927,227 69,421,533 42,238,372 4,087,111 381,776 | 45,943,707 23,477,826 22,289,500
Office Machines & 60,622,729 1,844,840 1,012,305 61,455,264 42964941 | 2,742,983 845354 | 44,862,570 16,592,694 17,657,788
Comm Equipment
Other Equipment 13,377,738 947,665 718,629 15,044,032 8,909,365 736,195 364,950 | 10,010,510 5,033,522 4,468,373
Library Books 6,607,165 146,977 4,255 6,749,887 6,607,174 122,441 -11,420 6,741,035 8,852 -
Vehicles 1,743,725 2,937 1 1,746,661 1,267,089 95,915 1 1,363,003 383,658 476,636
g)””e”t Year Total 2,447,183,758 | 140,937,705 22,102,038 | 2,566,019,425 | 772,781,838 | 88,841,387 19,651,102 | 841,972,123 | 1,724,047,302 | 1,674,401,930
Previous Year Total | 2,058,968,258 | 396,225,385 8,000,885 | 2,447,183758 | 708,687,964 | 70,503,521 6,400,646 | 772,781,838 | 1,674,401,930 | 1,350,280,290
(if) | Intangible Assets
Software &
vare 38,037,835 9,679,669 25,167 47,664,663 37,177,620 1,837,662 36,219 | 38,979,063 8,685,600 860,215
Applications #
%gﬁ:; Year 38,037,835 9,679,669 -25,167 47,664,663 37,177,620 1,837,662 36,219 | 38,979,063 8,685,600 860,215
Previous Year Total 37,418,300 619,535 - 38,037,835 35,178,572 1,998,329 719 | 37,177,620 860,215 2,239,728
Current Year T(I‘fﬁ)' 2,485221,593 | 150,617,374 22,076,871 | 2,613,684,088 | 809,959,458 | 90,679,049 19,687,321 | 880,951,186 | 1,732,732,902 | 1,675,262,145
Previous Year E‘fi"’i‘)' 2,096,386,558 | 396,844,920 8,000,885 | 2485221593 | 743,866,536 | 72,501,850 6,408,927 | 809,959,458 | 1,675262,145 | 1,352,520,018

# Includes cost of software development by way of reversal of expenditure booked under the head of IT related expenses in earlier years of Rs. 62,60,400/- (Refer note no. 29-2 (B)-

14)(a).
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CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP)

NOTE -7

(Amount in Rs.)

Cost as on Additions/ | Capitalisation Total cost
Items 1.4.2024 Adjustmen /Adj. during ason
o t the year 31.3.2025
A. TANGIBLE
Land under acquisition 86,348,619 5,372,500 - 91,721,119
Capital Advance for Building acquisition 8,323,000 - - 8,323,000
Building under construction 7,719,005 - 7,590,724 128,281
Capital Renovations/Improvements 166,734,746 | 75,596,193 107,244,114 | 135,086,825
Current Year Total (A) 269,125,370 | 80,968,693 114,834,838 | 235,259,225
Previous Year Total 332,005,300 | °2%%%%8% | 389518803 | 269,125,370
B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Softwares under development # - 6,409,756 6,409,756 -
Current Year Total (B) - 6,409,756 6,409,756 -
Previous Year Total - - - -
Grand Total Current Year 269,125,370 87,378,449 121,244,594 | 235,259,225
Grand Total Previous Year 332,005,300 | S2%0%88% | 389518803 | 269,125,370

# Includes cost of software development by way of reversal of expenditure booked under the head of IT related expenses
in earlier years of Rs. 62,60,400/- (Refer note no. 29-2 (B)-14)(a).

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

NOTE - 8
(Amount in Rs.)

TRANSFER
PARTICULARS 01’*()5420'\'2 , | ADDITIONS |DELETIONS TO 3'16‘3 %\2'5
04. CURRENT -

I. INVESTMENT IN

GOVT. SECURITIES

. GOI SAVING

(i) BONDS 1,058,000 - - 1,058,000

SUB-TOTAL(l) 1,058,000 - - 1,058,000

I1. INVESTMENT IN DEBENTURES / BONDS

. 8.70% IDFC First

® Bank Ltd 50,044,010 37,708 50,006,307

- 8.70% LIC HSG

(ii) 2029 95,969,756 1,198,437 04771319

7.99% LIC HSG

i) | g 127,301,079 1,003,056 126,298,023

1 0

(iv) | 7.03% NHAI 2040 396,398,409 323,831 396,074578

0

(v) 7.05% NHAI 2041 389,112,690 126,209 388,986 481
i 0

(Vi) | 7.14% NHAI 2040 373,383,823 20,582 373,363,241
- .

(vii) | 7.26% NHAI 2038 88,038,432 141,905 87,896,527
.

(viii) | 7.48% NHAI 2040 257,321,457 397,776 256,923,681

(ix) | 7.90% AP SDL 2033 247,566,521 - 279,803 247,286,718
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7.85% Bihar SGS

(x) 2032 291,064,271 - 124,666 290,939 605
. NHAI 7.98% Bond
D) | 23.12.2049 1.074,768 2,991 1,071,777
- HDFC 6.88% Bond
(xii) 24.09.2031 994,000 - 994,000
LICHFL 7.13% Bond
(xiii) 24.11.2031 1,987,000 1,987,000
. NHAI 6.99% Bond
(xiv) 28.05.2035 1,938,900 i 1,938,900
(xv) 10.04% IRFC Bonds 1,095,500 - 1,095,500
(xvi) | 7.48% IRFC Bonds 1,972,500 - 1,972,500
(xvii) | 8.27% NHAI Bonds 1,035,300 - 1,035,300
(xviii) | 8.35% IRFC Bonds 2,099,200 - 2,099,200
(xix) | 8.79% IRRC Bonds 1,072,600 - 1,072,600
7% PFC Bond
(xx) 22.01.2031 (Face 1,951,600 1,951,600
value 1000/-)
(xxi) | 7.54% IRFC Bonds 1,029,000 1,029,000
SUB-TOTAL(II) 2,332,450,816 - 3,656,959 - 2,328.793,857
111 INVESTMENT IN MUTUAL FUNDS
. SBI MF Direct
(i) Growth 27,499,000 62,499,750 - - 89,998,750
. Canara Robeco MF
| Direct-Growth 27,499,000 29,999,750 - - 57,498,750
UTI MF - Direct-
(iii) Growth 25,000,000 17,499,750 - - 42,499,750
SUB-TOTAL(III) 79,998,000 109,999,251 - - 189,997,251
v OTHER NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Fixed Deposits in
() Banks
(i) Canara 1,541,165,399 703,656,045 184,798,068 - 2.060,023,376
. Union Bank of India
(i) (CB) 1,212,769,190 25,322,187 33,604,799 974,742,880 229,743,698
(iii) BOB 440,000,000 26,531,404 7,916,841 440,000,000 18,614,563
. State Bank of India
(iv) (SBI) 21,642,187 291,238,067 5,913,538 - 306,966,716
(V) HDFC BANK 600,000 - 600,000 - i
(vi) Punjab National Bank 7,032,987 116,900 3,762,728 - 3,387,150
(vii) Central Bank of India 4,316,447 320,060 - - 4,636,507
(viii) | Bank of Maharashtra 1,921,682 534,853 - ) 2,456,535
(ix) Karnataka Bank 462,431 51,530 - - 513961
(x) Indian Overseas Bank 33,291,482 1,784,615 694,120 - 34,381,977
(xi) Yes Bank 150,000 100,000 - -

250,000
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(xii) UCO Bank 610,000 3,705,045 4,095,045 - 220,000
(xiii) | Punjab & Sind Bank 283,168 283,168 i
(xiv) | OBC (PNB) 842,036 842,036 i
(xv) IDBI Bank 1,700,000 4,484,500 1,700,000 4,484,500
(xvi) | Corporation Bank 2,595,241 2,505,241
(xvii) | ICICI Bank 400,000 - 400,000
SUB-TOTAL(A) 3,269,782,250 | 1,057,845,207 244,210,343 1,414,742,880 2,668,674,234
(B) Fixed Deposits with Institutions other than Banks
(i) PNB-HFL 441,950,000 - 95,000,000 | 389,956,307 -43,006,307
(ii) TTDFC Ltd. 56,875 - - 7,000,000 -6,943,125
(iii) Others 5,339,184 590,482 718,788 - 5,210,878
(v) | Depositwith LIC 114,401,711 7,545,611 23,831,637 - 98,115,685
Leave Encashment
SUB-TOTAL(B) 561,747,770 8,136,093 119,550,425 396,956,307 53,377,131
OTHERS (Specify
(©)
nature)
. BACKBAY EXP
® | PREM. sOC. LTD. 1,000 1,000
.. BACKBAY EXP
(i) PREM. SOC. LTD. 5,781 5,781
INVESTMENT IN
(iii) SHARES (ICSI-IIP) 140,000,000 140,000,000
. INVESTMENT IN
(iv) SHARES (ICSI-RVO) 20,000,000 20,000,000
INVESTMENT IN
(V) SHARES (ICSI-ADR) 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
. INVESTMENT IN
(vi) SHARES (ICSI-ISA) 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
INVESTMENT IN
(vii) SHARES (ICSI- - 1,000,000 1,000,000
NCLT)
SUB-TOTAL(C) 163,006,781 1,000,000 - - 164,006,781
SUB TOTAL (A+B+C)=IV 3,994,536,801 | 1,066,981,300 363,760,768 1,811,699,187 2,886,058,146
TOTAL (I+1+111+1V) 6,408,043,617 1,176,980 551 367,417,727 1,811,699,187 5,405,907,254

Net Market Value in respect of investment in Mutual Funds as on 31st March 2025, is Rs. 22,67,22,378/- (P.Y. Rs.
10,83,12,872/-) as against total Cost of Investment Value of Rs. 18,99,97,250/- (P.Y. 7,99,98,000/-).
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

NOTE- 9
(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS Asat Z%SztsMarCh As at 31st March 2024
(i) Secured, considered good
[gq)aflgfa[\?gtzONRoégzlg?gl(g;f(lfg)s]/ Chapters for Land/ Buildings 1,040,000 36,940,000
éﬁ)”,g\icri]\éznces to Regional Offices/ Chapters for Land/ 16,908,252 16,908,252
(if) Security Deposits 8,132,762 8,222,067
Total : 26,981,014 62,070,319
CURRENT INVESTMENTS NOTE - 10
(Amount in Rs.)
AS ON Transfer AS ON
PARTICULARS 1.4.2024 ADDITIONS | DELETIONS flg$22?- 31.3.2025
I INVESTMENT IN GOVT.
SECURITIES
Q) ‘ GOl Bonds (CUM-HY) - - - 50,006,307 50,006,307
SUB-TOTAL(I) - - - 50,006,307 50,006,307
T OTHER CURRENT
INVESTMENTS
(A) Fixed Deposits in Banks
Q) Indian Bank 28,064,717 11,007,641 22,546,052 - 16,526,306
(i) Bank of Baroda 30,839,635 40,198,282 6,084,202 440,000,000 504,953,715
(iii) Bank of India 1,498,819 - - - 1,498,819
(iv) Canara Bank 34,135,938 32,890,503 19,097,835 - 47,928,606
(V) Central Bank of India 7,796,650 164,779 - - 7,961,429
(vi) ICICI Bank 3,882,642 11,471,474 1,558,576 - 13,795,540
(vii) IDBI Bank 3,034,977 1,040,803 3,031,438 - 1,044,342
(viii) Indian Overseas Bank 15,546,358 6,066,693 - - 21,613,051
(ix) Punjab National Bank (PNB) 3,045,311 1,575,985 275,037 - 4,346,259
(x) State Bank of India 34,037,524 15,448,057 11,688,852 - 37,796,729
(xi) UCO Bank 1,456,672 7,465,720 1,469,954 - 7,452,438
(xii) Corporation Bank 7,509,443 487,457 7,996,900
(xiii) Union Bank of India 38,155,565 22,729,900 28,418,279 974,742,880 | 1,007,210,066
SUB-TOTAL(II-A) | 209,004,251 150,547,294 94,170,225 | 1,414,742,880 | 1,680,124,200
Fixed Deposits with
(B) institutions other than
Banks
(i) LIC HFL 500,000,000 - 500,000,000 - -
(i) PNB HFL - - - 346,950,000 346,950,000
(i) LIC HFL (CCGRT, 23,000,000 23,000,000 i i
Mumbai)
SUB-TOTAL(I1-B) | 523,000,000 523,000,000 346,950,000 346,950,000
SUB TOTAL (II) | 732,004,251 150,547,294 617,170,225 | 1,761,692,880 | 2,027,074,200
TOTAL (1+11) | 732,004,251 150,547,294 617,170,225 | 1,811,699,187 | 2,077,080,507
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INVENTORIES

NOTE - 11
(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Publications & Study Material 1,269,306 1,113,934
Consumables, Stores & Others 6,078,734 3,101,958
Total 7,348,040 4,215,892
NOTE - 12

SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
a) Sundry Debtors
Secured, considered good 302,347 126,594
Unsecured, considered good 261,181 581,374
Doubtful 5,996,147 5,996,147
6,559,675 6,704,115
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debtors 5,996,147 5,996,147
Sub-Total (a) 563,528 707,968
b) Others Sundry Debtors
Secured, considered good 246,879 295,599
Unsecured, considered good 49,922,738 45,360,802
Doubtful 300,000 300,000
50,469,617 45,956,401
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debtors 300,000 300,000
Sub-Total (b) 50,169,617 45,656,401
Total (a+b) 50,733,145 46,364,369
NOTE - 13

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024
Balances with Banks (including Linked Term Deposits of Rs.

10,49,52,324/- for CY and Rs. 29,15,758/- for PY related to HQ) 226,237,046 116,446,642

Cheques / Drafts / IPO / Stamps 8,103 747,878

Cash in hand 624,378 594,809

Total 226,869,527 117,789,329

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS NOTE - 14

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Accrued Interst on investments 716,530,807 705,473,486
Prepaid Expenses 9,658,176 9,806,631
Security Deposit 3,520,327 5,313,088
GSTITC 12,111,824 9,970,167
Income Tax Refunds due up to P/Y 68,732,072 69,548,439
Tax Deducted at Source C/Y 36,169,152 61,589,843
ICSI Trusts/ Funds/ RO/ Chapters 54,526,930 52,927,854
Advances to Employees 270,251 447,427
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Recoverable Others 8,757,894 2,780,225
Advance to Parties 3,761,925 1,383,358
Total : 914,039,358 919,240,518

INCOME FROM ACTIVITIES Note -15

(Amount in Rs.)

For the Year ended

PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st Marh 2024
Income from Members
Annual Fees 163,835,580 163,385,916
Other Fees 565,500 164,401,080 549,750 163,935,666
Income from Students
Registration Fees 138,460,125 132,813,060
Exemption Fees 31,703,750 32,583,750
ODOP Reg. Fees 15,389,125 14,279,750
Education Fees 501,490,550 279,075,175
Examination Fees 305,207,750 269,894,257
Oral Education Fee 26,352,534 28,824,673
Other Fees 19,844,548 | 1,038,448,382 23,358,012 780,828,677
Sale of Publications
Students 13,516,880 10,589,780
Members 2,209,302 15,726,182 2,027,643 12,617,423
Programmes / Seminars
Students 86,655,112 54,768,271
Members 130,635,524 217,290,636 120,238,491 175,006,762
Courses : PMQ/
Certificate/Crash
Students 2,688,500 3,537,500
Members 23,159,600 22,835,800
Others 5,214,271 31,062,371 4,255,000 30,628,300
TOTAL 1,466,928,651 1,163,016,828

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

Note -16
(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Interest on Investments and Deposits with Banks

546,723,993

561,040,503

TOTAL

546,723,993

561,040,503
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OTHER INCOME

Note 17
(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Subscription to Journal / Bulletin /Newsletter 6,611,950 6,579,949
Interest on Staff Advance - 5,347
Actuarial Gain related to Pension Trust 9,929,364 9,358,849
Donations - General 35,200 21,900
Facility Charges at CCGRTSs 296,500 188,700
Receipts from ICSI-IIP 2,712,972 2,846,398
Receipts from ICSI-RVO 1,980,106 2,472,953
Receipts from ICSI-ISA - 202,938
Interest on income tax refunds 6,811,066 3,611,142
Sale of Waste Paper 488,012 567,958
Surplus on disposal of Assets (net of loss on sale) 36,855 2,353,907
Pl?rce)ggggirrl%ss— Fine imposed through Disciplinary 1,810,000 125,000
Other Miscellaneous Income / Receipts 11,239,241 9,874,774
TOTAL 41,951,266 38,209,815
OTHER SERVICES- INCOME Note -18
(Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended
PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Receipts from MCA- CRC Manesar 52,329,214 60,735,194
Receipts from MCA- CSC Manesar 2,642,123 3,436,833
Receipts from MCA- IEPFA 36,336,785 32,975,211
Receipts from MCA- C-Pace Manesar 6,146,071 4,343,080
Receipts from MCA- CPC Manesar 4,459,520 -
TOTAL 101,913,713 101,490,318
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES Note 19

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Salaries and Allowances 550,033,114 500,635,556
Contribution for:

Provident Fund 5,975,679 6,236,351

New Pension Scheme (PFRDA) 42,935,708 37,907,459

Gratuity Fund 54,626,045 9,886,500

Medical Hospitalisation Trust - 2,000,000

Leave Encashment Fund 19,015,420 122,552,852 - 56,030,310
Staff Welfare 23,094,691 22,731,458

TOTAL 695,680,657 579,397,324
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EXAMINATION EXPENSE

Note 20
(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Honorarium to Paper setter/ Examiners 82,512,204 74,181,555
General Observer 10,153,751 11,302,198
Exam Centres 55,180,934 54,583,218
Despatch of Documenets 27,967,552 23,656,057
Answer Books 4,109,218 3,843,359
Question Papers 12,325,000 10,925,000
Office Use Forms, Envelops, Canvas Bags etc. 332,876 633,525
Pass Certificates 773,975 688,585
Travelling 951,584 480,316
Exam Digitalisation of Records/Data 15,420,031 10,557,115
EE)gar:}nF;L:ibOI;shmg E--Admit Card/ E-Result -CS 708,000 708,000
Exam CSEET 7,289,523 7,676,648
Exam Others 1,385,284 1,282,498
TOTAL 219,109,932 200,518,074
TRAVELLING AND CONVEYANCE EXPENSE Note 21

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Travelling Expenses 21,936,970 24,336,309
Conveyance Expenses 942,073 755,516
TOTAL 22,879,043 25,091,825
PROGRAMMES / SEMINAR EXPENSES Note 22

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Programmes / Seminars of Members 139,972,935 135,240,258
Programmes / Seminars of Students
a) Student Training Programmes 95,466,989 72,949,915
b) Other Programmes 2,480,518 1,927,474
TOTAL 237,920,442 210,117,647
LEGAL SERVICES Note - 23
(Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended
PARTICULARS
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Fees for Legal Services 8,180,294 8,180,294 3,722,525 3,722,525
TOTAL 8,180,294 3,722,525
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Note-24

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

Professional Services - Consultants 6,074,409 11,394,082
Professional Services -Other than 1.835.445 7,000,854 1.895.201 13.289.373
Consultants

TOTAL 7,909,854 13,289,373
COMMUNICATION EXPENSES Note - 25

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

- Telephone / Fax / E-mail / SMS 4,932,431 4,912,668

- Courier / Postage 2,971,082 7,903,513 3,112,304 8,024,972
TOTAL 7,903,513 8,024,972

OTHER EXPENSES Note - 26

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS

For the year ended

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Rent, Rates and Taxes 18,563,911 17,386,827
Stationery 8,807,147 8,414,774
Insurance 1,648,724 1,301,187
Repairs and Maintenance
- Buildings 7,678,795 4,208,833
- Computer 9,715,986 9,197,622
- Other Assets 11,689,566 10,487,506
- Vehicles 627,618 29,711,965 615,739 24,509,700
Office Expenses 49,159,932 43,448,944
Newspapers and Periodicals 141,573 270,935
IT Expenses 33,676,986 36,023,385
Meeting expenses 3,869,762 3,784,727
Packing and Despatch 48,069 42,265
Loss/Write-off of Stocks 231,782 174,400
Bank Charges 4,139,476 3,974,196
Student Scholarship and Awards 251,870 321,743
Statutory Auditors Fees:
- Audit Fees 2,148,029 1,495,336
- Other Certification Services 111,010 2,259,039 318,664 1,814,000
Internal Audit Fees 1,915,523 1,741,488
Contribution to Appellate Authority 2,750,000 2,500,000
GST Input Reversal 116,889 222,188
Unclaimable GST Credit written off 151,000 - -
Building Inaugurartion/ Foundation stone laying Exps. 714,762 - -
Miscellaneous expenses [Refer Note no. 29- 2 (B)- 17] 1,820,834 6,180,286
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Bad Debts 132,070 102,831
Sundry Amount Adjustment/ Written Off 1,786,389 - 6,528,405
Late Fee/ Interest on GST/TDS 14,844 3,354
TDS / Income Tax Recoverable written off 61,251 -
Expenses related to 1P/ RVO/ ISA/ ADR/ IGPI 529,962 1,094,253
TOTAL 162,503,760 159,839,888

OTHER SERVICE - EXPENSES Note 27

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended
PARTICULARS

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

CRC Manesar Expenses 52,413,359 59,531,601

CSC Manesar Expenses 2,615,964 3,402,805

MCA- IEPFA Expenses 35,977,017 32,648,725

C-Pace Manesar Expenses 6,085,217 4,300,079

CPC Manesar Expenses 4,415,366 -

TOTAL 101,506,923 99,883,210

PRIOR PERIOD EXPENSES (NET OF INCOME) Note 28

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended

PARTICULARS 31st March 2025 31st March
2024

Prior Period Expenses 4,587,834 13,656,751
Less: Prior Period Incomes (Refer Note 29-2-(B)-14) 8,303,216 13,366,559
TOTAL -3,715,382 290,192
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THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA
(CONSOLIDATED)

NOTE-29
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“the Institute or ICSI") having its Head Office at New Delhi, was
incorporated by the then Department of Company Affairs (DCA), Government of India, on 4™ October 1968, as a Company
limited by guarantee licensed under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 is recognised professional body in India to
develop and regulate the profession of Company Secretaries in India. It is a premier national professional body.

Subsequently, Department of Company Affairs (DCA) presented a Bill in Parliament to convert the Institute as Statutory
Body and thereafter, Parliament passed the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 in terms of which the Institute was converted
as “The Institute of Company Secretaries of India” w.e.f. 1% January 1981 for the purpose of regulating the profession of
Company Secretaries in India. In terms of the said Act, the Council of the Institute is entrusted with the task of managing
the affairs of the Institute.

For the purpose, the Council has constituted 4 Regional offices, one each at Mumbai, Kolkata, Chennai and New Delhi, 3
Centre for Corporate Governance Research and Training at Mumbai, Hyderabad and Kolkata and 73 chapters (including 4
Evolving Chapters) across India.

Institute functions under the jurisdiction of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India. The Institute provides
high quality education to the students of Company Secretaries (CS) Course and sets best quality standards for CS Members.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The Financial Statements are drawn up under historical cost convention and going concern basis and have been prepared in
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and generally
accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP). All income & expenses are accounted on accrual basis unless
otherwise stated. The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements consistent with applied by the
Institute and are consistent with those used in previous year unless otherwise stated.
2. Uses of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require
management to make estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported
income & expenditure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of Financial Statements and the reported amount
of revenues and expenses during the year, actual results could differ from those estimates. Difference between the actual result
and estimates are recognised in the period in which results are known/ materialised.
3. Basis of Classification of Current and Non-Current

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have been classified as Current or Non- Current.

An Asset has been classified as Current if, it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale in the normal operating cycle;
or it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting
date, or it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

All other Assets have been classified as Non-Current.

A Liability has been classified as Current when, it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or it is held primarily
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for the purpose of being traded; or it is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or the Institute
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months.

All other Liabilities have been classified as Non-Current.
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash & cash equivalents.
4, Revenue Recognition

a. The Entrance Fee is collected at the time of admission of a person as a Member and is directly credited to “Capital
Reserve”.

b. Fees (net of goods and service tax) received from Members are accounted for on cash basis; however, fees received in
advance are carried over as a liability.

c. Fee from students is recognised on cash basis.
d. Examination fee is recognised in the year in which the examination is conducted.

e. Income from sale of publications and other related items are recognised when the risks and rewards in the property are
transferred to the buyer which is normally coincides with delivery of goods.

f.  Income from Investments
i.Dividend on investments is recognised on receipt basis.
i.Income on interest-bearing securities and fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the

amount outstanding and the rates applicable on accrual basis.

g. Receipt of Income/ Expenditure for Programmes/ Seminars is recognised on accrual basis in the Income & Expenditure
Account.

h. Donations —

(i)  The amounts of voluntary contributions / donations received with a specific direction from the donors that they form
the part of the Corpus are credited to Corpus Fund.

(if) Donations received specifically are credited to the specific fund account.

(iif) Other donations are treated as income.

18. Investments-

a. Investments are initially recorded at cost and the cost includes acquisition costs such as brokerage, fees and duties. Accrued
interest paid at the time of purchase is set off against receipt of interest.

b. Long term investments including Mutual Funds are carried at cost including acquisition expenses and diminution in value,
other than temporary, if any, is provided for.

c. Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value.

d. Investments purchased at a premium are carried to the Balance sheet at face value and premium amounts amortized
proportionately over the remaining tenure of investments.
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) / Depreciation and Amortization-

a. Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Institute and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use. Other incidental expenses attributable to acquisition of qualifying Property, Plant and Equipment up to
the date the asset is ready for its intended use are also capitalised.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment excluding Land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

C. Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of intangible assets comprises its purchase price net of any
trade discounts and rebates, directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental
expenses attributable to acquisition of qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets after its purchase / completion is capitalised only if such expenditure results in
an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

d. Land acquired on perpetual lease as well as on lease for over 99 years is treated as freehold land. Land acquired on
lease for 99 years or less is treated as leasehold land.

e. Freehold land is stated at cost. Leasehold land is stated at the amount of premium paid inclusive of stamp duty and
registration charges for acquiring the lease rights. The value of leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease as per
straight line method.

f. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the Written Down Value method at the following rates
as approved by the Council, based on the useful life of the respective assets:

Item %
Buildings 5
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Lifts/Air Conditioners/Other Equipment 15
Vehicles 20
Computers& Mobiles 40

f. Depreciation on additions to Fixed assets is provided on monthly pro-rata basis. No depreciation is charged in the year of
sale.

g. Fixed Assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

h. Library books are depreciated at the rate of 100% in the year of purchase.
i. Intangible Assets (Software) are amortized equally over a period of three years as per straight line method.
j- Gain or Losses arising from sale/disposal / de-recognition of an asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of Income & Expenditure Account
of the relevant year.
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7. Inventories

Inventories of papers, consumables, publications, study materials etc. are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.
The cost is determined on FIFO basis. However, inventories older than 1 year are valued at Rs. 1 only considering slow
moving/non- moving/obsolete. Stock of Answer Books is charged off to the income and expenditure account in the year of
purchase and valued at Nil at the end of the year.

8. Foreign Currency Transactions

a. Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign
currency amount at the exchange rate prevailing as on the date of transactions.

b. All incomes and expenses are translated at average rate. All monetary assets / liabilities are translated at the year-
end rates whereas non-monetary assets are carried at the rate on the date of transaction.

c. All incomes or expenses on account of exchange rate difference are recognised in the Income and Expenditure
Account.

9. Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

a. Contributions to Provident Fund Trust maintained by the Institute/ Contribution to National Pension Scheme (PFRDA)
are recognised as expenses.

Defined Benefit Plan

a. Contribution to Gratuity Fund Trust is made on the basis of valuation provided by LIC and recognised asan expense
as per AS-15 (Revised).

b. Contribution to Pension Fund Trust is made based on actuarial valuation and recognised as an expense as per AS-15
(Revised).

c. Provision for leave encashment is made on the basis of valuation provided by LIC and recognised as an expense as
per AS-15 (Revised).

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise of cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less including flexi deposit linked with bank account, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

11. Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard -3 “Cash Flow Statements” whereby
Surplus/(Deficit) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating, investing and finance activities of the Institute are
segregated based on the available data and information.

12. Current Assets, Loans & Advances

Current Assets, Loan & Advances are stated in the Balance sheet on the assumption that on realization in the ordinary course
of activity, the value will be equal to the aggregate amount shown.

Sundry Debtors & Advances outstanding for more than three years and doubtful for recovery in the opinion of management
are provided for and stated net of provisions in the books of accounts.

13. Provisions

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
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discounted to its present value other than staff welfare such as Gratuity, Leave Encashment and Pension and are determined
based on best estimate required to settle the obligations at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

14,

Grants / Reimbursement of expenses and Subsidy on Sale of Publications to Regional Offices & Chapters

Annual grants, reimbursement of expenses and subsidy on sale of publications to the Regional Offices and Chapters are
accounted for on cash basis.

15.

Contribution/Grants to Approved Funds/Institutions/Organizations

Allocation /Contributions to ICSI Students Education Fund Trust, ICSI National Award for Corporate Governance, ICSI
Employees Medical Hospitalization Trust, Company Secretaries Benevolent Fund, ICSI Employees Benevolent Fund,
Performance-related Incentive Fund, Professional Development Fund and Infrastructure Fund, are made based on the
amount, as approved by the Council from time to time.

16.

17.

Allocations / Transfer to Reserves and Surplus and Earmarked Funds

a. Grant for Building & Other Specific Funds received during the year is directly taken to General Reserve/
Specific Fund to the extent of unutilized amount.

b. Income from investment of earmarked funds is allocated to the respective earmarked funds on the average
of Opening & Closing balances and the amount utilized therefrom is debited to such funds.

Old outstanding amounts under the heads of “Earnest Money Deposits, Retention Money, Security Deposits
and Stale Cheques”

Undisputed amount outstanding for more than three years under the head of Earnest Money Deposits, Retention Money,
Security Deposits and Stale Cheques remaining unpaid at the end of financial year is being written back and treated as
Income for the year. Any subsequent claim out of the written back amount is being paid in the year of claim and booked as
expenses for the year.

(B)

1.

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Contingent Liabilities

@) Claims against the Institute not acknowledged as debts is Rs. 2,57,73,188/- (Previous Year Rs.
11,37,20,483/-), excluding interest which is not yet ascertained.

(b) TRACES defaults pending adjustments with Income Tax Authorities amounting to Rs. 74,590/- (P.Y. Rs.
4,96,890/-).

An agreement was executed between the Institute and M/s Gurukul Online Learning Solutions Private Limited
(GOLS) for e-learning for the Students of the Institute on Built, Operation and Transfer (BOT) basis. The agreement
expired on 13.09.2015. GOLS failed to render accounts to the Institute from July, 2015 and also failed to transfer
the portal to ICSI. Both the parties approached the Hon’ble Delhi High Court for initiating arbitration proceedings.
Hon’ble High Court vide its order dated 06.03.2017 directed the parties to appear before Delhi International
Arbitration Centre.

Institute has filed its statement of claim for Rs. 43,24,920/- towards its dues and Rs. 2,00,00,000/- towards damages.
Delhi International Arbitration Centre has appointed Hon’ble Justice M L Mehta as Sole Arbitrator, Delhi
Avrbitration Council. GOLS has also filed its counter claim of Rs. 13 crores approx. in reply to the claim of the
Institute.

Justice M L Mehta, Sole Arbitrator vide Award dated 23.01.2021 has rejected the counter claim of the GOLS and
passed the award in favour of the ICSI and against the GOLS in total sum of Rs. 1,00,89,479/- along with interest
@ 8% p.a. on the award amount w.e.f. 22.05.2017 to 23.01.2021, payable within 30 days from the date of award
and thereafter with interest @ 8% p.a. till realization. GOLS has also been directed to transfer “ICSI online” portal
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to the ICSI with complete data base and content within 15 days. However, the GOLS has not complied with the
aforesaid award passed by the Sole Arbitrator. An execution petition for enforcement of the Award has been filed
by the Institute in District Court, Saket, New Delhi.

On 24.02.2023 an application for attachment of assets of M/s. Gurukul Online Learning Solutions Pvt. Ltd., has
been filed by the Institute. Further, on 15.03.2024 an application u/s 46 r/w Order 21 Rule 46 and Section 151 of
CPC filed by the ICSI for issuance of precept to Learned City Civil Courts, Mumbai, Maharashtra for attachment
of bank account of JD was allowed. Nazir has been directed to issue precept indicating the amount to be attached
from the bank accounts of M/s. Gurukul Online Learning Solutions Pvt. Ltd., to be presented before jurisdiction
court at Mumbai, Maharashtra with a request letter through concerned Learned City Civil Courts, Mumbai,
Maharashtra, returnable for 23.04.2024.

M/s. Gurukul Online Learning Solutions Pvt. Ltd has filed an application for recalling of Order dated 15.03.2024
passed by the Learned City Civil Courts, Mumbai, Maharashtra. The ICSI has filed its replied to Learned City Civil
Courts, for which the hearing is yet to be heard.

3. Capital Commitments and Other Commitments

0] The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances is
Rs. 18,63,89,221/- as on 31.03.2025 (P.Y. Rs. 16,29,41,655/-).

(i) Estimated amount of other commitments related to procurements of goods and services in the ordinary
course of Institute functioning are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.

4. Management is of the opinion that except the assets retired from the active use/ discarded and written off during

the year, no further impairment of any other assets as contemplated in Accounting Standard — 28 is required at
the year end.

5. Employee Benefits
The disclosure of ‘Employee Benefits’ as defined in the Accounting Standard-15 are as under:-
Defined Contribution Plan

Employer’s contribution to Defined Contribution Plan such as Provident Fund/ National Pension Scheme (NPS)
is charged off during the financial year.

Employee’s Provident Fund is administered by ‘ICSI Employee’s Provident Fund Trust’. National Pension
Scheme (NPS) is managed by Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (PFRDA).

Defined Benefit Plan

(i) Gratuity

The Employer’s Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India is a ‘Defined Benefit
Plan’. The present value of obligation is determined by LIC based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit
Credit (P.U.C.) method as defined in the Accounting Standard-15. Details of the Gratuity Plan are as follows:-

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 24-25 23-24 22-23 | 21-22 20-21

(1) Changes in present value of Obligation:
Present value at the beginning of the year 2,173 2,050 1549 - 1,778
Interest cost 158 149 112 - 124
Current service cost 99 96 95 - 107
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Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation 398 (20) 296 - (62)

Benefits paid (148) (101) @) - (93)

Present Value at the year end 2,679 2,173 2,050 - 1,855

(I11) Changes in fair value of Plan Assets:

Fair value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 2,233 1,944 1694 - 1,638

Expected/Actual return on Plan Assets 136 142 125 - 111

Contributions - 256 251 - Nil

Benefits paid @) | oy | @) - (93)

Fund Management Charges - Nil

’ g (4) ® | @

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 2,217 2,233 1,944 - 1,657

(111) Amounts recognised in the Balance

Sheet:

Present value of Obligation at the end of the year 2,679 2,173 2 050 - 1,855

Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 2,217 2,233 1944 - 1,657

Funded status (463) 60 (106) - (198)

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the i

Balance Sheet (463) 60 (106) (198)

(1V) Expenses recognised in the Income &

Expenditure Account:

Current Service Cost 99 96 95 - 107

Interest Cost 158 149 112 - 124

Expected return on Plan Assets (136) (142) (125) - (111)

Fund Management Charges 4 8 - -

Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in the year 398 (20) 296 - (62)

(Gain) / Deficit to be recognized 522 90 378 - 58

Add:- Opening excess/deficit Amount/Plan/ (392) i i

Funded Asset available over present obligation (60) (150)

Net (Gain) / Deficit 463 (60) (13) - 58

(V) Funded Investment Details:

Investment Details- Funded with LIC of India 100% 100% 100% 10900 100%

(V1) Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% - 7.00%
10.00 10.00 10.00 0

Future Pay Increase % % % - 10.00%

Return on Plan Assets 7.68% 6.78% 7.01% - 7.00%

(ii)_Pension ‘Pension’ is administered by a separate Trust named as ‘ICSI Employees’ Pension Fund Trust’ and
the actuarial valuation of Pension Benefit Plan Liability has been done on 31.3.2025 by following P.U.C. method
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in terms of the Accounting Standard — 15. Details of the Pension Fund are as follows:-

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 24-25 23-24 22-23 21-22 20-21

(1) Changes in present value of Obligation:
Present value of obligations as at the beginning of the
year 5376 | 5301 | “Y° | 7119 6,816
Interest cost 387 399 517 463 477
Current service cost 42 45 47 117 96
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation (101) (103) (837) (278) (6)
Benefits paid (272) (266) | (1,601) (245) (264)
Present Value at the year end 5,432 5,376 5,301 7175 7,119
(I1) Changes in fair value of Plan Assets:
Fair value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 5,801 5,632 6,602 6,356 6,131
Expected/Actual return on Plan Assets 472 395 462 477 460
Benefits paid (272) (266) | (1,601) (245) (264)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets (44) 39 168 15 29
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 5,956 5,801 5,632 6,602 6,356
(111) Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet:
Present value of Obligation at the end of the year 5,432 5,376 5,301 7175 7,119
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 5,956 5,801 5,632 6,602 6,356
Funded status 594 425 331 (572) (763)
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance 594 425 Nil (572) (77)
Sheet
(1V) Expenses recognised in the Income &
Expenditure Account:
Current Service Cost 42 45 47 117 96
Interest Cost 387 399 517 463 477
Expected return on Plan Assets (472) (395) (462) (477) (460)
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in the year (56) (142) | (1,005) (293) (36)
(Gain) / Deficit to be recognized (99) (94) (904) (190) 77
Add:- Opening excess/deficit Amount/Plan/ Funded (331) 331 i
Asset available over present obligation
Net (Gain) / Deficit (99) (425) (572) (190) 77

(V) Funded Investment Details:

Funded Investment Details

Central and State Government Securities, PSU
Bonds, Fixed Deposits with Scheduled Banks and
Mutual Funds.
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(VI) Actuarial Assumptions: ‘

Discount Rate 7.20% 7.20% | 7.50% | 7.20% 6.50%
Future Pay Increase 11.00% 11.00%| 8.50% | 8.50% 10.00%
Return on Plan Assets 7.70% 8.13% | 7.00% | 7.00% 7.50%

(iii) Leave Encashment

The Leave Encashment Fund Scheme managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India is a ‘Defined Benefit
Plan’. The present value of obligation is determined by LIC based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit
Credit (P.U.C.) method as defined in the Accounting Standard-15. Details of the Leave Encashment are as
follows:-

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 24-25 23-24 22-23 21-22 20-21

(1) Changes in present value of Obligation:
Present value of obligations as at the beginning 2,068 1541 1,502 1,484 1.247
of the year
Interest cost 150 169 115 104 90
Past Service cost - 796 Nil Nil -
Current service cost 225 169 90 90 107
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation 190 @) (95) 168 138
Benefits paid (238) (601) (161) (254) (99)
Present Value at the year end 2,394 2,068 1,541 1,592 1,484
(I1) Changes in fair value of Plan Assets:
5:; value of Plan Assets at beginning of the 1,144 1,294 1,143 1,242 1,258
Expected/Actual return on Plan Assets 77 74 83 80 83
Contributions - 381 325 75 -
Benefits paid (238) (601) (251) (254) (99)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets - 0 Nil Nil
Fund Management Charges 2 4) (5) Nil
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the 981 1,144 1,204 1,143 1,242
year
(111 Amounts recognised in the Balance
Sheet:
;gient value of Obligation at the end of the 2,394 2,068 1,541 1,592 1,484
gzérr value of Plan Assets as at the end of the 981 1144 1,294 1143 1,242
Funded status (1,413) (924) (247) (449) (242)
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the i i
Balance Sheet (247) (449) (242)
(1V) Expenses recognised in the Income &
Expenditure Account:
Current Service Cost 225 169 90 90 107
Interest Cost 150 169 115 104 90
Expected return on Plan Assets (77) (74) (83) (80) (83)
Past Service cost - 796 Nil Nil -
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Fund Management Charges 2 4 168 -
Dlee;rActuarlal (Gain) / Loss recognized in the 190 ) (95) 282 138
(Gain) / Deficit to be recognized 490 1,058 27 - (253)
Less:- Allocated Return on Earmarked Funds (375) (338) i -
Add:- Opening excess/deficit Amount/Plan/

Funded Asset available over present obligation ©) (796) 27) (52)

Net (Gain) / Deficit 115 (76) 0 230 (253)

(V) Funded Investment Details:

Investment Details- Funded with LIC of India 981 1,144 1,294 1,143 1,242

(VI) Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 7.00% 7.00%
10.00 10.00 10.00

Future Pay Increase % % % 8.50% 10.00%

Return on Plan Assets 7.68% 6.78% 7.01% 7.00% 7.00%

10.

Disclosure relating to dues payable to suppliers registered under MSMED Act, based on the information available

with the Institute for the current financial year is as under :

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2025
(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
Principal 81.42
Interest -
Total 81.42

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year.

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section
23 of the MSMED Act.

The Institute has issued communication to various parties/ vendors for their balance confirmation at the year end.

Confirmation from a few of the parties are awaited.

The Institute operates predominantly in India and in one geographical segment as economic condition of whole
India is same, further the core objective of Institute is development of profession of Company Secretaryship and
imparting Education & Training for the Company Secretaryship Course. Thus, all its operations fall under one

segment only as per the meaning of AS 17, Segment Reporting.

Valuation of closing inventories of publications and other items are accounted for as per the accounting policies
followed by the Institute based on the physical verification at the year end at HQ/ CCGRT’s/ Regional

offices/Chapters and necessary adjustments is being made in the books of accounts.

The break-up of Building Loan to Regional Offices and Chapters outstanding as at 31 March, 2025 are as under

[Refer note 9 (i) (a)]:
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11.

12.

13.

14.

(Rs. INR)
Location Amount due for repayment Amount due for repayment as on
as on 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Faridabad Chapter 5,00,000 5,00,000
Pune Chapter -- 3,50,00,000
Kolhapur Chapter 14,40,000 14,40,000
Total 19,40,000 3,69,40,000
Income Tax-
(i) The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has been registered u/s 12A of the Income Tax Act, 1961
and Income Tax returns has been filed u/s 11/12 of the Income Tax Act.
(i) For the A.Y. 2021-22, Demand of Rs. 81,99,10,138/- (Including Interest) has been raised due to non-

allowance of benefit of exemption u/s 11(2) of the Act amounting to Rs 1,20,00,31,900/-. However,
after filing appeal with CIT (A), an amount of Rs. 110,94,73,718/- has been allowed u/s 11(2) and thus
restricted the addition of Rs. 9,05,58,182/. Aggrieved by the order of the CIT (A), the Institute has filed
an appeal before the Hon’ble ITAT Delhi.

Hon’ble ITAT Delhi vide order dated 27" March, 2024 directed the Assessing Officer to carry out the necessary
verification of the claim and modify the assessment order.

Subsequently, Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax, Circle Exemption 2(1), Delhi vide order u/s 254 read with
section 143 (1) dated 21% July, 2025 has given effect of the Order of Hon’ble ITAT by allowing the relief of Rs.
9,05,58,182/-, resulting into net assessable Income as Nil. The refund on account of TDS withheld of Rs.
72,55,653/- is in the process of follow-ups and refund.

Allotment of land of Rs. 2,88,56,250/- paid to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (now
Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd.) towards cost of land for allotment of total area of 4918
sgmt (1.215Acre) at IP-Uppal, Hyderabad out of which (i) Agreement to Sale executed and registered for 3140 sq.
mt. in 1st phase, (ii) Agreement to sale executed for 912 sq. mt. in 2nd phase and (iii) execution of agreement to
Sale and giving/taking possession for 866 sg. mt. in 3rd phase is yet to be done since the matter is sub-judice.
Request was made to Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. for execution of sale deed for 1°
and 2" phase. Writ Petition no. 31594/2014 dated 18-10-2014 has been filed in the High Court of State of
Telangana and Interim stay on construction work vacated by the court vide order dated 24-08-2015 in favor of the
Institute. Court has dismissed the writ petition for non-prosecution via order dated 15" March, 2024.

Institute has paid Rs. 80,25,000/- as part payment against the agreed total sale consideration of Rs. 3,21,00,000/-
against purchase of one portion of fifth floor of multi storied building “THE GRACE” (Previous Name- NASA)
in Indore at the time of execution of agreement to sell and registering the deed. Total expenditure incurred in this
regard including stamp duty and registration is Rs. 83,23,000/-. Occupancy Certificate has not been obtained by
the seller from the competent authority and due to the same, sale deed has not yet been executed till date. Amount
is kept and shown as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) as matter is under sub judice. Details of suits filed by the
Institute against the sellers of property are as under:

(i) Civil Suit- case no. 9800255 of 2016 ICSI Vs. Sirajuddin Malik & Others in District Court, Indore dated
19-12-2016.

(i) Criminal Suit- Trial no. 3135 of 2017- ICSI Vs. Sirajuddin Malik & Others in District Court, Indore dated
04-07-2017.

Prior Period Incomes under Exceptional Items includes:

€) Rs. 62,60,400/- being the expenditure on development of software were recognised as expenses in earlier
years, (i.e. Rs. 10,80,000/- in FY 2020-21 and Rs. 51,80,400/- in FY 2023-24) has now been capitalized
& put to use under Intangible assets along with expenditure incurred during the current financial year of
Rs. 1,49,356/- (Refer note no. 6 and 7).
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

(b) Institute has paid Rs. 20,00,000/- as contribution to ICSI Employees’ Medical Hospitalization trust during
the FY 2023-24 were booked under the head Employees Benefit Expenses. However, during the current
financial year 2024-25, the said trust has paid back the contribution to the Institute, as per the decision of
the Council of the Institute and the said trust.

The Financial Statements of the Institute for the year ended 31% March, 2025 has been prepared as per the existing
format in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

The documents in respect to payments related to Paper Setters, Moderators, Examiners etc. and Printing of
Question Papers under the Directorate of Examination are highly confidential in nature, which is reviewed by the
concerned Directorate internally.

(@) In case of Inter Unit Balances relating to Assets and Liabilities, the unreconciled difference aggregate to
Rs. 5,23,325/- (net payable) has been included in Other Payables under Other Current Liabilities (Refer
Note No. 4).

(b) In case of Inter Unit Balances relating to Income and Expenditure, the unreconciled difference aggregate

to Rs. 10,46,559/- (net expenditure) has been included in Miscellaneous Expenses under Other Expenses
(Refer Note No. 26).

The information required under Accounting Standard-18 with respect to Key Management Personnel (KMP) as

per section 16(1) of the Company Secretaries Act, 1980 (as amended from time to time) is yet to be notified by
the competent authority and hence not disclosed.

Durin The details of earning of Income & Expenditure incurred in foreign currency are as under:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Currency | Foreign indian | FOr¢19" | ndian
Currency Rupees CuCr;l’en Rupees
a. Earnings in Foreign
Currency
Delegate Fees SGD 500 29,292 - -
Total INR 29,292 - -
b. Expenditure in
foreign Currency
Membership fee GBP 2919 600 1,99,548
usD 15,000 | 16,35,066 1,500 o
AED 75,189 37,911
i i AUD 3,679 -
International affars and o L | 2eaonr| oo | assies
SGD 2,500 9,000
Dubai Exam Centre AED 19,562 4,83,991 16,298 3,89,544
Training of officials GBP - - 610 68,654
Total INR 42,83,974 43,00,384
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20. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged/ recast wherever considered necessary to make it
comparable with the current year’s classification/ disclosures.

For and on behalf of the Council of the Institute

Shree Prakash CS Asish Mohan ~ CS Pawan G Chandak CS Dhananjay Shukla
Director (F & A) Secretary Vice President President
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